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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 20-F

(Mark One)

O REGISTRATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OR 12(g) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

OR

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

OR

O SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of event requiring this shell company report... . .............

Commission file number: 001-36430

Tuniu Corporation

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @mna

N/A

(Translation of Registra’s name into Englist

Cayman Islands

(Jurisdiction of incorporation or organizatic

Tuniu Building No. 69¢-32
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu District
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 210042
The People’s Republic of China

(Address of principal executive office

Conor Chia-hung Yang, Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: +(86 25) 8685-3969
Email: ir@tuniu.com

Tuniu Building No. 699-32
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu District
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 210042
The People’s Republic of China

(Name, Telephone,-mail and/or Facsimile number and Address of Compaoytact Persor

Securities registered or to be registered purswafection 12(b) of the Act.

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registt




American depositary shares (three Americar The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

depositary shares representing one Class A (The NASDAQ Global Market)
ordinary share, par value US$0.0001 per
share)
Class A ordinary shares, par value US$0.00( The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
per share* (The NASDAQ Global Market)
* Not for trading, but only in connaut with the listing on The NASDAQ Global Market Afmerican depositary shares.

Securities registered or to be registered pursisaBection 12(g) of the Act.

None

(Title of Class)
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Securities for which there is a reporting obligatfursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act.

None
(Title of Class)

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of e&tiedssuer’s classes of capital or common staectifahe close of the period covered by the
annual report.

82,487,876 Class A ordinary shares (excluding 3,6381 Class A ordinary shares, represented by Ameian depositary shares, issued
and reserved for the future exercise of options ahe vesting of other awards under the 2008 Plan antthe 2014 Plan) and 105,948,046
Class B ordinary shares, par value US$0.0001 per ate, as of December 31, 2014.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act.
O Yes No

If this report is an annual or transition repantjicate by check mark if the registrant is not iegglito file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
O Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been subjec
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files).

Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRnle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileCl Accelerated fileO Non-accelerated fileX]
Indicate by check mark which basis of accountirgrégistrant has used to prepare the financiarsitts included in this filing:

U.S. GAAPKXI International Financial Reporting Standards aseidsu Otherd
by the International Accounting Standards BcO

If “Other” has been checked in response to theipusvquestion, indicate by check mark which finahstatement item the registrant has
elected to follow.
O Item17 O Item 1¢

If this is an annual report, indicate by check mahether the registrant is a shell company (ashddfin Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
O Yes No

(APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCYROCEEDINGS DURING THE PAST FIVE YEARS)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iled &ll documents and reports required to be fidgBections 12, 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent toigtglilition of securities under a plan confirmedabgourt.

O Yes O No
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INTRODUCTION

In this annual report, except where the contextmtise requires and for purposes of this annualrtemly:

e ‘“we,” “us,” “our company,” “our,” or “Tuniu” refergo Tuniu Corporation, a Cayman Islands compasystbsidiaries, and, in the context
of describing our operations and consolidated firerinformation, also include the consolidatedliaffe entities, Nanjing Tuniu
Technology Co., Ltd., or Nanjing Tuniu, and its sidaries;

»  “gross bookings” refer to the total amount paiddoy customers for the travel products that we tdelvered and the travel services that
we have rendered, including the related taxes,dadother charges borne by our customers;

»  “trips” refers to the number of packaged tours dmtdis, including organized tours and self-guidmad;

e “unique visitor"to our online platform refers to a visitor to ouebsite from a specific IP address or a visitordoraobile platform using
specific mobile device;

e “China” or “PRC" refers to the People’s RepublicGifina, excluding, for the purpose of this anneglbrt only, Taiwan, Hong Kong and
Macau;

*  “shares” or “ordinary shares” refers to our ordinghares, which include both Class A ordinary shared Class B ordinary shares;
* “ADSs" refer to American depositary shares, repnéisg our Class A ordinary shares; each ADS reprtssairee Class A ordinary shares;
*  “U.S. GAAP" refers to generally accepted accounfinigciples in the United States;
*  “RMB” or “Renminbi” refers to the legal currency 6hina;
o “$“dollars,” “US$” or “U.S. dollars” refers tolte legal currency of the United States; and
» all discrepancies in any table between the amddattified as total amounts and the sum of the artwolisted therein are due to round
FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This annual report on Form 20-F contains forwaimking statements that reflect our current expemtatand views of future events.
These statements are made under the “safe hartmiispns of the U.S. Private Securities LitigatiRaform Act of 1995. You can identify
these forward-looking statements by terminologyhsas “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “future’ “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“is/are likely to” or other similar expressions. Wave based these forward-looking statements kagyebur current expectations and
projections about future events and financial tectiét we believe may affect our financial condificesults of operations, business strategy

and financial needs. These forward-looking statémeclude, but are not limited to:
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* our goals and strategies;
» the expected growth of the online leisure travetkatin China;
e our expectations regarding demand for our prodametsservices;
e our expectations regarding our relationships withtemers and travel suppliers;
e our ability to offer competitive travel productsdaservices;
« our future business development, results of opmratand financial condition;
e competition in our industry in China;
» relevant government policies and regulations ne¢atd our corporate structure, business and ingustr
e our expectation regarding the use of proceeds fhasnoffering;
» general economic and business condition in Chietsewhere; and

» assumptions underlying or related to any of thedgoing.

We would like to caution you not to place undugarete on these forward-looking statements and fould read these statements in
conjunction with the risk factors disclosed in #he8.D. Key Information—Risk Factors.” Those riske aot exhaustive. We operate in a
rapidly evolving environment. New risks emerge frbme to time and it is impossible for our managatrie predict all risk factors, nor can
assess the impact of all factors on our businefiseoextent to which any factor, or combinatiodasftors, may cause actual results to differ
from those contained in any forward-looking statetm®&/e do not undertake any obligation to updateevise the forward-looking statements,
statements, whether as a result of new informafidare events or otherwise, except as requireéuagplicable law.

This annual report also contains statistical dathestimates that we obtained from industry pubibos and reports generated by
government agencies and third-party providers aketadntelligence. These industry publications amgorts generally indicate that the
information contained therein was obtained fromrses believed to be reliable, but do not guaratitee@ccuracy and completeness of such
information. Although we believe that the publicaits and reports are reliable, we have not indepelydeerified the data.

PART |
Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advises
Not applicable.

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable

Not applicable.
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Item 3. Key Information

A. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected consolidéitexhcial information for our company. The selectemsolidated statements of
comprehensive loss for the three years ended DemeBih 2012, 2013 and 2014 and the consolidatehbalsheets data as of December 31,
2013 and 2014 have been derived from our auditedatimlated financial statements, which are incluidetthis annual report beginning on
page F-1. The selected consolidated statementsngbrehensive loss for the year ended December(31, &nd the selected consolidated
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2011 andh2z®&Zbeen derived from our audited consolidateahiiial statements not included in this
annual report. We have not included financial infation for the year ended December 31, 2010 asisfmimation is not available on a basis
that is consistent with the consolidated finanifdrmation for the years ended December 31, 20012, 2013 and 2014 and cannot be
obtained without unreasonable effort or expense.Htorical results do not necessarily indicatutes expected for any future periods. The
selected consolidated financial data should be ireadnjunction with, and are qualified in theirtieety by reference to our audited
consolidated financial statements and related rands'ltem 5. Operating and Financial Review anaspects” included elsewhere in this
annual report. Our audited consolidated finandetlesnents are prepared and presented in accordéthcd.S. GAAP.

For the Year Ended December 31
2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB RMB RMB RMB US$
(in thousands, except for share, per share and p&DS data)

Summary Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Loss Data:

Revenues:

Organized tour 751,38t 1,075,09. 1,892,82 3,432,82! 553,27:

Seli-guided tours 17,55¢ 32,35¢ 48,90: 93,12¢ 15,00¢

Others 2,66 12,87: 20,74« 28,75¢ 4,63¢
Total revenue 771,61: 1,120,32i 1,962,47 3,554,70 572,91!
Less: Business and related taxes (6,079 (7,447 (12,784 (19,769 (3,186
Net revenues 765,54 1,112,88 1,949,68 3,534,93! 569,72¢
Cost of revenues (741,716 (1,073,73) (1,829,66) (3,308,80) (533,28
Gross profit 23,82’ 39,14¢ 120,02. 226,13t 36,44
Operating expense

Research and product developm (21,38¢) (33,370) (38,999 (104,88 (16,909

Sales and marketir (50,589 (57,999 (110,07) (434,19) (69,979

General and administrati\ (53,877 (62,00¢) (69,679 (166,98 (26,919

Other operating income 1,651 775 1,68¢ 6,90z 1,112
Loss from operations (100,379 (113,444 (97,037 (473,020 (76,237
Other income/(expense:

Interest income 2,28 7,432 16,16: 31,28¢ 5,04z

Foreign exchange related gains/(losses),

net 6,52¢ (747) 1,28¢ (5,339 (860C)

Other loss, net (392) (357) (48) (78¢) (127)
Loss before provision for income tax (91,950 (107,115 (79,637) (447,859 (72,187
Provision for income taxes — (78) — — —
Net loss (91,950 (107,190 (79,637) (447,859 (72,187)
Deemed dividends to preferred shareholi (30,929 — (59,42%) (15,60€) (2,515
Net loss attributable to ordinary

shareholders (122,879 (107,19() (139,06() (463,469 (74,697

Net loss per ordinary share attributable

ordinary shareholde!

Basic 4.79) (4.12) (5.35) (4.3¢) (0.7

Diluted (4.79) (4.12) (5.3 (4.3%) (0.7))
Net loss per ADS attributable to ordine

shareholder

Basic (14.1%) (12.37) (16.05) (13.1% (2.12)

Diluted (14.19) (12.37) (16.0%) (13.19 (2.12)
Weighted average number of ordinary she



used in computing basic and diluted loss |
share 26,000,00 26,000,00 26,000,00 105,746,31 105,746,31




Table of Contents

Summary Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas

Shor-term investment
Prepayments and other current as
Total asset

Accounts payabl

Advances from custome

Total liabilities

Total mezzanine equil

Total shareholde’ equity/(deficit)

Summary Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

Data:

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activi

Net cash used in investing activiti
Net cash provided by financing activiti

As of December 31
2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB RMB RMB RMB US$
(in thousands)
332,10: 299,23t 419,40: 1,457,72. 234,94
11,53( 6,87¢ 9,25( 44,03( 7,09¢
— 30,00( 327,00( 468,57( 75,52(
56,63t 127,05( 286,56( 575,29° 92,72:
427,76t 502,83 1,075,37. 2,645,01 426,29¢
55,82: 127,24( 288,96} 382,70 61,68
157,91¢ 244,21 396,73t 638,82¢ 102,96(
250,93t 433,26: 784,01 1,236,29: 199,25:.
350,74 350,74 716,44 — —
(173,919 (281,169 (425,08) 1,408,72: 227,04t
For the Year Ended December 31
2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB RMB RMB RMB US$
(in thousands)

36,27( 14,66: 116,73t (271,10) (43,699

(20,68¢) (46,786 (304,219 (227,92)) (36,739

257,44 — 306,36( 1,540,39 248,26’

5
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The following table presents summary operating é@atéhe years indicated:

For the Year Ended December 31

2011 2012 2013 2014
Number of trips (in thousands)
Organized tours (excluding local tou 174 23€ 367 712
Local tours 40¢ 503 687 1,074
Self-guided tours 49 11C 221 39¢

Exchange Rate Information

Our business is primarily conducted in China amacastt all of our revenues are denominated in Renimiiitowever, periodic reports
made to shareholders will include current perioegants translated into U.S. dollars using the thement exchange rates, for the convenience
of the readers. The conversion of Renminbi into. d@lars in this annual report is based on thertmaying rate in New York City for cable
transfers in RMB as certified for customs purpdsethe Federal Reserve Board. Unless otherwisalnatktranslations from Renminbi to
U.S. dollars and from U.S. dollars to Renminbihistannual report were made at a rate of RMB6.2046S$1.00, the noon buying rate in
effect as of December 31, 2014. We make no reptatsem that any Renminbi or U.S. dollar amountslddwave been, or could be, converted
into U.S. dollars or Renminbi, as the case maybany particular rate, or at all. The PRC goveminmaposes control over its foreign currel
reserves in part through direct regulation of theversion of Renminbi into foreign exchange andulgh restrictions on foreign trade. On
April 10, 2015, the noon buying rate was RMB 6.20682S$1.00.

The following table sets forth information concermiexchange rates between the Renminbi and thedOli&r for the periods
indicated.

Noon Buying Rate
Period Period-End Average® Low High
(RMB per U.S. Dollar)

2010 6.600( 6.760: 6.810: 6.600(
2011 6.293¢ 6.447" 6.636¢ 6.293¢
2012 6.230: 6.299( 6.387¢ 6.222:
2013 6.053" 6.141: 6.243¢ 6.053"
2014 6.204¢ 6.170¢ 6.259: 6.040:
October 6.112: 6.125: 6.138¢ 6.110°
Novembel 6.142¢ 6.124¢ 6.142¢ 6.1117
Decembe 6.204¢ 6.188¢ 6.225¢ 6.149(
2015
January 6.249¢ 6.218: 6.253¢ 6.187(
February 6.269¢ 6.251¢ 6.269¢ 6.239¢
March 6.199( 6.238¢ 6.274: 6.195¢
April (through April 10, 2015 6.208: 6.198¢ 6.208: 6.193(

Source: Federal Reserve Statistical Release

(1) Annual averages are calculated using the averag®nth-end rates of the relevant year. Monthly ages are calculated using the
average of the daily rates during the relevantookeri
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B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.
D. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Declines or disruptions in the leisure travel indurg in China may materially and adversely affect obusiness and results of
operations.

We are dependent on the leisure travel industrgiitistantially all of our revenues. The leisurgatandustry is dependent on persc
discretionary spending levels, which may be maltgréand adversely affected by economic downturrs i@tessions. Although the leisure
travel industry in China has experienced rapid ghosver the past decade, any severe or prolongedisivn in the Chinese economy could
reduce expenditures for leisure travel, which imtway adversely affect our financial condition aasdults of operations. The Chinese econ
recovered in 2010 and remained relatively stabl0ihl, but the growth rate of China’'s GDP decreas@d12, 2013 and 2014. It is uncertain
whether this economic slowdown will continue inf@l8 and beyond. Any severe or prolonged slowdovtheénChinese economy, slowdowi
the growth rate of disposable income per capi@hima or the recurrence of any financial disrupiamay materially and adversely affect the
leisure travel industry in China and our businéssncial condition and results of operations.

Our business may also be significantly affectedter factors that tend to reduce leisure traveluiding increased prices in hotel,
air-ticketing, fuel or other travel-related sectaw®rk stoppages or labor unrest at airlines, iaseel occurrences of travel-related accidents,
outbreaks of contagious diseases, natural disaeterextreme unexpected bad weather. For exanhgléravel industry was negatively
impacted by the outbreak of severe acute respyratordrome in several regions in Asia, includingngdong and China, in early 2003,
snowstorms that severely affected southern Chimaity 2008, the outbreak of HIN1 influenza (swilog that occurred in Mexico and the
United States in April 2009, which was and contsteebe discovered in China and Hong Kong, thehgagke, tsunami and nuclear crisis in
Japan in early 2011, heavy haze that shroudedat@md northern China and some Southeast Asianesim 2013 and the outbreak of Ebole
hemorrhagic fever in West Africa beginning in Ma&®il4. More examples include the disappearanceMadlaysia Airlines flight in March
2014 as well as the crashes of Malaysia Airlines AinAsia flights in July and December 2014, regp@ty, which all had a negative impact
on air travel among our target customers. In agldjtoverseas leisure travel products and servioesuated for over 65% of our gross booki
in 2014. Even though China has recently reachegeagents with certain countries such as the UnitattSand Canada to relax existing trave
visa restrictions for Chinese nationals, our ovasdeisure travel business may be negatively afteloy any adverse change in the visa policie
of foreign countries that makes it difficult for @lse nationals to obtain tourist visas. Terrai&icks or threats of terrorist attacks, political
unrests, wars, imposition of taxes or surchargeegylatory authorities and regional hostilitiesyragso reduce the demand for overseas tour:
For example, the political protests in early 2068 &te 2013 in Thailand negatively impacted travelThailand. We have little or no control
over the occurrence of such declines or disruptiamich could result in a decrease in demand fort@mvel products and services. This
decrease in demand, depending on the scope antibdyould materially and adversely affect ouribass and results of operations over the
short and long term.
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If we do not continue to provide competitive tray@bducts and services, we may not be able to attreew customers or to retain
existing customers, and our business, financial ebition and results of operations could suffer.

Our success depends on our ability to attract neskomers and retain existing customers, whichrim tequires our continual
provision of a wide array of competitive travel guzts and services. In light of the rapidly rislagels of disposable income in China, demanc
for vacation, recreation and other forms of leiguagel has increased rapidly in recent yearsidaants in the online travel industry are
continually developing new travel products and & in response to increasing customer demandstiiVe to stay abreast of emerging and
rapidly changing customer preferences and to coatin anticipate trends that will appeal to existimd potential customers. We will also
continue to invest in research and developmentderao constantly improve the speed, accuracycangprehensiveness of our online
platform. If we fail to keep on improving our trdy@oducts and services and platform at a competjtace, we may lose customers to our
competitors and may not attract new customersdfiitian to packaged tours, we provide other traeddted services, such as sales of tourist
attraction tickets and visa processing servicesindad to further broaden our product selectiorektending our coverage of departing cities
and travel destinations as well as offering mongadieire time selections. If we fail to continuestiurce quality travel products and services
tailored to accommodate our customers’ changingsiaed preferences, we may not be able to selliadali products and services to our
current customers, retain our current customeegtoact new customers, and our business, finanoradition and results of operations will be
materially and adversely affected.

Failure to maintain the quality of customer serviseould harm our reputation and our ability to reitaexisting customers and
attract new customers, which may materially and adsely affect our business, financial condition amdsults of operations.

Our business is significantly affected by the ollesiae of our customer base, which in turn is daieed by, among other factors, tt
experience with our customer services. As suchgqtiadity of customer services is critical to retagnour existing customers and attracting 1
customers. If we fail to provide quality customenagces, our customers may be less inclined to ti@olel products and services with us or
recommend us to new customers, and may switchrtoapetitors. Failure to maintain the quality astomer services could harm our
reputation and our ability to retain existing custs and attract new customers, which may matgaaltl adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to adequately control and engheequality of travel products and services soutdeom our travel suppliers. I
there is any deterioration in the quality of theperformance, our customers may seek damages fromang not continue using our
online platform.

Our ability to ensure satisfactory customer expexeein a large part depends on our travel suppidepsovide high-quality travel
products and services. Our reputation and brandwihegatively affected if our travel suppliers fa provide quality travel products and
services.

The actions we take to monitor and enhance th@pedance of our travel suppliers may be inadequmtienely discovering quality
issues. There have been customer complaints égatilin against us due to our travel supplierdufai to provide satisfactory travel products
or services. If our customers are dissatisfied withtravel products and services provided, they reduce their use of, or completely forgo,
our online platform, and may even demand refundbeif payments to us or claim compensation frorfoushe damages suffered as a rest
our travel suppliers’ performance or misconductichttould materially and adversely affect our bass) financial condition and results of
operations.
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We have incurred losses in the past and will likéigur losses in the future.

We have incurred net losses historically and vkiilly incur losses in the future as we grow ouribess. We had a net loss of
RMB91.9 million, RMB107.2 million, RMB79.6 milliomnd RMB447.9 million (US$72.2 million) in 2011, 2012013 and 2014, respectively.
Our historical net losses were partially attribigaio our spending associated with our rapidly exiiyag business operations, including
expenses related to regional expansion, brandidgédwertising campaigns, mobile related initiatigesl expenses related to technology,
product development and administrative personrei sis share-based compensation. We expect thatllmmtinue to incur significant
expenses to further grow our business, which vifillca our profitability and cash flow from operat®in the future.

In addition, our ability to achieve profitabilitg affected by various factors that are beyond oatrol. For example, our revenues and
profitability depend on the continual developmehthe online leisure travel industry in China amthsumers’ preference to make travel
bookings online. We cannot assure you that makanget bookings online will become more widely adeeipin China or that consumers will
increase their spending on online leisure travekiiyy. Factors negatively affecting our travel sigig’ profitability will in turn adversely
affect our financial condition and results of opirmas.

If we are unsuccessful in addressing any of thisges and uncertainties, our business may be mbyesiad adversely affected and we
will likely continue to incur net loss in the ndature.

We face intense competition and may not be abledmpete successfully against existing and new cotibgrs.

We operate in China’s highly competitive travelustty. We compete with not only other online tras@panies, but also traditional
travel service providers and tour operators, adiand hotels and large, established Internetlseagines. See “ltem 4.B. Information on the
Company—Business Overview—Competition.” Some of@urent and potential competitors may have grdatancial, marketing and other
resources than we do. In addition, some of our atitgps may be acquired by, receive investments foo enter into strategic relationships
with larger, well-established and well-financed g@amies or investors. Furthermore, our business huadises us to maintain a cooperative-
competitive relationship with some of our competit@specially tour operators, as they are alsdrauel suppliers.

Many of our competitors have launched, and mayicoatto launch, aggressive advertising campaigesial promotions and other
marketing activities to promote their brands, acgjuiew customers or increase their market sharessponse, we have started to take and
continue to take similar measures and as a rediiheur significant expenses, which could increasir net loss. We cannot assure you the
will be able to successfully compete against existir new competitors. If we are not able to competccessfully, we may lose our market
share and our business, financial condition andltsesf operations may be materially and adveraéigcted.

9




Table of Contents

If we fail to enhance our brand recognition, we mégce difficulty in retaining existing and attractig new customers and travel
suppliers and our business may be harmed.

Recognition and reputation of our “Tuniu” brand armg@ur targeted customers and travel suppliers bamtibuted significantly to
our growth. We have made continual investmentsilraacing awareness of our brand among customersared suppliers since our
inception. Our brand recognition and reputatiow aspend on our ability to provide high-quality iwumser services, address customer needs
and handle customer complaints properly, maintainrelationships with travel suppliers and provédeser-friendly online platform. See “—
Risks Related to Our Business and Industry—Faiioim@aintain the quality of customer services cdwddm our reputation and our ability to
retain existing customers and attract new customdrieh may materially and adversely affect ouribess, financial condition and results of
operations”, “—Risks Related to Our Business amthstry—If we are unable to maintain existing relaships with our travel suppliers, or
develop relationships with new travel supplierdarorable terms or terms similar to those we culydmave, our business and results of
operations may suffer” and “—Risks Related to OusiBess and Industry—The proper functioning ofanlme platform, including our web
and mobile platforms, and management systems éngakto our business. Any failure to maintainittsatisfactory performance will
materially and adversely affect our business, i@, financial condition and results of operasidriFailure to maintain the strength of our
brand could reduce the number of customers andioketee our relationships with travel suppliers.

In addition, some of our competitors have well-eished brands in the travel industry, and may hawee financial and other
resources to advertise and promote their brandsrefdre, we intend to incur more advertising andketgng expenditures and use other
resources to maintain and increase our brand ré&mgrOur marketing costs may also increase a&salt of inflation in media pricing in
China, including costs for purchasing search eng@yvords and placing online and offline advertisets. If we fail to cost-effectively
maintain and increase our brand recognition, marfcial condition and results of operations maynbéerially and adversely affected.

We are exposed to proceedings or claims arisingrrmavel-related accidents or customer misconduatidg their travels, the
occurrence of which may be beyond our control.

Accidents are a leading cause of mortality and mdd@gbamong tourists. We are exposed to risks afaustomers’ claims arising from
or relating to travel-related accidents. As we eimt® contracts with our customers directly, oustomers typically take actions against us for
the damages they suffer during their travels. Hawesuch accidents may result from the negligemarisconduct of our travel suppliers or
other service providers, over which we have namitéd control. See also “—Risks Related to OuriBess and Industry‘\e may not be ab
to adequately control and ensure the quality ofdirproducts and services sourced from our trawepbers. If there is any deterioration in the
quality of their performance, our customers makskenages from us and not continue using our ompliagorm.” We maintain insurance
coverage for our liabilities as a travel compamy are indemnified by the liable travel suppliemsthe damages claimed by our customers.
However, there is no assurance that such insu@mioglemnification will be sufficient to cover alf our losses. In addition, some of the travel
related accidents result from adventure activitiedertaken by our customers during their travelshss scuba diving, white water rafting,
wind surfing and skiing. Furthermore, we may beetd by our customers’ misconduct during theivels, over which we have no or limited
control. Such accidents and misconduct, even ifeslting from our or our travel suppliers’ neglige or misconduct, could create a public
perception that we are less reliable than our caoitepg, which would harm our reputation, and coattVersely affect our business and resul
operations.
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The proper functioning of our online platform, inelding our web and mobile platforms, and managemsegstems is essential to
our business. Any failure to maintain their satisttory performance will materially and adversely afft our business, reputation,
financial condition and results of operations.

Availability, satisfactory performance and reliayilof our online platform, including our web andbhile platforms, are critical to our
ability to attract and retain customers and proyjdality travel products and services to our cugi@mAny unavailability or slowdown of our
online platforms would reduce the number of out@uers and our customers’ travel bookings. Someetehmunications carriers have systen
constraints that can affect our customer experidhceexample, if a large number of customers bisesame telecommunications carrier at the
same time for services requiring a large amourmiatd transmission, the customers could experiestigced speed or other technical issues
to the carrier’'s capacity constraints, over whighvave no control. Our servers may also be vulhetabcomputer viruses, physical or
electronic break-ins or other potential disruptiombkich could lead to interruptions, delays, loEdata or the inability to accept and process
customer queries or bookings. We may also expegierierruptions caused by reasons beyond our dantoh as power outages. Unexpected
interruptions could damage our reputation and teésw@ material decrease in our revenues. In amditur online platform may contain
undetected errors or “bugs” that could adversdigcatheir performance.

In fourth quarter of 2014, the number of orderceththrough our mobile platform accounted for agjpnately 45% of total orders
placed through our online platform and averageydaiique visitors on our mobile platform accountedapproximately 65% of the average
daily unigue visitors on our online platform. Asessult, our mobile platform serves as an imporéantt integral part of our customers’ research
on travel-related information. The lower functiahglspeed and memory generally associated withilmdevices may make it more difficult
for our customers to fully access our mobile platfpand we may fail to attract and retain a sigaifit portion of the growing number of
customers who search for and book travel produdssarvices through mobile devices. We may alserapce difficulties monetizing
customer traffic to our mobile platform.

In addition, we rely significantly on our propriegaN-Booking system and other management systerfeciiitate and process
transactions. We may in the future experience systéerruptions that prevent us from efficientlyfilling bookings or providing services and
support to our customers or travel suppliers. Angrruptions, outages or delays in our systemdetarioration in their performance, could
impair our ability to process transactions and ease the quality of our services to our custometsawel suppliers. If we were to experience
frequent or persistent system failures, our repriand brand would be harmed.

If we are unable to maintain existing relationshipsith our travel suppliers, or develop relationslsipvith new travel suppliers on
favorable terms or terms similar to those we curtigrhave, our business and results of operationsynsalffer.

Our business is dependent on our ability to maindair relationships and arrangements with exigtiagel suppliers. For most of our
suppliers, we do not prohibit our travel supplisn developing business relationships with our petitors or selling, through their direct
sales, travel products that are the same as diasitoithose they supply to us. If we are unablm#intain satisfactory relationships with our
existing travel suppliers, or if our travel suppdi@stablish similar or more favorable relationshigth our competitors, or if our travel suppli
increase their competition with us through thefedi sales, we may not have the necessary suppheéd the needs of our customers, or we
may not obtain it at satisfactory rates. We doemdér into any long-term agreements with our trauglpliers. We cannot assure you that our
travel suppliers will renew our agreements in teife on favorable terms or terms similar to thwsecurrently have agreed. Our travel
suppliers may increase the prices that they chasge the deposits that they require from us. Aesalt, the amount, pricing and breadth of
travel products and services that we are ablefer afay be reduced and our business and resutigesitions could be materially and
adversely affected.
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Furthermore, in order to grow our business, we mékd to develop relationships with new travel $eppof good quality. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to identify appiaigrtravel suppliers or enter into arrangementh thiose travel suppliers on favorable terms
or at all. Any failure to do so could harm the gtbwf our business and adversely affect our fir@nmndition and results of operations.

We may suffer losses if we are unable to predict #tmount of travel products we will need to purcleda advance.

For peak seasons and for certain tours and déstisatve have made commitments with a number g&trsuppliers to purchase
packaged tours, hotel rooms and air tickets befelieng them to our customers and thereby incueimaery risk. If we are unable to accurately
predict demand for the packaged tours, hotel rommasair tickets that we are committed to purchaskevehich are nonrefundable, we would
responsible for bearing the cost of the travel potslwe are unable to sell, and our financial cihonliand results of operations would be
adversely affected.

We may not be able to effectively manage our groatid expansion or implement our business strategiaswvhich case our
business and results of operations may be mateyialhd adversely affected.

We have experienced a period of rapid growth améesion, including our recent rapid expansion wdotier cities in China. Such
growth and expansion has placed, and will contioyglace, significant strain on our managementrasdurces. We cannot assure you that
level of significant growth and expansion will hestainable or achieved at all in the future. Wedwel that our continued growth and expan
will depend on our ability to provide competitivatel products and services, attract new custorerginue developing travel products and
services and innovative technologies in responseistomer demand and preferences, increase braar@émress through marketing and
promotional activities, expand into new market segts, and take advantage of any growth in the aslemarkets. We cannot assure you that
we will achieve any of the above.

To manage our growth and expansion, and to aclieféability, we anticipate that we will need tmplement a variety of new and
upgraded operational and financial systems, praesdand controls, including the improvement of NuBooking system and other
management systems. We will also need to furthgaed, train, manage and motivate our workforceraadage our relationships with our
travel suppliers and customers. All of these objestentail risks and will require substantial mgeraent efforts and skills and significant
additional expenditures. Our further expansion whiagrt our management, operational or technologesdurces from our existing business
operations. In addition, our expansion has requietb operate in new cities in China, includinguamber of small cities in China, where we
may have difficulty in adjusting to local markethdands and regulatory requirements. We cannot agsurthat we will be able to effectively
manage our growth and expansion or implement durdlbusiness strategies effectively, and failordd so may materially and adversely
affect our business and results of operations.
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Our quarterly results are likely to fluctuate becaa of seasonality in the leisure travel industry@hina.

Our business experiences fluctuations, reflectegssnal variations in demand for leisure travelises. Sales of leisure travel
products and services will increase in respeciotitihy periods and decrease in respect of off-pmaés, while prices of leisure travel products
and services are subject to fluctuation betweek peasons and low seasons. For example, the tiéndey of each year generally contributes
the highest percentage of our annual revenuesubecaany of our customers tend to travel duringnsenholidays in July and August.
Consequently, our results of operations may fluet@iam quarter to quarter. Our rapid growth haslésl to mask the seasonality of our
business. As our growth rate slows, the seasorialibyr business will become more pronounced andecaur operating results to fluctuate.

If we are unable to identify, attract, hire, traiand retain key individuals and highly skilled empjees, our business may be
adversely affected

Our future performance depends on the continuadcgeof our senior management, in particular, MunBe Yu, our co-founder,
chairman and chief executive officer, and Mr. Haifé¥an, our co-founder, director and chief opegtifficer. If one or more of our key
executives were unable or unwilling to continudhiair present positions, we may not be able tcaegpthem easily, our future growth may be
constrained, our business may be disrupted anfirauncial condition and results of operations mayniaterially and adversely affected. There
is no assurance that we can continue to retain skevices and there can be no assurance thatnilieyt compete against us.

If our business continues to expand, we will neelite additional employees, including supplier sgement personnel to maintain
and expand our travel supplier network, informatechnology and engineering personnel to maintachexpand our online platform and
customer service personnel to serve an increasimpar of customers. If we are unable to identifiraat, hire, train and retain sufficient
employees in these areas, our customers may netdaisfactory experiences with us and may tuutacompetitors, which may adversely
affect our business and results of operations.

We may be subject to legal or administrative prodiegs regarding our travel products and servicesfarmation provided on our
online platform or other aspects of our businessevations, which may be time-consuming to defend aftect our reputation.

From time to time, we have become and may in thadéuecome a party to various legal or adminisegiroceedings arising in the
ordinary course of our business, including bredatoatract claims, anti-competition claims and otimatters. For details, see “Item 8.A.
Financial Information—Consolidated Statements atiteOFinancial Information—Legal Proceedings.” Bpcoceedings are inherently
uncertain and their results cannot be predictel eattainty. Regardless of the outcome and mesucoh proceedings, any such legal action
could have an adverse impact on our business becéuaefense costs, negative publicity, diversibmanagement’s attention and other
factors. In addition, it is possible that an unfalde resolution of one or more legal or administeaproceedings, whether in the PRC or in
another jurisdiction, could materially and adveysafect our financial position, results of opeoass or cash flows in a particular period or
damage our reputation. In addition, our onlinefplat contains information about our travel produstsl services, vacation destinations and
other travel-related topics. It is possible that customers would take action against us in thatethat any content accessible on our online
platform were to contain errors or false or mislegdnformation.
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We may be subject to detrimental adverse publigitglicious allegations or other conduct by peopleantities, which could harm
our reputation, adversely affect our business am trading price of our ADSs.

We have been, and in the future may be, the tafgedverse publicity, malicious allegations or atetrimental conduct by people or
entities. Such allegations, directly or indiredlyainst us, may be posted in internet chat-roones dilogs or any website by anyone on an
anonymous basis. We may be required to spend &igniftime and incur substantial costs in respdaseich allegations or other detrimental
conduct, and there is no assurance that we waldbe to conclusively refute each of them withireagonable period of time, or at all. Our
reputation may be harmed as a result of the pdidgemination of malicious allegations about ouspenel, business, operations, accounting.
prospects or business ethics, which in turn codigesely affect our business and the trading mfaaur ADSs.

We have limited experience and operating historydieveloping and providing new products and serviaghich may negatively
affect our business, financial condition and resalbf operations.

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to depedod offer new travel products and services tisfyahe evolving needs of our
customers. For example, in April 2014, we launcheategory of flash sales on our online platfornereby we periodically offer deeply
discounted deals to different package tours offésedur suppliers. We have limited experience gomerating history in developing and
operating these new services. These and other raugts and services we may offer in the futures@né operating and marketing challenges
that are different from those we currently encouriteaddition, the market for our new travel protiuand services may be highly competitive
If we fail to successfully develop and offer oumngavel products and services in an increasingiyppetitive market, we may not be able to
capture the growth opportunities associated wigmtlor recover the development and marketing castsour future results of operations and
growth strategies could be adversely affected.

If the fragmented travel industry in China becomesnsolidated, our business, financial condition amesults of operations may be
adversely affected.

China’s enormous size and population, imbalanced@uic development and differences in consumenbehacross the country
have created a highly fragmented and diverse tiadektry. In recent years, customers have bedtinghfrom highly fragmented traditional
offline travel companies to travel websites foridev product selection and greater conveniencéokijever, traditional tour operators form
alliances, or merge or consolidate among themsetvagone of our travel suppliers is acquireddmother company with which we do not h
a relationship, we may not be able to maintainstkength in offering a wider selection of travebgucts and services as compared to tradit
travel companies, and our business, financial ¢cmmdand results of operations may be adversebctdtl.

The Tourism Law may reduce the demand of organizedrs and materially and adversely affect our buess and results of
operations.

On April 25, 2013, the Standing Committee of thait\el People’s Congress promulgated the Tourism, lvehich became effective
as of October 1, 2013. The Tourism Law imposes ratiiegent restrictions on tour operators. Purstaiite Tourism Law, tour operators are
prohibited from arranging compulsory shopping dreotactivities which charge additional fees onabthe contract prices that the tourist has
already paid, unless it is agreed upon by bothHesattirough consultation or requested by the tbarid does not affect the itinerary of other
tourists. See “ltem 4.B. Information on the CompatBRC Regulation—Regulations on Travel Companidut travel suppliers fail to
comply with these restrictions, our reputation &rahd may be negatively affected. In addition, assalt of the Tourism Law, the
commissions or rebates that tour operators redsine shopping establishments have declined andhizegd tour prices have risen, which may
reduce the demand for organized tours in the short and may continue to reduce the demand fomizgd tours in the future. If customers
cannot adapt to the increased organized tour prizgsbusiness and results of operations will béenelly and adversely affected.
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We may not be able to prevent others from using miellectual property, which may harm our busineasd expose us to litigatiol

We regard our intellectual property as criticabto success. We rely primarily on a combinatiocagfyright, software registration,
trademark, trade secret and unfair competition lamg contractual rights, such as confidentialitseagients with our employees and others, tc
protect our intellectual property rights. The patiten of intellectual property rights in China magt be as effective as that in the United State:
Unauthorized use or other misappropriation of eshhologies would enable third parties to bengditnf our technologies without paying us
enable our competitors to offer travel products seices that are comparable to or better thas. ¢iom time to time, we may have to
enforce our intellectual property rights througightion. Such litigation may result in substantasts and diversion of resources and
management attention. If we are not successfulatepting our intellectual property, our busindsgncial condition and results of operations
may be materially and adversely affected.

Claims by third parties that we infringe on theiniellectual property rights could lead to governmedministrative actions and
result in significant costs and have a material afge effect on our business, financial condition dmnesults of operations.

We cannot be certain that our operations or angasmf our business do not or will not infringengopyrights or other intellectual
property rights held by third parties. We have bieethe past, and may be from time to time in theife, subject to legal proceedings, claim
government administrative actions relating to atkgqfringement on copyrights or other intellectpedperty rights held by third parties in
relation to the content on our online platformmtellectual property rights otherwise used in gperation. For example, our website may be
found to contain pictures that infringe on copytibf third parties or hotel reviews that are thpedties’ proprietary information. In addition,
some of the software that we are currently usinguinbusiness may infringe on third parties’ coglts. If we are found to have infringed on
the intellectual property rights of others, we nb@ysubject to liability for our infringement actigis or may be prohibited from using such
intellectual property, and we may incur licensiegd. Successful infringement or licensing claimderagainst us may result in significant
monetary liabilities and may materially disrupt dwsiness and operations by restricting or pronipibur use of the intellectual property in
guestion. Moreover, regardless of whether we sstelg defend against such claims, we could suffegative publicity and our reputation
could be severely damaged. Any of these eventsldmile a material and adverse effect on our busifieancial condition and results of
operations.

In addition, user-generated content on our onllagfgrm may contain or provide links to informatitirat infringes on the copyrights
or other intellectual property rights of third past or violates applicable rules or regulationseiiation to censorship, or we may use the user-
generated content in a way that infringes on thletsi of the users or third parties. Any claimshvat without merit, could be time-consuming
to defend, result in litigation and divert managetteattention and resources.
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The successful operation of our business dependsruthe performance and reliability of the Internétfrastructure and
telecommunications networks in China.

Our business depends on the performance and fiadithe Internet infrastructure and telecomnuations networks in China.
Almost all access to the Internet is maintainedulgh state-owned telecommunications operators théeadministrative control and
regulatory supervision of the Ministry of Indusaigd Information Technology of the PRC, or the MIIT addition, the national networks in
China are connected to the Internet through inteonal gateways controlled by the PRC governmehese international gateways are the «
channels through which domestic users can conadhbgttinternet. We rely on a limited number of ¢elmmunications service providers,
primarily China Telecom and China Unicorn, to paev/us with data communications capacity. We, ostaruers or travel suppliers, may not
have access to alternative networks in the evedisofiptions, failures or other problems with Cksnlaternet infrastructure. With the
expansion of our business, we may be required goagle our technology and infrastructure to keepvitip the increasing traffic on our online
platform. However, we have no control over the sadtthe services provided by telecommunicatiomgise providers. If the prices we pay for
telecommunications and Internet services rise Bagmitly, our results of operations may be matsriahd adversely affected. If Internet acces:
fees or other charges to Internet users incresa)umber of Internet users may decline and ounbkss may be harmed. Moreover, if we are
not able to renew services agreements with thedelenunications carriers when they expire and at@ble to enter into agreements with
alternative carriers on commercially reasonableaseor at all, the quality and stability of our ediplatform may be adversely affected.

We are subject to payment-related risks.

We enable our customers to make payments througtvelosite by working with various thindarty online payment processing ser
providers. As we rely on third parties to providgyment processing services, including processiggpats made with credit cards and debit
cards, it could disrupt our business if these cariggmbecome unwilling or unable to provide thesgises to us. We may be subject to human
error, fraud and other illegal activities in contiee with third-party online payment services. ifralata security systems are breached or
compromised, we may lose our ability to acceptiti@ud debit card payments from our customers,vemdnay be subject to claims for
damages from our customers and third partiesfalhich could adversely and materially affect ogputation as well as our results of
operations.

If we fail to adopt new technologies or adapt ouebsite online platform and management systems targfing user requirements,
increasing traffic or emerging industry standardsur business may be materially and adversely afelct

The online travel industry is subject to rapid teclogical changes. To remain competitive, we mastiaue to enhance and improve
the responsiveness, functionality and featuresiobaline platform. The online travel industry Is@characterized by rapid technological
evolution and changes in customer requirementspeaférences. Our success will depend, in part,usrability to identify, develop, acquire or
license leading technologies useful in our busim@ssrespond to technological advances and emeigiligtry standards and practices in a
cost-effective and timely manner. The developmémiuo online platform and other proprietary tectogy entails significant technical and
business risks. In addition, the widespread adomifmew Internet, networking or telecommunicatiteshnologies or other technological
changes could require substantial expendituresodifsnor adapt our infrastructure. We may not bledb use new technologies effectively or
adapt our online platform, proprietary technologied operating systems to the requirements of estomers and travel suppliers or emerging
industry standards. If we are unable to adaptdost-effective and timely manner to changing madeetditions or user requirements, whether
for technical, legal, financial, or other reasams; business may be materially and adversely aftect
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Our business may be harmed if we are unable toaglegour systems and infrastructure quickly enoogictommodate increasing
traffic levels, or to avoid obsolescence, or susfidly integrate any newly developed or purchasethhologies with our existing systems.
Capacity constraints could cause unanticipatecsyslisruptions, slower response times, poor custexpeerience, impaired quality and speec
of reservations and confirmations and delays iontipg accurate financial and operating informatithese factors could cause us to lose
customers. Additionally, we will continue to upgeagaind improve our technology infrastructure to suppur business growth. However, we
cannot assure you that we will be successful itetieg these system upgrades and improvementgigeatdn particular, our systems may
experience interruptions during upgrades, and amytechnologies or infrastructures may not be finltggrated with our existing systems on &
timely basis, or at all. If our existing or futuerhnology infrastructure does not function propéticould cause system disruptions and slow
response times that affect data transmission, whitlrn could materially and adversely affect business.

We are exposed to risks associated with online siécu

The secure transmission of confidential informatiwer the Internet is essential in maintaining eosdr confidence in us. We conduct
a significant portion of our transactions througin website. We utilize digital certificates to help conduct secure communications and
transactions. In addition, sensitive customer imf@tion, such as password and payment informatsostored with encryption, and our data
servers are secured with firewalls. However, adegare technology or other developments could réswtcompromise or breach of the
technology that we use to protect customer angaetion data. Our security measures may not beiwuff to prevent security breaches.

Our use of open source software could adverselgetffour ability to offer our products and servicaad subject us to possible
litigation.

We use open source software in connection wittrdeuelopment of technology infrastructure. From timé&me, companies that use
open source software have faced claims challenb@gse of open source software and/or compliariteopen source license terms. We
could be subject to suits by parties claiming owhgr of what we believe to be open source softwarelaiming noncompliance with open
source licensing terms. Some open source liceesgsre users who distribute software containingnogmirce to make available all or part of
such software, which in some circumstances coudlide valuable proprietary code. While we monita tise of open source software and try
to ensure that none is used in a manner that weglgire us to disclose our proprietary source aydbat would otherwise breach the terms of
an open source agreement, such use could inadthgrdenur, in part because open source licensestama often ambiguous. Any requirement
to disclose our proprietary source code or pay dgséor breach of contract could be harmful tolmsiness, results of operations or financia
condition, and could help our competitors develapel products and services that are similar toedter than ours.

We may not be successful in pursuing strategicaices and acquisitions, and future alliances andgagsitions may not bring us
anticipated benefits.

Part of our growth strategy is the pursuit of sgat alliances and acquisitions. There can be sorasce that we will succeed in
implementing this strategy as it is subject to m&gors which are beyond our control, including ahility to identify and successfully
execute suitable acquisition opportunities anéadles. Any future acquisitions, investments, arateggic alliances may expose us to new
operational, regulatory and market risks, as welisks associated with additional capital requéats, including risks associated with
unforeseen or hidden liabilities, diversion of mgement resources and costs of integrating acqgbirethesses, the inability to generate
sufficient revenue to offset the costs and expeakasquisitions, and potentially significant lafsnvestments. Any acquisitions we pursue
could also create difficulties with integrating tteehnology of acquired businesses with our exgstathnology, and employees of acquired
businesses into the various departments and rartksricompany, and it could take substantial time effort to integrate the business
processes being used in the acquired businesdeswiexisting business processes. Should wedfaitegrate acquired companies efficiently,
our earnings, revenues, gross margins, operatimginsaand business operations could be negatiidgtad. Furthermore, acquired compa
may not perform to our expectations for variousoes, including legislative or regulatory chandes affect the products and services in
which the acquired companies specialize and thedbkey personnel and customer accouhity. alliances we pursue could also subject us
number of risks, including risks associated withrgig proprietary information, non-performance by third party and increased expenses in
establishing new strategic alliances, any of wiiegly materially and adversely affect our business.ridy also have limited ability to monitor
or control the actions of these third parties dadhe extent any of these strategic third padigfers negative publicity or harm to their
reputation from events relating to their busin@ss may also suffer negative publicity or harm to mputation by virtue of our association v
any such third party.
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We may not be able to identify suitable future asigjon or investment candidates or alliance pagnkloreover, there is no assura
that such alliances or acquisitions will achieve iotended objectives or benefits. Even if we idfgrauitable candidates or partners, we ma
unable to complete an acquisition, investment larede on terms commercially acceptable to us.dffail to identify appropriate candidates or
partners, or complete desired acquisitions, investmor alliances, we may not be able to impleranstrategies effectively or efficiently, a
our overall profitability and growth plans may kevarsely affected.

If we fail to implement and maintain an effective/stem of internal controls, we may be unable to aately report our results of
operations or prevent fraud or fail to meet our refting obligations, and investor confidence and thearket price of our ADSs may
be materially and adversely affected.

Our independent registered public accounting fiem hot conducted an audit of our internal contvelrdinancial reporting. However,
in preparing our consolidated financial statemewstef and for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, we and our
independent registered public accounting firm idient one material weakness in our internal contngdr financial reporting, as defined in the
standards established by the Public Company Acaay@versight Board of the United States, or PCAOBe material weakness identified
related to the lack of sufficient financial repagiand accounting personnel with appropriate kndgdeof US GAAP and the SEC, reporting
requirements to formalize key controls over finahceporting and to prepare consolidated finarsti@ements and related disclosures.
Following the identification of the material weaksewe have taken extensive measures and plamtiowe to take all necessary measures to
remedy the material weakness. For details of thesediation efforts, see “Item 15. Controls andcBdures.” However, although we have
carried out measures to address the material weakn®ur internal control over financial reportitige implementation of these measures ma
not fully address the material weakness, and waatatonclude that the material weakness has bdigrrémedied. Our failure to correct the
material weakness or our failure to discover argt@ss any other material weakness or deficiencaklaesult in inaccuracies in our financial
statements and could also impair our ability to ptymwith applicable financial reporting requiremgiaind related regulatory filings on a timely
basis. As a result, our business, financial coojtiesults of operations and prospects, as wélieagading price of our ADSs, may be
materially and adversely affected. Moreover, ingtffee internal control over financial reporting sificantly hinders our ability to prevent
fraud.

18




Table of Contents

Furthermore, it is possible that, had our indepahdegistered public accounting firm conducted aditzof our internal control over
financial reporting, such firm might have identifiadditional material weaknesses and deficienéies public company in the United States,
we are subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@2ti&@ 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, aitiBe 404, requires that we include a
report of management on our internal control ousarfcial reporting in our annual report on FormR2Beginning with our annual report for 1
fiscal year ending December 31, 2015. If we faldmedy any material weaknesses or significantiefties identified, our management and
our independent registered public accounting firayroonclude that our internal control over finahoigorting is not effective. This could
adversely impact the market price of our ADSs due loss of investor confidence in the reliabibfyour reporting processes. We will need to
incur additional costs and use management and m#keurces in order to comply with Section 404addition, once we cease to be an
“emerging growth company” as such term is defimethe Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or@®&SJAct, our independent registered
public accounting firm must attest to and reporttomeffectiveness of our internal control ovegfigial reporting. Our management may
conclude that our internal control over financegporting is not effective. Moreover, even if ourrmagement concludes that our internal contro
over financial reporting is effective, our indepentregistered public accounting firm, after cortthgeits own independent testing, may issi
report that is qualified if it is not satisfied Wibur internal controls or the level at which oantrols are documented, designed, operated or
reviewed, or if it interprets the relevant requiearts differently from us.

During the course of documenting and testing otariral control procedures, in order to satisfyréguirements of Section 404, we
may identify other weaknesses and deficienciesiimrdernal control over financial reporting. Indaiibon, if we fail to maintain the adequacy
our internal control over financial reporting, hss$e standards are modified, supplemented or amidérate time to time, we may not be able
conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effeattegnal control over financial reporting in acdance with Section 404. If we fail to
achieve and maintain an effective internal corgrolironment, we could suffer material misstateméntur financial statements and fail to
meet our reporting obligations, which would likelguse investors to lose confidence in our repditahcial information. This could in turn
limit our access to capital markets, harm our tssafl operations, and lead to a decline in theiigadrice of our ADSs. Additionally,
ineffective internal control over financial repagi could expose us to increased risk of fraud @use of corporate assets and subject us to
potential delisting from the stock exchange on Wwhie list, regulatory investigations and civil smginal sanctions. We may also be required
to restate our financial statements from prior qusi

We have limited business insurance coverage in Ghin

Insurance companies in China offer limited businiesarance products. Business disruption insuranaeailable to a limited extent
China, but we have determined that the risks atigigon, the cost of such insurance and the diltiesi associated with acquiring such
insurance make it commercially impractical for adhiive such insurance. We maintain insurance coedoa travel company liabilities, but \
do not maintain insurance coverage for businessmtisns and would have to bear the costs and egsemssociated with any such events out
of our own resources.

We may need additional capital, and financing magtrbe available on terms acceptable to us, or &t al

Although we believe that our current cash and eaghvalents and anticipated cash flow from openratiwill be sufficient to meet our
anticipated cash needs for at least the next 12hmpwe may require additional cash resourcesaghdnged business conditions or other
future developments, including any marketing itiitias or investments we may decide to pursue.gédtresources are insufficient to satisfy
our cash requirements, we may seek to obtain at degility or sell additional equity or debt sedigs. The sale of additional equity securities
could result in dilution of our existing sharehatsleThe incurrence of indebtedness would resutidreased debt service obligations and coulc
result in operating and financing covenants thatldioestrict our operations. It is uncertain whetfirgancing will be available in amounts or
terms acceptable to us, if at all.
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We have granted share options, unvested restriclieares and restricted share units, and may granahoptions and other share-
based awards in the future, which may materiallychease our net loss.

We adopted an incentive compensation plan in 2008e 2008 Plan, which permits the granting ofas to purchase our ordinary
shares and restricted shares. We also adoptecieagencentive compensation plan in 2014, or @d2lan, which permits the granting of
options to purchase our ordinary shares, restrigiagles and restricted share units. In particalar2014 Plan contains an evergreen provision
which allows us to automatically increase the maximaggregate number of ordinary shares reserveer e 2014 Plan to 5% of the then-
issued and outstanding shares on an as-conversexhbithout shareholder approval, if and whenelershares reserved in the 2014 Plan
account for less than 1% of the total then-issugtautstanding shares on an as-converted basisnéi@r details regarding the 2008 Plan and
the 2014 Plan, see “Item 6.B. Directors, Senior &tggment and Employees—Compensation.” As of Mar¢t2315, there were options to
acquire 14,427,005 ordinary shares issued andamalisty under the 2008 Plan, and options to ac@,ii@1,000 ordinary shares and 210,000
restricted shares issued and outstanding und@0th# Plan. In addition, we plan to grant employs&ese options and other share-based
compensation in the future. Expenses associatdédsivdare-based awards may materially impact outtsesiioperations.

Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure

Substantial uncertainties and restrictions existtvirespect to the interpretation and application BRC laws and regulations
relating to restrictions on foreign investment iralue-added telecommunications and travel companieg£hina. If the PRC
government finds that the structure we have adoptedour business operations does not comply witR® laws and regulations,
we could be subject to severe penalties, includhgtting down of our online platform.

Foreign ownership of Internet-based businessashigst to significant restrictions under current@®Rws and regulations. The PRC
government regulates Internet access, the disimibaff online information and the conduct of onlz@mmerce through strict business licen
requirements and other government regulations. & tzags and regulations also include limitationgameign ownership in PRC companies
provide Internet content distribution services. Sjpeally, foreign investors are not allowed to owrore than 50% of the equity interest in any
entity conducting value-added telecommunicatiorsr®ss. The Circular on Strengthening the Admiaisin of Foreign Investment in and
Operation of Value-added Telecommunications Busiigsiied by the Ministry of Industry and Informatibechnology in July 2006, or the
MIIT Circular, reiterated the regulations on foneigpvestment in telecommunications business, wheduire foreign investors to set up
foreign-invested enterprises and obtain businessabipg licenses for Internet content provisionaiCP license to conduct any value-added
telecommunications business in China. Under thé Mlircular, a domestic company that holds an I€Brise is prohibited from leasing,
transferring or selling the license to foreign istegs in any form, and from providing any assisé&iiecluding providing resources, sites or
facilities, to foreign investors that conduct vaheded telecommunications business illegally inn@hFurthermore, the relevant trademarks
and domain names that are used in the value-aétlsmbmmunications business must be owned by theskiesriCP license holder or its
shareholders. Due to a lack of interpretation ftaenMIIT, it is unclear what impact the MIIT Cirarlwill have on us or other PRC Internet
companies that have adopted the same or similgocate structures and contractual arrangementsrasiganjing Tuniu holds our ICP
licenses, and owns the domain name used in oueaadded telecommunications business. Nanjing Tigralso the owner of all registered
trademarks used in our value-added telecommunitatiasiness and is the applicant of all the apiptica for trademark registration we have
made.
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We are a Cayman Islands company and our wholly diaeC subsidiary, Beijing Tuniu Technology Co.,.|.tor Beijing Tuniu, is
considered a foreign invested enterprise. To comyilty PRC laws and regulations, we conduct our aji@ns in China through a series of
contractual arrangements entered into among Beljumgu, Nanjing Tuniu Technology Co., Ltd., or Niagj Tuniu, and the shareholders of
Nanjing Tuniu. As a result of these contractuahagements, we exert control over Nanjing Tuniu ismdubsidiaries and consolidate tt
results of operations in our financial statememidan U.S. GAAP. For a detailed description of themetractual arrangements, see “Iltem 4.C.
Information on the Company—Organizational Structure

In the opinion of our PRC counsel, Jun He Law @#icour current ownership structure, the ownerstiigcture of our PRC
subsidiaries and our consolidated affiliated egditeach of the shareholders’ voting rights agre¢npewers of attorney, equity interest pledge
agreement and purchase option agreement entecedriring Beijing Tuniu, Nanjing Tuniu and the shatdérs of Nanjing Tuniu, and the
cooperation agreement between Beijing Tuniu andiNg uniu, which establish our contractual arramgeat with Nanjing Tuniu and its
shareholders, and, except as otherwise disclosthisimannual report, our business operations ar@nadolation of existing PRC laws, rules ¢
regulations. However, we are advised by our PR@sel) Jun He Law Offices, that there are substamtieertainties regarding the
interpretation and application of current or futt¥C laws and regulations and there can be noas=ithat the PRC government will
ultimately take a view that is consistent with dpgnion of our PRC counsel stated above.

In or around September 2011, various media souested that the China Securities Regulatory Casion, or the CSRC, had
prepared a report proposing regulating the usenélile interest entity structures, such as oarsydustry sectors subject to foreign investn
restrictions in China and overseas listings by @hiased companies. However, it is unclear whetteeCSRC officially issued or submitted
such a report to a higher level government authoritwhat any such report provides, or whetherraay PRC laws or regulations relating to
variable interest entity structures will be adopdedf adopted, what they would provide.

If our ownership structure, contractual arrangemantd business of our company, our PRC subsidiariear consolidated affiliated
entities are found to be in violation of any exigtior future PRC laws or regulations, or we faibbiain or maintain any of the required perr
or approvals, the relevant governmental authontiesld have broad discretion in dealing with suaation, including levying fines,
confiscating our income or the income of our PRBssdliaries or consolidated affiliated entities,akwg the business licenses or operating
licenses of our PRC subsidiaries or consolidatélicaéd entities, shutting down our servers ordiimg our online platform, discontinuing or
placing restrictions or onerous conditions on querations, requiring us to undergo a costly andugisve restructuring, restricting or
prohibiting our use of proceeds from our earlieitial public offering and the related concurreritvate placement as well as our subsequent
private placement in December 2014 to finance ogiress and operations in China, and taking otftgarlatory or enforcement actions that
could be harmful to our business. Any of theseoasticould cause significant disruption to our besioperations and severely damage our
reputation, which would in turn materially and abedy affect our business, financial condition aesults of operations. If any of these
occurrences results in our inability to direct Hutivities of any of our consolidated affiliatedtities that most significantly impact its econor
performance, and/or our failure to receive the eauin benefits from any of our consolidated afféidtentities, we may not be able to
consolidate the entity in our consolidated finahstatements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
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Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to taeactment timetable, interpretation and implemetiten of the draft PRC Foreign
Investment Law and how it may impact the viabily our current corporate structure, corporate govence and business
operations.

The Ministry of Commerce, or MOC, published a d&sian draft of its proposed Foreign Investment limdanuary 2015 aiming to,
upon its enactment, replace the trio of existimgslaegulating foreign investment in China, nam#ig, Sino-foreign Equity Joint Venture
Enterprise Law, the Sii-foreign Cooperative Joint Venture Enterprise Lavddhe Wholly Foreign-invested Enterprise Latogether with
their implementation rules and ancillary regulasionhe draft Foreign Investment Law embodies arebgul PRC regulatory trend to
rationalize its foreign investment regulatory regim line with prevailing international practicedalegislative efforts to unify the corporate
legal requirements for both foreign and domestiegtments.

Among other things, the draft Foreign Investmenklexpands the definition of foreign investment amtdoduces the principle of
“actual control” in determining whether a compasyonsidered a foreign-invested enterprise, or FHe. draft Foreign Investment Law
specifically provides that entities establishe€hina but “controlled” by foreign investors will eeated as FIES, whereas an entity establishe
in a foreign jurisdiction would nonetheless be, mpoarket entry clearance by the MOC, treated aR@ eomestic investor provided that entity
is “controlled” by PRC entities and/or citizens.this connection, “control” is broadly defined metdraft law to cover the following
summarized categories: (i) holding 50% of morehefvoting rights of the subject entity; (ii) holditess than 50% of the voting rights of the
subject entity but having the power to secure @tl&0% of the seats on the board or other equivelkxision making bodies, or having the
voting power to materially influence the board, refalders’ meetings or other equivalent decisiokintabodies; or (iii) having the power to
exert decisive influence, via contractual or tausangements, over the subject entity’s operatifimancial matters or other key aspects of
business operations. Under the draft law, oncentityes determined to be a FIE, it will be subjézthe foreign investment restrictions or
prohibitions set forth in a “negative list,” to beparately issued by the State Council at a latty, éh the event that the FIE is engaged in an
industry listed on the negative list. Unless thdenying business of the FIE falls within the négadtist, which calls for market entry clearance
by the MOC, prior approval from the government auties as mandated by the existing foreign investitegal regime would no longer be
required for establishment of the FIE.

The “variable interest entity” structure, or VIEwgtture, has been adopted by many PRC-based coespamiluding us, to obtain
necessary licenses and permits in industries teatwarently subject to foreign investment resiits in China. See “—Risks Related to Our
Corporate Structure—Substantial uncertainties asttictions exist with respect to the interpretamd application of PRC laws and
regulations relating to restrictions on foreignéstment in value-added telecommunications andltcmrepanies in China. If the PRC
government finds that the structure we have addjotedur business operations does not comply wWRIC Paws and regulations, we could be
subject to severe penalties, including the fordedure of our online platform” and “ltem 4.C. Infoation on the Company—Organizational
Structure. ” Under the draft Foreign Investment Law, variaioierest entities that are controlled via contratarrangements would also be
deemed FIEs, if they are ultimately “controlled” foyeign investors. Therefore, there is a risk th@tany company which invests in an
industry category that is on the “negative listihgsa VIE structure established after the Foremgrestment Law takes effect the VIE structure
would be deemed legitimate only if the ultimate tcoling person(s) is/are of PRC nationality (eitt®/RC companies or PRC citizens).
Conversely, if the actual controlling person(sis/of foreign nationalities, then there is th& tigat the variable interest entities will be tezht
as FIEs and any operation in industry categorietherinegative list” without market entry cleararveeuld possibly be considered as illegal.
But as for investments in industry categories doetdin the negative list through VIE structuresablshed before the Foreign Investment |
takes effect, there is no specific clause in ttadtdroreign Investment Law specifying how theseestments will be treated. In accordance witl
an explanation on the draft Foreign Investment issued concurrently by the MOC, the MOC will contrto further research this matter and
will put forward disposition suggestions after sitihg public comment. The MOC solicited commemtstioe draft Foreign Investment Law ¢
substantial uncertainties exist with respect t@itactment timetable, interpretation and impleme@rtaMoreover, it is uncertain whether the
value-added telecommunications and travel indusstniavhich our variable interest entities operatiélve subject to the foreign investment
restrictions or prohibitions set forth in the “néga list” to be issued by the State Council. fireal version of the Foreign Investment Law and
the “negative list” are promulgated and mandatéh&iractions, such as MOC market entry clearandee ttompleted by companies like us,
with existing VIE structures, we face uncertaintassto whether such clearance can be timely olstaoreat all. Any such development could
materially impact the viability of our current camate structure, corporate governance and busaopessitions in many aspects. In the event
that a final version of the Foreign Investment Liawenacted, we will conduct a full analysis of eorporate structure, corporate governance
and business operations to assess our conforntitytiaé requirements set forth therein.
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The draft Foreign Investment Law, if enacted appsed, may also materially impact our corporateegmance practices and increase
our compliance costs. For instance, the draft l§or&ivestment Law imposes stringent ad hoc anag@ierinformation reporting requirements
on foreign investors and the applicable FIEs. Aside investment implementation report and investh@anendment report that are require
each investment and alteration of investment sjgsc¢idn annual report is mandatory, and large dgoré&ivestors meeting certain criteria are
required to report on a quarterly basis. Any conydannd to be non-compliant with these informatieporting obligations may potentially be
subject to fines and/or administrative or crimilabilities, and the persons directly responsibkeyrhe subject to criminal liability.

We rely on contractual arrangements with Nanjing fiu and its shareholders for the operation of ounbiness, which may not be
as effective as direct ownership. If Nanjing Tunir its shareholders fail to perform their obligatits under these contractual
arrangements, we may have to resort to litigationasbitration to enforce our rights, which may bénte-consuming, unpredictable,
expensive and damaging to our operations and repigta. If we are unable to maintain effective contrave would not be able to
continue to consolidate the financial results of paonsolidated affiliated entities with our finanal results.

Although we have been advised by our PRC coungelHg& Law Offices, that our contractual arrangemevrith Nanjing Tuniu and i
shareholders did not, does not and will not reisudiny violation of current PRC laws, these corttratarrangements may not be as effective i
providing control as direct ownership. If Nanjingriiu or its shareholders fail to perform their ghlions under the contractual arrangements,
we may have to incur substantial costs and expddifi@nal resources to enforce such arrangemengsmad also have to rely on legal
remedies under contract law, including seeking ifipgmerformance or injunctive relief and claimidgmages, which we cannot assure you
be effective. For example, if the shareholders affijihg Tuniu refuse to transfer their equity infgsein Nanjing Tuniu to us or our designee
when we exercise the purchase option pursuanesetbontractual arrangements, or if they otheragsén bad faith toward us, then we may
have to take legal actions to compel them to perfibreir contractual obligations. Furthermore, wilile company chops of Nanjing Tuniu are
held by its legal and accounting departments, bilityato ensure its performance under the contrakchgreements may be limited if we are
unable to secure control of the company chopséretrent of a dispute with its management or shédehsy as many official documents reqt
affixation of company chops to become fully effeetilf we were the controlling shareholder of NagjiTuniu with direct ownership, we wol
be able to exercise our rights as shareholderfdct&hanges to its board of directors, whichumtcould implement changes at the
management and operational level.
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All the agreements under our contractual arrangésreme governed by PRC laws and provide for theluéen of disputes through
arbitration in the PRC. Accordingly, these contsagbuld be interpreted in accordance with PRC lamé any disputes would be resolved in
accordance with PRC legal procedures. There regigiificant uncertainties regarding how our cortiratarrangements would be interpreted
under PRC law and the ultimate outcome of the el of disputes in relation to such contractuahiagements, should arbitration become
necessary. The legal system in the PRC is not\ssajged as in some other jurisdictions, such adthited States. As a result, uncertainties in
the PRC legal system could limit our ability to @rtie these contractual arrangements. Under PRG iftlus losing parties fail to carry out the
arbitration awards within a prescribed time lintlite prevailing parties may only enforce the arkitraawards in PRC courts through arbitra
award recognition proceedings, which would reqaulditional expenses and delay. In the event weirgable to enforce these contractual
arrangements, we may not be able to exert effectimérol over Nanjing Tuniu and its shareholders] aur ability to conduct our business r
be negatively affected. If we are unable to mamédfective control, we would not be able to conéno consolidate the financial results of our
consolidated affiliated entities with our financiakults.

The shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu may have poterit@nflicts of interest with us, which may materigland adversely affect our
business and financial condition.

We have designated individuals who are PRC natioteabe the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu. Thetgdnierests of Nanjing Tuniu
are held by Messrs. Dunde Yu, Haifeng Yan, Tong §ydiping Wang, Xin Wen, Yongquan Tan and Haifengng/ The interests of these
individuals as the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniwy miffer from the interests of our company as a lehdhese shareholders may breach, or
cause Nanjing Tuniu to breach, the existing cotttid@rrangements we have with them and Nanjingufwvhich would have a material and
adverse effect on our ability to effectively comtanjing Tuniu. We cannot assure you that wherflois of interest arise, any or all of these
shareholders will act in the best interests ofammpany or such conflicts will be resolved in cawvdr.

Currently, we do not have any arrangements to addguetential conflicts of interest between theseetolders and our company,
except that we could exercise our purchase optialeiuthe purchase option agreement with theselsbldess to request them to transfer all of
their equity interests in Nanjing Tuniu to a PRGitgror individual designated by us, to the extpatmitted by PRC laws. We rely on
Messrs. Dunde Yu and Haifeng Yan, who are our femsdirectors and beneficial owners, Messrs. Whagg, Jiping Wang, Xin Wen and
Yongqguan Tan, who are our beneficial owners andHdifeng Wang, who is an employee of one of ouredthalders, to abide by the PRC law.
If we cannot resolve any conflict of interest csplite between us and the shareholders of NanjingiTwe would have to rely on legal
proceedings, which could result in disruption of business and subject us to substantial unceytasito the outcome of any such legal
proceedings.

Our contractual arrangements with Nanjing Tuniu anids shareholders may be subject to scrutiny by BRRC tax authorities, and
finding that we owe additional taxes could substgflly increase our consolidated net loss and redube value of your investment.

Under PRC laws and regulations, arrangements andactions among related parties may be subjectdid or challenge by the PRC
tax authorities. We could face material and adveEageonsequences if the PRC tax authorities déterthat the contractual arrangements
among Beijing Tuniu, Nanjing Tuniu and the shardkad of Nanjing Tuniu do not represent an arm’sfleiprice and adjust Nanjing Tuniu’s
income in the form of a transfer pricing adjustméntransfer pricing adjustment could, among othérgs, result in a reduction, for PRC tax
purposes, of expense deductions recorded by Nahjingi, which could in turn increase its tax lidils without reducing our tax liabilities. In
addition, the PRC tax authorities may impose latgngent fees and other penalties to Nanjing Tumwfaler-paid taxes. Our consolidated net
loss may be increased if our tax liabilities inaear if we are found to be subject to late paynfesd or other penalties.
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If Nanjing Tuniu becomes the subject of a bankrugtor liquidation proceeding, we may lose the alyiltb use and enjoy its assets,
which could materially and adversely affect our hness.

To comply with PRC laws and regulations relatindgaiign ownership restrictions in the online vahgted telecommunications
business, we hold our ICP license and operate uginess through contractual arrangements with Ng@rjuniu as well as its shareholders. As
part of these arrangements, Nanjing Tuniu holdstagbat are important to the operation of our ress.

We do not have priority pledges and liens agairasijiig Tuniu’s assets. As a contractual and prgp@ght matter, this lack of
priority pledges and liens has remote risks. If jsenTuniu undergoes an involuntary liquidation geeding, third-party creditors may claim
rights to some or all of its assets and we mayhagt priority against such third-party creditorsNamjing Tuniu’s assets. If Nanjing Tuniu
liquidates, we may take part in the liquidationqadures as a general creditor under the PRC Eigerankruptcy Law and recover any
outstanding liabilities owed by Nanjing Tuniu toifgeg Tuniu under the cooperation agreement betwbhem. To ameliorate the risks of an
involuntary liquidation proceeding initiated byhart-party creditor, we closely monitor the opevag and finances of Nanjing Tuniu through
carefully designed budgetary and internal contmlensure that Nanjing Tuniu is well capitalized @& highly unlikely to trigger any third
party monetary claims in excess of its assets asll ;esources. Furthermore, Beijing Tuniu has Itiléya if necessary, to provide financial
support to Nanjing Tuniu to avoid such an involuptiquidation.

If the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu were to attetopvoluntarily liquidate Nanjing Tuniu without tning our prior consent, we
could effectively prevent such unauthorized volaptauidation by exercising our right to requesajing Tuniu’s shareholders to transfer all
of their equity interests to a PRC entity or indival designated by us in accordance with the psecbation agreement with the shareholde
Nanjing Tuniu, to the extent permitted by PRC lalmghe event that the shareholders of Nanjing Wumitiate a voluntary liquidatio
proceeding without our authorization or attemptdidribute the retained earnings or assets ofiN@fjuniu without our prior consent, we n
need to resort to legal proceedings to enforceethes of the contractual agreements. Any such legaleeding may be costly and may divert
our management’s time and attention away from grexation of our business, and the outcome of segl lproceeding would be uncertain.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Uncertainties in the interpretation and enforcemeaf PRC laws and regulations could limit the legatotections available to you
and us.

The PRC legal system is based on written statUtellke common law systems, it is a system in whédal cases have limited value
as precedents. In the late 1970s, the PRC govetrimagan to promulgate a comprehensive system af éand regulations governing economic
matters in general. The overall effect of legigiatover the past three decades has significanthgased the protections afforded to various
forms of foreign or private-sector investment iniGh Our PRC subsidiaries and consolidated affitiantities are subject to various PRC law:
and regulations generally applicable to compamestina. However, since these laws and regulatoaselatively new and the PRC legal
system continues to rapidly evolve, the interpretest of many laws, regulations and rules are neag$ uniform and enforcement of these
laws, regulations and rules involve uncertainties.
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From time to time, we may have to resort to adniiafsre and court proceedings to enforce our leigats. However, since PRC
administrative and court authorities have signiftcdiscretion in interpreting and implementing staty and contractual terms, it may be more
difficult to evaluate the outcome of administratared court proceedings and the level of legal ptade we enjoy than in more developed lega
systems. Furthermore, the PRC legal system is bagmtt on government policies and internal risssne of which are not published in a
timely manner or at all) that may have retroacttffect. As a result, we may not be aware of oulagion of these policies and rules until
sometime after the violation. Such uncertaintiesluding uncertainty over the scope and effectufamntractual, property (including
intellectual property) and procedural rights, ang failure to respond to changes in the regulagmyironment in China could materially and
adversely affect our business and impede our wahditontinue our operations.

Changes in China’s economic, political or social mditions or government policies could have a matdradverse effect on our
business and operations.

Our business operations are based in China. Aaugisdiour business, financial condition, result®pérations and prospects may be
influenced to a significant degree by economicitigal and social conditions or government polidie€hina generally and by continued
economic growth in China as a whole.

China’s economy differs from the economies of nuesteloped countries in many respects, includindetel of government
involvement, level of development, growth rate, tcohof foreign exchange and allocation of resoarddthough the PRC government has
implemented measures since the late 1970s emphgs$ie utilization of market forces for economiforen, the reduction of state ownershig
productive assets, and the establishment of improeeporate governance in business enterprisegfsiamntial portion of productive assets in
China is still owned by the PRC government. In ddj the PRC government continues to play a sicguitt role in regulating industry
development by imposing industrial policies. ThedPovernment also exercises significant contror eive PRC economic growth through
allocating resources, controlling payment of foreagrrency-denominated obligations, setting mowgtaticy and providing preferential
treatment to particular industries or companies.

While China’s economy has experienced significaotwgh over the past decades, growth has been unbetingeographically and
among various sectors of the economy, and may dtown in the future. Some of the government measumsbenefit the overall Chinese
economy, but may have a negative effect on usekample, our financial condition and results ofragiens may be adversely affected by
government control over capital investments or glearin tax regulations. Any stimulus measures desigo boost the Chinese economy may
contribute to higher inflation, which could advdysaffect our financial condition and results ofesgtions. For example, certain operating ¢
and expenses, such as employee compensation &elafkrating expenses, may increase as a reshilylodr inflation.
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The PRC government regulates travel and other rehindustries. If we fail to obtain or maintain afyertinent permits and
approvals or if the PRC government imposes moreniegons on these industries, our business mayautversely affected.

We are required to obtain applicable permits oraygls from regulatory authorities to conduct ousibess activities. See “ltem 4.B.
Information on the Company—Business Overview—PR@uRaion.” If we fail to obtain or maintain any tife required permits or approvals
in the future, we may be subject to various pees|tsuch as fines or suspension of operationesetregulated businesses, which could
severely disrupt our business operations. As dtresur financial condition and results of operasanay be adversely affected.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, we maydiassified as a PRC resident enterprise for PRCegptise income tax
purposes. Such classification would likely resuft iinfavorable tax consequences to us and our nonBhareholders and have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatand the value of your investment.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, or the [Eilv, that became effective on January 1, 200&raerprise established outs
the PRC with a “de facto management body” withie BRC is considered a PRC resident enterpriseR@ énhterprise income tax purposes
and is generally subject to a uniform 25% enteepinsome tax rate on its worldwide income. Underithplementation rules to the EIT Law,
or the Implementation Rules, a “de facto managernedy” is defined as a body that has material aratall management and control over the
manufacturing and business operations, personaehaman resources, finances and properties of ngeise. In addition, SAT Circular 82,
which was issued in April 2009 by the State Adnthaiion of Taxation, or the SAT, specifies thattaar offshore incorporated enterprises
controlled by PRC enterprises or PRC enterprisagavill be classified as PRC resident enterpiifsal of the following conditions are met:
(a) senior management personnel and core manageatments in charge of the daily operationhiefenterprises have their presence
mainly in the PRC; (b) their financial and humasaerces decisions are subject to determinatioppmoaal by persons or bodies in the PRC;
(c) major assets, accounting books and compang séé#te enterprises, and minutes and files of thedrd’s and shareholders’ meetings are
located or kept in the PRC; and (d) half or moréhefenterprises’ directors or senior managemensopeel with voting rights habitually reside
in the PRC. Further to SAT Circular 82, the SATuiss$ SAT Bulletin 45, which took effect on Septembg2011, to provide more guidance on
the implementation of SAT Circular 82 and clarifetreporting and filing obligations of such “Chieesontrolled offshore-incorporated
resident enterprises.” SAT Bulletin 45 providesqaures and administrative details for the deteation of PRC resident enterprise status an
administration on post-determination matters. Alifjo both SAT Circular 82 and SAT Bulletin 45 onfypéy to offshore enterprises controlled
by PRC enterprises or PRC enterprise groups, nsttbontrolled by PRC individuals or foreign indivals like us, the determining criteria set
forth in SAT Circular 82 and SAT Bulletin 45 mayflext the SAT’s general position on how the “detfamanagement body” test should be
applied in determining the PRC resident enterpsiatus of offshore enterprises, regardless of vendtiey are controlled by PRC enterprises,
PRC enterprise groups or by PRC or foreign indialdu

We do not believe that Tuniu Corporation meetgfithe conditions above and thus we do not belteaeit is a PRC resident
enterprise, despite the fact that all of the membé&our management team as well as the managé¢esntof Tuniu (HK) Limited are located
in China. However, if the PRC tax authorities detieie that it is a PRC resident enterprise for PRerprise income tax purposes, a numbe
unfavorable PRC tax consequences could followt,Rirs will be subject to the uniform 25% enterpiiiseome tax on our worldwide income,
which could materially reduce our net income. Idiidn, we will also be subject to PRC enterpriseoime tax reporting obligations. Second,
although dividends paid by one PRC tax resideanmher PRC tax resident should qualify as “taxagxeincome” under the EIT Law, we
cannot assure you that such dividends will notligext to a 10% withholding tax, as the PRC foregohange control authorities, which
enforce the withholding tax on dividends, and tR&CRax authorities have not yet issued guidanck meispect to the processing of outbound
remittances to entities that are not controllecaby PRC enterprise or PRC enterprise group anttttes PRC resident enterprises for PRC
enterprise income tax purposes.
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Under the EIT Law and its Implementation Rules jscito any applicable tax treaty or similar arramgnt between the PRC and our
investors’ jurisdiction of residence that providesa different income tax arrangement, PRC witdira tax at the rate of 10% is normally
applicable to dividends from PRC sources payabipuestors that are non-PRC resident enterpriskighado not have an establishment or
place of business in the PRC, or which have sutbkshment or place of business if the relevacbime is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business. Any gain redlan the transfer of American depositary shareshares by such non-PRC resident
enterprise investors is also subject to 10% PR@nectax if such gain is regarded as income deffingrd sources within the PRC unless a tax
treaty or similar arrangement otherwise providesdéf the PRC Individual Income Tax Law and its iempéntation rules, dividends from
sources within the PRC paid to foreign individual@stors who are not PRC residents are generdijgaito a PRC withholding tax at a rate
20% and gains from PRC sources realized by sudstovs on the transfer of American depositary sharshares are generally subject to :
PRC income tax, in each case, subject to any renfuat exemption set forth in applicable tax trestand PRC laws. It is also unclear whethel
dividends we pay with respect to our ordinary shareADSs, or the gain realized from the transfesw ordinary shares or ADSs, would be
treated as income derived from sources within fRE€ Rnd as a result be subject to PRC income tag Wvere considered a PRC resident
enterprise, as described above. If PRC income e wnposed on gains realized through the tramsfeur ADSs or ordinary shares or on
dividends paid to our non-PRC resident investtrs value of the investment in our ADSs or ordingmgres may be materially and adversely
affected. Furthermore, our ADS holders whose jictgzhs of residence have tax treaties or arrangesngith China may not qualify for
benefits under such tax treaties or arrangements.

We face uncertainty regarding the PRC tax reportiogligations and consequences for certain indiré@nsfers of our operating
company’s equity interests. Enhanced scrutiny o@equisition transactions by the PRC tax authoritiesay have a negative impact
on potential acquisitions we may pursue in the fuéu

In connection with the EIT Law, the Ministry of Rince and the SAT jointly issued SAT Circular 5&pril 2009, and the SAT issu
SAT Circular 698 in December 2009. Both SAT Circ#8 and Circular 698 became effective retroacgivel January 1, 2008.

According to SAT Circular 698, where a non-PRCdest enterprise transfers the equity interestsRIR@ resident enterprise
indirectly by disposition of the equity interesfsam overseas holding company, or an Indirect feanand the overseas holding company is
located in a tax jurisdiction that: (1) has an effifee tax rate of less than 12.5% or (2) does mgioise tax on foreign income of its residents, th
non-PRC resident enterprise, being the transfemast report to the relevant tax authority of theCPi@sident enterprise this Indirect Transfer.
Using a “substance over form” principle, the PRCdathority may disregard the existence of the sas holding company if it lacks a
reasonable commercial purpose and was establishéllef purpose of reducing, avoiding or deferrifCRtax. As a result, gains derived from
such Indirect Transfer may be subject to PRC witilihg tax at a rate of up to 10%. SAT Circular &880 provides that, where a non-PRC
resident enterprise transfers its equity interestsPRC resident enterprise to its related pastiie@sprice lower than the fair market value, the
relevant tax authority has the power to make aomese adjustment to the taxable income resultiogn fthe transaction. In addition, the PRC
resident enterprise is supposed to provide negeasaistance to support the enforcement of SATUGIr698.
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On March 28, 2011, the SAT released SAT Public &0f2011) No. 24, or SAT Public Notice 24, to dlageveral issues related to
SAT Circular 698. SAT Public Notice 24 became diffezon April 1, 2011. According to SAT Public Nogi 24, the term “effective tax rate”
refers to the effective tax rate on the gain defifrem disposition of the equity interests of armeas holding company; and the tedué's nc
impose income tax” refers to the cases where thredgived from disposition of the equity interesfsan overseas holding company is not
subject to income tax in the country/region whéedverseas holding company is a resident.

There is little guidance as to the application ATCircular 698. For example, while the term “Irelit Transfer'is not clearly define:
it is understood that the relevant PRC tax autiesritave jurisdiction regarding requests for infation over a wide range of foreign entities
having no direct contact with China. In additidmerte are no formal declarations with regard to kmaetermine whether a foreign investor ha:
adopted an abusive arrangement in order to redwoél or defer PRC tax. If any of the previous stweents by non-PRC resident investors in
our company were determined by the tax authoritidack reasonable commercial purpose, it is ptessitat the PRC tax authorities would
pursue our offshore shareholders to conduct ayfilggarding our offshore restructuring transactiwhere non-PRC resident investors were
involved and would request our PRC subsidiariessgist in providing such disclosures. In additibour offshore subsidiaries are deemed to
lack substance, they could be disregarded by th@ taR authorities. As a result, we and our non-P&dent investors may become at risk of
being taxed under SAT Circular 698 and may be requtio expend valuable resources to comply with EATular 698 or to establish that we
and our non-PRC resident investors should notxedtander SAT Circular 698, which may have a matexiverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations or the non-P&dent investors’ investments in us.

By promulgating and implementing these circulans, PRC tax authorities have enhanced their scrotiey the direct or indirect
transfer of equity interests in a PRC residentrpnie by a norPRC resident enterprise. The PRC tax authoritige b discretion under S/
Circular 59 and SAT Circular 698 to make adjustregatthe taxable capital gains based on the differdetween the fair value of the equity
interests transferred and the cost of investmelthofigh we currently have no confirmed plans tosperany acquisitions in China or elsewt
in the world, we may pursue acquisitions in theifetthat may involve complex corporate structufese are considered a non-PRC resident
enterprise under the EIT Law and if the PRC takauties make adjustments under SAT Circular 58AT Circular 698, our income tax co
associated with such potential acquisitions wilifiereased, which may have an adverse effect ofimancial condition and results of
operations.

The SAT further released its Bulletin on Severalilss Concerning Enterprise Income Taxation on lecAnsing from the Indirect
Transfers of Property by Non-resident Enterpri$84{ Bulletin [2015] No. 7” or “Bulletin 7"), whichbecame effective on February 3, 2015.
Bulletin 7 repealed the relevant Indirect Trangfievisions contained in Circular 698 and set fontbre detailed rules for the tax treatment of
Indirect Transfers of equity interests in PRC residenterprises and other assets situated in ClEoletin 7 abolished the previous mandatory
reporting requirement for Indirect Transfers un@ecular 698, and provides that the parties torafiréct Transfer transaction have the option
to decide whether to report the Indirect Transéethe competent tax authorities. Applying a “substaover form” principle, when a non-
resident enterprise structures an Indirect Trarsffan equity interest in a PRC resident entermisether assets situated in China to avoid
taxation under the EIT through arrangements lacké@gonable commercial purposes, the Indirect Teamsll be re-characterized as a direct
transfer. As a result, any gains derived fromltitirect Transfer may be subject to PRC withholdizgat a rate of up to 10%. Bulletin 7
provides de facto safe harbor treatment for situatin which a non-resident enterprise buys and $ledls shares, in the public securities
markets, of a overseas-listed company that hold=gaity interest in a PRC resident enterprise,thateby realizes a capital gain. However, in
order for the safe harbor treatment to apply, Ilotghpurchase and sale must be conducted on thie geblrities markets so as to preclude
market manipulation, and the equity interests paseld and sold must be those in the same entergfismn shares sold in the public securities
markets were obtained before such shares werd liste public securities market or were not puretiderough a public securities market, or
when shares were purchased on a public marketréub de sold through non-public markets, the bafbbor would not apply. There is
uncertainty as to the interpretation and applicatibSAT Circular 698 and Bulletin 7; we and ounf@RC resident investors may be at risk of
being taxed under SAT Circular 698 and Bulletiaid we may be required to expend valuable resotwas@mply with SAT Circular 698 and
Bulletin 7 or to establish that we should not beethunder SAT Circular 698 and Bulletin 7.
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PRC regulations establish complex procedures fomsoacquisitions of PRC companies by foreign investavhich could make it
more difficult for us to pursue growth through acdggitions in China.

Six PRC regulatory agencies promulgated regulatidfestive in September 2006 that are commonlyrrefeto as the M&A Rules,
which were amended on June 22, 2009, with such dments becoming effective as of the same date’FI®€ Regulation.” The M&A
Rules establish procedures and requirements thidd coake some acquisitions of PRC companies bygor@avestors more time-consuming
and complex, including requirements in some ingtartbat the Ministry of Commerce be notified in agee of any change-of-control
transaction in which a foreign investor takes colmtf a PRC domestic enterprise. In addition, nmatlsecurity review rules issued by the PRC
governmental authorities in 2011 require acquisgiby foreign investors of domestic companies eedag military-related or certain other
industries that are crucial to national securitipéosubject to prior security review. Moreover, Agi-Monopoly Law requires that the Minist
of Commerce shall be notified in advance of anycemtration of undertaking if certain thresholds taiggered. We may expand our busines
part by acquiring complementary businesses. Comglyiith the requirements of the M&A Rules, securiéyiew rules and other PRC
regulations to complete such transactions coultine-consuming, and any required approval processelsding obtaining approval from the
Ministry of Commerce, may delay or inhibit our atyito complete such transactions, which couldcfteur ability to expand our business or
maintain our market share.

PRC regulations relating to offshore investment adties by PRC residents may limit our PRC subsitks’ ability to increase their
registered capital or distribute profits to us, libour ability to inject capital into our PRC subdiaries, or otherwise expose us to
liability and penalties under PRC laws.

The PRC State Administration of Foreign Exchangeéhe SAFE, promulgated the Circular on Relevasiiés Concerning Foreign
Exchange Control on Domestic Residents’ Offshovestment and Financing and Roundtrip Investmewtutlin Special Purpose Vehicles, or
SAFE Circular 37, on July 4, 2014, which repladee former circular commonly known as “SAFE Circul&’ promulgated by SAFE in
October, 2005. SAFE Circular 37 requires PRC red&t® register with local branches of SAFE in caetion with their direct establishment
indirect control of an offshore entity for the page of overseas investment and financing, withtasgeequity interests of onshore companies
or offshore assets or interests held by the PRi@aets, referred to in SAFE Circular 37 as a “splegurpose vehicle.” SAFE Circular 37
further requires amendment to the registratiom@dvent of any significant changes with respethéospecial purpose vehicle, such as
increases or decreases in capital contributed iy RRRidents, transfers or exchanges of sharesemsedjvisions, or other material changes.
The term “control” under SAFE Circular 37 is broadkfined as the operation rights, beneficiarytsgir decision-making rights acquired by
the PRC residents in special purpose vehicles @ &#npanies by such means as acquisition, trustypvoting rights, repurchase,
convertible bonds or other arrangements.
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If our shareholders or beneficial owners who ar€RRizens or residents do not complete their tegfion with the local SAFE
branches, our PRC subsidiaries may be prohibitad flistributing their profits and proceeds from aeguction in capital, share transfer or
liquidation to us, and we may be restricted in abitity to contribute additional capital to our PRGbsidiaries. Moreover, failure to comply
with the various SAFE registration requirementscdesd above could result in liabilities for our @Rubsidiaries under PRC laws for evasion
of applicable foreign exchange restrictions, inatigd1) the requirement by SAFE to return the fgneéxchange remitted overseas within a
period specified by SAFE, with a fine of up to 30¥%the total amount of foreign exchange remittedreeas and deemed to have been evasiv
and (2) in circumstances involving serious violasipa fine of no less than 30% of and up to thal tohount of remitted foreign exchange
deemed evasive. Furthermore, the persons-in-clearg®ther persons at our PRC subsidiaries whoeddedirectly liable for the violations
may be subject to criminal sanctions.

SAFE Circular 37 provides that PRC residents inglbdth PRC citizens, meaning any individual whale@ PRC passport or resid
identification card, and individuals who are non@@&tizens but primarily reside in the PRC dueheit economic ties to the PRC. We have
requested all of our known current shareholdergaariineficial owners to disclose whether theyheirtshareholders or beneficial owners fall
within the ambit of SAFE Circular 37 and other tethrules, and urged relevant shareholders andib@hewners, upon learning they are P
residents, to make the necessary applicationsg§iland amendments as required under SAFE Cir8dland other related rules. As SAFE
Circular 37 was recently promulgated, our knowrrehalders and beneficial owners who are PRC retsdee still consulting with local SAI
branches about applicable procedures to amendSAE&E registrations to reflect the changes asatresour initial public offering. We woul
expect these shareholders to also amend theitnagpss after completion of our earlier initialldic offering as required by PRC laws.
However, we cannot assure you that they did suftdgsamend their foreign exchange registrationthwie local SAFE branch in compliance
with applicable laws after our initial public offeg. In addition, we may not be informed of therities of all the PRC residents holding direct
or indirect interests in our company, and we cawootpel our beneficial owners to comply with thguieements of SAFE Circular 37. As a
result, we cannot assure you that all of our shadeins or beneficial owners who are PRC resideawg ltomplied with and will in the future
comply with our requests to make or obtain any iapple registrations or comply with other requirenserequired by SAFE Circular 37 or
other related rules. A failure by any of our cutrenfuture shareholders or beneficial owners wieoRRC residents to comply with the SAFE
regulations may subject us to fines or other lsgalktions, restrict our cross-border investmerivities, limit our PRC subsidiaries’ ability to
make distributions or pay dividends or affect ownership structure, which could adversely affeatlmusiness and prospects.

Furthermore, SAFE Circular 37 was recently promtddand it is unclear how this circular and anyfetregulation concerning
offshore or cross-border transactions will be ipteted, amended and implemented by the relevamrgment authorities. We cannot predict
how these regulations will affect our business apiens or future strategy. For example, we mayutigest to a more stringent review and
approval process with respect to our foreign exgkaactivities, such as remittance of dividendsfaneign-currency-denominated borrowings,
which may adversely affect our financial conditemd results of operations. In addition, if we dediol acquire a PRC domestic company,
either we or the owners of such company, as the ey be, may not be able to obtain the necessarnpwaals or complete the necessary
filings and registrations required by the foreigcleange regulations. This may restrict our abtlitymplement our acquisition strategy and
could adversely affect our business and prospects.
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Failure to comply with PRC regulations regarding ¢hregistration requirements for share option plangay subject the PRC plan
participants or us to fines and other legal or admtrative sanctions.

In February 2012, SAFE promulgated the Noticesssnés Concerning the Foreign Exchange AdministrdtioDomestic Individual
Participating in Stock Incentive Plans of Overseablicly-Listed Companies, or the Stock Option Ruldnder the Stock Option Rules and
other relevant rules and regulations, PRC residghtsparticipate in stock incentive plans in anrgeas publicly-listed company are required
to register with SAFE or its local branches and plate certain other procedures. Participants ebeksncentive plan who are PRC residents
must retain a qualified PRC agent, which could IBR& subsidiary of the overseas publicly-listed pany or another qualified institution
selected by the PRC subsidiary, to conduct the Seslgistration and other procedures with respetiiecstock incentive plan on behalf of its
participants. The participants must also retainaarseas entrusted institution to handle matteceimection with their exercise of stock
options, the purchase and sale of correspondimfisior interests and fund transfers. In additiba,RRC agent is required to amend the SAFE
registration with respect to the stock incentivaenpif there is any material change to the stockrtige plan, the PRC agent or the overseas
entrusted institution or other material changeg. ‘& em 4.B. Information on the Company—BusinesQ@iew—PRC Regulation—
Regulations on Employee Stock Option Plans.”

We and our PRC employees who have been granted sptions are subject to these regulations andngeljuniu as an agent has
registered with the Beijing Branch of SAFE in coati@n with the 2008 Plan and the 2014 Plan. We lzalésed our employees and directors
participating in our share incentive plans to harfdteign exchange matters in accordance with tbekSOption Rules. However, we cannot
assure you that the share option holders can ssfatlggegister with SAFE in full compliance withé Stock Option Rules for material char
of the granted share options. Failure of our PR&ehption holders or restricted shareholders toptete their SAFE registrations may subjec
these PRC residents to fines and legal sancticshsnay also limit our ability to contribute additalrcapital into our PRC subsidiaries, limit
PRC subsidiaries’ ability to distribute dividendsus, or otherwise materially adversely affectlousiness.

PRC regulation of direct investment and loans byatfore holding companies to PRC entities and govaental control of currency
conversion may delay or limit us from using the meeds of our financing activities, including our itial public offering, to make
additional capital contributions or loans to our PR subsidiaries.

Any capital contributions or loans that we, as #almre entity, make to our PRC subsidiaries, iditig from the proceeds of our
earlier initial public offering and concurrent paite placement as well as our subsequent privatemplent in December 2014, are subject to
PRC laws and regulations. Under PRC laws and régotg we are permitted to utilize such proceedl$ud our existing PRC subsidiaries
only through loans or capital contributions or sbedlish new PRC subsidiaries, subject to apple&egblernment registration and approval
requirements. None of our loans to a PRC subsidianyexceed the difference between its total amoilintzestment and its registered capital
approved under relevant PRC laws, and the loans meusgistered with the local branch of SAFE. @apital contributions to our PRC
subsidiaries or establishment of new PRC subsatiariust be approved by the Ministry of Commercésdocal counterpart. We cannot ass
you that we will be able to complete the neceseagistration or obtain the necessary approval timely basis, or at all. If we fail to comple
the necessary registration or obtain the necesganoval, our ability to make loans or capital cimitions to our PRC subsidiaries may be
negatively affected, which could adversely affaat BRC subsidiaries’ liquidity and their ability fiand their working capital and expansion
projects and meet their obligations and commitments
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In August 2008, SAFE promulgated a SAFE Circula iggulating the conversion by a foreignvested enterprise of foreign currel
registered capital into Renminbi by restricting hthve converted Renminbi may be used. SAFE Circld@rprovides that the Renminbi capital
converted from foreign currency registered capifa foreign-invested enterprise may only be usegéirposes within the business scope
approved by the applicable government authorityardss otherwise provided by law, such Renminpitahmay not be used for equity
investments in the PRC. The business scopes dhBdiuniu and Tuniu (Nanjing) Information Technojo@o., Ltd. include research and
development of computer software, network informratiechnology products, computer application systesrcommerce systems, network
security systems and computer system integratsmmriology services, consulting and transfers; si#lself-developed products; investment
consulting; business information consulting; andfecence services and public relations advice.ifggiJ uniu and Tuniu (Nanjing) Informatis
Technology Co., Ltd. may only use Renminbi conwetftem foreign exchange capital contribution fotiaties within their respective
approved business scope. In addition, the useatf Renminbi capital may not be altered without SApBroval, and such Renminbi capital
may not in any case be used to repay Renminbi libaims proceeds of such loans have not been 88ethtions of SAFE Circular 142 could
result in severe monetary or other penalties. Itaevert the net proceeds we receive from ourexariitial public offering and the concurrent
private placement as well as our subsequent prplateement into Renminbi pursuant to SAFE Circik2, our use of Renminbi funds for
general corporate purposes will be within the bessnscopes of our PRC subsidiaries. However, wenoialye able to use such Renminbi
funds to make equity investments in the PRC throughPRC subsidiaries.

Furthermore, SAFE promulgated a SAFE Circular 48@vember 2011, which, among other things, restacioreign-invested
enterprise from using Renminbi converted froméigistered capital to provide entrusted loans aaydpans between ndimancial enterprise:
SAFE Circular 142 and SAFE Circular 45 may siguifitly limit our ability to use Renminbi convertadi the net proceeds of our earlier
financing activities to fund establishment of neR@subsidiaries by Beijing Tuniu or Tuniu (Nanjingjormation Technology Co., Ltd. to
invest in or acquire any other PRC companies, establish new PRC consolidated affiliated entities

Our PRC subsidiaries are subject to restrictions paying dividends or making other payments to u$jeth may restrict our ability
to satisfy our liquidity requirements.

We are a holding company incorporated in the Caylslands. We may need dividends and other distohaton equity from our PF
subsidiaries to satisfy our liquidity requiremer@sirrent PRC regulations permit our PRC subsidsaigepay dividends to us only out of their
accumulated profits, if any, determined in accoogawith PRC accounting standards and regulationadtlition, our PRC subsidiaries are
required to set aside at least 10% of their regmeaccumulated profits each year, if any, to faadain reserve funds until the total amount se
aside reaches 50% of their respective registengitbtdéaOur PRC subsidiaries may also allocate gignoof its after-tax profits based on PRC
accounting standards to employee welfare and blomas at their discretion. These reserves areistiltlitable as cash dividends.
Furthermore, if our PRC subsidiaries incur debtrair own behalf in the future, the instrumentsegyoNng the debt may restrict their ability to
pay dividends or make other payments to us. Intiadithe PRC tax authorities may require us taisidpur taxable income under the
contractual arrangements among Beijing Tuniu, Manjiuniu and the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu mamner that would materially and
adversely affect Beijing Tuniu’s ability to pay diends and other distributions to us. Any limitatian the ability of our subsidiaries to
distribute dividends to us or on the ability of Nag Tuniu to make payments to us may restrictahility to satisfy our liquidity requirements.
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We may not be able to obtain certain treaty berseéih dividends paid to us by our PRC subsidiariestigh our Hong Kong
subsidiary.

Under the EIT Law, dividends generated from retdiearnings after January 1, 2008 from a PRC compadydistributed to a foreic
parent company are subject to a withholding taa cditl0% unless the foreign parent’s jurisdictiéimaorporation has a tax treaty with China
that provides for a preferential withholding arranmgent. Pursuant to the Arrangement between MairCdmida and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Doublaxition and Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respe Taxes on Income, or the Hong
Kong Tax Treaty, which became effective on Decen8hy@006, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, agfiuniu (HK) Limited, will be
subject to withholding income tax at a rate of 5&wovidends it receives from its PRC subsidiarie,holds a 25% or more interest in that
particular PRC subsidiary, or 10% if it holds Itisan a 25% interest in that subsidiary. However,SAT promulgated SAT Circular 601 on
October 27, 2009, which provides that tax treatydfi¢s will be denied to “conduit” or shell compasiwithout business substance, and that
“substance over form” principles will be used taedmine beneficial ownership for purposes of reiogitax treaty benefits. On June 29, 2012,
the SAT further issued the Announcement of the $&garding Recognition of “Beneficial Owner” undeaxiTreaties, or Announcement 30,
which provides that a comprehensive analysis shibellcthade when determining the beneficial owneustahsed on various factors supported
by various types of documents including the arsidéassociation, financial statements, recordsaeh movements, board meeting minutes,
board resolutions, staffing and materials, releeapienditures, functions and risk assumption abagelelevant contracts and other
information. As a result, although our PRC subsid& Beijing Tuniu and Tuniu (Nanjing) Informatidiechnology Co., Ltd., are currently
wholly owned by our Hong Kong subsidiary, Tuniu (HKmited, we cannot assure you that we would kéled to the tax treaty benefits and
enjoy the favorable 5% rate applicable under thagdong Tax Treaty. If Tuniu (HK) Limited is notaegnized as the beneficial owner of the
dividends paid to it by Beijing Tuniu or Tuniu (Narg) Information Technology Co., Ltd., such divitts will be subject to a normal
withholding tax of 10% as provided by the EIT Law.

Discontinuation or revocation of any of the prefangal tax treatments and government subsidies opiosition of any additional
taxes or surcharges could adversely affect our fireéal condition and results of operations.

Our PRC subsidiaries are incorporated in the PRCgawerned by applicable PRC tax laws and regulati®he EIT Law and its
Implementation Rules have adopted a uniform statigoterprise income tax rate of 25% to all entegw in China, including foreign-invested
enterprises. The EIT Law and its ImplementationeRlso permit qualified “high and new technologteeprises,” or HNTES, to enjoy a
preferential enterprise incontex rate of 15% upon filing with the relevant taxfzorities. The qualification as a HNTE is gensralifective fol
a term of three years and the renewal of such fipalon is subject to review by the relevant auitis in China. Nanjing Tuniu obtained its
HNTE certificate in 2010 with a valid period of & years and successfully renewed such certificddecember 2013 for additional three
years. Therefore, Nanjing Tuniu is eligible to sngpppreferential tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 20d.the extent it has taxable income unde
EIT Law, as long as it maintains the HNTE qualifioa and duly conducts relevant EIT filing proceesiwith the relevant tax authority. If
Nanjing Tuniu fails to maintain its HNTE qualifiéah or renew its qualification when its currentteexpires, its applicable enterprise incc
tax rate may increase to 25%, which could havedaerae effect on our financial condition and resoftoperations.

In addition, our PRC subsidiaries have receivedbuarfinancial subsidies from PRC local governmraarthorities. Preferential tax
treatments and financial subsidies are subjea\tew and may be adjusted or revoked at any tintkedrfuture. The discontinuation of any
preferential tax treatments or financial subsidieBnposition of any additional taxes or surchargesld adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.
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Fluctuations in exchange rates could have a matéraverse effect on our results of operations aie tvalue of your investment.

We generate all of our revenues and incur substgnéll of our expenses in Renminbi, and subsédigtall of our sales and supply
contracts are denominated in Renminbi. As a refutttuations in the exchange rates between the dbar and Renminbi will affect the
relative purchasing power in Renminbi terms of OU8. dollar assets and the proceeds received frorearlier initial public offering, related
concurrent private placement and our subsequerdtprplacement which took place in December 20¥4th& functional currency for our PF
subsidiaries and affiliated PRC entities is Renmjifibbctuations in the exchange rates may alsoeassto incur foreign exchange losses on
foreign currency holdings they may have. In additiappreciation or depreciation in the value of iRibi relative to the U.S. dollar would
affect our financial results in U.S. dollar termigheut giving effect to any underlying change irr business or results of operations. If we
decide to convert our Renminbi into U.S. dollanstfe purpose of making payments for dividends @noodinary shares or for other business
purposes, appreciation of U.S. dollar against Reabhimwould have a negative effect on the U.S. dataount available to us.

The value of the Renminbi against the U.S. doltat ather currencies is affected by, among otheghichanges in China’s political
and economic conditions and China’s foreign exckgrglicies. In July 2005, the PRC government medifts decade-old policy of strictly
pegging the value of the Renminbi to the U.S. dpdad the Renminbi appreciated more than 20% agtiir U.S. dollar over the following
three years. However, the People’s Bank of Chigalegly intervenes in the foreign exchange mar&einit fluctuations in Renminbi
exchange rates to achieve policy goals. Duringpthréd between July 2008 and June 2010, the exehatgs between the Renminbi and the
U.S. dollar was been stable and traded within eomarange. However, the Renminbi fluctuated siguaifitly during that period against other
freely traded currencies, in tandem with the U@lad. Since June 2010, the Renminbi has slowlyegipted against the U.S. dollar, although
there have been periods recently when the U.Sadafipreciated against the Renminbi. It is diffitalpredict how long the current situation
may last and when and how the relationship betwleeRenminbi and the U.S. dollar may change again.

There remains significant international pressuréhenPRC government to adopt a flexible currendicpoAny significant
appreciation or depreciation of the Renminbi mayemally and adversely affect our revenues, easangd financial position, and the value of,
and any dividends payable on, our ADSs in U.S.adslIFor example, to the extent that we need teardthe U.S. dollars we received from
our initial public offering into Renminbi to pay baperating expenses, any appreciation of the Ranagainst the U.S. dollar would have an
adverse effect on the Renminbi amount we wouldivedeom the conversion. Conversely, a significdaepreciation of the Renminbi against
the U.S. dollar may significantly reduce the amaafrithe U.S. dollar equivalent of our earnings, ethin turn could adversely affect the price
of our ADSs.

Very limited hedging options are available in Chinaeduce our exposure to exchange rate fluctusitibo date, we have not entered
into any hedging transactions in an effort to redoar exposure to foreign currency exchange rigkil&\ive may decide to enter into hedging
transactions in the future, the availability anfikefiveness of these hedges may be limited and ayermat be able to adequately hedge our
exposure or at all. In addition, our currency exajealosses may be magnified by PRC exchange carfyalations that restrict our ability to
convert Renminbi into foreign currencies. As a lgdluctuations in exchange rates may have a natadverse effect on your investment.
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The approval of the China Securities Regulatory Canission may have been required in connection witlr @arlier initial public
offering under a regulation adopted in August 2008&nd, if required, we cannot assure you that welwi¢ able to obtain such
approval.

Six PRC regulatory agencies, including the Chineuides Regulatory Commission, or the CSRC, praatdd the Regulations on
Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic Companies dsekgn Investors, or the M&A Rules, which becamfe&ive on September 8, 2006 and
was subsequently amended. The M&A Rules, among tiiregs, require offshore special purpose vehictegrolled by PRC companies or
individuals formed for the purpose of an overséstsg of such PRC companies’ or individuals’ irgsts in PRC domestic companies to obtait
the CSRC's approval prior to listing their secastion an overseas stock exchange. The applicdtibisaegulation remains unclear. Our PRC
counsel, Jun He Law Offices, has advised us tlaed on its understanding of the current PRC lawlss and regulations, we are not requirec
to submit an application to the CSRC for its appiaf the listing and trading of our ADSs on the SIDAQ Global Market, because:

» the CSRC currently has not issued any definitite au interpretation concerning whether offeringge lour initial public offering
are subject to this regulation;

» our wholly owned PRC subsidiaries were establidghetheans of foreign direct investment, rather ttimough a merger or
acquisition of domestic companies, as defined utiteM&A Rules; and

» there is no provision in the M&A Rules that exgligiclassifies contractual arrangements as a typeansaction subject to the
M&A Rules.

There is uncertainty as to how this regulation Wdélinterpreted or implemented. If it is determitieat the CSRC approval was
required for our initial public offering, we mayda sanctions by the CSRC or other PRC regulataenags for failure to seek the CSRC's
approval for our initial public offering. These séions may include fines and penalties on our dera in the PRC, delays or restrictions on
the repatriation of the proceeds from our initiabfic offering into the PRC, restrictions on or pifation of the payments or remittance of
dividends by our PRC subsidiaries, or other acttbas could have a material adverse effect on agiress, financial condition, results of
operations, reputation and prospects, as wellatralding price of our ADSs.

Online payment systems in China are at an earlyggtaf development and may restrict our ability tgpand our online business.

Online payment systems in China are at an eargestddevelopment. Although major Chinese banksrat&uting online payment
systems, these systems are not as widely acceptatbmsumers in China as in the United Statesoéimelr developed countries. The lack of
wide acceptance of online payment systems and cosicegarding the adequacy of system security inat/the number of online commercial
transactions that we can service. If online paymsentices and their security capabilities are igtiBcantly enhanced, our ability to grow our
online business may be limited.

The Internet market has not been proven as anteezommercial medium in China. The Internet peatain rate in China is lower
than those in the United States and other developedtries. Our future results of operations framtiree business will depend substantially
upon the increased use and acceptance of the énfermdistribution of products and services ardlifation of commerce in China.

The Internet may not become a viable commercialiomedn China for various reasons in the foreseetlilge. More salient
impediments to Internet development in China inelud
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» consumer dependence on traditional means of conemerc
e inexperience with the Internet as a sales andiloigion channel;
* inadequate development of the necessary infrasteict

e concerns about security, reliability, cost, easdegfloyment, administration and quality of senassociated with conducting
business and settling payment over the Internet;

* inexperience with credit card usage or with otheans of electronic payment; and
» limited use of personal computers.

If the Internet is not widely accepted as a medianonline commerce in China, our ability to growr@nline business would be
impeded.

Implementation of laws and regulations relating ttata privacy in China could adversely affect our éiness.

Certain data and services collected, provided ed by us or provided to and used by us are cuyrent)ject to regulation in certain
jurisdictions, including China. The PRC Constitatistates that PRC laws protect the freedom an@gyief communications of citizens a
prohibit infringement of such basic rights, and BfeC Contract Law prohibits contracting partiesrfrdisclosing or misusing the trade secrets
of the other party. Further, companies or their leyges who illegally trade or disclose customeadatly face criminal charges. Although the
definition and scope of “privacy” and “trade setreimain relatively ambiguous under PRC laws, grayéoncerns about individual privacy
and the collection, distribution and use of infotima about individuals have led to national andalaegulations that could increase our
expenses.

In December 2012, the Standing Committee of théoNat People’s Congress enacted the Decision tafgethe Protection of
Network Information, or the Information ProtectiBecision, to further enhance the protection of ¢ personal information in electronic for
The Information Protection Decision provides thaernet information services providers must expyasform their users of the purpose,
manner and scope of the collection and use of usersonal information by Internet information siees providers, publish the Internet
information services providers standards for theltection and use of users’ personal informateg collect and use users’ personal
information only with the consent of the users anty within the scope of such consent. The InforamaProtection Decision also mandates
that Internet information services providers aralrtemployees keep users’ personal informationttiegt collect strictly confidential, and that
they must take such technical and other measuraieascessary to safeguard the information agdissibsure, damages and loss.
Compliance with current regulations and regulatithvat may come into effect in these areas may aser®ur expenses related to regulatory
compliance, which could have an adverse effectuwrfinancial condition and results of operations.

Regulation and censorship of information distributh over the Internet in China may adversely afferir business, and we may be
liable for information displayed on, retrieved fromr linked to our website.

The PRC government has adopted regulations govginiarnet access and the distribution of infororatver the Internet. Under
these regulations, Internet content providers atethet publishers are prohibited from postingiepldying over the Internet content that,
among other things, violates PRC laws and regulgfionpairs the national dignity of China or théliwinterest, or is reactionary, obscene,
superstitious, fraudulent or defamatory. Failuredmply with these regulations may result in theomtion of licenses to provide Internet
content and other licenses, the closure of thearmred websites. A website operator may also belladlld for such censored information
displayed on or linked to its website. For a dethidliscussion, see “Item 4.B. Information on thenfany—Business Overview—PRC
Regulation—Regulations on Information Security &whsorship.We have a team dedicated to screening and morgtoantent published ¢
our online platform and removing prohibited contdfbwever, we may have difficulty identifying anghmoving all illegal content displayed
or linked to our website, which could expose uth®penalties described above.
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Increases in labor costs in the PRC may adversdfget our business and results of operations.

The economy of China has been experiencing incsdasaflation and labor costs in recent yearsaAssult, the average wage in the
PRC are expected to continue to grow. In additremare required by PRC laws and regulations tovaapus statutory employee benefits,
including pensions, housing fund, medical insurame®k-related injury insurance, unemployment iagiwe and maternity insurance to
designated government agencies for the benefitloémployees. The relevant government agenciesaxayine whether an employer has
made adequate payments of the requisite statutopjogee benefits, and those employers who fail aieradequate payments may be subjec
to late payment fees, fines and/or other penalti¢ise relevant PRC authorities determine thatsiall make supplemental social insurance
housing fund contributions and that we are sulifefines and legal sanctions, our business, firmrcindition and results of operations may
adversely affected. We expect that our labor castiiding wages and employee benefits, will camtino increase. Unless we are able to pas
on these increased labor costs to our customeirschyasing the prices of our products and servimgsfinancial condition and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected

We face certain risks relating to the real propessi that we lease.

We lease real properties from third parties pritgdar our office use in the PRC. Our leaseholeéigsts in a number of these leased
properties may be defective as a result of thelte5kack of proper title or right to lease. Asesult, we cannot assure you that our leasehold
interests will not be challenged. In addition, vavé not registered the vast majority of our leage@ments with the relevant PRC
governmental authorities as required by PRC law,athough failure to do so does not in itself i@e the leases, we may not be able to
defend these leases against bona fide third pafgesf the date of this annual report, we aresudsject to any actions, claims or investigations
pending or threatened in writing by government arities or third parties with respect to defect®im leased properties. However, if third
parties who purport to be property owners or beiagiies of the mortgaged properties challenge igint to lease these properties, we may not
be able to protect our leasehold interests andbmaydered to vacate the affected premises, witoldanaterially and adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

The audit report included in this annual report igrepared by an auditor who is not inspected by Ehélic Company Accounting
Oversight Board and, as such, you are deprivedha benefits of such inspection.

Auditors of companies that are registered withSE€ and traded publicly in the United States, idiclg our independent registered
public accounting firm, must be registered with Fblic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unigtdtes), or PCAOB, and are required
by the laws of the United States to undergo regakgections by the PCAOB to assess their compdiavith the laws of the United States and
professional standards. Because our auditor isddda the Peoples’ Republic of China, a jurisdictivhere the PCAOB is currently unable to
conduct inspections without the approval of the RR@orities, our auditor is not currently inspelchy the PCAOB. In May 2013, PCAOB
announced that it had entered into a Memorandubnderstanding on Enforcement Cooperation with tS®C and the PRC Ministry of
Finance, which establishes a cooperative framewetieen the parties for the production and exchafhgedit documents relevant to
investigations undertaken by PCAOB, the CSRC oPIRE Ministry of Finance in the United States amelPRC, respectively. PCAOB
continues to be in discussions with the CSRC aad”RC Ministry of Finance to permit joint inspeatian the PRC of audit firms that are
registered with PCAOB and audit Chinese compatiasttade on U.S. exchanges.
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This lack of PCAOB inspections in China prevents BCAOB from regularly evaluating audits and gyadibntrol procedures of any
auditors operating in China, including our audiths.a result, investors may be deprived of the fisnaf PCAOB inspections. The inability of
the PCAOB to conduct inspections of auditors in@hinakes it more difficult to evaluate the effeetiess of our auditor’s audit procedures or
quality control procedures as compared to audaatside of China that are subject to PCAOB inspasti Investors may lose confidence in
reported financial information and procedures dr&duality of our financial statements.

Additional remedial measures could be imposed ortaiea PRC-based accounting firms, including our irghbendent registered
public accounting firm, in administrative proceedgs instituted by the SEC, as a result of which dimancial statements may be
determined to not be in compliance with the requitents of the Exchange Act, if at all.

In December 2012, the SEC brought administratiee@edings against the PRC-based affiliates of thd-Bur accounting firms,
including our independent registered public acciognfirm, alleging that they had violated U.S. séties laws by failing to provide audit work
papers and other documents related to certain BfR@-based companies under investigation by the Si|BQanuary 22, 2014, an initial
administrative law decision was issued, censurimysuspending these accounting firms from pradibiefore the SEC for a period of six
months. The decision was neither final nor legaffective until reviewed and approved by the SE@ an February 12, 2014, the PRC-basec
accounting firms appealed to the SEC against #issébn. In February 2015, each of the four PRGbascounting firms agreed to a censure
and to pay a fine to the SEC to settle the dispatkavoid suspension of their ability to practieéobe the SEC. The settlement requires the
firms to follow detailed procedures to seek to jdevhe SEC with access to such firms’ audit doausgia the CSRC. If the firms do not
follow these procedures or if there is a failurghia process between the SEC and the CSRC, the@HE€impose penalties such as
suspensions, or it could restart the administraiheeeedings.

In the event that the SEC restarts the adminis&rgdioceedings, depending upon the final outcorsted companies in the United
States with major PRC operations may find it diffior impossible to retain auditors in respecthair operations in the PRC, which could
result in financial statements being determineddbbe in compliance with the requirements of tlkelfange Act, including possible delisting.
Moreover, any negative news about the proceediggmst these audit firms may cause investor uniogyteegarding PRC-based, United
States-listed companies and the market price oA@Bs may be adversely affected.
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If our independent registered public accountingnfiwere denied, even temporarily, the ability tocgicee before the SEC and we were
unable to timely find another registered publicastting firm to audit and issue an opinion on doamcial statements, our financial statem:
could be determined not to be in compliance withréquirements of the Exchange Act. Such a detatioimcould ultimately lead to the
delisting of our ordinary shares from the Nasdaob@l Market or deregistration from the SEC, or bethich would substantially reduce or
effectively terminate the trading of our ADSs i tbinited States.

Risks Related to Our ADSs

The trading prices of our ADSs have fluctuated anthy be volatile.

The trading prices of our ADSs have fluctuated siwe first listed our ADSs. From the time our Alf&Eame listed on NASDAQ on
May 9, 2014 through April 16, 2015, the tradingcprof our ADSs has ranged from US$10.07 to US$2deDADS, and the last reported
trading price on April 16, 2015 was US$14.97 perSADhe prices of our ADSs may continue to fluctuseause of broad market and indu
factors, like the performance and fluctuation @& tharket prices of other companies with businessatipns located mainly in China that have
listed their securities in the United States. Theespread negative publicity of alleged fraudulettounting practices and poor corporate
governance of certain U.S. public companies witkrafions in China in recent years were believduhice negatively affected investors’
perception and sentiment towards companies witheation with China, which significantly and negativ affected the trading prices of some
companies’ securities listed in the U.S. Any similagative publicity or sentiment may affect thefpenances of our ADSs. The securities of
some PRC companies that have listed their secuntid).S. stock markets have experienced significalatility. The trading performances of
these PRC companies’ securities after their ofigrimay affect the attitudes of investors toward RB@panies listed in the United States in
general and consequently may impact the tradinfppeance of our ADSs, regardless of our actual atireg performance. The trading prices
of our ADSs may also be affected by changes irutig stock markets in general.

In addition to market and industry factors, therand trading volume for our ADSs may be highliatite for factors specific to our
own operations, including the following:

« the financial projections that we may choose to/jg®to the public, any changes in those projestionour failure for any reas
to meet those projections;

e variations in our revenues, net income and cast; flo

* announcements of new investments, acquisitioretesfic partnerships, or joint ventures;

* announcements of new products, services and exqransy us or our competitors;

» changes in financial estimates by securities atsglys

e additions or departures of key personnel;

» release of lock-up or other transfer restrictionsar outstanding equity securities or sales oftaighl equity securities;
e potential litigation or regulatory investigatiorand

»  fluctuations in market prices for our products envices.
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Any of these factors may result in large and sudiemges in the volume and price at which our AD&de.

If securities or industry analysts do not publiskesearch or reports about our business, or if thelvarsely change their
recommendations regarding our ADSs, the market pgrior our ADSs and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our ADSs will be influendeylresearch or reports that securities or indwstialysts publish about our
business. If one or more analysts who cover us doade our ADSs, or publish unfavorable researcluiab® the market price for our ADSs
would likely decline. Failure to meet expectatiainven by analyst research or reports, even byesgiye research or reports, may cause the
market price of our ADSs to decline. If one or moféhese analysts cease to cover us or fail tolagly publish reports on us, we could lose
visibility in the financial markets, which, in turnould cause the market price or trading volunmeotor ADSs to decline.

Our dual class share structure with different votirrights will limit your ability to influence corpoate matters and could discourag
others from pursuing any change of control transémts that holders of our Class A ordinary sharesdADSs may view as
beneficial.

Our ordinary shares are divided into Class A ondirshares and Class B ordinary shares. HolderdassQ\ ordinary shares are
entitled to one vote per share, while holders @fs§€IB ordinary shares are entitled to ten voteslpane, with Class A and Class B ordinary
shares voting together as one class on all mattdnject to a shareholdergite. Due to the disparate voting powers attachebese two class
of ordinary shares, holders of our Class B ordirgngres collectively beneficially owned approxinhates.0% of our outstanding ordinary
shares as of March 31, 2015, representing 92.48titotal voting power. Currently, our directorgaofficers beneficially own an aggregate
63.6% of our outstanding shares representing 8 0f38ar total voting power. A partg’beneficial ownership takes into account sharaisstinct
party has the right to acquire within 60 days ofréfa31, 2015.

As a result of the dual class share structure a@doncentration of ownership, holders of our CEagsdinary shares have substantial
influence over our business, including decisiomgmrding mergers, consolidations and the sale afrallibstantially all of our assets, electiol
directors and other significant corporate actidi®ey may take actions that are not in the bestastef us or our other shareholders. This
concentration of ownership may discourage, delgyrevent a change in control of our company, wisichld deprive our shareholders of an
opportunity to receive a premium for their sharepart of a sale of our company and may reduceribe of our ADSs. This concentrated
control will limit your ability to influence corpate matters and could discourage others from pugsany potential merger, takeover or other
change of control transactions that holders of Chasrdinary shares and ADSs may view as benefigi@ more information regarding our
principal shareholders and their affiliated ensitisee “Item 7.A. Major Shareholders and RelatetyHaansactions—Major Shareholders.”

The sale or availability for sale of substantial amnts of our ADSs could adversely affect their matkprice.

Sales of substantial amounts of our ADSs in thdipubarket, or the perception that these salesccoatur, could adversely affect the
market price of our ADSs and could materially immgair ability to raise capital through equity offegs in the future. Shares held by our
existing shareholders may be sold in the publicketain the future subject to the restrictions indR144 and Rule 701 under the Securities Act
and any applicable lock-up agreements. As of M&;2015 there were a total of 12,894,989 ADSsi(edent to 38,684,967 Class A
ordinary shares) outstanding. We cannot predict wfiact, if any, market sales of securities hefdbr significant shareholders or any other
shareholder or the availability of these securittieguture sale will have on the market price af &DSs. In addition, certain holders of our
Class B ordinary shares are entitled to certairstegion rights in the event that specified coindis are met, including demand registration
rights, piggyback registration rights, and Form Br3-orm S-3 registration rights. Registrationtudge shares under the Securities Act would
result in these shares becoming freely tradableowitrestriction under the Securities Act immedjatgon the effectiveness of the registrat
Sales of these registered shares in the publicehaskthe perception that such sales could oocoudd cause the price of our ADSs to decline.
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We may be classified as a passive foreign investngempany for United States federal income tax pasgs, which could result in
adverse United States federal income tax conseqasrio United States investors in the ADSs or ordinahares.

Under United States federal income tax law, we béllclassified as a “passive foreign investmentgamg,” or PFIC, for any taxable
year, if either (a) 75% or more of our gross incdoresuch year consists of certain type“passive”income or (b) 50% or more of the value
our assets (as determined on the basis of a qyeatesrage) during such year produce or are helthi production of passive income (the
“asset test”). Although the law in this regard ilear, we treat Nanjing Tuniu and its subsidiasg®eing owned by us for United States
federal income tax purposes, not only because wrcise effective control over their operations, &lsb because we are entitled to
substantially all of their economic benefits, aasla result, we consolidate their operating resultair consolidated financial statements. If it
were determined that we are not the owner of onsaclidated affiliated entities for United Stateddeal income tax purposes, our risk of being
classified as a PFIC may substantially increassu/kéng that we are the owner of Nanjing Tuniu aagubsidiaries for United States federal
income tax purposes, and based upon our curreomi@e@nd assets and the value of our ADSs and oydshares, we do not presently expect
to be classified as a PFIC for the current taxgible or the foreseeable future.

While we do not anticipate becoming a PFIC fordherent taxable year or the foreseeable futuressarance can be given in this
regard because the determination of whether webeilbr become a PFIC is a fact-intensive inquirglenan an annual basis that depends, in
part, on the composition of our income and as§dtstuations in the market price of our ADSs maysegaus to become a PFIC for the current
or subsequent taxable years because the valuseatbder the purpose of the asset test may bendieted by reference to the market price of
our ADSs from time to time (which may be volatil&@he composition of our income and assets maylmsaffected by how, and how quickly,
we use our liquid assets. Under circumstances wiaresvenue from activities that produce passieeine significantly increase relative to
our revenue from activities that produce non-passicome, or where we determine not to deploy ficarit amounts of cash for active
purposes, our risk of becoming classified as a RRH substantially increase. In addition, becabseetare uncertainties in the application of
the relevant rules, it is possible that the InteRevenue Service may challenge our classificatiorertain income and assets as non-passive
our valuation of our tangible and intangible asseash of which may result in our becoming a PRICiie current or subsequent taxable year:

If we are classified as a PFIC in any taxable ya&s,S. Holder (as defined in “Item 10.E. Additibirdormation—Taxation—United
States Federal Income Tax Considerationsdy incur significantly increased United Statesfedlincome tax on gain recognized on the sa
other disposition of the ADSs or ordinary shared am the receipt of distributions on the ADSs atioary shares to the extent such gain or
distribution is treated as an “excess distributiontler the United States federal income tax raled,such U.S. Holders may be subject to
burdensome reporting requirements. Further, if meckassified as a PFIC for any year during whith &. Holder holds our ADSs or ordinary
shares, we generally will continue to be treated B&IC for all succeeding years during which suc®. Holder holds our ADSs or ordinary
shares. For more information, see “ltem 10.E. Addal Information—Taxation—United States Federaldime Tax Considerations—Passive
Foreign Investment Company Rules.”
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You may face difficulties in protecting your intes¢s, and your ability to protect your rights throhdJ.S. courts may be limited,
because we are incorporated under Cayman Islands.la

We are an exempted company incorporated undeatt®df the Cayman Islands. Our corporate affaggaverned by our
memorandum and articles of association, the Conegdraw of the Cayman Islands (2013 Revision) arccttimmon law of the Cayman
Islands. The rights of shareholders to take actagyanst the directors, actions by minority shalédrs and the fiduciary responsibilities of our
directors to us under Cayman Islands law are &ogelextent governed by the common law of the Cayislands. The common law of the
Cayman Islands is derived in part from comparayiliehited judicial precedent in the Cayman Islaagswvell as from the common law of
England, the decisions of whose courts are of psiga authority, but are not binding, on a couthi& Cayman Islands. The rights of our
shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilitieswfdirectors under Cayman Islands law are noteeslyg established as they would be under
statutes or judicial precedent in some jurisdigionthe United States. In particular, the Caynsianids has a less developed body of securitie
laws than the United States. Some U.S. states,asElelaware, have more fully developed and julliyciaterpreted bodies of corporate law
than the Cayman Islands. In addition, Cayman Ifarmnpanies may not have standing to initiate eesloéder derivative action in a federal
court of the United States.

The Cayman Islands courts are also unlikely:

* torecognize or enforce against us judgments ofts@i the United States based on certain civiility provisions of U.S.
securities laws; and

e  to impose liabilities against us, in original acsdrought in the Cayman Islands, based on cestairiability provisions of U.S.
securities laws that are penal in nature.

There is no statutory recognition in the Caymaaridk of judgments obtained in the United Statéisoagh the courts of the Cayman
Islands will in certain circumstances recognize anfbrce a non-penal judgment of a foreign coudarhpetent jurisdiction without retrial on
the merits.

As a result of all of the above, public sharehdddeay have more difficulty in protecting their irgsts in the face of actions taken by
management, members of the board of directorsmrating shareholders than they would as publiareholders of a company incorporate
the United States. For a discussion of significhfierences between the provisions of the Compadrées of the Cayman Islands (2013
Revision) and the laws applicable to companiesrpm@ted in the United States and their sharehs|dee “ltem 10.B. Additional
Information—Memorandum and Articles of AssociatioDifferences in Corporate Law.”

Judgments obtained against us by our shareholdemymot be enforceable.

We are a Cayman Islands company and all of outsaase located outside of the United States. Ourentioperations are based in
China. In addition, some of our current directard axecutive officers are nationals and resideht®ontries other than the United States.
Substantially all of the assets of these persom$oaated outside the United States. As a resuttay be difficult or impossible for you to bring
an action against us or against these individuwelse United States in the event that you belieag your rights have been infringed under the
United States federal securities laws or othervisen if you are successful in bringing an actibthe kind, the laws of the Cayman Islands
and of China may render you unable to enforce gmeht against our assets or the assets of outaliseand officers.
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The voting rights of holders of ADSs are limited bye terms of the deposit agreement, and you mal/b@able to exercise your
right to vote your Class A ordinary shares.

Holders of our ADSs are only able to exercise thigng rights with respect to the underlying Claserélinary shares in accordance
with the provisions of the deposit agreement. Uniderdeposit agreement, holders of our ADSs must by giving voting instructions to the
depositary. Upon receipt of those voting instrutticthe depositary will vote the underlying Claserdinary shares in accordance with those
instructions. Holders of our ADSs are not ableitealy exercise their right to vote with respextlie underlying shares unless they withdraw
the shares. Under our amended and restated menuonsarttl articles of association, the minimum nopiegod required for convening a
general meeting is 14 calendar days. When a gemereting is convened, holders of our ADSs may ece¢ive sufficient advance notice to
withdraw the shares underlying their ADSs to alltvem to vote with respect to any specific mattewd ask for instructions from the holders
of our ADSs, the depositary will notify the holdefsour ADSs of the upcoming vote and will arratigeleliver our voting materials to them.
We cannot assure holders of our ADSs that theyredéive the voting materials in time to ensure thay can instruct the depositary to vote
their shares. In addition, the depositary andgenss are not responsible for failing to carrywting instructions or for their manner of
carrying out voting instructions. This means thalders of our ADSs may not be able to exercise thght to vote and may have no legal
remedy if the shares underlying their ADSs arevoted as requested.

We are an emerging growth company within the meagiof the JOBS Act and may take advantage of certaduced reporting
requirements.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetth@nJOBS Act, and we may take advantage of cegt@@mptions from various
requirements applicable to other public comparfias &re not emerging growth companies includingstmignificantly, not being required to
comply with the auditor attestation requirementSettion 404 for so long as we are an emerging tiroampany. As a result, if we elect not
to comply with such auditor attestation requirersentir investors may not have access to certaimnvdtion they may deem important.

The JOBS Act also provides that an emerging grasthpany does not need to comply with any new aseglfinancial accounting
standards until such date that a private companthsrwise required to comply with such new or sedi accounting standards. However, we
have elected to “opt out” of this provision and ga®sult, we will comply with new or revised acnting standards as required when they are
adopted for public companies. This decision toayttof the extended transition period under the S@Bt is irrevocable.

We are a foreign private issuer within the meaninfithe rules under the Exchange Act, and as such are exempt from certain
provisions applicable to United States domestic jpmbompanies.

Because we qualify as a foreign private issuer utideExchange Act, we are exempt from certain igions of the securities
rules and regulations in the United States thatppdicable to U.S. domestic issuers, including:

» the rules under the Exchange Act requiring thadilvith the SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10+@uarent reports on
Form 8-K;

» the sections of the Exchange Act regulating theisation of proxies, consents, or authorizatiomsdspect of a security
registered under the Exchange Act;

» the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiderfile public reports of their share ownership drading activities and liabilit
for insiders who profit from trades made in a sipantiod of time; and

» the selective disclosure rules by issuers of mataonpublic information under Regulation FD.
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We are required to file an annual report on Forai24@ithin four months of the end of each fiscal yéa addition, we publish our
results on a quarterly basis as press releasésbhdied pursuant to the rules and regulationhefNASDAQ Global Market. Press releases
relating to financial results and material evemesalso furnished to the SEC on ForrK6However, the information we are required to filith
or furnish to the SEC is less extensive and l@sslyi as compared to that required to be filed withSEC by United States domestic issuers.
As a Cayman Islands company listed on the NASDAQb&I Market, we are subject to the NASDAQ Globalrkéa corporate governance
listing standards. However, NASDAQ Global Markderipermit a foreign private issuer like us todallthe corporate governance practice
its home country. Certain corporate governancetigexin the Cayman Islands, which is our home tgumay differ significantly from the
NASDAQ Global Market corporate governance listitgnslards. Se“ltem 16.G. Corporate Governancélthough we do not currently plan
further utilize the home country exemption for amate governance matters, to the extent that wesghto do so in the future, our sharehol
may be afforded less protection than they otherwiseld under the NASDAQ Global Market corporate gmance listing standards applica
to U.S. domestic issuers. As a result, you maybeafforded the same protections or informationctvivould be made available to you, were
you investing in a United States domestic iss

Because we do not expect to pay dividends in thedeeable future , ADS holders must rely on praggpreciation of our ADSs for
return on their investment.

We do not anticipate that we will pay any cashabwids on our ordinary shares, or indirectly onADSs, for the foreseeable future.
Any determination to pay dividends in the futurdl Wwe at the discretion of our board of directonsl avill depend upon our results of
operations, financial condition, contractual resioins relating to indebtedness we may incur, iegins imposed by applicable law and other
factors our board of directors deems relevant. Adicgly, for holders of our ADSs, realization ofjain on their investment will depend on the
appreciation of the price of our ADSs, which mayereoccur. Investors seeking cash dividends irfdheseeable future should not purchase
our ADSs.

Holders of our ADSs may not receive dividends onexrt distributions on our Class A ordinary shares @may not receive any value
for them, if it is illegal or impractical to makehtem available.

The depositary of our ADSs has agreed to pay tddrslof our ADSs the cash dividends or other distions it or the custodian
receives on Class A ordinary shares or other dgabsecurities underlying our ADSs, after deductiadees and expenses. Holders of our
ADSs will receive these distributions in proportimnthe number of Class A ordinary shares their AB&present. However, the depositary is
not responsible if it decides that it is unlawfulimpractical to make a distribution available ttydolders of ADSs. For example, it would be
unlawful to make a distribution to a holder of ADS# consists of securities that require regitna under the Securities Act but that are not
properly registered or distributed under an apple@xemption from registration. The depositary ralp determine that it is not feasible to
distribute certain property through the mail. Adatilly, the value of certain distributions maylbess than the cost of mailing them. In these
cases, the depositary may determine not to dis&ribuch property. We have no obligation to registeter U.S. securities laws any ADSs,
ordinary shares, rights or other securities recktheough such distributions. We also have no aliign to take any other action to permit the
distribution of ADSs, ordinary shares, rights oything else to holders of ADSs. This means thatiéid of our ADSs may not receive
distributions we make on our Class A ordinary shareany value for them if it is illegal or impraal for us to make them available. These
restrictions may cause a material decline in theevaf our ADSs.
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Holders of our ADSs may not be able to participaterights offerings and may experience dilution gbur holdings.

We may, from time to time, distribute rights to @lwareholders, including rights to acquire seasitnder the deposit agreement,
depositary will not distribute rights to holdersADSs unless the distribution and sale of rightd #ne securities to which these rights relate ar
either exempt from registration under the Secwriiet with respect to all holders of ADSs, or azgistered under the provisions of the
Securities Act. The depositary may, but is not nexglito, attempt to sell these undistributed rightthird parties, and may allow the rights to
lapse. We may be unable to establish an exemption fegistration under the Securities Act, and veetender no obligation to file a
registration statement with respect to these rightsnderlying securities or to endeavor to havegastration statement declared effective.
Accordingly, holders of ADSs may be unable to ggptite in our rights offerings and may experienibation of their holdings as a result.

Holders of our ADSs may be subject to limitations transfer of our ADSs.

Our ADSs are transferable on the books of the depgsHowever, the depositary may close its boatkany time or from time to tin
when it deems expedient in connection with thegrariince of its duties. The depositary may closkadtiks from time to time for a number of
reasons, including in connection with corporatenéssuch as a rights offering, during which time depositary needs to maintain an exact
number of ADS holders on its books for a specifiedod. The depositary may also clasebooks in emergencies, and on weekends andg
holidays. The depositary may refuse to delivendfar or register transfers of our ADSs generalyeour share register or the books of the
depositary are closed, or at any time if we ordbpositary thinks it is advisable to do so becadsany requirement of law or of any
government or governmental body, or under any giomiof the deposit agreement, or for any othesara

We incur increased costs as a result of being a ljmbompany and will continue to do so, particulgrifter we cease to qualify as
an “emerging growth company.”

As a public company, we incur significant legalc@aenting and other expenses that we did not insur private company. The
Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, as well as rules subsequentiglé@mented by the SEC and NASDAQ Global Market, isgwarious requiremer
on the corporate governance practices of publicpeomies. As a company with less than US$1.0 bi{R&MB6.2 billion) in revenues for our
last fiscal year, we qualify as an “emerging groatmpany” pursuant to the JOBS Act. An emergingmiihocompany may take advantage of
specified reduced reporting and other requiremiatisare otherwise applicable generally to pulbdimpanies. These provisions include
exemption from the auditor attestation requirememer Section 404 in the assessment of the emeggavgh company’s internal control over
financial reporting and permission to delay adaptiew or revised accounting standards until suok fis those standards apply to private
companies. However, we have elected to “opt outhisf provision and, as a result, we will complthwiew or revised accounting standards a
required when they are adopted for public comparibs decision to opt out of the extended traosifieriod under the JOBS Act is
irrevocable.
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Compliance with these rules and regulations in@gasir legal and financial compliance costs andaesigbme corporate activities
more time-consuming and costly. After we are n@&man “emerging growth company,” we expect to irgignificant expenses and devote
substantial management effort toward ensuring ciampé with the requirements of Section 404 andther rules and regulations of the SEC.
For example, as a public company, we have beerireglio increase the number of our independentttire and adopt policies regarding
internal controls and disclosure controls and pdaces. We have incurred additional costs in obtgimiirector and officer liability insurance.
In addition, we incur additional costs associatétth wur public company reporting requirements. #ynalso be more difficult for us to find
qualified persons to serve on our board of directoras executive officers. We are currently evarigeand monitoring developments with
respect to these rules and regulations, and weotanadict or estimate with any degree of certatheyamount of additional costs we may it
or the timing of such costs.

In the past, shareholders of a public company ditenght securities class action suits againsttimepany following periods of
instability in the market price of that companyéxarities. If we were involved in a class actioit,sticould divert a significant amount of our
managemens attention and other resources from our busineg®pgerations, which could harm our results of apens and require us to inc
significant expenses to defend the suit. Any suabscaction suit, whether or not successful, cbalun our reputation and restrict our ability to
raise capital in the future. In addition, if a aheis successfully made against us, we may be redjtir pay significant damages, which could
have a material adverse effect on our financiabld@m and results of operations.

Item 4. Information on the Company

A. History and Development of the Company

We began our operation in China through Nanjingi@ua PRC company formed in December 2006. Nanjungiu acquired 100% of
the equity interests in Shanghai Tuniu Internatidmavel Service Co., Ltd., Nanjing Tuniu Interraatal Travel Service Co., Ltd. and Beijing
Tuniu International Travel Service Co., Ltd. in Augg 2008, December 2008 and November 2009, regpBctNanjing Tuniu established
Nanjing Tuzhilv Tickets Sales Co., Ltd. in April 2D.

In June 2008, we incorporated Tuniu Corporationeurtde laws of the Cayman Islands as our offsholditng company in order to
facilitate international financing. In May 2011, wstablished our wholly owned Hong Kong subsididiyniu (HK) Limited.

We completed our initial public offering and listedr ADSs on the NASDAQ under the symbol “TOURMay 2014. At the time ¢
our initial public offering, we also entered int@@ancurrent private placement with three investors.

In December 2014, we entered into a share subgeripgreement with Unicorn Riches Limited, a splguipose vehicle of Hony
Capital, JD.com E-commerce (Investment) Hong KoongpGration Limited, a special purpose vehicle ofctiin Inc. (Nasdag: JD), Ctrip
Investment Holding Ltd., a subsidiary of Ctrip.cémternational, Ltd. (Nasdaq: CTRP) and the respeqtiersonal holding companies of
Tuniu’s chief executive officer and chief operatwffjcer, pursuant to which we issued and soldtal twf US$148 million newly issued class A
ordinary shares.

In April 2015, we completed the acquisitions ofd% equity interest in Zhejiang Zhongshan Inteoral Travel Services Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou-based travel agency, and a 90% equitsesiten Tianjin Classic Holiday International Tra@&ervice Co., Ltd., a Tianjin-based
travel agency. Through the acquisitions of majogiuity interests in these entities, each of whiab a license to offer and operate Taiwan
tours in mainland China, we have gained accedsetexpanding Taiwan tours market.
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Tuniu Corporation established a wholly owned PREBsgliary, Beijing Tuniu, in September 2008. TurtiK{ Limited established
another wholly owned PRC subsidiary, Tuniu (Nanjirgormation Technology Co., Ltd., in August 20hd acquired 100% of the equity
interests in Beijing Tuniu in September 2011. TiytoBeijing Tuniu, we obtained control over Nanjifigniu by entering into a series of
contractual arrangements, including purchase ogtgzeement, equity interest pledge agreement, lsblalers’ voting rights agreement, powers
of attorney and cooperation agreement, with Nanjingiu and the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu. NanjTuniu holds our ICP licenses as an
Internet content provider and operates our webB#ging Tuniu International Travel Service Co.dLand Nanjing Tuniu International Travel
Service Co. Ltd., both of which are Nanjing Tunistsbsidiaries, hold our operation permits for ogasstravel business.

These contractual arrangements allow us to:
» exercise effective control over Nanjing Tuniu;
*  receive substantially all of the economic benedftdlanjing Tuniu; and

* have an option to purchase all or part of the gdoterests in Nanjing Tuniu when and to the exfmrmitted by PRC law.

As a result of these contractual arrangements,revéha primary beneficiary of Nanjing Tuniu, and tneat it and its subsidiaries as
consolidated affiliated entities under U.S. GAAPe Wave consolidated the financial results of Nanjimniu and its subsidiaries in our
consolidated financial statements in accordancke Wis. GAAP.

Our principal executive offices are located at TuBuilding No. 699-32 Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu Distridgnjing, Jiangsu Province
210042, the People’s Republic of China. Our tel@ghoumber at this address is +86 (25) 8685-3969 r&jistered office in the Cayman
Islands is located at International Corporatiorv®ess Ltd., P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Pldd3 South Church Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1106, Cayman Islands. Our agerdduvice of process in the United States is Lawddéure Corporate Services Inc.,
located at 400 Madison Avenue, 4th Floor, New Ydikw York 10017.

See “Item 5.B. Operating and Financial Review arabpects—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Capitadnditures” for a discussion
of our capital expenditures.

B. Business Overview

We offer a large selection of packaged tours, iiclg organized tours and self-guided tours, as astravel-related services for
leisure travelers. Our online platform, which coiees ourtuniu.comwebsite and mobile platform, provides comprehenpregluct and travel
information through user-friendly interfaces to kledeisure travelers to plan their travels andde#or itineraries that best suit their needs.
Our online platform contains travel guides featgnihotos, information and recommendations for editahations we cover, as well as user-
generated content that serves as valuable referéocether travelers.
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To cultivate customer loyalty and ensure custoraisfction, we complement our online platform wath extensive nationwide
service network, including our primary call centeNanjing, a regional call center in Guangzhou,asdof December 31, 2014, 75 regional
service centers located in 73 cities across Clinaf December 31, 2014, we had a team of appraeim&50 well-trained tour advisors to
closely assist customers throughout their bookinggss. We believe that our high-quality custoneevise has contributed to the continuous
growth in our customer base. The total numberip$tsold by us grew from approximately 1,276,00Q04.3 to over 2,182,000 in 2014.

Our recognized brand in leisure travel and grovdagtomer base enable us to source a broad ramgedfcts from high-quality
travel suppliers at competitive prices. We rigofpgelect our travel suppliers to ensure qualitgl egliability. We have developed our
proprietary supply chain management system—N-Bapkiystem—to streamline our interactions with trargdpliers, allowing them to
receive booking information real-time, through tireb or mobile devices to more efficiently manageét products and better understand
customer preferences. In addition, to further bepetthe range of our products and better serveusiomers, we enter into strategic agreernr
with various industry partners from time to timerExample, in December 2014, we entered intoadegfic cooperation agreement with
Ctrip.com International, Ltd., a leading travehgee provider in China, in order to expand our @bliration on shared travel resources.

Our Products and Services

We offer a wide array of packaged tours and otteefet-related services to meet the diverse tragetin and preferences of leisure
travelers in China. Our packaged tours consistgémized tours and self-guided tours. Our corengtteis in overseas leisure travel products
and services, which contributed over 65% of ousgieookings during the same period.

Organized Tours

Our organized tours offer the benefits of pre-ageghitineraries, transportation, accommodationtgreainment, meals and tour guide
services. By booking an organized tour with us,@ustomers can achieve cost savings compared tarfgpeach component separately and
enjoy a pleasant and hassle-free travel experience.

Our organized tours cover over 140 countries agibns worldwide, including nearly all of the poputaurist destinations among
Chinese travelers, such as Europe, Thailand, IrslariBali), the Maldives, Korea, Japan, Hong Kahg, United States and Saipan Islands, a:
well as all of the popular tourist attractions ihi@a. Organized tours are particularly populardeerseas destinations with language or culture
barriers.

Our organized tour product portfolio also incluttesal tours, which mainly consist of weekend getgsvand themed tours, such as
water-village tours, historical-town tours, ski tswand hot spring tours, and mainly target custesmdro want to spend one to three days away
from their departing cities. Typically, local tourave a lower average gross bookings per trip agaced to other types of organized tours.

In addition, to address the needs of group traseldrich cannot be satisfied by off-tebelf standard packaged travel products, su
companies planning travel retreats and familieanilag group tours, we provide customized toursatercto such specific travel needs. Our
group travel tour advisors work closely with owavtel suppliers and our customers to design tranelyrts and itineraries that meet such
customers’ unique needs.
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Self-guided Tours

Our self-guided tours consist of combinations mftfts and hotel bookings and other optional add-sash as airport pick-ups. These
products are offered at attractive prices comptodmoking each travel product separately. Ourgeifled tours target leisure travelers who
prefer greater flexibility during their vacationsdawho do not need tour guide services. Due tdthadth of our travel suppliers, we are abl
provide a wide selection of self-guided tours, eogea large number of hotels and airlines, ancetdeveloped the most comprehensive
product offerings for selected popular destinati¢its example, we cover substantially all of theoréislands in the Maldives, and customers
of our packaged tours accounted for 17.0% of Cleirzggvals in the Maldives in the fourth quarte206fLl4. We also offer cruise packages,
featuring some of the largest cruise lines in tlogldy such as Royal Caribbean International, C@stase, Star Cruises, MSC Cruises and
Princess Cruises.

Other Travel-Related Services

Our other travel-related services comprise maialgsof tourist attraction tickets and visa procggservices. We earn a commission
or service fee on these services. In addition, regige advertising services to domestic and forégymism boards and bureaus on our online
platform. We also provide travel-related financfogcustomers to encourage consumption.

Our Online Platform and Offline Service Network

We reach and serve customers through multiple erimd offline channels, including cwmniu.com website, mobile platform, a
primary call center in Nanjing, a regional call tsrin Guangzhou and, as of December 31, 2014egidmal service centers in 73 cities across
China.

Our online platform provides our customers with thels and information to conveniently plan, boakl gurchase travel products and
services. In addition, our online platform presartsmprehensive product information and travel rezmaents through user-friendly interfaces
for leisure travelers to easily search for, compare place orders for product offerings that beitteeir needs. As of December 31, 2014, we
had approximately 650 well-trained tour advisord amer 150 customer service representatives locatedr centralized call center to
supplement our online transaction infrastructur@imyviding our customers with professional advind guidance throughout their travel
planning and bookings process as well as timelpstbefore and during their travels. The inclusiéa customer-focused, service network is
particularly important to customers of our travesdgucts with high selling prices as these custorususlly demand more assistance and
attention in their travel planning.

Our Website

Our websitetuniu.com, provides a one-stop travel platform for our cosos to do everything from research travel destinatto
book travel products. In addition to our produdbimation such as tour duration, departure timedastination descriptions, our website
features comprehensive travel advice ranging frasidinformation to professional and user recomragods and travelers’ reviews for the
destinations we cover. Users can post questiorsdety specific products and receive timely respsranline from our well-trained tour
advisors and customer service representativeshwhadailitates their travel planning, product select reservations and payments. Our user-
friendly interface enables users to quickly andlg@wvaluate and compare a wide array of travetipots. Customers can also raise complaint:
about our travel products and services througlotti@e-messaging function on our website.
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We encourage our customers to share photos, storibsther travel-related information on our wehsivVe have built a large and fast:
growing collection of customer reviews and travetigs which we believe are attractive and usefuur current and prospective customers.
As of December 31, 2014, we had more than 1,250;06tmer reviews and over 20,000 travel storigsdastination guides on our website.
The Travelogue forum on our website, which is oigeh based on destinations, provides our customigiisan easy and intuitive way to acc
various topics of interest. Registered memberssbane their travel experiences and interact witlelotembers by posting questions and
receiving answers from fellow forum members. Weehawcomprehensive collection of descriptions ammtqshof different destinations. Our
website also provides other useful travel-relatédrmation, such as weather forecasts, exchangs,ahin schedules and subway maps to
further enhance user experience.

A transaction on our website generally involvesftiwing steps:

Browse. A customer typically enters one of our over 249 webpages by selecting his location or departityg The customer can
easily browse our product selection by travel desidn. In order to allow customers to locate thedpcts they are interested in, our website
also arranges our travel product offerings intéedént categories, such as organized tours, séteduours, corporate tours, cruises, tickets fo
tourist attractions, self-drive tours and visa &ggtlons. The customer can also choose to browsegh our best-sellers for each of local tours
domestic tours, overseas tours, self-guided toutgiakets for tourist attractions.

Search and SelectA customer conducts a search for a particuladgprbon our website by defining desired parametersh as
destinations, departing cities, departure timedpobtypes, tour duration, number of travelers;gmiand itineraries. We provide the customer
with information regarding each travel product etall together with photographs of the destinatiang hotels as well as customer reviews
ratings. Our website displays various possiblectigles and provides additional information abowt inoducts. The customer can sort, refin
rank search results by further defining certainceparameters such as price range, customer sagpogularity and keywords. Our online
Q&A feature enables the customer to raise inquiaties receive timely responses to facilitate thesearch. In addition, the comparison tool on
our website displays details of different travadgucts side-by-side, enabling the customer to ewaldifferent travel products easily.

Order Placement After a customer has selected a particular option website will provide the customer with an ogipnity to
review details of the travel products and servimgisg purchased and the terms and conditions &f puchase. The customer can also reques
assistance and professional advice from our tousads who will promptly follow up and interact Wwithe customer online or by phone.

Contract Confirmation At this stage, a customer is required to confinat he agrees to the terms and conditions ofumshase. The
customer can submit his confirmation online or gluy: contract related to his purchase in one ofegional service centers or send us the
signed contract. Contracts are entered betweenditha customer directly.

Payment After confirming the terms of a contract, a cuséw will be directed to the payment webpage. Weradtir customers the
flexibility to choose a number of payment optiowsjch include bank transfers, credit cards, deditls and online payment through thparty
online payment platforms. In addition, the custocen pay at one of our regional service centemvaflable, the customer can also discount
the purchase price of our travel products by usimgcoupons and travel vouchers. Electronic cordtroms are sent to the customer’s e-mail
address or mobile phone and the customer can asgribrary management function on our websitehteck his booking details as well as
amend or cancel his bookings.
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Review. After completing their trips, a customer is paed with incentives such as coupons to return toralpsite to write reviews
and travel stories and share his experience o i@welogue forum. This increases transparency degguour travel product quality and
increases customer stickiness. We regard custawigws and travel stories, which provide valuahfermation to potential customers, as
important criteria in assessing the quality andgrerance of our travel suppliers and travel progluct

We offer customized services via a sophisticatedaet management system accessible on our onltph. After logging on with
a unique identification, a customer can track osdatus, manage itineraries and check membersimgspooupons and travel vouchers.

Our Mobile Platform

Our Android- and Apple iOS-based mobile applicasicsuch a3 uniu Travel, and the mobile version of our websitetuniu.com
allow customers to search for travel products amdises and place orders. Our mobile platform alsables customers to track their order
status and provides other location-based servicaBdw users to quickly locate a variety of neasbgnic spots.

ThroughTuniu Travel, our customers can search for travel productssandces and complete a booking within minufasiu Travel
also serves as an important and integral part stbavers’ research on travel-related informationstGmers often use our in-house developed
and user-generated travel guides and other useraed content, such as customer reviews, traveést tips and recommendations, on our
Tuniu Travelo plan their travels. In addition, we offer disoted travel products that are exclusive to usefuofu Trave for limited periods
to enhance our mobile user engagement and incneasetization.

Our Customer Services

When selecting a travel company or platform, leduavelers often look beyond factors such as gl selection and focus on
enjoyable experiences, in which our customer sesviiday a crucial part. We believe that the qualitytomer services provided by our well-
trained tour advisors and customer service reptaees gravitate our customers towards our orgiagorm.

Offline nationwide service networlOur primary call center is located in our headtpra in Nanjing, with over 150 customer service
representatives as of December 31, 2014. In additve have a regional call center in Guangzhoucdéeld to serving Cantonese-speaking
clients, designed to better serve the heightenethdd in the region for leisure travel. Our calltees provide 24-hour-a-day, seven-dayeaek
customer services before, during and after trafels) answering customers’ initial inquiries onittteavel-related needs to assisting them in
making and amending their travel bookings. For irigs on detailed product information and itineramgnagement, our customer service
representatives allocate them according to desiimsto our in-house tour advisors, who follow uphvour customers within half an hour to
address their concerns and needs. We have impletheaimprehensive performance measures to monitaradis to ensure our customers
receive quality services. In October 2013, we oietdithe Best Call Center Award in the CCM Award&2intly organized by CCMWorld
Group and CC-CMM Organization, and in October 2@1€ received the Golden Tone Award from 51CallCergeall center and business
process outsourcing industry group, for offeringstanding call center customer service experierdneaddition, as of December 31, 2014, we
had 75 regional service centers located acros&ié3 m China to handle inquiries from customesseell as process visa applications and
payments.

Tour Advisors As of December 31, 2014, we had approximatelyt680 advisors who are well-trained through in-hetraining
workshops as well as training sessions providedunytravel suppliers to closely assist our cust@tieroughout their travel planning and
booking process from preale consultation to final order confirmation. Gaur advisors are equipped with product expertisguide custome
through the details of available packaged toursumonline platform and provide insightful advice customers’ desired travel destinations.
Our tour advisors provide professional guidance@muuct selection, price, travel requirements aaghgent to ensure an efficient and inforr
shopping experience.
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To create a better travel experience for our custenwe are committed to sharing part of theirdesue to certain unexpected eve
For example, if our customers cannot travel dudetth, pregnancy, serious injury, hospitalizatioregection of visa applications after enter
into contracts with us, we will provide them witla¥el vouchers equivalent to a portion of the ant®pid which are redeemable towards the
purchase of our travel products at a later time.

Supply Chain Management

As of December 31, 2014, we had over 6,000 traygpkers, which primarily include tour operatoramvel services providers and
wholesalers of travel products and services in &Hie believe that our ability to enable our trasughpliers to extend their reach to potentially
millions of Internet users in China and fulfill ih@eeeds for inventory management, attracts neuitgueavel suppliers and builds stronger ties
with our existing travel suppliers. As of DecemBér 2014, we had a product procurement team of @@staff dedicated to developing and
enhancing our relationships with existing and peasipe travel suppliers.

We source a broad range of products from traveplgens who have significant advantages in the dastins we cover and who offer
travel products at competitive prices, which enlegnaur ability to attract more customers to oumanplatform. Our growing customer base in
turn attracts more travel suppliers, creating tuwins cycle that strengthens our leading marketipns

We generally enter into contracts with our traugdiers based on our standard form. Our travebkens often pay us rebates based
on our business volume. In addition, some of cawel suppliers require prepayments for reserving availabilities. Typically, we settle
payment with our travel suppliers on a monthly gaaithough our travel suppliers can also requesir early settlement on a discount basis.
To date, substantially all of our travel supplibesve sought to pursue continuing cooperation oppdiges with us. In order to support and
retain suppliers, in November 2014, we enteredfisimework cooperation agreements with four PRG8dmnks under which the banks
intend to make available loan facilities to us or suppliers. See “Iltem 5.B. Operating and FindritReview and Prospects—Liquidity and
Capital Resources.”

We conduct a rigorous process in qualifying trastgipliers and in selecting their travel productd services. In qualifying a potential
travel supplier, we focus on its reputation, pradpality, track record, credibility and price coetiiveness.

In addition, our travel suppliers can participatdiddings for priority listings, prominent placente for biddings and advertising
displays on our website for the travel producty thepply.

Product Selection

We adopt an open-source procurement strategy tesaouiality travel products in the destinationsoeeer. Our product procurement
team works closely with our travel suppliers toweeshat customers are provided with high-qualiéyel products. In addition, we conduct
regular price comparisons for our travel productagsess the competitiveness of our pricing.
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Supply Management

We host one major procurement event each year i@seé our major travel suppliers with our estidatelume demand. We also
constantly communicate with our travel supplierajmty through our product procurement team andpoaprietary NBooking system, to kee
them informed of any changes to the supply outkmkhat they can respond to customer demand medytimanner. This helps us and our
travel suppliers make timely adjustments to procuet plans.

Supplier Quality Control

We have developed product and service provisiotopats for travel suppliers to follow. Given thaewave recently undergone an
extensive regional expansion, with 75 regionalisereenters throughout China as of December 314,20& are able to closely track the
performance of travel suppliers in each localeugfoour service centers. We have a dedicated teamarge of monitoring travel suppliers
based on customer feedback; which also providesmweendations for travel suppliers to improve tiseivice quality and the products they
supply. We impose penalties on our travel suppbersease selling their travel products if thedurcts fail to meet our quality standards or if
we receive valid complaints from our customers.M#® prepare regular assessment reports on oel sappliers based on the popularity,
quality and price competitiveness of their travelducts. To monitor and further improve the quatityour travel suppliers and the products
and services we offer, we proactively collect femalbfrom our customers after their travels.

N-Booking System

We have developed a proprietary N-Booking systeroessible via web and mobile, that offers our trauppliers the following
features:

Product ManagementTravel suppliers can submit details of their élgwoducts via an easy-to-navigate online intexfédter our
review and approval, we will post the details pdad by the travel suppliers and the prices detexchby us on our online platform. In additi
our N-Booking system provides travel suppliers veithoption to use descriptions and photos of dastins and tourist attractions in our
database.

Just-In-Time ManagemenOur N-Booking system provides travel supplierthveiccess to real-time inventory data and givesitae
wide range of inventory management tools. Our N¥og system also notifies travel suppliers of ahgiriges in the inventory level of the
travel products we source from them, which enatiiem to timely adjust their procurement and salas As such, we are able to deliver rea
time information on product availability and progidur customers with prompt booking and order cor#tions.

Account Managemen®Our travel suppliers can review transaction jsttetails on our N-Booking system. They can aldonsit
requests for early settlement of their accountrmaavith us on a discount basis.

Data Analysis Supported by our big data platform, travel sugglican analyze and understand user behavior basheir browsing
history. Travel suppliers can keep track of traffiought to the travel products supplied by thenoononline platform and are able to evaluate
the competitiveness of different travel product® bélieve the user information gathered from ouinerplatform reflects current leisure travel
market trends in China and provides excellent ntarisights to our travel suppliers for their proenment planning and product design. By
leveraging our data mining and analytics capabditiravel suppliers are able to develop a modepth understanding of customers’ behavior
and preferences, potentially unlocking significealue.
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Technology

We have built our technology infrastructure witlytinlevels of performance, reliability, scalabilapd security to ensure superior
customer and supplier experiences. We rely onnathr developed proprietary technologies and liegint®chnologies to manage and improve
our website, mobile platform and management syst&ssf December 31, 2014, we had a team of appratdly 400 engineers dedicated to
research and development in the areas of webs#ietipns, mobile platform, search engine, datayginaland supply chain management
system.

We believe that an advanced technology platformitég to our growth and success. In 2012, we olehilfsO 9001:2008 certification
for our quality management system and 1SO 27005 2@@tification for our information security managent system in the design,
development and maintenance of our online platfandicating our compliance with internationally ogmized standards for quality control.

Product Search

We strive to present relevant and useful searalitseis a timely fashion to ensure the accuradfciehcy and synchronism of our
search results. Despite the difficulties in analgdeisure travel products data, we have develspadch technologies that allow us to retrieve,
index, filter and rank real-time product informatidVe are able to prioritize the search resultsdigplay information most suited to our
customers’ requirements in a simple and intuititeriface in real-time. Our core search technologielside the following:

Real-time Indexing Our search infrastructure enables changes iruptathta to be indexed, processed and reflectedarch results
on a real-time basis.

Smart Caching We maintain a database with massive productimftion on packaged tours, hotels, flights and ottssel-related
services. We have designed an auto-prioritizindhoeto update the database by ranking popular ptediased on different criteria, such as
popular cities, most-visited attractions, top-rapedducts and most-viewed products. Different itfneg frequencies are applied to different
products.

Accuracy CheckingOur accuracy checking software complements oarsoaching system and is implemented to displayatest
product information such as prices and productrifggmns. When a user clicks on the interestedaesesult, an accuracy checker is triggered
to retrieve the updated product information andgeng it to the user.

Fuzzy Query ProcessingVe maintain a dictionary for travetlated keywords in Chinese, where keywords argsiflad and linked t
each other based on their meanings. We have alsboged a query search algorithm based on usetsripienhance our ability to dissect
natural language queries. Such technologies heltptisr understand the meanings of queries ancbtiupe the most relevant and useful se
results. We also provide additional search featswed as query spelling correction, query suggestial search by Chinese phonetics (Pinyin
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Big Data Analysis

We gather and analyze customer behavior and dataufgrocurement, inventory management and marggturposes. We also
provide selected data to our travel suppliers, kmgthem to optimize their product designs andkating strategies.

Big Data Platform. We have developed our big data platform baseal distributed computing system. Such data analgapabilities
help us to gain a deeper understanding of existirtgprospective customers and market trends, madtermized recommendations to
customers and improve our applications and prodacitsrdingly.

Streaming Data AnalysisWe have also built a streaming data processipglipe based on our big data platform to view tfansing
history of the users of our online platform andliow our travel suppliers to review their performea data near real-time.

Web Content MiningOur web content processing system links userrgée content which includes customer reviews gratories
and tips as well as destination guides such asidéosa hotels and tourist attractions. This allawsrs of our online platform to obtain
information of different destinations and travebgucts and services in a user-friendly manner.

N-Booking System

Our N-Booking system streamlines the interactiogtsveen us and our travel suppliers. Our N-Bookigjesn also allows our travel
suppliers to receive booking information real-titheough the web or mobile devices to more effidientanage travel products and better
understand customer preferences. See “—Supply Gharagement—N-Booking System.”

CRM System

Through a customer relationship management sysie@RM system, we gather, analyze and make useerhially-generated
customer behavior and transaction data based doncass’ historical purchase and browsing records.régularly use this information in
budgeting and procurement planning as well asanmihg our marketing initiatives and promotionahgaigns.

Data Security

Our system servers are housed in Nanjing and Beifind have secure and dedicated communicatios #imong them. All data are
backed up on an hourly basis. Our system serviizeuigital certificates to help us conduct secaommunications and transactions. The
performance of our system servers is monitorednaaititained by an internal team that operates 24shaday, seven days a week. Customer
sensitive information, such as password and paymérmation, is stored with encryption, and outadservers are secured with firewalls.

Dynamic Packaging System

We have leveraged our data analytics capabilitietetelop a dynamic packaging system that enablegsers to customize their own
travel packages tailored to individual travelerséds. This system is able to combine trip companieoin different suppliers to provide truly
customized trips, automating and placing in thedisasf our customers a function that was previopsiformed manually. It uses algorithms
and past customer data to filter out unnaturaleg®and provide customers with relevant choicesdan their ascertainable behavior. We
believe this is one of the first systems of itsetyp China.
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Seasonality

Our business experiences fluctuations, reflectegssenal variations in demand for leisure travelises. Sales of leisure travel
products and services will increase in respeciotitihy periods and decrease in respect of off-pmaés, while prices of leisure travel products
and services are subject to fluctuation betweek peasons and low seasons. For example, the tiéndey of each year generally contributes
the highest percentage of our annual revenuesubecaany of our customers tend to travel duringnsenholidays in July and August.

Marketing and Brand Building

We continue to work on building and maintainingr@isg Tuniu brand. We have entered into agreemeititsa number of search
engines, pursuant to which we have purchased tralated keywords or directory links that direcérssto our website. In addition, we have a
strong presence in online social media such aserdiscWeChat and Sina’s Weibo. We believe thatpzasence in online social media helps
us maintain engagement with our targeted customers.

We also conduct offline advertising primarily viatdoor advertising and television advertising. ©filine advertising plays an
important role in building up the image of our titaand generates exposure to members of the p@hlicother marketing programs and
initiatives include targeted campaigns and pronmati@nd seasonal offers. In addition, some domasticforeign tourism boards and bureaus
have cooperated with us to participate in promati@vents and marketing campaigns.

As part of our cross-marketing effort, we have agrents with financial institutions to recommend products and services to their
debit or credit card holders, and we allow thesdlualders to settle their payments for travel paiglgpurchased from us using these cards wit
discounts. For instance, we cooperated with Bankarfgsu, China Construction Bank and China CM lzend launched co-branded credit
cards, through which cardholders may book withng @re entitled to discounts, bonus points andgiredther privileges.

Furthermore, our customer reward program allowscagtomers to accumulate membership points andocsugs they purchase tra
products and services. Our membership points hdixea validity term and, before expiry, customeray redeem these points for future
purchases. Our customer reward program is designedcourage repeat purchases. Currently, our masimpehas five levels. For customers
who meet certain spending thresholds, we upgraglertembership status to the next level, entittimgm to further discounts and more points
for their spending. For customers who have achi¢vedop two levels of membership status, we prwitem with designated customer ser
representatives to handle their travel needs.

Competition

We compete primarily with all other types of onlitnavel companies. In addition, we compete witklitranal travel service providers
and tour operators. In our self-guided tour businas we sell packaged tours which include fligims hotels, we also compete with airlines
and hotels, which in recent years have made effoitsprove their direct sales. Large, establistmernet search engines have also launched
applications offering travel products in varioustileations around the world. Factors affecting @mpetitiveness include, among other thi
price, availability and breadth of choice of trapebducts and services, brand recognition, cust@®mesices, and ease of use, accessibility,
security and reliability of our transaction andvées infrastructure.
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Some of our current and potential competitors neyehgreater financial, marketing and other resautican we do. In addition, some
of our competitors may be acquired by, receive stwent from or enter into strategic relationshifpthwarger, well-established and well-
financed companies or investors. They may be ablievote greater resources to marketing and promedtcampaigns and devote substant
more resources to website and system developmamtuth See “ltem 3.D. Key Information—Risk FactoRisks Related to Our Business anc
Industry—We face intense competition and may nalile to compete successfully against existingreavd competitors.”

Intellectual Property

Our success and ability to compete depend, in ppan our ability to establish and adequately mtoder intellectual property rights.
In this regard, we rely primarily on a combinataincopyright, software registration, trademarkd@a&ecret and unfair competition laws and
contractual rights, such as confidentiality agrestmevith our employees and others. As of DecemtePB14, we had 24 registered computel
software copyrights, one registered patent and fegistered artwork copyrights in China, and werthe process of applying for four patents
in China. In addition, as of December 31, 2014hae¢ 43 registered domain names that were mater@lr business, includirtgniu.com,

and 68 registered trademarks, including (the Chinese characters of Tuniﬁ‘), M= , iIm&hi
Insurance

We maintain various insurance policies to safegagainst risks and unexpected events. We have gsedhravel companielbility
insurance covering expenses related to accidentedaby us. We have also maintained property inserpolicies for our fixed assets covel
losses due to fire, explosion, lightning, stornmdslide, subsidence and aircraft damage.

PRC Regulation

This section sets forth a summary of the significagulations or requirements that affect our bessnactivities in China or our
shareholders’ rights to receive dividends and otheributions from us.

Regulations on Valu-Added Telecommunication Services

The PRC government extensively regulates the tedlemanications industry, including the Internet sectine PRC State Council, the
MIIT, the Ministry of Commerce, the State Adminggion for Industry and Commerce, or the SAIC, tkete&SAdministration of Press,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television (formerhetGeneral Administration of Press and Publicataong other relevant government
authorities have promulgated an extensive regylacheme governing telecommunications, Interneiteel services and e-commerce.
However, since China’s telecommunications induatrgt Internet-related industry are at an early stdgkevelopment, new laws and
regulations may be adopted from time to time thiflitrequire us to obtain additional licenses andhpiés in addition to those that we currently
have, and will require us to address new issudsatiiee from time to time. As a result, substantiaertainties exist regarding the interprete
and implementation of current and any future Creras/s and regulations applicable to the teleconications, Internet-related services and ¢
commerce. See “Item 3.D. Key Information—Risk FasteRisks Related to Doing Business in China—Unaatitss in the interpretation and
enforcement of PRC laws and regulations could lthetlegal protections available to you and us.”
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Licenses for Value-Added Telecommunication Services

The Telecommunications Regulations issued by thé Bfte Council in September 2000 are the primagylations governing
telecommunication services. The TelecommunicatiRegulations set out the general framework for tloeipion of telecommunication
services by PRC companies. Under the TelecommimisaRegulations, it is a requirement that telecamications service providers procure
operating licenses prior to commencement of theérations. The Telecommunications Regulations d@raistinction between “basic
telecommunications services” and “value-added tetenunications services.” Internet content provisiervices, or ICP services, is a
subcategory of value-added telecommunications cesyvi

Pursuant to the Administrative Measures for Teleoomications Business Operating Permit promulgatethé MIIT in March 2009,
as amended in December 2011, there are two typetesbmmunication operating license for operaitwiShina, namely, licenses for basic
telecommunications services and licenses for vatiged telecommunications services. The operatiopesof the license will specify the
permitted activities of the enterprise to whicksigranted. An approved telecommunication servigezator must conduct its business in
accordance with such specifications.

Pursuant to the Administrative Measures on Intelmfermation Services, promulgated by the PRC Staencil in September 2000,
commercial Internet information services operatoust obtain an ICP license, from the relevant govemt authorities before engaging in any
commercial Internet information services operatiaithin the PRC. Nanjing Tuniu, our consolidatefiliated entity, obtained ICP licenses
issued by the Jiangsu Administration of Telecomrmatidn which will expire in March 2019.

The Internet Electronic Bulletin Service Adminigive Measures promulgated by the MIIT in Novemb@d@ require Internet
information services operators to obtain specifipravals before providing BBS services, which id&welectronic bulletin boards, electronic
forums, message boards and chat rooms. In July, 208 @equirement of BBS approval was terminated bigcision issued by the PRC State
Council. However, in practice, the relevant auttiesistill require obtaining such approval for tperation of BBS services. We have applied
to the Jiangsu Administration of Telecommunicafionand have obtained, an approval for the openadfdBBS services on our website.

Foreign Investment in Value-Added Telecommunicat®Services

The Catalog for the Guidance of Foreign Investnieaitistries, or the Catalog, as promulgated and detkfrom time to time by the
Ministry of Commerce and the National Developmerd eform Commission, is the principal guide teefgn investors’ investment activities
in the PRC. The most updated version of the Cataihich was promulgated in 2011, divides the indestinto three categories: encouraged,
restricted and prohibited. Industries not listedhi@ Catalog are generally open to foreign investmaless specifically restricted by other PRC
laws and regulations. A wholly foreign-owned enteg is generally permitted for encouraged indastrivhile for restricted industries, such as
value-added telecommunications service industeretlare some limitations to the ownership and/gpamate structure of the foreign-invested
companies that operate in such industries. Indassini the prohibited category are not open to fprémvestors.

Pursuant to the Provisions on Administration ofdigmn-Invested Telecommunications Enterprises, pigated by the PRC State
Council in December 2001 and amended in Septentl#8, 2he ultimate foreign equity ownership in auneahdded telecommunications
services provider may not exceed 50%. Moreoveraffmreign investor to acquire any equity interest value-added telecommunication
business in China, it must satisfy a number ohgent performance and operational experience remeints, including demonstrating good
track records and experience in operating valueddelecommunication business overseas. Foreigrsiass that meet these requirements
must obtain approvals from the MIIT and the Minystf Commerce or their authorized local countergastich retain considerable discretion
in granting approvals. Pursuant to publicly avdéahformation, the PRC government has issued d¢ebasunications business operating
licenses to only a limited number of foreign-investompanies, all of which are Sino-foreign joiahtures engaging in the value-added
telecommunication business.
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The MIIT Circular issued in July 2006 reiterated tiegulations on foreign investment in telecommatidns businesses, which reqt
foreign investors to set up foreign-invested entegs and obtain a business operating licensenferriet content provision to conduct any
value-added telecommunications business in Chimasuant to the MIIT Circular, a domestic comparst tholds an ICP license is prohibited
from leasing, transferring or selling the licensddreign investors in any form, and from providiagy assistance, including providing
resources, sites or facilities, to foreign investibrat conduct value-added telecommunications basiillegally in China. Furthermore, the
relevant trademarks and domain names that areingbed value-added telecommunications business baustvned by the domestic ICP
license holder or its shareholders. The MIIT Ciacdlrther requires each ICP license holder to lheeecessary facilities for its approved
business operations and to maintain such faciliti¢e regions covered by its license. In addit@hvalue-added telecommunications service
providers are required to maintain network andrimi@tion security in accordance with the standaed$asth under relevant PRC regulations.

In light of the aforesaid restrictions, we rely Manjing Tuniu, our consolidated affiliated entitg,hold and maintain the licenses
necessary to provide online marketing servicesadher value-added telecommunications services ina&lror a detailed discussion of our
contractual arrangements, please refer to “—C. @rgdional Structure.” To comply with these PRCulagjons, we operate our website and
value-added telecommunications services throughitdaiuniu. Nanjing Tuniu holds our ICP licenseglawns all domain names used in our
value-added telecommunications businesses. Namjiniu is also the owner of all registered tradersarked in our value-added
telecommunications businesses and is the applafaait registered trademark applications we areenity making.

Regulations on Information Security and Censorship

The PRC government regulates and restricts Inteorgent in China to protect state security andienthe legality of the Internet
content. The National People’s Congress, Chinaiomal legislative body, enacted a Decision onSaéguarding of Internet Security in
December 2000, as subsequently amended in AugQ8t 2hong other things, makes it unlawful to: (Ahgmproper entry into a computer or
system of strategic importance; (2) disseminatéipally disruptive information; (3) leak state sets; (4) spread false commercial informati
or (5) infringe intellectual property rights. Puasi to the Administrative Measures on Internet imfation Services and other applicable
laws, Internet content providers and Internet mitgis are prohibited from posting or displayingrdthe Internet content which violates PRC
laws and regulations, impairs the national digoftfChina, or is reactionary, obscene, superstitirasidulent or defamatory. Internet service
providers are required to monitor their websitas|uding electronic bulletin boards. They may nostpor disseminate any content that falls
within these prohibited categories and must renawesuch content from their websites. The PRC gowent may shut down the websites of
ICP license holders that violate any of the abowstioned content restrictions and revoke their li€éhses. In addition, the MIIT has
published regulations that subject ICP operatopstential liability for content displayed on theiebsites and the actions of users and others
using their systems, including liability for vioiahs of PRC laws and regulations prohibiting thesdimination of content deemed to be socially
destabilizing. The Ministry of Public Security he authority to order any local Internet servicevider to block any Internet website at its
sole discretion. From time to time, the MinistryRadblic Security has stopped the dissemination thesinternet of information which it
believes to be socially destabilizing.
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The Ministry of Public Security has promulgated Administrative Measures for the Security Protetid International Connections
to Computer Information Network in December 199t throhibit the use of the Internet in ways whigimong other things, result in a leakage
of State secrets or the distribution of sociallgtdeilizing content. Socially destabilizing contémtludes any content that incites defiance or
violations of PRC laws or regulations or subversibthe PRC government or its political systemespls socially disruptive rumors or invol
cult activities, superstition, obscenities, porragdry, gambling or violence. Under PRC law, stateets are defined broadly to include
information concerning PRC national defense, sifftdrs and other matters as determined by the &RBorities.

In December 2005, the Ministry of Public Securitpmpulgated Provisions on Technological Measuredrfarnet Security Protectio
These measures and the Administrative Measurestemkt Information Services require all ICP oparato keep records of certain
information about their users (including user ragtion information, log-in and log-out time, IPdadss, content and time of listings by users)
for at least 60 days and submit the above infoimnadis required by laws and regulations. The ICPatpes must regularly update information
security and censorship systems for their websitdslocal public security authorities, and mustaateport any public dissemination of
prohibited content. If an ICP operator violatesstheneasures, the PRC government may revoke itid€#e and shut down its websites.
Pursuant to the Decision on Strengthening Netwofirmation Protection issued by the Standing Cortermibf the PRC National People’s
Congress in December 2012, ICP operators must seglentity information from users when ICP opersfarovide information publication
services to the users. If ICP operators come agmadsbited information, they must immediately ace#se transmission of such information,
delete the information, keep relevant records,rapodrt to relevant government authorities. In 20¢3, the MIIT promulgated the Regulation
on Protection of Personal Information of Telecominations and Internet Users to provide for moreaitied rules in this respect.

In addition, the State Secrecy Bureau has issumdgions authorizing the blocking access to anysitehit deems to be leaking state
secrets or failing to comply with the relevant Bgtion regarding the protection of state secrets.

As Nanjing Tuniu is an ICP operator, it is subjicthe laws and regulations relating to informatsacurity. To comply with these
laws and regulations, it has completed the mangakcurity filing procedures with the local puldiecurity authorities, regularly update their
information security and content-filtering systewigh newly issued content restrictions, and maimgaecords of usergiformation as require
by the relevant laws and regulations. Nanjing Turas also taken measures to delete or removetbnésntent that to its knowledge contains
information violating PRC laws and regulations. Bf#y of the content posted on our online platfasnfirst screened by our filtering systems.
Content containing prohibited words or images entmanually screened by employees who are deditatateening and monitoring content
published on our platform and removing prohibitedtent. We believe that with these measures ireplaa prohibited content under PRC
information security laws and regulations shouldenbeen publicly disseminated through our onlirsfpim in the past. However, there is
significant amount of content posted on our onfpitegform by our users on a daily basis. If any fted content is publicly disseminated in
the future and we become aware of it, we will réjico the relevant government authority. We bedighese measures taken by us are gen
in compliance with the relevant laws and regulation
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If, despite the precautions, we fail to identifydgsrevent illegal or inappropriate content fromngedisplayed on or through our online
platform, we may be subject to liability. In additj these laws and regulations are subject topratation by the relevant authorities, and it
may not be possible for us to determine in all sdbe types of content that could result in lidpiliTo the extent that PRC regulatory author
find any content displayed on or through our onfitetform objectionable, they may require us tatlion eliminate the dissemination or
availability of such content or impose penaltiesluding the revocation of our operating licensethe suspension or shutdown of our online
operations. In addition, the costs of compliancenwhese regulations may increase as the volurserdént and the number of users on our
online platform increases.

Regulations on Internet Privacy

The PRC Constitution states that PRC law protéadgreedom and privacy of communications of citizand prohibits infringement
of these rights. In recent years, PRC governmethioaities have promulgated laws and regulationgntgrnet use to protect personal
information from any unauthorized disclosure. TheeiBion on Strengthening Network Information Pratecand the Regulation on Protection
of Personal Information of Telecommunication aneinet Users provide that information that ideesfa citizen, the time or location for his
use of telecommunication and Internet service@alves privacy of any citizen such as his biréiied ID card number, and address is
protected by law and must not be unlawfully cokeicor provided to others. ICP operators collectingsing personal electronic information of
citizens must specify the purposes, manners amesaaf information collection and uses, obtain eoh®f the relevant citizens, and keep the
collected personal information confidential. ICRemgtors are prohibited from disclosing, tamperinthywdamaging, selling or illegally
providing others with, collected personal inforroati ICP operators are also prohibited from coltecaind use of personal information after a
user has stopped using the services. ICP opemt®required to take technical and other measargeevent the collected personal informa
from any unauthorized disclosure, damage or losgedisas conducting a self-examination of theirtpotion of personal information at least
once a year. The Administrative Measures on Intdrifermation Services prohibit an ICP operatomnfrmsulting or slandering a third party or
infringing upon the lawful rights and interestsaothird party. Pursuant to the Internet Electr@udetin Service Administrative Measures, ICP
operators that provide electronic messaging sesvinest keep users’ personal information confidéatid must not disclose the personal
information to any third party without the usershsent or unless required by law. The relevanttetenunications authorities are further
authorized to order ICP operators to rectify unarited disclosure. ICP operators are subject tal légpility, including warnings, fines,
confiscation of illegal gains, revocation of licesor filings, closing of the relevant websitesnadstrative punishment, criminal liabilities, or
civil liabilities, if they violate relevant provisns on Internet privacy. Such requirements arenaditd by the Regulation on Protection of
Personal Information of Telecommunications andrirgeUsers. If an ICP operator appoints an agenhtertake any marketing and technical
services that involve the collection or use of paed information, the ICP operator is requireddpervise and manage the protection of such
information. Any violation may subject the ICP ogirs to warnings, fines, disclosure to the pudtid, in the most severe cases, criminal
liability. The PRC government, however, has the @oand authority to order ICP operators to turnr gegsonal information if an Internet user
posts any prohibited content or engages in illegéVities on the Internet.

Regulations on Ai-ticketing

Air-ticketing business is subject to the supervisih the China Aviation Transportation AssociationCATA, and its regional
branches. Currently the principal regulation goumgrair-ticketing agencies in China is the RulegGantification of Qualification for Civil
Aviation Transport Sales Agencies, or the Air Tithg Rules, issued by the CATA, which became effecbn March 31, 2006. Under the Air
Ticketing Rules and relevant foreign investmenutations, any company acting as an air-ticketirlg agency must obtain approval from the
CATA, and a foreign investor currently cannot ov9% of an air-ticketing agency in China, exceptdoalified Hong Kong and Macau
aviation marketing agencies. In addition, foreiguested air-ticketing agencies are not permittesetbpassenger airline tickets for domestic
flights in China, except for Hong Kong and Macaiatien marketing agencies. In addition, CATA isstieel Supplementary Rules Regarding
Sales via the Internet in 2008. These SupplemeRahys provide that, effective as of June 1, 20fG# air-ticketing sales agency would like
to engage in sales via the Internet, it must oldaihCP license from the local counterpart of théMind must complete a commercial website
registration with the AIC. Although we request tbat travel suppliers provide their licenses ompies to us before entering into agreements
with them, we cannot ensure that all of our trastgipliers engaged in the air ticketing sales agertyice obtained, and maintained, all
necessary permits. See “ltem 3.D. Key InformatioriskFFactors—Risks Related to Our Business and Ingda/Ne may not be able to
adequately control and ensure the quality of traveducts and services sourced from our travellgengplf there is any deterioration in the
quality of their performance, our customers mayaasttinue using our online platform.”
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Regulations on Hotel Operatio

In November 1987, the Ministry of Public Securigguied the Measures for the Control of SecurithénHotel Industry, and in
June 2004, the PRC State Council promulgated tloéside of the PRC State Council on Establishing Adstrative License for the
Administrative Examination and Approval Items Redllecessary To Be Retained. Under these two rdgnfatanyone who applies to operate
a hotel is subject to examination and approvahigyldcal public security authority and must obtispecial industry license. The Measures fo
the Control of Security in the Hotel Industry impasertain security control obligations on the ofmsa For example, the hotel must examine
the identification card of any guest to whom accardation is provided and make an accurate registralihe hotel must also report to the
local public security authority if it discovers ame violating the law or behaving suspiciouslyanroffender wanted by the public security
authority.

In April 1987, the PRC State Council promulgateel Bublic Area Hygiene Administration Regulation,ethrequires hotels to obtain
a public area hygiene license before opening fairtass. In March 2011, the Ministry of Health prégatied the Implementation Rules of the
Public Area Hygiene Administration Regulation, whiequire, starting from May 1, 2011, hotel opersito establish hygiene administration
system and keep records of hygiene administratioRebruary 2009, the Standing Committee of theédwal People’s Congress, or the
SCNPC, enacted the PRC Law on Food Safety, whiphines any hotel that provides food to obtain alfservice license.

The Fire Prevention Law, as amended by the SCNR@fober 2008, and the Provisions on Supervisiahlaspection on Fire
Prevention and Control, promulgated by the MinistfyPublic Security and effective as of May 1, 20@%juire that public gathering places
such as hotels submit a fire prevention design plammder to apply for completion acceptance & firevention facilities for their construction
projects and to pass a fire prevention safety ictspe by the local public security fire departmemhich is a prerequisite for opening business.

In January 2006, the PRC State Council promulgtitedRegulations for Administration of Entertainm@ces. In March 2006, the
Ministry of Culture issued the Circular on Carryi®gt the Regulations for Administration of Ententaient Places. Under these regulations,
hotels that provide entertainment facilities, sashdiscos or ballrooms, are required to obtainenbe for entertainment business operations.
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We cannot ensure that all of the hotels that werdéf our customers have obtained, and maintaaledecessary permits and licens
See “Item 3. D. Key Information—Risk Factors—Riskslated to Our Business and Industry—We may natibe to adequately control and
ensure the quality of travel products and servemsced from our travel suppliers. If there is dpyerioration in the quality of their
performance, our customers may not continue usimgnline platform.”

Regulations on Travel Companie

The travel industry is subject to the supervisibthe China National Tourism Administration, or CN;Tand local tourism
administrations. The principal regulations govegriravel companies in China include: (i) the Retiataon Travel Companies, or the Travel
Company Regulations, issued by the PRC State Clanrfeebruary 2009, which became effective as off M1a2009, and which replaced the
Administration of Travel Companies Regulations @Qgii) the Implementation Rules for the Regulatan Travel Companies (the “Travel
Company Implementation Rules”), promulgated by@NTA in April 2009, which became effective as of g, 2009, and (iii) the Tourism
Law issued by the Standing Committee of the Nati®e@ple's Congress on April 25, 2013, which becaifffective as of October 1, 2013.
Under these regulations, a travel company mustobtéicense from the CNTA to conduct cross-botdavel business and a license from the
provincial-level tourism administration to conduacimestic travel company business.

The Travel Company Regulations permit foreign ineesto establish wholly foreigawned travel companies, as well as joint vent
and cooperative travel companies. Foreagimed travel companies are allowed to open branchiésnwide, but are restricted from engagin
overseas travel business in China, unless othedeamined by the PRC State Council, or providedien a bilateral free trade agreement
between the country and China, or the closer ecanpartnership agreements between China, Hong KoxgMacau. The Travel Company
Implementation Rules define certain terms usetiénTravel Company Regulations, for example, thindiefn of “domestic tourism business,”
“inbound travel business” and “overseas travel iess”,and set out detailed application requirements tabdish a travel company. The Tra
Company Implementation Rules also clarify certaipegts of legal liability for travel companies asgeribed in the Travel Company
Regulations.

Pursuant to the Tourism Law, travel companies ashipited from arranging for compulsory shoppingptiter activities which charge
additional fees on top of the contract prices thatists have already paid, unless it is agreed ugyoboth parties through consultation or
requested by the tourists and does not affectitierary of other tourists. Travel companies amuned to pay quality deposits for
compensation for damage to tourists’ rights andaade payment of expenses for emergency assistdrere te tourists’ personal safety is in
danger. Travel companies are required to engagegtodes, who are required to strictly follow thi@éraries and are prohibited from altering
arrangement without the consent of customers, sulépg to provide services, requesting tips fronrisig, and arranging for compulsory
shopping or other activities which charge additldaas on top of the contract prices that toutistée already paid by way of induction,
deception, coercion or in other illegal forms. Th®rmation that travel companies release to attvaorganize tourists is required to be
authentic and accurate, and no false publicityimamade to mislead tourists. In addition, travehpanies conducting business via the Interne
are required to present information of their tras@inpany licenses on their websites, and ensureutidulness and accuracy of the travel-
related information they release on their websiBemnerally, travel companies soliciting tourists exquired to take primary liabilities for any
breach of travel contracts, including personalryjor property loss suffered by the tourists atitétble to travel service providers and tour
operators at destinations and their suppliers.

In 2010, CNTA released the Measures for Dealindp Witurism Complaints, which took effect as of JiJ\2010. Under these
Measures, authorities which are responsible folingavith tourist complaints are required to rendedecision on the complaints within 60
days after the date of receipt thereof.
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Although we take measures, such as requestingl sapeliers to provide their relevant permits amditenses, we cannot make sure
that all of our travel suppliers maintained all @esary permits. See “Item 3.D. Key Information—Risictors—Risks Related to Our Business
and Industry—We may not be able to adequately control and ertherguality of travel products and services satdifcem our travel supplier
If there is any deterioration in the quality of thgerformance, our customers may not continuegusim online platform.”

In November 2010, CNTA and CIRC jointly promulgated Measures for the Administration of the Liagilinsurance of Travel
Companies, or the Liability Insurance Measureschviiecame effective as of February 1, 2011. Tremelpanies are required to procure tr
company liability insurance pursuant to the Lighilnsurance Measures. The insurance companigg@uéed to, subject to the liability limits
provided under the insurance agreement, reimbhesedvel companies for the compensations madbéiravel companies for the personal
injury or death and the loss of properties of tetsrand the relevant tour guides or tour leadensuRnt to the Liability Insurance Measures,
liability limit for the personal injury or death efach person cannot be less than RMB200,000 (U3%$8R Each of our relevant consolidated
affiliated entities engaged in travel agent bussriess procured and is covered by valid travel campjfiability insurance.

Regulations on Group Buying

In March 2012, the SAIC issued the Opinions onr&jtieening the Administration of Online Group BuyiBgerations, or the Group
Buying Operation Opinions. The Group Buying OpenmatDpinions stipulate the qualification requirensdior operators of group buying
websites, and certain other obligations, such axamination of the licenses and authorizatiorth@froviders of the relevant products or
services offered on the group buying website, tioeijg buying website operator’s contracts with ssigppliers and customers, data protection
for consumers, among others. Pursuant to the GBoyjng Operation Opinions, operators of group bgyiebsites must (i) establish a
comprehensive after-sales service system, consdispite settlement system and professional custeereice team, (ii) ensure that their
complaint and customer support channels are smfibtiprovide customers with troubleshooting assice and feedback in a timely manner,
and (iv) observe the refund requirements of thesQorer Protection Law, which specifically prohibibgp buying website operators from
imposing no-refund restrictions or limiting refunswebsite credit.

In addition, group buying website operators muso gireserve all relevant data for a period of tearg following their cessation of
operations. In undertaking promotions, operatorgrotip buying websites must obey the Anti-unfainetition Law and the Certain
Regulations on Prohibiting Unfair Competition irnZerattached Sales. The Group Buying Operation Opinamaselatively new and there he
been no relevant implementation rules or interpicata thus far. However, as required by Jiangsu idstration of Telecommunication,
Nanjing Tuniu, our consolidated affiliated entibptained a license of online data processing arséction which will expire in March 2019
order to engage in the group buying business. Sutgeany clarifications or interpretations thatynee issued in future as to the Group Buying
Operation Opinions, we might need to adjust ouratenal or contracting practices.

Regulations on Consumer Rights Protecti

According to the PRC Consumer Rights and Intereéstgection Law, effective as of January 1, 1994,rtghts and interests of
consumers that purchase or use commodities ordbaive services for consumption purposes in diédys required to be protected, which
includes the right to personal safety and the gafeproperty, the right to be informed about goads services offered for sale, the right to
choice when selecting goods or services and tim tigenjoy fair dealings, respect for their peedatignity and ethnic customs, and
compensation for damages suffered.
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Correspondingly, a business operator providingrarnodity or service to a consumer is subject toraber of requirements, which
includes to ensure that commodities and servicext mi¢h certain safety requirements, to disclosese defects of a commodity or a service
and to adopt preventive measures against damageriogy; to provide consumers with accurate infoioratnd to refrain from conducting
false advertising, and not to set unreasonablafairuiterms for consumers or alleviate or relessefifrom civil liability for harming the lawft
rights and interests of consumers by means of atdnzbntracts, circulars, announcements, shopewtic other means. A business operator
may be subject to civil liabilities for failing toilfill the obligations discussed above. Theseiliiés include restoring the consumer’s
reputation, eliminating the adverse effects sutfdrg the consumer, offering an apology and compgamséor any losses incurred. The
following penalties may also be imposed upon bissirgperators for any infraction: issuance of a grrconfiscation of any illegal income,
imposition of a fine, an order to cease businessaifn, revocation of its business license or isitpan of criminal liabilities under
circumstances that are specified in laws and stgtuegulations.

In December 2003, the Supreme People’s Court inZanacted the Interpretation of Some Issues Coimgethe Application of Law
for the Trial of Cases on Compensation for Persbijaty, which further increases the liabilitiestmisiness operators engaged in the operatio
of hotels, restaurants, or entertainment facilitied subjects such operators to compensatoryitiabifor failing to fulfill their statutory
obligations to a reasonable extent or to guarahte@ersonal safety of others.

In October 2010, the Supreme People’s Court of &hEsued the Provisions on Issues Concerning tipdicspion of Law for the Trial
of Cases on Tourism-related Disputes, which esthtiabilities for tour operators and tourism sugp@ervice providers in the event of contract
disputes, personal injury and property damage uirgltourists.

Although we take certain measures to monitor tredities of the travel products and services prodilg our travel suppliers and
handle customer complaints, we cannot ensurehkaetmeasures are sufficient to protect consuigletsrior customer dispute can be handlec
and resolved in a timely fashion. See “Item 3. ByKnformation—Risk Factors—Risks Related to OusiBass and Industry?/e may not b
able to adequately control and ensure the qualitsawel products and services sourced from owelrauppliers. If there is any deterioration in
the quality of their performance, our customers @k damages from us and not continue using dimegplatform.”

Regulations on Advertising Busine:

The SAIC is the primary governmental authority latgjng advertising activities, including online atising, in China. Regulations
that apply to advertising business primarily inadud

*  Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of Chip@mulgated by the Standing Committee of the dveti Peoples Congres
on October 27, 1994 and effective since Februafy®5;

e Administrative Regulations for Advertising, promatgd by the PRC State Council on October 26, 1887effective since
December 1, 1987; and

* Implementation Rules for the Administrative Regigias for Advertising, promulgated by the PRC Stateincil on January 9,
1988 and amended on December 3, 1998, Decemb80@,ghd November 30, 2004, respectively.
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According to the above regulations, companiesdhgtge in advertising activities must each obfeam the SAIC or its local
branches, a business license which specificalljdes operating an advertising business in itsnass scope. An enterprise engaging in
advertising business within the specificationgsrbiusiness scope does not need to apply for artaing operation license, provided that s
enterprise is not a radio station, television stathewspaper or magazine publisher or any othéy @therwise specified in the relevant laws
or administrative regulations. Enterprises condgctidvertising activities without such a licenseyrba subject to penalties, including fines,
confiscation of advertising income and orders @seeadvertising operations. The business licenaa aflvertising company is valid for the
duration of its existence, unless the license $pended or revoked due to a violation of any reielaws or regulations.

Under the Rules for Administration of Foreign IniegsAdvertising Enterprises, which were jointly pralgated by the SAIC and the
Ministry of Commerce on March 2, 2004 and amendedgust 22, 2008, certain foreign investors amnitted to hold direct equity interests
in PRC advertising companies. A foreign investoa iBhinese advertising company is required to Ipaieg direct advertising operations as its
main business outside China for two years if thin€e advertising company is a joint venture, cagdtyears if the Chinese advertising
company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. Siweechave not been involved in the advertising imgusutside of China for the required
number of years, we are not permitted to hold tieeity interests in PRC companies engaging iratheertising business. Therefore, we
conduct our advertising business through Nanjingiduwvhich holds a business license that covergiiding in its business scope.

PRC advertising laws and regulations set certaimert requirements for advertisements in Chindutting, among other things,
prohibitions on false or misleading content, sugdéré wording, socially destabilizing content ontent involving obscenities, superstition,
violence, discrimination or infringement of the fiabinterest. Advertisers, advertising agenciesl advertising distributors are required to
ensure that the content of the advertisementsgtepare or distribute is true and in full compliawegth applicable laws. In providing
advertising services, advertising operators ane@diding distributors must review the supportinguaiments provided by advertisers for
advertisements and verify that the content of theeetisements complies with applicable PRC lawsragdlations. Prior to distributing
advertisements that are subject to government cgimipoand approval, advertising distributors arkgaited to verify that such censorship has
been performed and approval has been obtainedatitiolof these regulations may result in penaltieduding fines, confiscation of
advertising income, orders to cease disseminafitinecadvertisements and orders to publish an &ideerent correcting the misleading
information. Where serious violations occur, thelGAr its local branches may revoke such offendi@shses or permits for their advertising
business operations.

Regulations on Intellectual Property Righ

The PRC has adopted legislation governing intelgbroperty rights, including trademarks, domaames and copyrights.

Trademark

The PRC Trademark Law and its implementation rptesect registered trademarks. The PRC Trademdikedidf the SAIC is
responsible for the registration and administratibtrademarks throughout the PRC. The Trademavk has adopted a “first-to-file” principle
with respect to trademark registration. As of DebenB1, 2014, we had 68 registered trademarkdfiereint applicable trademark categories

and were in the process of applying to registetrd@emarks in China.
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In addition, pursuant to the PRC Trademark Lawneedeit or unauthorized production of the labehabther person’s registered
trademark, or sale of any label that is countetedr produced without authorization will be deerasdn infringement to the exclusive righ
use a registered trademark. The infringing party/lvé ordered to stop the infringement immediatalfine may be imposed and the counterfei
goods will be confiscated. The infringing party nago be held liable for the right holder’'s damagesich will be equal to the gains obtained
by the infringing party or the losses suffered iy tight holder as a result of the infringementjuding reasonable expenses incurred by the
right holder for stopping the infringement. If thains or losses are difficult to determine, thertmay render a judgment awarding damage
up to RMB500,000 (US$80,585).

Domain Name

Domain names are protected under the Administrafigasures on the Internet Domain Names promuldatetie MIIT in
November 2004. The MIIT is the major regulatory poesponsible for the administration of the PR@inét domain names, under supervit
of which the China Internet Network Information @m or CNNIC, is responsible for the daily admirdagion of .cn domain names and
Chinese domain names. In September 2002, the ChsL@d the Implementation Rules for Domain Nameigdagion setting forth rules for
registration of domain names, as amended in Jud@ &6d May 2012. CNNIC adopts the “first to fileinriple with respect to the registration
of domain names. As of December 31, 2014, we hagdiStered domain names, including/w.tuniu.com

Copyright

Works are protected under the PRC Copyright Lawptetbby the National People’s Congress in 199@na@snded in 2001 and 2010,
as well as its implementation rules adopted byStade Council in 1991, as amended in 2002 and 2@hether such protected works are
published or not, copyrights duly obtained and gegbby the author or other copyright owner remaiaffected. Copyright owners, however,
could register such protected works on a voluniasis with National Copyright Administration or iexal counterparts. We have registered
four artwork copyrights in China.

Pursuant to the PRC Copyright Law and its implemion rules, creators of protected works enjoy measand property rights,
including, among others, the right of disseminatimg works through information network. Pursuanthi® relevant PRC regulations, rules and
interpretations, Internet service providers willjbimtly liable with the infringer if they (i) paidipate in, assist in or abet infringing activities
committed by any other person through the Intef(iigtare or should be aware of the infringing aittes committed by their website users
through the Internet, or (iii) fail to remove infging content or take other action to eliminateinging consequences after receiving a warning
with evidence of such infringing activities frometbopyright holder. In addition, where an ICP ssswperator is clearly aware of the
infringement of certain content against anotheogyeight through the Internet, or fails to take su@&s to remove relevant contents upon
receipt of the copyright owner’s notice, and assult, it damages the public interest, the ICPisereperator could be ordered to stop the
tortious act and be subject to other administrgtiemalties such as confiscation of illegal income ines. To comply with these laws and
regulations, we have implemented internal procesito@nonitor and review the content we have licdrisem content providers before they
released on our website and remove any infringargent promptly after we receive notice of infringent from the legitimate rights holder.
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Software Copyrights

The Administrative Measures on Software Produstsjed by the MIIT in October 2000 and subsequemignded in March 2009,
provides a registration and filing system with epto software products made in or imported intin@. These software products may be
registered with the relevant local authoritiesliraige of software industry administration. Regediesoftware products may enjoy preferential
treatment status granted by relevant software tmglusgulations. Software products can be registéoefive years, and the registration is
renewable upon expiration.

In order to further implement the Computer Softwaretection Regulations promulgated by the PRGeSEatuncil in December 20C
the State Copyright Bureau issued the Computen@oft Copyright Registration Procedures in Febr@@gd2, which apply to software
copyright registration, license contract registmatand transfer contract registration. As of Decen#d, 2014, we had 24 registered computer
software copyrights in China.

Patents

Patents are protected under the PRC Patent Lavtextibp the National People’s Congress in 1984 nzended in 1992, 2000 and
2008, as well as its implementation rules adoptethb State Council in 1985, as amended in 19921 22002 and 2010. The Patent Office
under the State Intellectual Property Office ipmassible for receiving, examining and approvingepaapplication. A patent is valid for a term
of 20 years in the case of an invention and a tertan years in the case of utility models and giesi A third-party user must obtain consent o
a proper license from the patent owner to use #itenp. Otherwise, the use constitutes an infringgrokpatent rights. As of December 31,
2014, we had one registered patent, and were iprteess of applying to register four patents iin&h

Tort Liability Law

In accordance with the Tort Liability Law promulgdtby the Standing Committee of the National Pegiilengress in
December 2009, which became effective as of JUBD10, Internet users and Internet service progitiear tortious liabilities in the event they
infringe other persons’ rights and interests thiotige Internet. Where an Internet user conductmtar acts through Internet services, the
infringed person has the right to request the hekeservice provider to take necessary actions asaleleting contents, screening and delin
The Internet service provider, failing to take resagy actions after being informed, will be subjedbint and several liabilities with the
Internet user with regard to the additional damagesrred. If an Internet service provider knowslernet user is infringing other persons’
rights and interests through its Internet servigefails to take necessary action, it shall betjgiand severally liable with the Internet user. We
have internal policies designed to reduce theilikeld that user content may be used without prbpenses or third-party consents. When we
are approached and requested to remove conteradgady users on the grounds of infringement, westigate the claims and remove any
uploads that appear to infringe the rights of edtpiarty after our reasonable investigation anérmdeihation. However, such policy may not be
effective in preventing the unauthorized listingcopyrighted materials or materials infringing athights of third parties. See “Item 3.D. Key
Information—Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Bassand Industry—Claims by third parties that wWerige on their intellectual property
rights could lead to government administrativeartiand result in significant costs and have a niahtedverse effect on our business, finar
condition and results of operations.”
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Regulations on Foreign Currency Exchanc

Pursuant to the Foreign Exchange AdministrationuRgpns, as amended in August 2008, if documeattisfging the purpose of the
conversion of Renminbi into foreign currency arbmaitted to the relevant foreign exchange converbamk, the Renminbi is convertible for
current account items, including the distributidrdividends, interest payments, trade and senatated foreign exchange transactions, but nc
for capital account items, such as direct investsjdoans, repatriation of investments and inveatsian securities outside of China, unless
SAFE’ s prior approval is obtained and prior regisbn with SAFE is made. In May 2013, SAFE pronauégl SAFE Circular 21 which
provides for and simplifies the operational stepd gegulations on foreign exchange matters releteiirect investment by foreign investors,
including foreign exchange registration, accourgropg and use, receipt and payment of funds, attidrsent and sales of foreign exchange.
We generally follow the regulations and apply téait the approval of SAFE and other relevant PR@gument authorities. However, we
may not be able to obtain these government retjmmtisaor approvals on a timely basis, if at allwk fail to receive such registrations or
approvals, our ability to provide loans or cap@tahtributions to our PRC subsidiaries and our clidated affiliated entities may be negatively
affected, which could adversely affect our liquidiind our ability to fund and expand our business.

In August 2008, SAFE promulgated a SAFE Circula2 fegulating the conversion, by a foreign-investaterprise, of foreign
currency into Renminbi by restricting how the comed Renminbi may be used. The SAFE Circular 14@ires that the registered capital of a
foreign-invested enterprise settled in Renminbivested from foreign currencies may only be usedfmposes within the business scope
approved by the applicable government authorityraagt not be used for equity investments withinRIRC. In addition, SAFE strengthenec
oversight of the flow and use of the registeredtahpf a foreigninvested enterprise settled in Renminbi conventeahfforeign currencies. Tl
use of such Renminbi capital may not be changeldowttSAFE’ s approval, and may not in any casedael tio repay Renminbi loans if the
proceeds of such loans have not been used. Vintatbthe SAFE Circular 142 will result in penadtisuch as fines. Since SAFE Circular 142
has been in place for more than five years, SAKfided to further reform the foreign exchange adstiation system in order to satisfy and
facilitate the business and capital operation®rdign invested enterprises, and issued the Ciromahe Relevant Issues Concerning the
Launch of Reforming Trial of the Administration Meldbf the Settlement of Foreign Currency CapitaFofeign-Invested Enterprises in
Certain Areas on August 4, 2014. This circular susls the application of SAFE Circular 142 in cert@mieas and allows a foreign-invested
enterprise registered in such areas with a busswg®e including “investment” to use the Renmirdpital converted from foreign currency
registered capital for equity investments withia #RC. SAFE also promulgated a SAFE Circular 49amember 2011, which, among other
things, restricts a foreign-invested enterprisenfising Renminbi converted from its registered tepd provide entrusted loans or repay loan:
between non-financial enterprises. These circutayg significantly limit our ability to use Renmintdnverted from net proceeds of our initial
public offering and the concurrent private placetrard our subsequent private placement in Deceit to fund establishment of new P
subsidiaries, to invest in or acquire any other RR@panies, or establish new consolidated affiliaetities in the PRC.

Regulations on Dividend Distributiol

The principal regulations governing distributiondifidends of wholly foreign-owned enterprises ud# the PRC Company Law, as
amended in December 2013, the Wholly Foreign-Ovagrprise Law, as amended in October 2000, anththementation Rules of the
Wholly Foreign-Owned Enterprise Law, as amendedigril 2001. Pursuant to these laws and regulatiforgign-invested enterprises in China
may pay dividends only out of their accumulatedipspif any, determined in accordance with PRCaaetting standards and regulations. In
addition, wholly foreign-owned enterprises in Chara required to allocate at least 10% of theipeetive accumulated profits each year, if
any, to fund certain reserve funds unless thesves have reached 50% of the registered capithkoénterprises. In addition, these
companies may allocate a portion of their aftergeofits based on PRC accounting standards to graplwelfare and bonus funds at their
discretion. These reserves are not distributabtasals dividends.
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Regulations on Offshore Financing

Pursuant to a SAFE Circular 37 issued by SAFE &yn42014, which replaced the former circular coomy known as “Safe
Circular 75" issued by SAFE in October 2005, priggistration with the local SAFE branch is requifedPRC residents in connection with
their direct establish or indirect control of arfisbiore entity, for the purposes of overseas investrand financing, with assets or equity
interests of onshore companies or offshore assésevests held by such PRC residents, referrél AFE Circular 37 as a “special purpose
vehicle”. The PRC residents are also required teratrihe registration or filing with the local SABEanch in the event of any significant
changes with respect to the special purpose velsiatsh as increase or decrease of capital contdduy PRC residents, share transfer or
exchange, merger, division or other material event.

Failure to comply with the registration procedusesforth in the SAFE Circular 37 may result intrieons being imposed on the
foreign exchange activities of the relevant onslwmm@pany, including the increase of its registaragital, the payment of dividends and other
distributions to its offshore parent or affiliatedathe capital inflow from the offshore entitieadamay also subject relevant PRC residents to
penalties under PRC foreign exchange administragignlations. PRC residents who control our comgeasmy time to time are required to
register with SAFE in connection with their investmbs in us. We requested PRC residents holdingtdirandirect interests in our company
our knowledge to make the necessary applicatidimg$ and amendments as required under SAFE Gird8 and other related rules prior to
our initial public offering. However, we might nbe fully informed of the identities of all of ouebeficial owners who are PRC citizens or
residents, and we cannot compel our beneficial osvttecomply with the requirements of SAFE Circi8d@r As a result, we cannot assure yol
that all of our shareholders or beneficial ownemware PRC citizens or residents have complied avithwill in the future make or obtain any
applicable registrations or approvals required B¥S Circular 37 or other related regulations. Skem 3.D. Key Information—Risk
Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China-G&yulations relating to offshore investment atids by PRC residents may limit our
PRC subsidiaries’ ability to increase their registiecapital or distribute profits to us, limit cadoility to inject capital into our PRC subsidiaries
or otherwise expose us to liability and penaltiedar PRC laws.”

Regulations on Employee Stock Option Pla

In February 2012, SAFE promulgated the Stock OpRates, replacing the previous rules issued by SikA#arch 2007. Under the
Stock Option Rules and other relevant rules andlagigns, PRC residents who participate in stoclkeimive plan in an overseas publicly-listed
company, which includes employee stock ownerstapglstock option plans and other incentive plamsjited by relevant laws and
regulations, are required to register with SAFE®Iocal branches and complete certain other phares. Participants of a stock incentive plar
in an overseas publicly listed company who are P&Rlents must retain a qualified PRC agent, wbatlid be a PRC subsidiary of the
overseas publicly listed company or another qualifnstitution selected by the PRC subsidiary giodeict the SAFE registration and other
procedures with respect to the stock incentive plabehalf of its participants. The participantssireiso retain an overseas entrusted instit
to handle matters in connection with their exerosstock options, the purchase and sale of cooripg stocks or interests and fund trans
In addition, the PRC agent is required to amendthEE registration with respect to the stock inoenplan if there is any material change to
the stock incentive plan, the PRC agent or thesmas entrusted institution or other material changke PRC agents must, on behalf of the
PRC residents who have the right to exercise thalame share options, apply to SAFE or its locahiches for an annual quota for the
payment of foreign currencies in connection with BRC residents’ exercise of the employee shafersptThe foreign exchange proceeds
received by the PRC residents from the sale ofeshander the stock incentive plans granted andelins distributed by the overseas listed
companies must be remitted into the bank accourttsei PRC opened by the PRC agents before distibtd such PRC residents.
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We adopted the 2008 Plan, pursuant to which weissaye options or restricted shares to our qualéiegloyees and consultants on a
regular basis. We also adopted the 2014 Plan, wiechits the granting of options to purchase odimary shares, restricted shares and
restricted share units. The failure of the shat@ap holders to complete their registration punsia the Stock Option Rules and other foreign
exchange requirements may subject these PRC indilddo fines and legal sanctions, and may alsib ¢ior ability to contribute additional
capital to our PRC subsidiaries, limit our PRC sdilasies’ ability to distribute dividends to us otherwise materially adversely affect our
business. See “Item 3.D. Key Information—Risk FesteRisks Related to Doing Business in China—Faitareomply with PRC regulations
regarding the registration requirements for shate®n plans may subject the PRC plan participantssdo fines and other legal or
administrative sanctions.”

In addition, the State Administration for Taxatioas issued circulars concerning employee shareraptunder which our employees
working in the PRC who exercise share options bélsubject to PRC individual income tax. Our PRBsaliaries have obligations to file
documents related to employee share options wigvaat tax authorities and to withhold individuatome taxes of those employees who
exercise their share options. If our employeestdagay or if we fail to withhold their income taxas required by relevant laws and regulati
we may face sanctions imposed by the PRC tax dti#®or other PRC government authorities.

Regulations on Overseas Listir

Six PRC regulatory agencies, including the CSR®tlyppadopted the Regulations on Mergers and Adtjaiss of Domestic
Enterprises by Foreign Investors, or the M&A Rulghich became effective on September 8, 2006 andhwirere amended on June 22, 2009
with such amendments becoming effective as of dineesdate.. The M&A Rules, among other things, meqoffshore SPVs formed for
overseas listing purposes through acquisitionsRiE Bomestic companies and controlled by PRC conegaori individuals, to obtain the
approval of the CSRC prior to publicly listing theecurities on an overseas stock exchange.

While the application of this new regulation rensimclear, we believe, based on the advice of B@ Bounsel, Jun He Law Offices,
that CSRC approval was not required in the cordérur initial public offering because (1) CSRCrantly has not issued any definitive rule
interpretation concerning whether offerings lik&iat public offerings are subject to this regutatiand (2) we established our PRC subsidiarie
by means of direct investment other than by meogaicquisition of PRC domestic companies and ndi@kprovision in the M&A
Rules classifies the contractual arrangements legtBeijing Tuniu, our PRC subsidiary, Nanjing Turour consolidated affiliated entity, and
its shareholders as a type of acquisition transadtlling under the M&A Rules. See “Item 3.D. Keyormation—Risk Factors—Risks
Related to Doing Business in China—The approvahefChina Securities Regulatory Commission may leen required in connection with
our earlier initial public offering under a regutat adopted in August 2006, and, if required, wencd assure you that we will be able to obtair
such approval.”
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Regulations on Employmer

The PRC Labor Law, the PRC Labor Contract Law @mdiplementation rules provide requirements camogremployment
contracts between an employer and its employeas. &mployer fails to enter into a written employtneontract with an employee within one
year from the date on which the employment relatigmis established, the employer would be deeméave entered into a labor contr
without a fixed term with such employee. In additithe employer must rectify the situation by eingeinto a written employment contract
with the employee and pay the employee twice thpleyee’s salary for the period from the day follagiithe lapse of one month from the date
of establishment of the employment relationshiheday prior to the execution of the written enypt@nt contract. The Labor Contract Law
and its implementation rules also require compémsab be paid upon certain terminations. In additif an employer intends to enforce a nor
compete provision with an employee in an employneentract or non-competition agreement, it hasotomensate the employee on a monthly
basis during the term of the restriction periogafhe termination or ending of the labor contr&ehployers in most cases are also required to
provide a severance payment to their employeesthte@ employment relationships are terminated.

Enterprises in China are required by PRC laws agdlations to participate in certain employee bigpédns, including social
insurance funds, namely a pension plan, a medisarance plan, an unemployment insurance planrik-retated injury insurance plan and a
maternity insurance plan, and a housing providemd f and contribute to the plans or funds in am®enqual to certain percentages of salaries.
including bonuses and allowances, of the emplogsespecified by the local government from timeneetat locations where they operate thei
businesses or where they are located.

Regulations on Taxatior

For a discussion of applicable PRC tax regulatisas, “Item 5.A. Operating and Financial Review Bnaspects—Operating
Results—Taxation.”

73




Table of Contents

C. Organizational Structure

The following diagram illustrates our corporatausture, including our principal subsidiaries andsaidated affiliated entities, as of
the date of this annual report on Form 20-F:

Tuniu Corporation
{Cavman Islands)
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{Hong Kong)
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Eight Subsidiaries | [ One Subsidiary |

—»  Equity Interest

# — —# Coniractual arrangements under purchase option agreement, equity interest pledge agreememt, sharcholders™ voting
rights agrecment, powers of allomey anmd cooperation agreement

(1) Messrs. Dunde Yu, Haifeng Yan, Tong WangingijWwang, Xin Wen, Yongquan Tan and Haifeng Wanigl 28.66%, 19.11%, 7.71%,
4.82%, 0.96%, 0.96% and 37.78% equity interesb¢ainjing Tuniu, respectively. Among the shareholagrislanjing Tuniu,
Messrs. Dunde Yu and Haifeng Yan are founderscttire and ultimate shareholders of Tuniu Corporatddessrs. Tong Wang, Jiping
Wang, Xin Wen and Yongquan Tan are ultimate shadein® of Tuniu Corporation. Mr. Haifeng Wang isemnployee of one of our
shareholders.

Agreements that Provide us Effective Control over Idnjing Tuniu

Purchase Option AgreementPursuant to the purchase option agreement eriteiiedn September 17, 2008, restated and ament
January 24, 2014 and further restated and amendé&thech 19, 2014, each of the shareholders of Ngrijuniu irrevocably and exclusively
grants Beijing Tuniu an option to purchase, or hiésvdesignated person or persons to purchases, discretion, to the extent permitted under
PRC law, all or part of such shareholder’s equitgriests in Nanjing Tuniu. The aggregate purchase s RMB2.4 million (US$0.4 million).
The shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu agree, withoatghor written consent of Beijing Tuniu, not tansfer or otherwise dispose of their equity
interests in Nanjing Tuniu, pledge their equityeigsts or create any encumbrance on their equéyeists. The agreement remains effective
until all equity interests held in Nanjing Tuniu the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu are transfearegissigned to Beijing Tuniu or its
designated person or persons. The purchase prsdacam prepaid by Beijing Tuniu to the shareholdéiganjing Tuniu.
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Equity Interest Pledge AgreemenfPursuant to the equity interest pledge agreeemeted into on September 17, 2008 and
supplemented on March 19, 2014, each of the shigiedsoof Nanjing Tuniu pledges all of such shardbdb equity interests in Nanjing Tuniu
to guarantee the performance of the obligation®utite purchase option agreement. If the sharetotdéNanjing Tuniu breach their
contractual obligations under the purchase optgeement, Beijing Tuniu, as the pledgee, will htheeright to either conclude an agreement
with the pledgor to obtain the pledged equity akspayments from the proceeds of the auction doedf the pledged equity to any person
pursuant to the PRC law. The shareholders of Ngrjiumiu agree that, during the term of the equitgriest pledge agreement, they will not
dispose of the pledged equity interests or creasdl@v any encumbrance on the pledged equity éstst During the equity pledge period,
Beijing Tuniu is entitled to all dividends and otltistributions made by Nanjing Tuniu. The equitierest pledge became effective on the dat
when the equity interest pledge was registered thighrelevant local administration for industry aminmerce, and remains effective until the
shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu discharge all théligations under the purchase option agreemereging Tuniu enforces the equity interest
pledge, whichever is earlier. We have completedéhéstration of the equity interest pledge withaXiwu Branch of Nanjing Administration
for Industry and Commerce.

Shareholders’ Voting Rights Agreemenfursuant to the shareholders’ voting rights agexe entered into on September 17, 2008,
the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu appointed Beijiiugniu or its designated person as their attormefact to exercise all of their voting and
related rights with respect to their equity intéséa Nanjing Tuniu, including attending sharehotdeneetings, voting on all matters of Naniji
Tuniu requiring shareholder approval, nominating appointing directors, convening extraordinaryrehalders’ meetings, and other voting
rights pursuant to the then-effective articles sfaxiation of Nanjing Tuniu. The shareholdeting rights agreement will remain in force u
all the parties to the agreement mutually agrderminate the agreement in writing or cease tahaeeholders of Nanjing Tuniu.

Irrevocable Powers of AttorneyPursuant to the powers of attorney dated Jarr014, the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu each
irrevocably appointed Beijing Tuniu as the attorireyact to exercise all of such shareholder’s ngtand related rights with respect to such
shareholder’s equity interests in Nanjing Tuniwliiling but not limited to attending shareholdengetings, voting on all matters of Nanjing
Tuniu requiring shareholder approval, nominatind appointing directors, convening extraordinaryrshalders’ meetings, and other voting
rights pursuant to the then-effective articles sfaxiation of Nanjing Tuniu. Each power of attormélf remain in force until the shareholders’
voting rights agreement expires or is terminatdtesSE powers of attorney replaced the powers afetygoreviously granted to a person
designated by Beijing Tuniu on September 17, 2008.

Agreement that Allows us to Receive Economic Bentfifrom Nanjing Tuniu

Cooperation AgreementUnder the cooperation agreement entered intoeptefhber 17, 2008 and restated and amended on
January 24, 2014, Beijing Tuniu has the exclusiveiarevocable right to provide to Nanjing Tuniusiness consulting, technical consulting
and technical services related to the businessNaging Tuniu and its subsidiaries. Beijing Tuoiwns the exclusive intellectual property
rights created by Nanjing Tuniu or its employees assult of the performance of this agreemeniigeiluniu has the right to receive, or
designate a person or persons to receive, a qyastavice fee, which equals the profits of eaciNahjing Tuniu and its subsidiaries, to which
it provides such business consulting, technicabatiimg and technical services, provided that sarclount of service fees can be adjusted by
Beijing Tuniu at its sole discretion. This agreemaill remain effective until expiration of Beijinguniu’s business term, unless Beijing Tuniu
exercises its unilateral right to terminate theeagnent, one of the parties is declared bankrupeging Tuniu is not able to provide consulting
and services as agreed for more than three comgegetars because of force majeure. Nanjing Tunnot permitted to terminate the
agreement in any other event.
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In 2012, 2013 and 2014, we received service fe@MB20.1 million, RMB22.6 million and RMB20.5 mitih (US$3.3 million),
respectively, from our consolidated affiliated &as.

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Our principal executive offices, consisting of aaministrative center, sales and marketing divisiechnical services department,
call center, are located on leased premises inifNgopmprising approximately 26,535 square metaraddition, as of December 31, 2014, we
had 75 regional service centers located in 73sc#@oss China on leased premises with an aggriégateirrea of approximately 10,655 square
meters. We lease these premises under lease agitsenoen unrelated third parties, and we plan tevethese leases from time to time as
needed. We believe that the facilities we currelgtse for our executive offices are adequate et imgr administrative needs for the
foreseeable future, and we believe that we wilhbke to obtain adequate facilities, principallyotingh the leasing of additional properties, to
accommodate our strategic regional expansion ptaadd more service centers in different partstuh@.

Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations is based upon, and ghieutead in conjunction with, our
audited consolidated financial statements anddtagad notes included in this annual report on F2@ak. This report contains forwaloeking
statements. See “Forward-Looking Information.” Wakating our business, you should carefully comsttie information provided under the
caption “Item 3.D. Key Information—Risk Factors”tinis annual report on Form 20-F. We caution yaui tur businesses and financial

performance are subject to substantial risks amérainties.

A. Operating Results

Overview

We are a leading online leisure travel companyhin&. We offer a large selection of packaged tanduding organized tours and
self-guided tours, as well as travel-related sewior leisure travelers. We started offering pgekktours online in 2007, and have sold
approximately five million packaged tours since maeption. As of December 31, 2014, we offeredkpged tours sourced from over 6,000
travel suppliers, covering over 140 countries ab ageall popular tourist attractions in China. Quoduct portfolio consists of over 300,000
stock keeping units, or SKUs, of organized touvger@50,000 SKUs of self-guided tours, and ticketsover 1,000 domestic and overseas
tourist attractions. Our core strength is in ovasseisure travel products and services, whichrdmred over 65% of our gross bookings in
2014. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the numifesrders placed through our mobile platform acted for approximately 45% of total
orders placed through our online platform and ayeaily unique visitors to our mobile platform aooted for approximately 65% of the
average daily unique visitors to our online platfor
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We have achieved significant growth in recent ye@rs net revenues increased from RMB1,112.9 millin2012 to RMB1,949.7
million in 2013 and further to RMB3,534.9 milliod§$569.7 million) in 2014, representing a CAGR 8f2P6. We had a net loss of
RMB107.2 million, RMB79.6 million, and RMB447.9 riidn (US$72.2 million) in 2012, 2013 and 2014 redpesly. We generally collect
payments from our customers upon contract confiondiefore we pay our travel suppliers. Our nehqa®vided by operating activities was
RMB14.7 million and RMB116.7 million in 2012 and %) respectively, and our net cash used by operatitivities was RMB271.1 million
(US$43.7 million) in 2014.

Our ability to achieve and maintain profitabilitgends on our ability to effectively reduce ourts@hd expenses as a percentage of
our net revenues. Our cost of revenues as a pageof our net revenues decreased from 96.5% B 8023.8% in 2013 and remained
relatively stable at 93.6% in 2014. Cost to suppl@ our organized tours, which were attributelglycto revenues from organized tours,
accounted for 93.8%, 92.4% and 92.2% of our revefreen organized tours in 2012, 2013 and 2014 eatsgely. Our operating expenses as ¢
percentage of our net revenues decreased from 18.294.2 to 11.1% in 2013. Such decreases wereapityrattributable to the improved
operational efficiency and decrease of our aveprgeurement costs for travel products. However,aparating expenses as a percentage of
our net revenues increased to 19.8% in 2014; ticiease was primarily due to higher levels of spendssociated with our rapidly expanding
business operations, including expenses relateggional expansion, branding and advertising cagmsaimobile related initiatives and
expenses related to technology, product developarahtidministrative personnel such as share-basegansation. Our past results of
operations should not be taken as indicative offature performance. We plan to continue to incee@ms sales and marketing efforts, incluc
advertising campaigns, to further increase our etaskare. Our sales and marketing expenses indré&ase RMB 110.1 million in 2013 to
RMB 434.2 million (US$ 70.0 million) in 2014. Wésa expect our share-based compensation expenseatinue to increase. As a result, we
expect our operating expenses to continue to isergathe absolute amount. If we fail to effectivedduce our costs and expenses as a
percentage of our net revenues, we may not bet@allehieve and maintain profitability.

Selected Income Statement Items

Revenues

We generate revenues primarily from sales of paattagurs, which consist of organized tours andgeifled tours. Substantially all
of our revenues from organized tours are recognized gross basis, which represents amounts reciive customers, as we act as the
principal in these transactions. Revenues frofageétied tours are recognized on a net basis, septing the difference between the amount
received from customers and the amount due toraveltsuppliers, as we act as an agent for traygbleers. See also “—Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates.”
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The following table sets forth the components af mvenues in absolute amounts and as percentfges et revenues for the
periods presented:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
RMB % RMB % RMB US$ %
(in thousands, except percentage:

Revenues:

Organized tour 1,075,09. 96.€% 1,892,82i 97.1% 3,432,82! 553,27 97.1%

Self-guided tours 32,35¢ 2. 48,90: 2.5 93,12¢ 15,00¢ 2.€

Others 12,87¢ 1.2 20,74« 1.1 28,75¢ 4,63 0.8
Total revenue: 1,120,322 100.7 1,962,47: 100.7 3,554,70 572,91! 100.¢
Less: Business and

related taxe (7,447 (0.7) (12,789 (0.7) (19,76¢) (3,186 (0.6)
Net revenues 1,112,88. 100.(% 1,949,68 100.(% 3,534,93! 569,72¢ 100.(%

The following table sets forth the number of trgdour organized tours and self-guided tours ferpkriods presented:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
Number of trips (in thousands)
Organized tours (excluding local tou 23€ 367 712
Local tours 502 687 1,07¢
Self-guided tours 11C 221 39¢€

Organized tours Substantially all of our revenues from organiaars are recognized on a gross basis, which reptesmounts
received from customers. From 2013 to 2014, ouemaes from organized tours increased by 81.4% RMB1,892.8 million to RMB3,432.8
million (US$553.3 million). From 2012 to 2013, a@venues from organized tours increased by 76.b% RMB1,075.1 million to
RMB1,892.8 million. This increase was a result of continued regional expansion and the expandi@uioproduct portfolio in terms of
departing cities and travel destinations, as webar increased marketing efforts in promoting aiged tours. Revenues from organized tour:
accounted for 96.6% of our net revenues in 20129ant% of our net revenues in 2013 and 2014, réispdc We expect that revenues from
organized tours will continue to constitute a lang@ority of our net revenues in the foreseeaheréu

Self-guided tours Revenues from self-guided tours represent tHerdifice between amounts received from our custoamets
amounts due to our travel suppliers. From 2013t42our revenues from self-guided tours incredse@0.4 % from RMB 48.9 million to
RMB 93.1 million (US$ 15.0 million). From 2012 t®23, our revenues from self-guided tours incredses0.9% from RMB32.4 million to
RMB 48.9 million.

The increase in revenues from self-guided tournauily resulted from the growth in the number gbdras we expanded our self-
guided tour portfolio and increased marketing éffam promoting our tours. Primarily due to thetfdmat our revenues from self-guided tours
are recognized on a net basis, we expect that uegeinom self-guided tours will continue to congsta relatively small percentage of our net
revenues in the near future.

Others. Other revenues accounted for 1.2%, 1.1% and 008 8ar net revenues in 2012, 2013 and 2014, céisedy. Our other
revenues primarily comprise revenues generated (rpother travel-related services, such as sdlésuist attraction tickets and visa
processing services, which are recognized on hass; (i) fees for advertising services that wavfle primarily to domestic and foreign
tourism boards and bureaus and (iii) service feesived from insurance companies.
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Cost of Revenues

Our cost of revenues accounted for 96.5%, 93.8%®&r&i % of our net revenues in 2012, 2013 and 2@&kpectively. A substantial
majority of our cost of revenues is cost to supplf our organized tours, which were attributelglyato revenues from organized tours and
accounted for 93.8%, 92.4% and 92.2% of our reveffreen organized tours in 2012, 2013 and 2014 aesgely. Costs common to all
revenue categories accounted for 5.8%, 4.1% ar®d dflour total net revenues in 2012, 2013 and 2fHsbectively.

Cost to suppliers of our organized tours represamisunts paid to our travel suppliers for the sélhe relevant organized tour
products to customers, net of supplier rebatesafee'ltem 4.B. Information on the Company—Busme&s/erview—Supply Chain
Management.” Cost to suppliers of our organizeds@enerally increases with the increase in ouemaes from organized tours. We expect
that cost to suppliers of our organized tours waltinue to increase as revenues from our organ@ed continue to grow. As revenues from
self-guided tours are recognized on net basisath@unts we pay to our travel suppliers for seldgditours are recorded as a reduction to
revenues, rather than cost of revenues, and hexveerto impact on our cost of revenues.

Our cost of revenues also includes salaries, cosionis, employee welfare expenses, bonuses andditns to mandatory
retirement provident funds and other headcountedlaxpenses for our tour advisors, customer serejgresentatives and other personnel
directly related to providing products and servig@gher components of our cost of revenues inc(deharges and other direct expenses
related to tour transactions such as credit cavdgssing fees, (ii) office rental and depreciatiod other office related expenses and
(i) network maintenance costs such as bandwid#iscand data center costs. Components of ountostenues, other than cost to suppliers
of our organized tours, are common to all of oavéd products and services which consist of orgahtaurs, self-guided tours and other travel
related services. As a result, these componentsotde reasonably allocated among different travediucts and services. The following table
sets forth the components of our cost of revenuedsolute amounts and as percentages of ourvestues for the periods presented:

For the Year Ended December 31
2012 2013 2014
RMB % RMB % RMB Us$ %
(in thousands, except percentage

Cost of revenues
Costs to
suppliers for
organized
tours (1,008,89) (90.9)% (1,748,70) (89.1)% (3,165,12) (510,126 (89.5%
Costs common |

all revenue
categorie: (64,83%) (5.8 (80,967) (4.1 (143,67 (23,156 (4.7)

Cost of revenues (1,073,73)  (96.9%  (1,829,66)  (93.9%  (3,308,80)  (533,28)  (93.6%
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Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses accounted for 13.7%, 11ri?4.8.8 % of our net revenues in 2012, 2013 and 2@Epectively. The
following table sets forth the components of ouem@ing expenses in absolute amounts and as pagesnof our net revenues for the periods
presented:

For the Year Ended December 31
2012 2013 2014
RMB % RMB % RMB Uss$ %
(in thousands, except percentage

Operating expenses
Research and product

developmen (33,370) (3.0% (38,999 (2.0% (104,88) (16,909 (3.0%
Sales and marketir (57,99¢) (5.2 (110,07) (5.6 (434,19) (69,979 (12.9
General and administrati (62,00¢) (5.6) (69,679 (3.6) (166,98%) (26,919 4.7
Other operating income 775 0.1 1,68¢ 0.1 6,90z 1,112 0.2

Total operating expense: (152,59) (13.9% (217,05) (11.1)% (699,15 (112,689 (19.9%

Research and product development expenBesearch and product development expenses gimamprise salaries and other
compensation expenses for our research and prdduetopment personnel as well as office rentalyetgation and other expenses related to
our research and product development function. &ekeand product development expenses also inelggenses that are incurred in
connection with the planning and implementationggisaof development and costs that are associatedhgi maintenance of our online
platform or software for internal use. Research prodiuct development expenses accounted for 3.0%%% and 3.0 % of our net revenues in
2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. During the spen®d, our research and product development exgeansreased in order to support our
business expansion, primarily attributable to timeases in the headcount and the average salaty ofsearch and product development
personnel. We expect research and product develipempenses to increase in absolute amounts aeghks of our continual research and
product development efforts and the increase ineshased compensation expenses.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses primarily comprieketing and promotional expenses, salaries and
other compensation expenses for our sales and tirglgersonnel and office rental, depreciation atieer expenses related to our sales and
marketing function. Our sales and marketing expeaseounted for 5.2%, 5.6% and 12.3 % of our netmees in 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively. During the same period, our salesmaarketing expenses increased primarily due tardansified marketing efforts to promote
our brand. We plan to continue to increase ourssahel marketing efforts, primarily in the form dflime brand promotion campaigns,
including on popular television programs, buses sautnlvays, to keep on increasing our brand recagnénd market share. We expect our ¢
and marketing expenses to increase in absolute @sas our business continues to grow and shaegtlzasnpensation expenses increase.

General and administrative expensé3eneral and administrative expenses primarilyprise salaries and other compensation
expenses for our administrative personnel, prodesdiservice fees, office rental, depreciation atiger expenses related to our administrative
function. General and administrative expenses adeoduor 5.6%, 3.6% and 4.7 % of our net revenne9il2, 2013 and 2014, respectively.
We expect general and administrative expensestease in absolute amounts in the near term asrevadiditional personnel and incur
additional costs in connection with the expansibauw business and with being a public companythedncrease in shalmsed compensati
expenses.
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Other operating incomeOther operating income relates primarily to goveent subsidies that we receive from provincial kcdl
governments. Government subsidies are grantedtfroeto time at the discretion of the relevant goweent authorities. These subsidies are
granted for general corporate purposes and to suppoongoing operations in the region. Other afieg income accounted for 0.1%, 0.1%
and 0.2% of our net revenues in 2012, 2013 and,2@&pectively.

Taxation
Cayman Islands

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Undectirent laws of the Cayman Islands, we are ngestito income or capital gai
tax. In addition, dividend payments are not subjeastithholding tax in the Cayman Islands.

Hong Kong

Tuniu (HK) Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong. @panies registered in Hong Kong are subject to Hémryg Profits Tax on the
taxable income as reported in their respectiveigigt financial statements adjusted in accordante ielevant Hong Kong tax laws. The
applicable tax rate is 16.5% in Hong Kong. Underttong Kong tax law, Tuniu (HK) Limited is exemptiedm income tax on its foreign-
derived income and there are no withholding tarddang Kong on remittance of dividends.

PRC

Our PRC subsidiaries and consolidated affiliatetities are subject to PRC enterprise income ta¥I|®dr on the taxable income in
accordance with the relevant PRC income tax laws.

Under the EIT Law, an enterprise established oatdid PRC with a “de facto management body” withenPRC is considered a PRC
resident enterprise for PRC enterprise income taggses and is generally subject to a uniform 2B8érprise income tax rate on its worldw
income. Under the Implementation Rules, a “de factmagement body” is defined as a body that hasriaband overall management and
control over the manufacturing and business ogmrstipersonnel and human resources, finances apédrnies of an enterprise. In addition,
SAT Circular 82, which was issued in April 2009the State Administration of Taxation, or the SApesifies that certain offshore
incorporated enterprises controlled by PRC enteegror PRC enterprise groups will be classifieBRE resident enterprises if all of the
following conditions are met: (a) senior managenpaErsonnel and core management departments inecbéthe daily operations of the
enterprises have their presence mainly in the RBGheir financial and human resources decisioasabject to determination or approval by
persons or bodies in the PRC; (¢) major assetsuating books and company seals of the enterprgebminutes and files of their boasdinc
shareholders’ meetings are located or kept in €;Rnd (d) half or more of the enterprises’ divestor senior management personnel with
voting rights habitually reside in the PRC. Furtt®@BAT Circular 82, the SAT issued SAT Bulletin, #hich took effect on September 1,
2011, to provide more guidance on the implemematfcSAT Circular 82 and clarify the reporting dilthg obligations of such “Chinese-
controlled offshore-incorporated resident entegeisSAT Bulletin 45 provides procedures and adstiative details for the determination of
PRC resident enterprise status and administratignost-determination matters. Although both SATcGliar 82 and SAT Bulletin 45 only
apply to offshore enterprises controlled by PR@mgmises or PRC enterprise groups, not those déedrby PRC individuals or foreign
individuals like us, the determining criteria setth in SAT Circular 82 and SAT Bulletin 45 maylesft the SAT's general position on how the
“de facto management body” test should be appflieteiermining the PRC resident enterprise statwéfsifiore enterprises, regardless of
whether they are controlled by PRC enterprises, BRErprise groups or by PRC or foreign individuals
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Nanjing Tuniu obtained its HNTE certificate in 20d4th a valid period of three years and successfa@lhewed such certificate in
December 2013 for additional three years. Therefdamjing Tuniu is eligible to enjoy a preferentiak rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015 to the
extent it has taxable income under the EIT Lawpag as it maintains the HNTE qualification andydabnducts relevant EIT filing procedures
with the relevant tax authority. Nanjing Tuniu atdstained a software company certificate in 2012s®ant to such certificate, Nanjing Tuniu
qualifies for a tax holiday during which it is gigd to an exemption from enterprise income taxtfiay years commencing from its first profit-
making year of operation, which occurred in 201#] a 50% reduction of enterprise income tax forftlewing three years. However, if we
are considered a PRC resident enterprise and masme other than dividends from our PRC subsid@a35% enterprise income tax on our
global income could significantly increase our baxden and materially and adversely affect our ¢iashand profitability.

Under the EIT Law and its Implementation Rules jscito any applicable tax treaty or similar arramgnt between the PRC and our
investors’ jurisdiction of residence that providesa different income tax arrangement, PRC witdira tax at the rate of 10% is normally
applicable to dividends from PRC sources payabipuestors that are non-PRC resident enterpriskighado not have an establishment or
place of business in the PRC, or which have su@bkshment or place of business if the relevaobine is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business. Any gain redlan the transfer of American depositary shareshares by such non-PRC resident
enterprise investors is also subject to 10% PR@niectax if such gain is regarded as income deffingrd sources within the PRC unless a tax
treaty or similar arrangement provides otherwised&f the PRC Individual Income Tax Law and its iempéntation rules, dividends from
sources within the PRC paid to foreign individual@stors who are not PRC residents are generdijgcito a PRC withholding tax at a rate
20% and gains from PRC sources realized by sudstovs on the transfer of American depositary sharshares are generally subject to :
PRC income tax, in each case, subject to any refuat exemption set forth in applicable tax trestand PRC laws. Although substantially all
of our business operations are based in Chinauihclear whether dividends we pay with respecutoordinary shares or ADSs, or the gain
realized from the transfer of our ordinary shaneABSs, would be treated as income derived fronrcgiwithin the PRC and as a result be
subject to PRC income tax if we were considere®R& Resident enterprise, as described above. Sera ‘3tD. Key Information—Risk
Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China-gddithe PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, we may assdied as a PRC resident
enterprise for PRC enterprise income tax purpd3esh classification would likely result in unfavbla tax consequences to us and our non-
PRC shareholders and have a material adverse effemir results of operations and the value of youwestment.”

As we had losses from operation in 2011, 2012, 201tB2014, we have not incurred any PRC incomestttehose periods, with the
exception of one operating entity in China, whicburred immaterial income tax expenses in 2012 Narging Tuniu is entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 0% for its first profit-kiag year in 2014, pursuant to its HNTE and sofeMeompany certificates.

Pursuant to the applicable PRC tax regulations,estiyy or individual conducting business in theveze industry is generally requir
to pay business taxes at the rate of 5% on thentmgegenerated from providing such services. Entéhgaging in the travel business can
deduct certain approved costs from their revenuesliculating business taxes. However, if the ses/provided are related to technology
development and transfer, such entities may be pteghfrom business and related taxes arising frach services subject to approval by the
relevant tax authorities. We are subject to busiresl related taxes on services provided in the, RR€Cthe applicable business tax rate is 5%
In our consolidated financial statements includedwhere in this annual report, business and klatees are deducted from gross revenues t
arrive at net revenues.
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In November 2011, the Ministry of Finance relea€adular Caishui 2011 No. 111 mandating Shanghaketthe first city to carry out
a pilot program of tax reform. Effective Januar2@12, any entity that carries out selected modemices in Shanghai is required to pay
value-added tax (“VAT") instead of business taxe3& entities are permitted to offset input VAT imed with the output VAT. The pilot
program has been expanded to other regions, imguBkeijing from September 1, 2012 and Nanjing filOotober 1, 2012. Beijing Tuniu,
Nanjing Tuniu and Tuniu (Nanjing) Information Techhogy Co., Ltd. have been subject to VAT at a @it6% and have since stopped pay
the 5% business tax from the respective effectateslof the tax reform. This change did not hasigaificant financial statement impact on
our consolidated results of operations, and weal@rpect it to have any significant impact in theire.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth a summary of oursaidated results of operations in absolute amoamdsas percentages of our net
revenues for the periods indicated. The periodeiegl comparisons of results of operations shootde relied upon as indicative of future

performance.

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
RMB % RMB % RMB Us$ %
(in thousands, except for percentage:

Revenues:

Organized tour 1,075,09. 96.€% 1,892,82i 97.1% 3,432,82! 553,27 97.1%

Self-guided tours 32,35¢ 2.6 48,901 2.5 93,12¢ 15,00¢ 2.€

Others 12,87¢ 1.2 20,74¢ 1.1 28,75¢ 4,63 0.8
Total revenue 1,120,32 100.7 1,962,47: 100.7 3,554,70 572,91} 100.¢
Less: Business and related

taxes (7,447%) (0.7) (12,789 (0.7) (19,76¢) (3,186 (0.€)
Net revenues 1,112,88. 100.( 1,949,68 100.C 3,534,93! 569,72¢ 10C
Cost of revenues (1,073,73) (96.5) (1,829,66) (93.) (3,308,80) (533,28) (93.6)
Gross profit 39,14¢ 3. 120,02: 6.2 226,13¢ 36,44 6.4

Operating expense
Research and product

developmen (33,370) (3.0 (38,999 (2.0 (104,88) (16,909 (3.0
Sales and marketir (57,99¢) (5.2 (110,07) (5.6 (434,19) (69,979 (12.9
General and administrati (62,00¢) (5.6 (69,679 (3.6) (166,989 (26,919 4.7
Other operating income 775 0.1 1,68¢ 0.1 6,90z 1,112 0.2

Loss from operations (113,44 (10.2 (97,039 (5.0 (473,02() (76,237 (13.9
Other income/(expense:
Interest incom 7,43: 0.7 16,16: 0.8 31,28¢ 5,04z 0.9
Foreign exchange related

(losses)/gains, ni (747) (0.2 1,28¢ 0.1 (5,339 (860C) (0.2

Other loss, net (357) (0.0) (48) (0.0) (788) (127) (0.0)
Loss before provision for

income taxe: (207,115 (9.6) (79,637 (4.9 (447,859 (72,187 (22.9)
Provision for income taxes (78) (0.0) — — — — —
Net loss (107,190 (9.6% (79,637 (4.09)% (447,85) (72,187 (12.0)%
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Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Efdleckmber 31, 2013

RevenuesTotal revenues increased by 81.1% from RMB1,964Ikomin 2013 to RMB3,554.7 million (US$572.9 nidh) in 2014.
This increase was primarily due to an increaseauimrevenues from both organized tours and selfeglitdurs.

Revenues from organized tourRevenues from organized tours, substantially altleth are recognized on a gross basis,
increased by 81.4% from RMB1,892.8 million in 26d3RMB3,432.8 million (US$553.3 million) in 2014rimarily due to the
growth in the number of trips of our organized ®urhis was a result of the rapid growth in demfmndravel to certain
international destinations, such as Europe, NortteAca, South Korea and Japan, and for domestis.t@uring the same peric
the number of trips of our organized tours (exatgdiocal tours) increased by 93.9% from 367,1041tb,847 and the number of
trips of our local tours increased by 56.4% fron7,821 to 1,074,335.

Revenues from self-guided touRevenues from self-guided tours, which are recaghan a net basis, increased by 90.4% from
RMB48.9 million in 2013 to RMB93.1 million (US$15nillion) in 2014. The increase in revenues fronf-gaided tours
generally reflected an increase in the numberips fior self-guided tours due to the growth in dstitetravel, demand for cruise
line products and travel to certain popular intéoreal destinations such as Maldives. The numberips for our selfguided tour:
increased by 78.7% from 221,412 in 2013 to 395j652014.

Other revenuether revenues increased by 38.6% from RMB20.7anilin the 2013 to RMB28.8 million (US$4.6 milliom)
2014, primarily due to the increase in service fgegeceived from insurance companies that seletriasurance products
through our online platform, commissions from salftckets for tourist attractions and the ad\sént fees we received from
tourism boards and bureaus.

Net RevenuedNet revenues increased by 81.3% from RMB1,949.1%aniln 2013 to RMB3,534.9 million (US$569.7 milipin
2014, as a result of our increased total reverpagsially offset by the resulting increase in besis and related taxes over the same periods.

Cost of Revenue<Cost of revenues increased by 80.8% from RMB1,8&8llfon in 2013 to RMB3,308.8 million (US$533.3 ition)
in 2014, primarily due to the increase in the ¢ostuppliers of our organized tours. Cost to suplof our organized tours increased mainly a
a result of the increase in the sales of our oeghtours (excluding local tours) from 367,1044rip 2013 to 711,847 trips in 2014 and the
sales of our local tours from 687,121 trips in 2€4.3,074,335 trips in 2014. As a percentage ofrmiimevenues, our cost of revenues was 93
% in 2013 compared to 93.6% in 2014.

Operating Expenseperating expenses increased by 222.1% from RMB2tilion in 2013 to RMB699.2 million (US$112.7
million) in 2014, due to increases in sales andketarg expenses, research and product developrepahses and general and administrative
expenses, partially offset by the increase in ¢heooperating income.
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Research and product developméregsearch and product development expenses increpd9.0% from RMB39.0 million in
2013 to RMB104.9 million (US$16.9 million) in 201grimarily attributable to investments in new protafferings and mobile
related initiatives, and the rise in technologyenges and personnel expenses for product developmen

Sales and marketinGales and marketing expenses increased by 294@#0RiMB110.1 million in 2013 to RMB434.2 million
(US$70.0 million) in 2014. The increase was prifyaaitributable to an increase in marketing anchpstonal expenses, primar
brand-promotion campaigns and advertisements.

General and administrativéseneral and administrative expenses increased &y ¥3from RMB69.7 million in 2013 to
RMB167.0 million (US$26.9 million) in 2014, primériattributable to the increases in the headcofirdrd higher average
compensation paid to, our general and administrgdersonnel as a result of our business expanetaraincrease in the
professional service fees associated with beingldigppcompany.

Other operating incométher operating income increased from RMB1.7 millio 2013 to RMB6.9 million (US$1.1 million) in
2014.

Net Loss As a result of the foregoing, net loss increasethfRMB79.6 million in 2013 to RMB447.9 million (U$2.2 million) in

2014.

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2012

Revenues Total revenues increased by 75.2% from RMB1,12llBon in 2012 to RMB1,962.5 million in 2013. Thincrease was
primarily due to an increase in our revenues frah lprganized tours and self-guided tours.

Revenues from organized tourRevenues from organized tours, substantially altleth are recognized on a gross basis,
increased by 76.1% from RMB1,075.1 million in 2G22RMB1,892.8 million in 2013, due to the growthtire number of trips of
our organized tours and the average gross bookiegsip of our organized tours. This was a regfithe expansion of our
organized tour portfolio in terms of departing&stiand travel destinations and our increased magkefforts in promoting our
organized tours. During the same period, the nurabgips of our organized tours (excluding loaalits) increased by 55.8%
from 235,607 to 367,104 and the number of tripswflocal tours increased by 36.5% from 503,34@86,121.

Revenues from self-guided touRevenues from self-guided tours, which are recaghan a net basis, increased by 50.9% from
RMB32.4 million in 2012 to RMB 48.9 million in 2013 he increase in revenues from self-guided toarsetplly reflected an
increase in the number of trips for self-guided$aduring the period, which increased by 101.4%ft®9,910 in 2012 to

221,412 in 2013.

Other revenuether revenues increased by 60.5% from RMB12.9anilih 2012 to RMB20.7 million in 2013, primarilyud to
the increase in service fees we received from arste companies that sell travel insurance prodhasigh our online platform,
commissions from sales of tickets for tourist attiGns and the increase in the advertising feeseweived from tourism boards
and bureaus.

Net RevenuesNet revenues increased by 75.2% from RMB1,112li8&min 2012 to RMB1,949.7 million in 2013, agasult of our
increased total revenues, partially offset by #silting increase in business and related taxestbgesame periods.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues increased by 70.4% from RMB10@8llion in 2012 to RMB1,829.7 million in 2013rimarily
due to the increase in the cost to suppliers oboganized tours. Cost to suppliers of our orgahiners increased mainly as a result of the
increase in the sales of our organized tours (eagulocal tours) from 235,607 trips in 2012 to 36 trips in 2013 and the sales of our local
tours from 503,342 trips in 2012 to 687,121 trip2013. As a percentage of our net revenues, airofaevenues decreased from 96.5% in
2012 to 93.8% in 2013, primarily due to the decedascost to suppliers of our organized tours peraentage of our net revenues from 90.7%
in 2012 to 89.7% in 2013, which reflected our &fan sourcing travel products at more competifiviees.
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Operating ExpensesOperating expenses increased by 42.3% from RMBU®BHlion in 2012 to RMB217.1 million in 2013, dte
the increases in sales and marketing expensesychsand product development expenses and gemaraldaministrative expenses, partially
offset by the increase in our other operating ineom

 Research and product developmeResearch and product development expenses ircrégsl6.8% from RMB33.4 million in
2012 to RMB39.0 million in 2013, primarily attrikalile to the increases in the headcount and thegeealary of our research
and product development personnel.

»  Sales and marketingSales and marketing expenses increased by 89d82&cRMB58.0 million in 2012 to RMB110.1 million in
2013. The increase was primarily attributable ®iticrease in marketing and promotional expens2813, mainly resulting frol
increased expenses associated with our online atdgdar marketing efforts.

e General and administrativeGeneral and administrative expenses increasd@ @) from RMB62.0 million in 2012 to
RMB69.7 million in 2013, primarily attributable tbe increases in the headcount and average sdlaty general and
administrative personnel.

»  Other operating incomeOther operating income increased from RMBO.8iarilin 2012 to RMB1.7 million in 2013.

Provision for Income Taxes We did not make any provision for income taxe2043, as compared to RMB77,890 in 2012.

Net Loss. As a result of the foregoing, net loss decredised RMB107.2 million in 2012 to RMB79.6 million iR013.
Inflation

Since our inception, inflation in China has not laachaterial adverse impact on our results of ofmerat According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the year-oyesr percent changes in the consumer price indeRdoember 2012, 2013 and 2014 were incre
of 2.5%, 2.5% and 1.5%, respectively. Although agehnot been materially affected by inflation ie thast, we may be materially affected if
China experiences higher rates of inflation inftitare. For example, certain operating costs améeses, such as employee compensation al
office operating expenses may increase as a @shigher inflation. Additionally, because a sulmsial portion of our assets consist of cash
cash equivalents and shoetm investments, high inflation could significantéduce the value and purchasing power of theset@asVe are n
able to hedge our exposure to higher inflation in@.

Foreign Currency

The average exchange rate between U.S. dollar antchRbi has declined from RMB8.2264 per U.S. ddltaiuly 2005 to
RMB6.2046 per U.S. dollar as of December 31, 2@&lof December 31, 2014, we recorded RMB1.4 milljd$$0.2 million) of net foreign
currency translation loss in accumulated other agefmgnsive loss as a component of shareholderstyedie have not hedged exposures to
exchange fluctuations using any hedging instrumesds also “Iltem 3.D. Key Information—Risk FactoSlaetuations in exchange rates cc
have a material adverse effect on our results efatfpns and the value of your investment..” artdrfi 11. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk—Foreign Exchange Risk
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenés@ordance with U.S. GAAP. In doing so, we haveéke estimates and
assumptions that affect our reported amounts @tsskabilities, revenues and expenses, as weélated disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. To the extent that there are matediffierences between these estimates and actudis,esur financial condition or operating results
and margins would be affected. We base our estsnatgast experience and other assumptions thiaelieye are reasonable under the
circumstances, and we evaluate these estimateas ongoing basis. We refer to accounting estimattéisi®type as critical accounting policies
and estimates, which we discuss further below.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues primarily from selling pacllagers and travealelated services. Our main product and serviceiaffe include
(i) organized tours, (ii) self-guided tours and) @ther travel-related services. Organized todifsrgre-arranged itineraries, transportation,
accommodations, entertainment, meals and tour g@daces and customers pay one lump-sum fee imagge for such a package. Self-
guided tours consist of a combination of flightsl &iotel bookings or cruise trips, which are oftéflered to customers at a mdea/orable price
as compared to customers purchasing these tragbdeproducts and services on a stand-alone liaiisr travel-related services primarily
include sales of tourist attraction tickets, visagessing services and advertising services thatraxdde to domestic and foreign tourism
boards and bureaus.

Revenues are recognized in accordance with ASCR&&enue Recognition, when the following critenia met: persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, the sales price is foregeterminable, delivery has occurred or servalteen provided and collectability is
reasonably assured.

Organized tours

Substantially all of our revenues from organizedat$care recognized on gross basis, which represeatints charged to and received
from customers, as we are the primary obligor @alrangement and bear the risks and rewardsgdingthe customers’ acceptance of
products and services delivered. While we do naegaly assume the inventory risk of purchasingdtaervices before customers place an
order, we assess the facts and circumstances actlide that we are the principal in organized snwangements. Factors that support our
conclusion mainly include the following:
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*  We are the primary obligor in the arrangement asigaesponsible for the ultimate customer acceptéor all products and
services rendered. Such commitment is also matleinontracts we enter into with our customers.aiéethe party retained by
and paid by our customers. In situations of custadisputes, where the customer files a complaimteznands a refund, we
assume risks and responsibilities for the delivdrgrganized tours and we, rather than the trawepbers, are responsible for (¢
solely authorized to grant) refunding the custontieesr payments.

*  We independently determine the prices chargedstomers for organized tours, as well as the ppeds to travel suppliers and
subcontractors.

*  We conduct a rigorous process in qualifying ouvetasuppliers and selecting travel products andises at our discretion before
selling these products to our customers, and fyaatie in the design of organized tours.

Revenues from organized tours are recognized whstomers return from the tour as delivery is omgsidered completed upon
conclusion of the entire organized tour.

Self-guided tours

Revenues from self-guided tours are recognized gt Basis, representing the difference betweeantmint the customer pays us,
and the amount we pay our travel suppliers. We gdigedo not assume inventory risk and have limitatlvement in determining the prodt
or service specifications in the self-guided towilaagements. Customers purchase self-guided t@sesdbon the desired products specified, an
we provide limited additional services to custom&uppliers are responsible for all aspects ofiding the air transportation and hotel
accommodation. Therefore, we are an agent forével suppliers in the self-guided tour transactiand revenues from self-guided tours are
reported on net basis. Revenues from self-guides tare recognized when the tours end, as commisai® not earned until this time
according to the contractual arrangements entatednith travel suppliers.

Other revenues

For other travel-related services such as salésuoist attraction tickets and visa processingises; we generally earn a commission
or service fee from travel suppliers and reveneesgnized represents the commissions earned frese tihansactions on net basis. We also
enter into contractual arrangements with domestitfareign tourism boards and bureaus, and proaitiertising services on our online
platform. Revenues are recognized when ticketssaveed or when services are rendered.

Customer incentives

We have a customer loyalty program that offersamasts coupons, travel vouchers, membership poirtagh rewards. We account
for these customer incentives in accordance witlt £85-50, Customer Payments and Incentives. Fqggamiand travel vouchers offered
where prior purchase is not required, we accounthfem as a reduction of revenues when revenuegengnized. We also assess coupons ar
vouchers offered to customers as part of a cuperthase that give customers a right but not aigatibn to make future purchases, and
concluded that the discounts offered are insigaificas such, no deferral of revenues are considereessary.

For membership points earned by customers whichigedravel awards upon point redemption, we usdribremental cost method
estimate our future obligation to our customersl @tord the incremental costs as sales and magketipenses in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive loss. Unredeemed membership paiateecorded in other current liabilities in tlimsolidated balance sheets. Cash rewarc
earned by customers are recorded as a reducti@veéaues, with corresponding unclaimed amount dszbin other current liabilities. We
adjust the liability when the membership points aash rewards remain unclaimed upon program eiqirathich is typically two years from
the day when the membership points and cash reveaedmwvarded.
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Research and Product Development

Research and product development expenses incilaties and other compensation-related expenseaifaesearch and product
development personnel, as well as office rentadratdation and other related expenses for our resesnd product development function. We
recognize software development costs in accordantbeASC 350-40 “Software—internal use softwaréWe expense all costs that are
incurred in connection with the planning and impéertation phases of development, and costs thasaciated with repair or maintenance of
the existing websites or software for internal W3ertain costs associated with developing inteusalsoftware are capitalized when such cost
are incurred within the application developmengstaf software development.

Income Taxes

Current income taxes are provided on the basigifncome for financial reporting purposes, adjdd$te income and expense items
which are not assessable or deductible for inc@xn@tirposes, in accordance with the regulatiorikefelevant tax jurisdictions. Deferred
income taxes are provided using the liability methdnder this method, deferred income taxes amegrézed for the tax consequences of
temporary differences by applying enacted statutatgs applicable to future years to differencawben the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax bases of existing assetsaitities. The tax base of an asset or liabilityhis amount attributed to that asset or liability
for tax purposes. The effect on deferred taxesdabfange in tax rates is recognized in the statewfesimprehensive loss in the period of
change. A valuation allowance is provided to rediheeamount of deferred tax assets if it is consdenore likely than not that some portion
of, or all of the deferred tax assets will not balized.

The guidance prescribes a more likely than nostiokl for financial statement recognition and measient of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. Guidanceplsades for derecognition of income tax assets|bilities, classification of current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities, acdogribr interest and penalties associated withpiasitions, accounting for income taxes in
interim periods, and income tax disclosures. Sigaift judgment is required in evaluating our urgiartax positions and determining our
provision for income taxes. We recognize interest penalties, if any, under accrued expenses drat otirrent liabilities on our balance sheet
and under other expenses in our statement of cdrapséve loss. As of December 31, 2013 and 2014jivaot have any significant
unrecognized uncertain tax positions or any intesepenalties associated with tax positions.

In order to assess uncertain tax positions, weyagpphore likely than not threshold and a two-stgpraach for the tax position
measurement and financial statement recognitionetUthe two-step approach, the first step is tduata the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidenceigades that it is more likely than not that theifios will be sustained, including resolution of
related appeals or litigation processes, if anye 3&cond step is to measure the tax benefit dartgest amount that is more than 50% likely to
be realized upon settlement.

Share-based Compensation

We account for share options granted to employeaséordance with ASC 718, Stock Compensation.2li& Share Incentive Plan,
or the 2014 Plan, allows the plan administratagramt options, restricted shares and restricteceaingits. The 2008 Plan allows the plan
administrator to grant options and restricted shaweur employees, directors, and consultants. pldreadministrator under both plans is our
board of directors or a committee appointed andrdghed by the board. The board may also authoreeor more of our officers to grant
awards under the plan. In accordance with the gaielave determine whether a stock-based awardaéhbeutlassified and accounted for as a
liability award or equity award. Under the 2008rPénd the 2014 Plan, we only granted options tol@yegs and directors, and such stock-
based compensation is considered to be equityifitasawards, and is recognized in the financiateshents based on their grant date fair
values which are calculated using the binomialappricing model. Share-based compensation expsmeeorded net of an estimated
forfeiture rate at the time of grant and revisédgicessary, in subsequent periods if actual fonfes differ from initial estimates. Share-based
compensation expense is recorded net of estimatégtiires such that expenses are recorded onhése share-based awards that are
expected to ultimately vest.
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Under the 2008 Plan and the 2014 Plan, optionsenladn employees vest upon satisfaction of a sermandition, which is generally
satisfied over four years. Additionally, the 20d8rPincludes an exercisability clause where emmsyean only exercise vested options upon
the occurrence of the following events: (i) after ordinary shares become listed securities,{igannection with or after a triggering event
(defined as a sale, transfer, or disposition obaBubstantially all of our assets, or a mergensolidation, or other business combination
transaction), or (iii) if the optionee obtains mdicessary governmental approvals and consentsedqa@ptions for which the service condition
has been satisfied are forfeited should employrtegntinate three months prior to the occurrencenadxercisable event, which substantially
creates a performance condition. Therefore, sine@toption of the 2008 Plan through the datee@ttdmpletion of our initial public offering,
we did not recognize any stock-based compensatipense for options granted, because an exercisablg as described above did not occur
The satisfaction of the performance condition bez@nobable upon completion of our initial publiéesing, and we recorded a significant
cumulative expense for share-based awards graotachich the service condition has been satisfeedfahat date. Accordingly, we
recognized a significant share-based compensatijpense of RMB39.2 million (US$6.3 million) in 201%he estimates we used to determine
the fair value of these options in computing owrskbased compensation expense are determineé oesihective grant dates, and will not
change when the underlying shares begin tradingusecour options are equity classified awards.

The following table sets forth the options granteder the 2008 Plan and the 2014 Plan in 2012, 2683014:

Fair Value Fair Value of the

of Option Underlying Intrinsic Value

as of the Ordinary Shares as as of the

Number of Exercise Price Grant Date of the Grant Date Grant Date Type of
Options Granted USs$ RMB @ USs$ RMB @ US$ RMB @ UISH RMB @ Valuation

December 16, 201 6,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.44 2.6€ 0.91 5.51 N/A N/A Retrospectiv
January 7, 201 2,177,13. 0.9C 5.4t 0.44 2.6¢€ 0.91 5.51 0.01 0.0€ Retrospectiv
March 23, 201 5,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.44 2.6¢€ 0.91 5.51 N/A N/A Retrospectiv
April 18, 2013 45,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.44 2.6€ 0.91 5.51 N/A N/A Retrospectiv
June 3, 201 20,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.44 2.6¢€ 0.91 5.51 N/A N/A Retrospectiv
June 28, 201 20,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.4¢ 2.6€ 0.91 5.51 N/A N/A Retrospectiv
July 1, 201z 20,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.44 2.6€ 0.91 5.51 N/A N/A Retrospectiv
August 1, 201! 3,809,98 0.000: 0.001 1.2C 7.2¢€ 1.2C 7.2¢€ 1.2C 7.2¢€ Retrospectiv
August 15, 201. 378,19: 1.7¢ 10.8¢ 0.44 2.6€ 1.2C 7.2¢€ N/A N/A Retrospectiv
October 30, 201®W 500,00( 1.1 6.9C 1.07 6.4¢ 1.8z 11.0z 0.6¢ 4.1z Contemporaneol
October 30, 201®W 190,00( 1.14 6.9C 0.9¢ 5.9: 1.82 11.02 0.6¢ 4.1z Contemporaneo!
Noyember 30, 201 10,000 200 1211  0.9¢ 565  1.9¢ 11.9¢ NA  NA Contemporaneo
Noyember 30, 201 270,000 2.0 1211  0.7¢ 47¢ 196 11.9¢ NA  NA Contemporaneol
April 1, 20141@E) 150,00( 5.0 31.0Z 1.22 7.64 3.3 20.6¢ — —  Contemporaneo!
April 1, 20140@E) 426,00( 5.0 31.0Z 0.9: 5.7¢ 3.3 20.6¢ — —  Contemporaneo!
June 13, 201 2,700,00! 3.0C 18.61 3.7¢ 23.1¢ 5.61 34.7¢ 2.61 16.1¢ Contemporaneo!
August 15, 2014 800,00( 3.0C 18.61 4.8¢ 30.3¢ 6.9¢ 43.31 3.9¢ 24.6¢ Contemporaneo!
August 15, 20149 1,575,001 3.0 18.61 4.6( 28.5¢ 6.9¢  43.31 3.9¢ 24.6¢ Contemporaneol
Degember 8, 2014 60,000  35¢ 2227 20/ 1266  35¢ 22.2] — — Contemporaneo
Degember 8, 2014 766,000  35¢ 2227 156  9.8C  35¢ 22.2] — —  Contemporaneol
March 6. 2015® 2,428,20! 421  26.1z 2.3¢ 14.82 421 26.1Z — —  Contemporaneo!
March 6. 2015 2,027,801 4.21 26.12 2.14 13.2¢ 4.21 26.17 — —  Contemporaneo!

(1) Options granted to officers and non-officer empks/eesult in different fair value on the same gdate.

(2) The translations from U.S. dollars to Renminbi wergde at a rate of RMB6.0537 to US$1.00, the exghaate in effect as of
December 31, 2013 for option granted before Decerdbe2013 and a rate of RMB6.2046 to US$1.00ett@hange rate in effect as of
December 31, 2014 for the options granted aftenagnl, 2014, solely for the convenience of thelees

(3) We modified the exercise price from $5.00 to $30May 15, 2014.
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Significant Factors, Assumptions, and Methodologdesed in Determining Fair Value of Options

We estimated the fair value of share options utieghinomial option-pricing model with the assistarfrom an independent valuation
firm before the completion of our initial publicfefing on May 9, 2014. As part of our valuation gess for share-based awards granted in
2012, 2013 and April 2014, we have also taken éotasideration the transaction value of indepentterd parties’ private equity investments
in us that are closest to the respective valuatairs. Our management is ultimately responsiblalf@ssumptions and valuation
methodologies used in such determination. Thevélire of each option grant is estimated on the diggant with the following assumptions:

»  Expected volatility We estimated expected volatility based on thesalized standard deviation of the daily return edusel in
historical share prices of comparable companiels avtime horizon close to the expected expiry eftdrm.

* Risk-free interest rate (per annumjVe estimated risk-free interest rate based owitlld to maturity of US Treasury Bonds with
a maturity similar to the expected expiry of therte

»  Exercise multiple The exercise multiple is estimated as the rdtiaio value of underlying shares over the exergigsee at the
time the option is exercised, based on a considaraf empirical studies on the actual exerciseavedr of employees.

»  Expected dividend yieldWe have never declared or paid any cash dividendsir capital stock, and we do not anticipate any
dividend payments on our ordinary shares in thedeeable future.

»  Expected term (in yearsExpected term is the contract life of the option.

»  Expected forfeiture rate (post-vestindgjstimated based on historical employee turnoater after each option grant.
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Changes in the estimates used to determine thedhie of awards

After the completion of our initial public offeringn addition to the significant estimates and agstions disclosed above, we take the
following factors into consideration, which affébe estimates we use to determine the fair valwwairds on their respective grant dates:

»  Expected volatility We determine if there is sufficient history far 1o calculate volatility using trading prices afr@wn ADSs.
Additionally, we may update the list of comparattenpanies from time to time.

* Risk-free interest rate (per annumjVe update this estimate each time a new stockdawagranted.

»  Exercise multiple The exercise multiple is estimated based on aideration of empirical studies on the actual eiserbehavior
of employees of comparable companies as we cuyrdathot have a sufficiently long history of empbayexercise patterns.
Based on our employees’ exercise behavior andrpatte continue to update this estimate when stockrds are granted.

»  Expected dividend yieldThis estimate remained unchanged since ourlipitilic offering and is unlikely to change in the
foreseeable future, as we do not anticipate angeind payments on our ordinary shares in the ferdse future.

»  Expected term (in years)rhis estimate did not change upon completionurfinitial public offering.

»  Expected forfeiture rate (post-vesting)e update this estimate each time a new stockdaiw@granted based on the turnover rat:
of our employees.

e Fair value of our ordinary sharesThe fair value of our ordinary shares on the gdate is determined based on the trading pric
of our ADSs on such date, as opposed to applyiegnttome approach valuation method.

Significant Factors, Assumptions, and Methodologlesd in Determining Fair Value of Ordinary Shalefore the completion of our
initial public offering on May 9, 2014

As part of our valuation of shatesed awards granted before the completion ofratiglipublic offering, determining the fair valoé
our ordinary shares required us to make complexsabgkctive judgments, assumptions and estimateshvinvolved inherent uncertainty.
Had our management used different assumptions stindages, the resulting fair value of our ordinahares and the resulting share-based
compensation expenses could have been different.

In determining the grant date fair value of ourinady shares for purposes of recording share-besexgbensation in connection with
employee stock options for share-based awardsegtdmgfore the completion of our initial public affeg, we, with the assistance of
independent appraisers, performed retrospectiveatiahs instead of contemporaneous valuations Isecait the time of the valuation dates,
our financial and limited human resources wereqppialy focused on business development effortés @pproach is consistent with the
guidance prescribed by the AICPA Audit and AccaugtPractice Aid, Valuation of Privately-Held-Compaiquity Securities Issued as
Compensation, or the Practice Aid. Specificallg thevel B recommendation in paragraph 16 of the PracticesAtd forth the preferred tyg
of valuation that should be used.
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For all share-based awards granted before the edimplof our initial public offering, we, with thessistance of an independent
valuation firm, evaluated the use of three gengrdtepted valuation approaches: market, costranmirie approaches to estimate our
enterprise value. We and our appraisers considheeharket and cost approaches as inappropriatefoing our ordinary shares because no
exactly comparable market transaction could beddonthe market valuation approach and the costagrh does not directly incorporate
information about the economic benefits contribdigadur business operations. Consequently, we andppraisers relied solely on the
income approach in determining the fair value afandinary shares. This method eliminates the dig@ncy in the time value of money by
using a discount rate to reflect all business riskkiding intrinsic and extrinsic uncertaintiesr@lation to our company.

The income approach involves applying discountesth ¢lw analysis based on our projected cash flslwgimanagement'’s best
estimate as of the valuation dates. Estimatingéutash flow requires us to analyze projected ne@gmowth, gross margins, operating expt
levels, effective tax rates, capital expendituvesrking capital requirements, and discount ratag. @ojected revenues were based on expt
annual growth rates derived from a combinationwflastorical experience and the general trenchime leisure travel market. The revenue
and cost assumptions we used are consistent witlolog-term business plan and market conditiorthénonline leisure travel market. We also
have to make complex and subjective judgments déggour unique business risks, our limited opergtiistory, and future prospects at the
time of grant. Other assumptions we used in degitire fair value of our equity include:

* no material changes will occur in the applicableife periods in the existing political, legal, isor economic conditions in
China;

* no material changes will occur in the current teprataw in China and the applicable tax rates wethain consistent;

« we have the ability to retain competent managerardtkey personnel to support our ongoing operatiamd

e industry trends and market conditions for the anl@isure travel market will not deviate signifitigrfrom current forecasts.
The option-pricing method was used to allocatetgqualue of our company to preferred and ordindirgrss, taking into account the

guidance prescribed by the Practice Aid. This me¢ihgolves making estimates of the anticipatedrgndf a potential liquidity event, such &

sale of our company or an initial public offeriragnd estimates of the volatility of our equity séites. The anticipated timing is based on the
plans of our board and management.
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The other major assumptions used in calculatindalevalue of ordinary shares include:

Weighted average cost of capital, or WAQOQur cash flows were discounted to present vasirgudiscount rates that reflect the
risks the management perceived as being assoeidttedchieving the forecasts and are based ondtima&te of our weighted
average cost of capital, or WACC, on the grant.dBite WACCs were determined considering the rigle-frate, industry-average
correlated relative volatility coefficient, or betguity risk premium, country risk premium, sideoar company, scale of our
business and our ability in achieving forecastgutpns. WACCs of 25%, 23%, 22% and 22%, were fisedates as of

January 7, 2013, August 1, 2013, October 30, 20@3NDvember 30, 2013, respectively.

Comparable companiedn deriving the WACCs, which are used as theaiist rates under the income approach, six to eight
publicly traded companies in the U.S. (varied blpaton time points), two publicly traded companieg\ustralia, and one
publicly traded company in China online travel istty were selected for reference as our guidelimepanies.

Discount for lack of marketability, or DLOMAL the time of above grants, we were a closelg-kempany and there was no
public market for our equity securities. To deterenthe discount for lack of marketability, we ahd independent appraisers u
the Finnerty’s average-strike put option model.sBant to that model, we used the cost of a puboptvhich can be used to
hedge the price change before a privately heldestem be sold, as the basis to determine the disémulack of marketability. A
put option was used because it incorporates certaipany-specific factors, including timing of teepected initial public
offering and the volatility of the share price bétguideline companies engaged in the same indi&dsed on the analysis,
DLOM of 16%, 13%, 11% and 11% were used for theiatdn of our ordinary shares as of January 7, 28L8ust 1, 2013,
October 30, 2013 and November 30, 2013, respegtivel

Significant Factors Contributing to the DiffereniceFair Value Determined

The determined fair value of our ordinary sharesdased from US$0.91 (RMB 5.51) per share as oééer 16, 2012 to US$1.20
(RMB 7.26) per share as of August 1, 2013. We belibe increase in the fair value of our ordindrgres was primarily attributable to the
following factors:

continued adoption and increased penetration afem¢isure travel and the consistent strong graetn in the overall industry;

improvement of our financial and operating perfonecgin 2013 which was primarily attributable torie&sed economies of sci
greater bargaining power with travel suppliers, badce improved gross margin in 2013; and

management’s adjustment of our financial forectsteflect the anticipated higher revenue growtk emd long-term
profitability in the future due to the abovemengdrdevelopments.

The determined fair value of our ordinary sharesaased from US$1.20 (RMB7.26) per share as of Augu2013 to US$1.82
(RMB11.02) per share as of October 30, 2013 arttiéuto US$1.98 (RMB11.99) per share as of Nover80e2013. We believe the increase
in the fair value of our ordinary shares was pritgattributable to the following factors:

the improvement of our financial and operating parfance in 2013, which was primarily attributaldertcreased economies of
scale, including greater pricing power with traseppliers;

the issuance of Series D convertible preferredeshiar August 2013, which provided us with additioregpital for our business
expansion;

management’s adjustment of our financial foreaasetlect the anticipated higher revenue growtk eatd better financial
performance in the future due to the abovementiatee®@lopments; and

the commencement of our initial public offering paeation process in November 2013 and the completi@ur initial public
offering in 2014, resulting in a decrease in thpeseted time period leading to a liquidity event.wes progressed towards our
initial public offering, the lead time to an expedtiquidity event decreased, resulting in a desgzea the DLOM.
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The determined fair value of our ordinary sharesaased from US$1.98 (RMB11.99) per share as oehiber 30, 2013 to US$3.33
(RMB20.18) per share, the mid-point of the estirdgigce range identified on the front cover of puliminary prospectus for our initial
public offering dated April 28, 2014. We believe fincrease in the fair value of our ordinary shavas primarily attributable to the following
factors:

« the improvement of our financial and operating parfance in the first quarter of 2014, which wasnariily attributable to
increased economies of scale, including greateyaiaing power with travel suppliers and increasest@mer base;

» the shortterm negative impact resulted from the promulgatibthe Tourism Law in October 2013 has been fadamgl we saw
steady and sustainable increase in the numberstérmers purchasing the more expensive organized bothe first quarter of
2014, which resulted in higher average gross bapgar trip; and we confidentially submitted theistgtion statement relating
our initial public offering to the SEC in the firgtiarter of 2014 and completed our initial publiieong in May 2014, resulting in
a decrease in the expected time period leadinditpiality event. As we progressed towards ouiahpublic offering, the lead
time to an expected liquidity event decreased ltiegLin a decrease in the DLOM.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsal (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaeSt”) 2014-08, Reporting
Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of DisgoshComponents of an Entity”. This update chartpedhreshold for reporting
discontinued operations and added new disclosoredigposals. Under the updated guidance, a dise@d operation is defined as a
component or group of components that is dispo$ed is classified as held for sale and represarsisategic shift that has (or will have) a
major effect on an entity’s operations and finahaults. This ASU is effective prospectively figcal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2014. We atleciprocess of evaluating the impact of adoptirig guidance

In May 2014, the FASB and International Accounttgndards Board (“IASB”) issued their convergeddéad on revenue
recognition. The objective of the revenue standeBtl 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Custon{&éopic 606)” is to provide a single,
comprehensive revenue recognition model for altreamts with customers to improve comparability vwittndustries, across industries, and
across capital markets. The revenue standard osmpainciples that an entity will apply to determithe measurement of revenue and timing c
when it is recognized. The underlying principleéhat an entity will recognize revenue to depicttiiamsfer of goods or services to customers ¢
an amount that the entity expects to be entitldéd gxchange for those goods or services. For pablnpanies, the revenue standard is
effective for the first interim period within anrluaporting periods beginning after December 13,628nd early adoption is not permitted. We
are in the process of evaluating the impact of #dghis guidance.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, wiuntvides guidance on determining when and how tamgpentities must
disclose going-concern uncertainties in their friahstatements. The new standard requires managemperform interim and annual
assessments of an entity’s ability to continue gsiag concern within one year of the date of issgaof the entity’s financial statements (or
within one year after the date on which the finahstatements are available to be issued, whercapj#). Further, an entity must provide
certain disclosures if there is “substantial daaltiut the entity’s ability to continue as a goilgcern.” The ASU is effective for annual
periods ending after December 15, 2016, and intpaniods thereafter; early adoption is permittee & in the process of evaluating the
impact of adopting this guidance.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015*@®nsolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Cdiasdion
Analysis” (“ASU 2015-02"). ASU 2015-02 focuses dretconsolidation evaluation for reporting orgaricrag that are required to evaluate
whether they should consolidate certain legal iestiThe ASU simplifies consolidation accountingregiucing the number of consolidation
models from four to two. In addition, the new starisimplifies the FASB Accounting Standards Cadifion and improves current guidance
by: (i) placing more emphasis on risk of loss wHetermining a controlling financial interest; {@ducing the frequency of the application of
related-party guidance when determining a contrglfinancial interest in a VIE; and (iii) changingnsolidation conclusions for public and
private companies in several industries that tyllyicaake use of limited partnerships or VIEs. Th8WAwill be effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2015, for public companies.yEadbption is permitted, including adoption in aterim period. We are in the process of
evaluating the impact of adopting this guidance.

B. Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity have been procdeais operating activities, private issuances afirmary and preferred shares, and
our initial public offering. Prior to the completi®f our initial public offering in May 2014, wenianced our operations primarily through cash
generated from our operating activities, privagai@ces and sales of preferred shares. In May 2@ldpompleted our initial public offering in
which we issued and sold 8,580,000 ADSs represgtn740,000 Class A ordinary shares. Concurramitly our initial public offering, we
issued and sold 5,000,000, 5,000,000 and 1,66&;6&% A ordinary shares to each of DCM Hybrid RMB#&, L.P., Ctrip Investment Holdil
Ltd. and Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd., respectivéls a result of our initial public offering andch concurrent private placements, we
raised an aggregate of approximately US$106.3anilRMB659.5 million) in proceeds, net of underimgt commissions. In December 2014
we also entered into a share subscription agreewigntJnicorn Riches Limited, JD.com E-commercevstment) Hong Kong Corporation
Limited, Ctrip Investment Holding Ltd. and the respive personal holding companies of Tuniu’s clkiedcutive officer and chief operating
officer, pursuant to which we issued and sold altot 36,812,868 newly issued class A ordinary ebafs a result of this sale, we raised an
aggregate of approximately US$148.0 million (RMB@L®hillion) in proceeds.

Generally, our customers pay us upon contract coafion, which is usually more than one month keetbe departure dates, and we
pay our travel suppliers at a later date, such #seaend of each month. The timing difference eetvwhen the cash is collected from our
customers and when payments are made to our sappliers increases our operating cash inflow aodiges us with a source of liquidity to
fund our settlement of outstanding accounts paybleavel suppliers and our prepayment to ourerauppliers to secure organized tours anc
self-guided tours during peak seasons.

In connection with the increase in the sales oftcawel products and services, advances from custamreased from RMB244.2
million as of December 31, 2012 to RMB396.7 milliasi of December 31, 2013 and further to RMB63818ani(US$103.0 million) as of
December 31, 2014. In addition, primarily due mitig differences between when cash is collectenh foor customers and when payments ar
made to our travel suppliers and the expansiorupbasiness, accounts payable increased from RMRIAillion as of December 31, 2012 to
RMB289.0 million as of December 31, 2013 and furtieeRMB382.7 million (US$61.7 million) as of Decker 31, 2014. Furthermore,
primarily due to the increase in our prepaymentagel suppliers as a result of our business expanprepayments and other current assets
increased from RMB127.0 million as of DecemberZ112 to RMB286.6 million as of December 31, 2018 amther to RMB575.3 million
(US$92.7 million) as of December 31, 2014. Morepdee to investments in branding campaigns andrégements to drive our mobile
business expansion in 2014, our sales and marketipgnses increased from RMB58.0 million in 2002RMB110.1 million in 2013 and
further to RMB434.2 million (US$70.0 million) in 2@. As a result, our net cash provided by operaiityities was RMB14.7 million and
RMB116.7 million in 2012 and 2013, respectivelydamur net cash used in operating activities was RFIB1 million (US$43.7 million) in
2014.
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Our principal uses of cash for the years ended Dbee 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were for operatingites, primarily marketing
and brand promotion expenses, salaries and othgpaxesation expenses as well as office rental asfégsional service fees. Our cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and nasdmk, including demand bank deposits. Our skont+investments comprise financial
products issued by banks or other financial instihs. As of December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, ackRMB336.1 million, RMB755.7
million and RMB 1,970.3 million (US$ 317.6 milliom) cash and cash equivalents, restricted caslslaoriterm investments, respectively. \
did not have any short-term or long-term bank beings outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

In November 2014, we entered into framework coapmraagreements with four PRC-based banks undeshwthie banks intend to
make available loan facilities up to an aggregateMB4.0 billion with terms ranging from two to fvyears to us or our suppliers. The actual
borrowings under the framework agreements are sttgjexecution of definitive agreements and feqgbrovals by the respective banks. In
definitive financing agreements executed among saolir suppliers and us pursuant to the framewgreanents, we did not provide
guarantee for our suppliers’ borrowings nor bearttanks’ credit risks.

We believe that our current cash and anticipatsti 8aw from operations will be sufficient to me®ir anticipated cash needs,
including our cash needs for at least the next @a@ths. We may require additional cash due to ucigiatied business conditions or other future
developments. If our existing cash is insufficienmeet our requirements, we may seek to sell iaddit equity securities, debt securities or
secure debt funding from financial institutions.

The following table sets forth a summary of ourrcisws for the periods presented:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
RMB RMB RMB USss$
(in thousands)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activi 14,66: 116,73t (271,10) (43,69¢)
Net cash used in investing activiti (46,78¢) (304,219 (227,92) (36,735
Net cash provided by financing activiti — 306,36( 1,540,39 248,26
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvadnts (740) 1,285 (3,059 (492)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. (32,867) 120,16! 1,038,32I 167,34
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 332,10: 299,23 419,40: 67,59:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 299,23t 419,40: 1,457,72: 234,94
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Operating Activities

Our net cash used in operating activities was RMB.2 million ( US$ 43.7 million) in 2014, primaristtributable to cash inflows
from sales of our travel products and servicesMBR,289.1 million (US$852.5 million) and cash infle from interest income and
government subsidies of RMB 35.1 million (US$ 5.@iom), that were offset by cash outflows due tyments to our travel suppliers of
RMB4,796.3 million (US$773.0 million), paymentsaghg to other operating activities, which inclysyments for marketing and promotio
activities, office rental and utilities and professl services, of RMB524.3 million (US$84.5 millp payments to employees and for
employees’ benefits of RMB 257.4 million (US$ 4infllion) and payments of taxes and levies of RMB21million (US$ 2.8 million).

Our net cash provided by operating activities wiBR16.7 million in 2013, primarily attributable tash inflows from sales of our
travel products and services of RMB3,199.2 milleond cash inflows from interest income and goverrtraghsidies of RMB13.0 million ,
partially offset by cash outflows due to paymentsur travel suppliers of RMB2,842.0 million , pagmts relating to other operating activities,
which include payments for marketing and promoti@uivities, office rental and utilities and pref&onal services, of RMB130.6 million ,
payments to employees and for employees’ bendfiB110.8 million and payments of taxes and lewie®MB12.1 million .

Our net cash provided by operating activities witBR4.7 million in 2012, primarily attributable t@sh inflows from sales of our
travel products and services of RMB1,760.3 milleand cash inflows from interest income and goverrraghsidies of RMB7.9 million,
partially offset by cash outflows due to paymentstr travel suppliers of RMB1,576.3 million, paym&to employees and for employees’
benefits of RMB101.3 million, payments relatingathher operating activities, which include paymédotsmarketing and promotional activities,
office rental and utilities and professional seegicof RMB68.2 million and payments of taxes amiele of RMB7.7 million.

Investing Activities

Our net cash used in investing activities was R\2B.2 million (US$ 36.7 million) in 2014, primaribttributable to the purchase of
short-term investments of RMB 547.6 million (US$3#illion), the purchase of property and equiprmaamd intangible assets of RMB 50.6
million (US$ 8.2 million) and the increase in owaldnce of restricted cash of RMB34.8 million (USBhillion), offset by the proceeds from
the disposal of short-term investments of RMB 408&illion (US$ 65.3 million).

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMB20nillion in 2013, primarily attributable to tipeirchase of short-term
investments of RMB451.8 million and the purchaseraperty and equipment and intangible assets oBRBImillion, offset by the proceeds
from the disposal of short-term investments of RM838 million.
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Our net cash used in investing activities was RMBA4#illion in 2012, attributable to the purchasesbbrt-term investments of
RMB224.0 million and the purchase of property agdipment and intangible assets of RMB21.4 millipartially offset by proceeds from
disposal of short-term investments of RMB194.0 inill

Financing Activities

Our net cash provided by financing activities il2@vas RMB 1,540.4 million (US$ 248.3 million), rédtutable to the net proceeds of
our initial public offering and the concurrent mte placements as well as the private placemddeaember 2014.

Our net cash provided by financing activities ii2@vas RMB306.4 million , attributable to the nevgeeds from issuance of
Series D preferred shares.

Our net cash provided by financing activities iri2@vas nil.
Capital Expenditures

Cash outflow in connection with capital expendituagnounted to RMB21.4 million, RMB4.8 million and/iB 50.6 million (US$ 8.2
million) in 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. @apital expenditures were primarily used to pureteguipment and intangible assets for oul
business. As of December 31, 2014, capital commmitselating to leasehold improvement and insialladf equipment were approximately
RMB 1.4 million (US$ 0.2 million).

Holding Company Structure

We are a holding company with no material operatiohour own. We conduct our operations primatilgotigh our wholly owned
subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated entitre€hina. As a result, our ability to pay divideridour shareholders depends upon dividends
paid by our PRC subsidiaries. If our PRC subsidgadr any newly formed PRC subsidiaries incur deltheir own behalf in the future, the
instruments governing their debt may restrict tladitity to pay dividends to us. In addition, olR® subsidiaries are permitted to pay divide
to us only out of their retained earnings, if aay,determined in accordance with PRC accountinglatds and regulations. Under PRC law,
each of our subsidiaries and our consolidatedaitil entities in China is required to set asideadt 10% of its after-tax profits each year, if
any, to fund certain statutory reserve funds wwutilh reserve funds reach 50% of its registeredatapi addition, each of our subsidiaries and
consolidated affiliated entities in China may adltea portion of its after-tax profits based on RRRCounting standards to staff welfare and
bonus funds at its discretion. These reserve fandsstaff welfare and bonus funds are not distaibletas cash dividends. As our PRC
subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated entitiageéhincurred losses, they have not started to ibomérto the staff welfare and bonus funds. Ou
PRC subsidiaries have never paid dividends andwtlbe able to pay dividends until they generatzimulated profits and meet the
requirements for statutory reserve funds.

C. Research and Development

We have built our technology infrastructure witlgthievels of performance, reliability, scalabilagd security. We rely on internally
developed proprietary technologies and licenselhtglogies to manage and improve our website, maibdiform and management systems.
We have a team of approximately 400 engineers ditido research and development in the areashidit@eoperations, mobile platform,
search engine, data analytics and supply chain gesmant system.
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Research and product development expenses princaritprise salaries and other compensation expémsear research and product
development personnel as well as office rentalret@ation and other expenses related to our relseand product development function.
Research and product development expenses alsmlinekpenses that are incurred in connection Wélptanning and implementation phases
of development and costs that are associated hdtimaintenance of our online platform or softwaneiiternal use. In 2012, 2013 and 2014
our research and product development expensesraecoior 3.0%, 2.0% and 3.0% of our net revenwespectively. During the same period,
our research and product development expensessentén order to support our business expansiagnagly attributable to the increases in
the headcount and the average salary of our rdsaartproduct development personnel. We expecaresand product development expe|
to increase in absolute amounts as the resultaradantinual research and product developmenttsford the increase in share-based
compensation expenses.

D. Trend Information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this annpaltewe are not aware of any trends, uncertaindesmands, commitments or events
for the year ended December 31, 2014 that are mah$plikely to have a material and adverse eftecobur net revenues, income, profitability,
liquidity or capital resources, or that would catise disclosed financial information to be not reseeily indicative of future results of
operations or financial conditions.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any financial guaranteesgheer commitments to guarantee the payment dimigs of any third parties. We
have not entered into any off-balance sheet dévevaistruments. Furthermore, we do not have atgimed or contingent interest in assets
transferred to an unconsolidated entity that seagesredit, liquidity or market risk support to buentity. We do not have any variable interest
in any unconsolidated entity that provides finaggiimquidity, market risk or credit support to usemgages in leasing, hedging or research an
development services with us.

F. Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions by specified categories as of Decembe2®14.

Payment Due by Perioc

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(In RMB thousands)
Operating Lease Obligatior?) 108,85 22,50: 40,34 26,39¢ 19,61:
Purchase Obligatior® 1,43¢ 1,43¢ — — —
Total 110,29¢ 23,94. 40,34t 26,39¢ 19,61:

(1) Operating lease obligations represent our obligatfor the leased premises of our headquartersegiohal service centers.

(2) Purchase obligations consist primarily of contrattommitments in connection with leasehold improeets and the installation of
equipment for our headquarters and regional sepgogers.

Other than the contractual obligations set fortbvah we do not have any contractual obligationsdahalong-term debt obligations,
capital (finance) lease obligations, purchase aliligs or other long-term liabilities reflected amr balance sheet.
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Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees

A. Directors and Senior Management

The following table sets forth information regamgliour executive officers and directors as of thie dd this annual report:

Directors and Executive Officers Age Position/Title
Dunde Yu 34 Cc-founder, chairman and chief executive offi
Haifeng Yan 33 Cc-founder, director and chief operating offic
Thomas Gai Tei Tsa 45 Director

Frank Lin 50 Director

Steve Yue J 42 Director

Eugene Chehchun Hua 36 Director

James Jianzhang Lial 45 Director

Onward Cho 44 Director

Jack Xu 47 Director

Conor Chii-hung Yang 52 Chief financial officel

Zhengrong Tan 45 Chief technology office

Wei Tong 55 Vice presiden

Enjie Wu 43 Vice president of human resources ce

Mr. Dunde Yus our co-founder and has served as chairman dboard of directors and chief executive officercsimur inception.
Prior to founding our company, Mr. Yu was the chefhnology officer o€i123.comin 2006, where he helpaill23.combecome a leading
Chinese childcare website. From 2004 to 2006, Mrs¥rved as the technical directoBafkee.com Mr. Yu received a bachelor’'s degree in
mathematics from Southeast University in Chinal62

Mr. Haifeng Yaris our co-founder and has served as our direat@esbur inception. Prior to founding our company, ¥Man was one
of the founding members and the chief operating@ffofcil23.com, from 2005 to 2006, where he was responsible &dy @perations and
helpedcil23.combecome a leading Chinese childcare website. Mr.S&amed as an analyst of iTech Holdings Limite@004.

Mr. Thomas Gai Tei Tsauwas served as our director since October 2008 anthdependent director since April 2015. Mr. Téaa
cofounder of Gobi Ventures, Inc. He has over two deseof experience in venture capital, fund managénaad investment banking in Ch
and the United States. Mr. Tsao is a co-found@eijfing Technology Development Fund. Prior to foungdBeijing Technology Development
Fund, Mr. Tsao was a director of investment bankinBresdner Kleinwort Benson (China), coveringtdehnology, media and
telecommunications sector, in 1998. From 1996 @/19r. Tsao worked for Seapower Financial Servigesup. From 1992 to 1996,

Mr. Tsao was an investment banker at Merrill LyittNew York and Hong Kong. Mr. Tsao received a ledatis degree in economics from
Harvard University in 1992.

Mr. Frank Linhas served as our director since December 2009LiNlis a general partner of DCM, a technology veatcapital firm.
Prior to joining DCM in 2006, Mr. Lin was chief ogging officer of SINA Corporation, a Nasdag-listsampany. Mr. Lin co-founded
sina.com’sprecursor company, SinaNet, in 1995 and later glide company through its listing on Nasdaq. Rndounding SinaNet, Mr. Lin
was a consultant at Ernst & Young Management CeinguGroup. Mr. Lin had also held various marketiaggineering and managerial
positions at Octel Communication Inc. and NYNEX.. Min currently serves on the board of directore@ierous companies invested by
DCM, including Vipshop Holdings Limited, a NYSE+éxl company, and 58.com Inc., a NYSE-listed comphhyLin received a bachelor’s
degree in engineering from Dartmouth College anthater’s degree in business administration fromf8td University.
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Mr. Steve Yue Jias served as our director since March 2011. Ms.dipartner of Sequoia Capital China. Prior toifm Sequoia
Capital in 2005, Mr. Ji worked at Walden Internatig Vertex Management and CIV Venture Capital, ghee contributed to investments in
numerous wireless, Internet and semiconductor carepan China. Prior to that, Mr. Ji worked for §ate Technology China, a Nasdag-listed
company, among the first group of its employeebsd85. Mr. Ji has been a director of Noah Holdingsited, a NYSE-listed company, since
2007 and an independent director of Country Stylekihg Restaurant Chain Co., Ltd., a NYSE-listethpany, since 2010. Mr. Ji received a
master’s degree in business administration froom&Europe International Business School in 1999abachelor’s degree in engineering
from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astrotias in Nanjing, China in 1995.

Mr. Eugene Chehchun Huatmgs served as our director since September 2013lng is a director of Temasek International Pte.
Ltd. where he is responsible for investments intéedinology, media and telecommunications industieior to joining Temasek International
Pte. Ltd. in 2012, Mr. Huang was an investment leamkith the Hong Kong office of Bank of America NidrLynch from 2006 to 2012.
Mr. Huang joined Merrill Lynch & Co. in New York i8001. He received a bachelor’'s degree of sciesaenfna cum laudefrom Leonard
Stern School of Business at New York University.

Mr. James Jianzhang Liarttas served as our director since July 2014. Mmnd.ia the chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Ctrip.com International, Ltd., a leading travehsee provider for hotel accommodation reservatioansportation ticketing, packaged tours an
corporate travel management in China. Prior toaoafling Ctrip in 1999, Mr. Liang held a numberedhnical and managerial positions at
Oracle Corporation from 1991 to 1999 in the U.S) @hina, including head of the ERP Consulting Dansof Oracle China from 1997 to
1999. Mr. Liang currently serves on the boards ofitd Inns, 51job.com and eHi Car Services Limited. INang received a Ph.D. in
Economics from Stanford University in 2011 and ashdds in Computer Science from the Georgia Institf Technology.

Mr. Onward Choihas served as our independent director since Mag 2Mr. Choi has been the acting chief financfiter of
NetEase Inc., or NetEase, a Naslisted company, since July 2007. He previouslyséras NetEase’s financial controller from Jan20§5
to June 2007 and as its corporate finance diréiator November 2003 to December 2004. Prior to jainiNetEase, Mr. Choi worked in the
Beijing office of Ernst & Young, the Hong Kong Tra@evelopment Council and the Hong Kong office MG for over ten years. Mr. Choi
currently serves as the chairman of the audit cdtemand an independent non-executive directoregfrig) Jingkelong Company Limited and
China ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd., both of which aigtéd on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Chai isember of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow memii¢e Association of Chartered Certified Accounsant fellow member of the CPA
Australia, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Ingd&tof Certified Public Accountants and a registqueatticing certified public accountant in
Hong Kong. Mr. Choi received a bachelor’'s degreadcountancy with honors from the Hong Kong Polgtec University.

Mr. Jack Xuhas served as Tuniu’s independent director sincg 2044. Mr. Xu is the managing partner at Severs S&amture
Partners. Mr. Xu served as President and Chiefaoly Officer of SINA Corporation, or SINA, a Naggtlisted company, from
January 2013 to February 2015. Prior to joininggSMr. Xu worked at Cisco as the Corporate Vices®lent of the Communications and
Collaboration business unit. Previously, Mr. Xuveel as Vice President of Engineering and ResedreBay from October 2002 to April 2008
and Chief Technology Officer at NetEase from Ma@@€o July 2002. He led Excite’s search engine igweent in 1996, while pursuing a
Ph.D. at the University of California at Berkel®t. Xu received a bachelor's degree and a mastixggee in information management from
Sun Yat-Sen University in China.
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Mr. Conor Chia-hung Yanbas served as our chief financial officer sincauday 2013. Prior to joining us, Mr. Yang was théeth
financial officer of E-Commerce China Dangdang lacNY SElisted company, from March 2010 to July 2012 arachief financial officer o
AirMedia Group Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, figiarch 2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yang was the chiefaive officer of Rock Mobile
Corporation from 2004 to February 2007. From 1292004, Mr. Yang served as the chief financialaeffiof the Asia Pacific region for
CellStar Asia Corporation. Mr. Yang was an exeautiirector of Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. from 1987.999. Prior to that, Mr. Yang was
a vice president of Lehman Brothers Asia Limiteaiir1994 to 1996 and an associate at Morgan StédyLimited from 1992 to 1994.

Mr. Yang currently serves as an independent diretd the chairman of the audit committee of IFMestments Limited, a NYSE-listed
company and an independent director and chairmé#mecdudit committee of AirMedia Group Inc. Mr. areceived a master’s degree of
business administration from University of CalifianLos Angeles in 1992.

Mr. Zhengrong Tan@as served as our chief technology officer sincgusti 2013. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tang was thieth
technology officer of China Gtel from 2012 to 20%8)ere he was responsible for the products, operstind technology gfuahao.com
From 2004 to 2012, Mr. Tang served as a seniocttiref Alibaba Group’slibaba.com taobao.comandalipay.comand the chief technology
officer of Alibaba Japan, where he was respongiii¢he architecture migration tdiobao.com the establishment afipay.com, and the
development of Alibaba’s international website.\Batn 2003 and 2004, Mr. Tang was the chief resemddfitect of CTB/McGraw-Hill. From
1995 to 2003, Mr. Tang served as an architect afddma, senior engineer at Comergent Technologidgechnology manager at Perot
Systems. Mr. Tang received a master’s degree irpaten science from University of Pittsburgh in 198%achelor’'s degree in computer
science from State University of New York at Albanyl993.

Mr. Wei Tongoined our company in November 2014, and has sexgealir vice president in charge of cooperatioh @imestic and
foreign tourism authorities as well as product dewment in travel destinations. Mr. Tong has workethe travel services industry over three
decades. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tong served asvibe president of the China International Tre&etvices Group Corporation from 2012 to
2014. From 1982 to 2012, Mr. Tong worked at thedhaffice of China International Travel Services litied, and served as the president of
company from 2009 to 2012. Mr. Tong received a blmts degree from Beijing International Studiesivémsity in 1982 and a mastsrdegre:
in business management from New School Univergity987.

Mr. Enjie Wuhas served as our vice president of human resoaetasr since January 2010. Prior to joining us,\Mu was the
human resources general manager of Hisap Corporation 2005 to 2010. From 2003 to 2005, Mr. Wu wesgeneral manager of Jianghai
Group. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Wu served as thectbireof human resources of Beijing Yenova Decora@w., Ltd. From 1993 to 2001, he
was the human resource officer of Zindart ManufaestuLimited. Mr. Wu received a bachelor's degreeeconomics and management from
Sun Yat-Sen University in China in 1993.

B. Compensation

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, we graiaggregate of approximately RMB 4.7 million §X58 million) in cash to our
executive officers and RMB 0.4 million (US$ 0.06llian) to our non-executive directors and officdfer share incentive grants to our
directors and executive officers and the vestingd@mns of such share incentive grants, see “—&hagentive Plans.”
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Share Incentive Plans
2008 Incentive Compensation Plan

We adopted an incentive compensation plan, or @8 2lan, in 2008. The purposes of the 2008 Planceattract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantiabomsibility, to provide additional incentive to ployees and consultants, and to promote the
success of our business by offering these individaa opportunity to acquire a proprietary inteiagiur company. In 2012, we increased the
maximum aggregate number of shares which may bedssnder the 2008 Plan from 11,500,000 to 18,315 As of the March 31, 2015,
options to purchase 14,427,005 ordinary sharesswed and outstanding, and there are 81,348 oydshares available for future issuance
upon the exercise of future grants under the 2088.P

The following paragraphs summarize the terms oR0@8 Plan.
Types of Awards The 2008 Plan permits the awards of options astficted shares.

Plan Administration. Our board of directors or a committee appointgdir board will administer the 2008 Plan. The cdtren or
the full board of directors, as applicable, wiltglenine the participants to receive awards, the gpd number of awards to be granted to eact
participant, and the terms and conditions of eacdwrd grant, among other things. Our board of dinecinay authorize one or more officers of
us to grant awards under the 2008 Plan, subjgmartameters specified by the board of directors.

Award Agreement Awards granted under the 2008 Plan are evidebgeth award agreement that sets forth terms, dondiand
limitations for each award, which may include teart of the award, the provisions applicable ingfient that the grantee’s employment or
service terminates, and our authority to unilatgral bilaterally amend, modify, suspend, cancelastind the award, among other things.
Pursuant to the form award agreement under the RPG0O8 1/4 of the ordinary shares underlying thiéoopshall vest on the first anniversary of
the date of grant, and 1/48 of the remaining omgishares underlying the option shall vest on atigrbasis in the following three years.
However, the option may be exercised, to the extestted, only (a) in connection with or after certaiggering events if the option is assumec
by a company whose shares are listed on a sesweiizhange, or (b) unless otherwise allowed bylke administrator in its sole discretion, if
the option holder obtains all the necessary goventat approvals and consents required for the mgsuaf such shares.

Eligibility . We may grant awards to our employees and comsslled our company. However, we may grant optitwas are intended
to qualify as incentive options only to our emplege

Vesting Schedule In general, the plan administrator determines/ésting schedule, which is specified in the retdaavard
agreement.

Exercise of Options The plan administrator determines the exercige ffior each award, which is stated in the awaréexgent. The
vested portion of option will expire if not exeregsprior to the time as the plan administrator uheitees at the time of its grant. However, the
maximum exercisable term is the tenth anniverstiey the date of a grant.

Transfer Restrictions Options may not be transferred in any mannehbyrécipient other than by will or by the laws efdent or
distribution, except as otherwise provided by tta@dministrator.
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Termination of the 2008 Plan Unless terminated earlier, the 2008 Plan wilini@ate automatically in 2018. Our board of direstor
has the authority to amend or terminate the pléfestito shareholder approval if required by aille law.

2014 Share Incentive Plan

We adopted the 2014 Share Incentive Plan, or thid B0an, in 2014. The maximum aggregate numbehnaries which may be issued
pursuant to all awards under the 2014 Plan isailytb,500,000 ordinary shares as of the datescdiproval. The nhumber of shares reserved fc
future issuances under the 2014 Plan will be irsgdautomatically if and whenever the ordinary ebaeserved under the 2014 Plan account
for less than 1% of the total then-issued and anthihg ordinary shares on an as-converted basgsofidinary shares reserved under the 2014
Plan immediately after each such increase shalllegfs of the then-issued and outstanding ordinaayes on an as-converted basis. As of
March 31, 2015, there are options to acquire 90l ordinary shares and 210,000 restricted shasesd and outstanding under the 2014
Plan.

The following paragraphs summarize the terms o041 Plan.
Types of Awards The 2014 Plan permits the awards of optionsricésti shares and restricted share units.

Plan Administration. Our board of directors or a committee designatedur board administers the 2014 Plan. The coremiit the
full board of directors, as applicable, determitfesparticipants to receive awards, the type amdbau of awards to be granted to each
participant, and the terms and conditions of eacdwd grant.

Award Agreement Awards granted under the 2014 Plan are evidebgeth award agreement that sets forth terms, dondiand
limitations for each award, which may include teart of the award, the provisions applicable inglient of the grantee’s employment or
service terminates, and our authority to unilatgral bilaterally amend, modify, suspend, cancelascind the award.

Eligibility . We may grant awards to our employees, directodscansultants of our company. However, we maytgsptions that are
intended to qualify as incentive share options aalgur employees and employees of our parent coirepand subsidiaries.

Acceleration of Awards upon Change in Controlf a change in control of our company occurs,la administrator may, in its sole
discretion, provide for (i) all awards outstandiogerminate at a specific time in the future anekgach participant the right to exercise the
vested portion of such awards during a specificogenf time, or (ii) the purchase of any award &ramount of cash equal to the amount that
could have been attained upon the exercise of aweind, or (iii) the replacement of such award wither rights or property selected by the
plan administrator in its sole discretion, or (pgyment of award in cash based on the value ohardishares on the date of the change-in-
control transaction plus reasonable interest.

Vesting Schedule In general, the plan administrator determines/ésting schedule, which is specified in the retdaavard
agreement.

Exercise of Options The plan administrator determines the exercigee ffior each award, which is stated in the awaréement. The
vested portion of option will expire if not exeregsprior to the time as the plan administrator uheitees at the time of its grant. However, the
maximum exercisable term is the tenth anniverstiey the date of a grant.
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Transfer Restrictions Awards may not be transferred in any manner byrditipient other than by will or the laws of dedcand
distribution, except as otherwise provided by tta@dministrator.

Termination of the 2014 Plan Unless terminated earlier, the 2014 Plan wilini@ate automatically in 2024. Our board of direstor
has the authority to amend or terminate the pléestito shareholder approval or home country pract

The following table summarizes, as of March 31,20khe outstanding options and restricted sham@stgd to our directors and
executive officers under the 2008 Plan and 2014.Fa of March 31, 2015, there were options to &eql¥,427,005 and 9,701,000 ordinary
shares issued and outstanding under the 2008 RthB04.4 Plan, respectively.

Ordinary
Shares
Underlying
Options
Awarded / Exercise Price
Restricted (Uss/ (RMB/ Vesting
Name Shares Share) Share) @ Date of Grant Schedule Date of Expiration
Dunde Yu 700,00( 0.10(¢ 0.01¢ November 5, 20( 4 year) November 4, 201
1,100,00! 0.22¢ 0.03¢ March 11, 201 4 year(®) March 10, 201
1,269,99! 0.000: 0.0000: August 1, 201 4 year® July 31, 201
900,00 3.00( 0.48¢ June 13, 201 4 year® June 12, 20z
760,00( 4.21( 0.67¢ March 6, 201 4 year() March 5, 202
Haifeng Yan 700,00( 0.10(¢ 0.01¢ November 5, 20( 4 yeard) November 4, 201
1,100,001 0.22¢ 0.03¢ March 11, 201 4 year® March 10, 201
1,269,99! 0.000: 0.0000: August 1, 201 4 year® July 31, 201
900,00 3.00( 0.48¢ June 13,201 4 year® June 12, 20z
660,00( 4.21( 0.67¢ March 6, 201 4 year) March 5, 202
Conor Chii-hung Yang * 0.90( 0.14:¢ January 7, 201 4 year®) January 6, 201
* 0.000: 0.0000: August 1, 201 4 year® July 31, 201
* 3.00(¢ 0.48¢ June 13,201 4 year® June 12, 20z
* 4.21( 0.67¢ March 6, 201 4 year®) March 5, 202
Zhengrong Tan * 1.13¢ 0.18: October 30, 201 4 yeard) October 29, 201
* 4.21( 0.67¢ March 6, 201 4 yeard) March 5, 202
Enjie Wu * 0.22¢ 0.03¢ June 30, 201 4 year) June 29, 201
* 0.22¢ 0.03¢ March 11, 201 4 year(®) March 10, 201
* 1.13¢ 0.18: March 19, 201 4 year®) March 18, 201
* 1.79( 0.28¢ August 15, 201 4 year® August 14, 201
* 3.00(¢ 0.48¢ August 15, 201 4 year®) August 14, 202
* 4.21( 0.67¢ March 6, 201 4 year) March 5, 202
WeiTong * 3.59( 0.57¢ December 8, 20: 4 yeard) December 7, 20:
Jack Xu * o+ N/A N/A May 9, 201. 4 year®) May 8, 202
Onward Cho *o N/A N/A May 9, 201. 4 year) May 8, 202
Directors and officers as a
group 15,834,37 — — — — —

*  Shares underlying vested options less than 1% mfiodal outstanding shares.
*  Denotes restricted share award; all other awartisisrtable are option awards.

(1) Pursuant to the relevant award agreement, 1/4eobittlinary shares underlying the option or regtdcthares shall vest on the first
anniversary of the date of grant, and 1/48 of #meaining ordinary shares underlying the optionestricted shares shall vest on a monthly
basis in the following three years. However, theapor restricted shares may be exercised, textent vested, only (a) in connection
with or after certain triggering events if the aptiis assumed by a company whose shares are distacgecurities exchange, or (b) unless
otherwise allowed by the plan administrator irsitée discretion, if the option holder or holderestricted shares obtains all the necessan
governmental approvals and consents required éoisduance of such shares.

(2) The prices in Renminbi were translated using the ddUS$1.00 = RMB 6.2046, the exchange ratefiecefs of December 31, 2014,
solely for the convenience of the readers.
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C. Board Practices
Board of Directors

Our board of directors currently consists of niirectors. A director is not required to hold anyai#s in our company. A director may
vote with respect to any contract, proposed cohtoaarrangement in which he or she is intereptetiided (a) such director has declared the
nature of his or her interest, whether materialai at the earliest meeting of the board at witichpracticable to do so, either specifically or
by way of a general notice, (b) such director hatdoeen disqualified by the chairman of the relévarard meeting, and (c) if such contract or
arrangement is a transaction with a related patgh transaction has been approved by the audihéttee in accordance with the NASDAQ
rules. The directors may exercise all the powetb®fcompany to borrow money, mortgage its busjieperty and uncalled capital, and i<
debentures or other securities whenever moneyrisled or as security for any obligation of the gamy or of any third party.

Committees of the Board of Directors

We have three committees of the board of directbesaudit committee, the compensation committektia® nominating and
corporate governance committee under the boardteétdrs. We have adopted a charter for each ofitte committees. Each committee’s
members and functions are described below.

Audit Committee. Our audit committee consists of Mr. Onward Chri, Jack Xu and Mr. Thomas Gai Tei Tsao and isrelthby
Mr. Choi. Each of Mr. Choi, Mr. Xu and Mr. ThomasiJ ei Tsao satisfies the “independence” requirdmefiRule 5605(a)(2) of the
NASDAQ Stock Market Rules and meet the independstaredards under Rule 1-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnaied.
Our board of directors has determined that eadWirofChoi and Mr. Xu qualifies as an “audit comméttinancial expertWithin the meaning ¢

Item 407(d) of Regulation S-K under the Securifies of 1933, as amended. The audit committee oesrsear accounting and financial
reporting processes and the audits of the finastééments of our company. The audit committeesponsible for, among other things:

» selecting the independent registered public acaogifirm and pre-approving all auditing and non-iéind services permitted to
be performed by the independent registered pubtiounting firm;

»  reviewing with the independent registered publicoamting firm any audit problems or difficultieschamanagement’s response;

e reviewing and approving all proposed related paeysactions, as defined in Iltem 404 of RegulaBel under the Securities
Act;

» discussing the annual audited financial statem&ittsmanagement and the independent registeredcpattounting firm;

*  reviewing major issues as to the adequacy of darnal controls and any special audit steps addptéght of material control
deficiencies;

e reviewing and reassessing annually the adequacyradudit committee charter;
*  meeting separately and periodically with manageraadtthe independent registered public accounting &ind

* monitoring compliance with our code of businessdtat and ethics, including reviewing the adequany effectiveness of our
procedures to ensure proper compliance.
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Compensation CommitteeOur compensation committee consists of Mr. Onvézindi, Mr. Eugene Chehchun Huang and Mr. Jack
Xu, and is chaired by Mr. Choi. Each of Mr. Choir.Mluang and Mr. Xu, satisfies the “independenegjuirements of Rule 5605(a)(2) of the
NASDAQ Stock Market Rules. The compensation coneaitissists the board in reviewing and approvingéngensation structure, includi
all forms of compensation, relating to our direstand executive officers. Our chief executive @ffimay not be present at any committee
meeting during which their compensation is delib=gtaupon. The compensation committee is responf&blamong other things:

*  reviewing and approving, or recommending to thertbdar its approval, the compensation for our cleieécutive officer and
other executive officers;

* reviewing and recommending to the board for deteation with respect to the compensation of our esrployee directors;
e reviewing periodically and approving any incento@mpensation or equity plans, programs or simil@rgements; and

» selecting compensation consultant, legal counsettar adviser only after taking into consideratidifactors relevant to that
person’s independence from management.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committe®ur nominating and corporate governance commii@sists of Mr. Thomas
Gai Tei Tsao, Mr. Jack Xu and Mr. Onward Choi, &dhaired by Mr. Xu. Each of Mr. Thomas Gai TeadsMr. Xu and Mr. Choi satisfies
the “independenceequirements of Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ StMarket Rules. The nominating and corporate govezea@ommitte

assists the board in selecting individuals qualifi@ become our directors and in determining thepsition of the board and its committees.
The nominating and corporate governance commigteesponsible for, among other things:

 recommending nominees to the board for electiar-@lection to the board, or for appointment tbaily vacancy on the board;

» reviewing annually with the board the current cosifion of the board with regards to characteristiesh as independence, age,
skills, experience and availability of service & u

» selecting and recommending to the board the nafgiseztors to serve as members of the audit cotem#énd the compensation
committee, as well as of the nominating and corgogavernance committee itself;

» developing and reviewing the corporate governamireiples adopted by the board and advising thedwadth respect to
significant developments in the law and practiceaforate governance and our compliance with faweh and practices; and

» evaluating the performance and effectiveness obtia#d as a whole.
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Terms of Directors and Executive Officers

All directors hold office until they are removed bgdinary resolution of the shareholders or becdimgualified from being a director
in accordance with the terms of our articles obaggion. In addition, the service agreements betwes, our subsidiaries, if applicable, and
directors do not provide benefits upon terminatibtheir service. Director nominations by the boafdiirectors are subject to the approval of
our corporate governance and nominating commi@ee.shareholders may remove any director by orgiresolution and may in like manner
appoint another person in his stead. A valid ongimasolution requires a majority of the votes @ist shareholder meeting that is duly
constituted and meets the quorum requirement. @#iare elected by and serve at the discretiomeoboard of directors. For the periods of
service of our directors as of December 31, 204d,"s-A. Directors and Senior Management.”

Duties of Directors

Under Cayman Islands law, our directors have a diitgyalty to act honestly in good faith with sew to our best interests. Our
directors also have a duty to exercise the slkélytactually possess and such care and diligente tie@sonably prudent person would exercist
in comparable circumstances. In fulfilling theirtgof care to us, our directors must ensure compéawith our memorandum and articles of
association. A shareholder may have the right é sleamages in our name if a duty owed by our direds breached. You should refer to
“ltem 10.B. Additional Information—Memorandum anditisle of Association—Differences in Corporate LawDirectors’ Fiduciary Duties.”

D. Employees

We had a total of 938, 1,415 and 2, &#8ployees as of December 31, 2012, 2013 and 284gectively. The following table sets fc
the numbers of our employees, categorized by fonctis of December 31, 2014:

Number of
Function Employees
Management and administrati 36¢
Tour advisol 682
Call centel 15¢
Sales and marketir 16¢
Research and product developm 96¢
Regional service cente 454
Total 2,79¢

We enter into standard employment agreements Wituaemployees. We also enter into confidentjadigreements with certain
directors and executive officers that impose canitdality obligations until the relevant informatibecomes public or is no longer considered
confidential by us. In addition to salaries anddfés, we provide stock-based compensation andpaence-based bonuses for our employee
and commission-based compensation for our sals®peel.

As required by regulations in China, we participatearious employee social security plans thatoaganized by municipal and
provincial governments, including pension insuramgedical insurance, unemployment insurance, miggaénsurance, job-related injury
insurance and a housing provident fund. We areiredjby PRC laws to make contributions to emplogegal security plans at specified
percentages of the salaries, bonuses and certaimaalces of our employees.
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Our success depends on our ability to attractiretad motivate qualified personnel. We believe tha maintain a good working
relationship with our employees, and we have npegrnced any significant labor disputes.

E. Share Ownership

The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our sharesfégawch 31, 2015 by:
» each of our current directors and executive officand
» each person known to us to own beneficially moamth% of our shares.

See “—B. Compensation—Share Incentive Plans” forentieetails on options and restricted shares grantedr directors and
executive officers.

The calculations in the table below are based)ob8®,982,980 ordinary shares outstanding as otMat, 2015, including
104,485,144 Class B ordinary shares outstandin@g3&m97,836 Class A ordinary shares outstandingding 2,089,473 Class A ordinary
shares, represented by 696,491 American depositanes, issued and reserved for the future exestiggtions or the vesting of other awards
under the 2008 Plan and the 2014 Plan).

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandd wie rules and regulations of the SEC. In conmgutine number of shares
beneficially owned by a person and the percentagemship of that person, we have included shamstiie person has the right to acquire
within 60 days, including through the exercise y aption, warrant, or other right or the convensaf any other security. These shares,
however, are not included in the computation ofggaecentage ownership of any other person.

Class A Class B Total
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Voting
Shares Shares Shares % t Powertt

Directors and Executive Officers:*
Dunde Yu® 6,459,74. 10,423,50 16,88 3,24¢ 8.8 9.8
Haifeng Yan@ 6,459,74. 6,949,99 13,409,74 7.C 6.7
Thomas Gai Tei Tsg® — 17,816,57 17,816,57 9.4 15.¢
Frank Lin® 5,000,001 26,079,51 31,079,51 16.4 23.t
Steve Yue J®) — 14,323,36 14,323,36 7.5 12.7
Eugene Chehchun Hua(® — 20,833,33 20,833,33 11.C 18.4
James Jianzhang Lial" 8,731,03 — 8,731,03 4.€ 0.8
Onward Cho *k — *x xk *x
\]aCk XU ** - ** ** *%
Conor Chii-hung Yanc *x — ** *x *x
Zhengrong Tan *x — ** *x *x
Enjle Wu *% - *% *% *%
Wei Tong — — — — —
All directors and executive officers as a

group 28,596,07 96,426,28 125,022,35 63.€ 87.2
Principal Shareholders:
DCM V, L.P. and Affiliate<® 5,000,001 26,079,51 31,079,51 16.4 23.t
Esta Investments Pte Lt® — 20,833,33 20,833,333 11.C 18.2
Gobi Fund II, L.P(9) — 17,816,57 17,816,57 9.4 15.¢
Sequoia Capital 2010 CV Holdco, L(1D — 14,323,36 14,323,36. 7.5 12.7
Dragon Rabbit Capital Limite2 4,104,13 10,423,50 14,527,64 7.€ 9.6
Verne Capital Limited® 4,104,13 6,949,99 11,054,13 5.8 6.5
JD.com E-Commerce (Investment) Hong

Kong Corporation Limited4 12,436,78 — 12,436,78 6.5 1.1
Unicorn Riches Limited1® 12,436,78 — 12,436,78 6.5 1.1

110




Table of Contents

*

*%

Tt
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Except for Messrs. Thomas Gai Tei Tsao, Frank &teye Yue Ji, Eugene Chehchun Huang, James Jianfieng, Onward Choi and
Jack Xu, the business address of our directoreaadutive officers is Tuniu Building, N0.699-32, ahwudadao, Xuanwu District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 210042, PRC.

Shares underlying vested options of less than 1&tupbfotal outstanding shares on an as-convertsid.ba

For each person and group included in this colymencentage ownership is calculated by dividingrnthenber of ordinary shares
beneficially owned by such person or group by ta sf the total number of ordinary shares outstagdis of March 31, 2015, which is
189,982,980 ordinary shares outstanding, includip®485,144 Class B ordinary shares outstanding&mb7,836 Class A ordinary
shares (excluding 2,089,473 Class A ordinary shaegsesented by 696,491 American depositary shased and reserved for the future
exercise of options or the vesting of other awamt$er the 2008 Plan and the 2014 Plan), plus theéeuof ordinary shares such perso
group has the right to acquire, including upon eiser of options and vesting of restricted sharekrastricted share units, within 60 days
after March 31, 2015..

For each person and group included in this colymencentage ownership percentage of total votinggpaepresents voting power based
on both Class A and Class B ordinary shares heklibli person or group, and the ordinary shareserson or group has the right to
acquire upon exercise of the stock options or vsravithin 60 days after March 31, 2015, with restge all outstanding shares of our
Class A and Class B ordinary shares as a singés.dizach holder of Class A ordinary shares isledtib one vote per Class A ordinary
share. Each holder of our Class B ordinary sharestitled to ten votes per Class B ordinary shate.Class B ordinary shares are
convertible at any time by the holder into Classrdinary shares on a share-for-share basis.

Represents (i) 2,355,606 Class A ordinary shardenlying the options or restricted shares that tmame fully vested as of March 31,
2015 or will become fully vested within 60 dayseafMarch 31, 2015, and (ii) 4,104,137 Class A aadjrshares and 10,423,503 Class B
ordinary shares held by Dragon Rabbit Capital Lewhjta British Virgin Islands company. Dragon Ral@spital Limited is wholly owned
by Longtu Holdings Limited, a British Virgin Islasdcompany which is wholly owned by a trust, of whidr. Yu's family is the
beneficiary.

Represents (i) 2,355,606 Class A ordinary shardenlying the options or restricted shares that hm@me fully vested as of March 31,
2015 or will become fully vested within 60 dayseafMarch 31, 2015, and (ii) 4,104,137 Class A aadjrshares and 6,949,997 Class B
ordinary shares held by Verne Capital Limited, di#r Virgin Islands company. Verne Capital Limitidwholly owned by Magic
Worldwide Limited, a British Virgin Islands compamshich is wholly owned by a trust, of which Mr. Yardamily is the beneficiary.

Represents 17,816,571 Class B ordinary shareshlggBbbi Fund Il, L.P. The business address of Madlis Building 7, Innovation Pa
399 Keyuan Road, Shanghai 201203, PRC.

Represents (i) 22,881,096 Class B ordinary shagkesdy DCM V, L.P., (ii) 558,324 Class B ordinatyases held by DCM Affiliates Fur
V, L.P., (iii) 2,640,092 Class B ordinary sharetdh®y DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.P., and (iv) 5,000,0@0ass A ordinary shares held by
DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.P. We refer to DCM V, L.HDCM Affiliates Fund V, L.P. and DCM Hybrid RMB Fund.P. as DCM V, L.P.
and Affiliates collectively. The business addreSba Lin is Unit 1, Level 10, Tower W2, Orientald2a, Dong Cheng District, Beijing,
PRC.

Represents 14,323,364 Class B ordinary sharesdlgefdquoia Capital 2010 CV Holdco, Ltd. The bussreddress of Mr. Ji is 2805,
Plaza 66 Tower 2, 1366 Nanjing West Road, Shan@tR(.
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(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Represents 20,833,333 Class B ordinary sharesdlgefbta Investments Pte Ltd. The business addféds. ¢tluang is 60B Orchard Roz
#06-18, Tower 2, The Atrium@ Orchard, Singapore8238

Represents 8,731,034 Class A ordinary shares lyetrip Investment Holding Ltd. The business addgl@sMr. Liang is 99 Fu Quan
Road, Shanghai 200335, PRC.

Represents (i) 22,881,096 Class B ordinary shagkslly DCM V, L.P., and (ii) 558,324 Class B ordinahares held by DCM Affiliates
Fund V, L.P., (iii) 2,640,092 Class B ordinary sfmheld by DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.P., and (iv) 500000 Class A ordinary shares
held by DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.P. The general partof DCM V, L.P. and DCM Affiliates Fund V, L.Ps DCM Investment
Management V, L.P., whose general partner is DCidrirational V, Ltd. DCM International V, Ltd., thugh DCM Investment
Management V, L.P., has the sole voting and investrpower over these shares, and such voting aedtiment power is exercised by K.
David Chao, Thomas Blaisdell and Peter W. Moraa dinectors of DCM International V, Ltd. The gergrartner of DCM Hybrid RMB
Fund, L.P. is DCM Hybrid RMB Fund Investment Managt, L.P., whose general partner is DCM Hybrid RMBd International Ltd.
DCM Hybrid RMB Fund International Ltd., through DCMNybrid RMB Fund Investment Management, L.P., lessole voting and
investment power over these shares, and such vatidgnvestment power is exercised by K. David Chéomas Blaisdell, Jason
Krikorian, and Peter W. Moran, the directors of DEMbrid RMB Fund International Ltd. The businessi@s$s of DCM V, L.P., DCM
Affiliates Fund V, L.P. and DCM Hybrid RMB Fund,R.. is 2420 Sand Hill Road, Suite 200, Menlo Park,94025, the United States.

Esta Investments Pte Ltd. is indirectly wholly owr®y Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited, its ulttm@arent company. Temasek
Holdings (Private) Limited is wholly owned by theiiéster for Finance of Singapore. The businessesidof Esta Investments Pte Ltd. is
60B Orchard Road, #06-18, Tower 2, The Atrium@ @rdhSingapore 238891.

(10) The general partner of Gobi Fund II, L.P. is Gokntres, Inc., which is beneficially owned by Wai Kau, Chuan Chung Wang, Jiang

Tao and Zhu Lin. The business address of Gobi HyhdP. is Building 7, Innovation Park, 399 Keyukwoad, Shanghai 201203, PRC.

(11) The shareholders of Sequoia Capital 2010 CV Holdtwh,are Sequoia Capital China Venture 2010 Fuiil,LlSequoia Capital China

Venture 2010 Partners Fund L.P. and Sequoia Cdplitimla VVenture 2010 Principals Fund L.P., whichoshectively refer to as SCC 20
Venture Funds. The SCC 2010 Venture Funds’ geparaher is SC China Venture 2010 Management, Lhie.general partner of SC
China Venture 2010 Management, L.P. is SC ChinalidglLimited, a company incorporated in the Cayrnsands. SC China Holding
Limited is wholly owned by SNP China Enterprisemited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Neil Nanperg®. The business address of
Sequoia Capital 2010 CV Holdco, Ltd. is Cricket & Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, K111, Cayman Islands.

(12) Dragon Rabbit Capital Limited is wholly owned byrigiu Holdings Limited is a British Virgin Islandsmpany which is wholly owned

by a trust, of which Mr. Yu’s family is the benéficy. The business address of Dragon Rabbit Cdpitgited is Quastisky Building,
P.O. Box 4389, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgsldnds.

(13) Verne Capital Limited is a British Virgin Islandsropany. Verne Capital Limited is wholly owned by ¢itaWorldwide Limited, a Britis|

Virgin Islands company which is wholly owned byrast, of which Mr. Yan'’s family is the beneficiarjhe business address of Verne
Capital Limited is Quastisky Building, P.O. Box 488Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.

(14) The business address of JD.conrt&mmerce (Investment) Hong Kong Corporation Limig&uite 1203, 12th Floor, Ruttonjee House

Duddell Street Central, Hong Kong. JD.com E-Comméhavestment) Hong Kong Corporation Limited is laoy-owned subsidiary of
JD.com E-Commerce (Technology) Hong Kong Corponratimnited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiaf JD.com Inc., a
NASDAQ listed company.

(15) The business address of Unicorn Riches LimitedadHony Capital Limited, Suite 2701, One Exchange&e, Central, Hong Kong .

Unicorn Riches Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiafyjHony Capital Fund V, L.P. Hony Capital Fundl\VP.’s general partner is Hony
Capital Fund V GP, L.P. Hony Capital Fund V GP,.LlsRjeneral partner is Hony Capital Fund V GP Limitighn Huan Zhao and Lege
Holdings Corporation, have 80% and 20%, respégtieguity ownership of Hony Capital Fund V GP Lied.
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To our knowledge, as of March 31, 2015, 62,124 @33ur outstanding ordinary shares are held byetheeord holders in the United
States. The total number of shares held by the tleeord holders in the United States represen®@2f our total outstanding shares. This
includes 38,684,967 ordinary shares (excluding2483 Class A ordinary shares, represented by 826nerican depositary shares, issued
and reserved for the future exercise of optiontheesting of other awards under the 2008 Plarttam@014 Plan) held of record by JPM
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., the depositary of our Aid&ram. The number of beneficial owners of our AlxSthe United States is likely to
be much larger than the number of record holdemuobrdinary shares in the United States. We at@ware of any arrangement that may,
subsequent date, result in a change of controiptompany.

Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions

A. Major Shareholders

Please refer to “Item 6. Directors, Senior Managamaed Employees—E. Share Ownership.”

B. Related Party Transactions

Contractual Arrangements

For a description of the contractual arrangememisrey Beijing Tuniu, Nanjing Tuniu and the shareleotdof Nanjing Tuniu, see
“ltem 4.C. Information on the Company—OrganizatioBaucture.” See also “Item 3.D. Key Information-iskR Factors—Risks Related to Ot
Corporate Structure.”
Private Placements, Repurchase and Redesignation

See “Item 5.B. Operating and Financial Review arabpects—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
Relationship with Ctrip

Ctrip Investment Holding Ltd.(“Ctrip” ) has one dator in common with the Company. Ctrip purchas@®®,000 shares in a private
placement concurrent with our initial public offegiand purchased an additional 3,731,034 of Glazslinary shares for a total of
US$15,000,000 through a private placement trarmaati December 2014. Ctrip has also acted as sepravider to us, and the associated
commission fee was immaterial.
Employment Agreements and Indemnification Agreemerst

See “Item 6.B. Directors, Senior Management and |Bpges—Compensation.”
Share Incentive Plans

See “Item 6.B. Directors, Senior Management and |Bpges—Compensation.”

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.
ltem 8. Financial Information

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Inform&on

See “Item 18. Financial Statements.”
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Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in legal mredings in the ordinary course of our busined¥e are not currently a party to
any material legal or administrative proceedings.

Dividend Policy

Our board of directors has discretion as to whetih@istribute dividends, subject to applicableda®ven if our board of directors
decides to pay dividends, the form, frequency andumt will depend upon our future operations artiegs, capital requirements and surg
general financial condition, contractual restrinoBand other factors that our board of directorg deem relevant. If we pay any dividends, we
will pay our ADS holders to the same extent as é@af our ordinary shares, subject to the ternteefleposit agreement, including the fees
and expenses payable thereunder. See “ltem 12 $xripBon of Securities Other than Equity SecusitieAmerican Depositary Shares.” Cash
dividends on our ordinary shares, if any, will tzédpin U.S. dollars.

We have not previously declared or paid cash diddeand we have no plan to declare or pay anyelinsd in the near future on our
shares or ADSs. We currently intend to retain midsipt all, of our available funds and any fut@@rnings to operate and expand our busines

We are a holding company incorporated in the Caylslands. We rely principally on dividends from d®RC subsidiaries for our
cash requirements, including any payment of divitdeto our shareholders. PRC regulations may resftiecability of our PRC subsidiaries to
pay dividends to us. See “ltem 4.B. Informationtiod Company—Business Overview—PRC Regulation—Réiguakaon Dividend
Distribution” and “Iltem 12.D. Description of Sedigs Other than Equity Securities— American DeogiShares.” Cash dividends on our
common shares, if any, will be paid in U.S. dollars

B. Significant Changes

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this annual repwerhave not experienced any significant changee she date of our audited
consolidated financial statements included in &misual report.

Item 9. The Offer and Listing

A. Offering and Listing Details

Our ADSs, each representing three of our Classdiary shares, have been listed on NASDAQ since 8)&014. Our ADSs trade
under the symbol “TOUR.” The following table proe&lthe high and low closing trading prices for AlxXSs on NASDAQ since the date of
our initial public offering:

Trading Price Per ADS in US$

High Low

Annual Highs and Lows

2014 (Since May 9, 201: 24.0( 10.07
Quarterly Highs and Lows

Second Quarter 2014 (Since May 9, 2C 18.6% 10.0%
Third Quarter 201: 24.0( 16.52
Fourth Quarter 201 19.7¢ 10.77
First Quarter 201 15.5¢ 12.0¢
Monthly Highs and Lows

October 201« 19.8( 15.21
November 201- 20.1¢ 12.5C
December 201 13.5¢ 10.73
January 201! 13.7( 12.0¢
February 201! 15.5¢ 13.67
March 201E 15.07 12.0¢
April 2015 (through April 16, 201t 15.6¢ 12.5¢
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B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.
C. Markets
Our ADSs have been listed on NASDAQ since May 9420nder the symbol “TOUR.”

D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.
E. Dilution
Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.

Iltem 10. Additional Information
A. Share Capital

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

We are a Cayman Islands company and our affairg@rerned by our memorandum and articles of associand the Companies
Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, whichrefer to as the Companies Law below. The followang summaries of material
provisions of our fifth amended and restated memaduen and articles of association that became éfeechmediately prior to the completion
of our initial public offering in May 2014, insofas they relate to the material terms of our omirshares.

Registered Office and Objects

Our registered office in the Cayman Islands istiedat International Corporation Services Ltd.,.BBOx 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayydn1106, Cayman Islands , or at such other placeua board of directors may from
time to time decide. The objects for which our campis established are unrestricted and we hal/pduler and authority to carry out any
object not prohibited by the Companies Law, as atadrirom time to time, or any other law of the Caynhslands.

115




Table of Contents
Board of Directors

See “Item 6.C. Directors, Senior Management and|&yees—Board Practices.”
Ordinary Shares

General. Our authorized share capital is US$100,000 (RMB#&2D), divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shareshwipar value of
US$0.0001 (RMB 0.0006) each, which will be dividetb 780,000,000 Class A ordinary shares with avaéue of US$0.0001 (RMB 0.0006)
each, 120,000,000 Class B ordinary shares witlr aglae of US$0.0001 (RMB 0.0006) each, and 100@@®shares of a par value of
US$0.0001 (RMBO0.0006) each of such class or cla$emgever designated) as our board of directors deagrmine. Holders of Class A
ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares havsaime rights except for voting and conversiontsighll of our outstanding ordinary shares
are fully paid and non-assessable. Certificatesesgmting the ordinary shares are issued in regéferm. Our shareholders who are non-
residents of the Cayman Islands may freely holdteantsfer their ordinary shares.

Dividends. The holders of our ordinary shares are entitbeslich dividends as may be declared by our boadit@dtors. Our current
articles of association provide that dividends rbaydeclared and paid out of our profits, realizedroealized, or from any reserve set aside
from profits which our board of directors determia@o longer needed. Dividends may also be datlane paid out of share premium accoun
or any other fund or account which can be authdrfpe this purpose in accordance with the Compalées. Holders of Class A ordinary
shares and Class B ordinary shares are entitldtbteame amount of dividends, if declared.

Voting Rights. In respect of all matters subject to a sharehsld®te, each Class A ordinary share is entittedrte vote, and each
Class B ordinary share is entitled to ten votesingatogether as one class. Voting at any meetfrehareholders is by show of hands unless a
poll is demanded. A poll may be demanded by thérittzan of such meeting or any shareholder presepeiison or by proxy. Each holder of
our ordinary shares are entitled to vote such argishares as are registered in his or her nanoeioregister of members.

A quorum required for a meeting of shareholdersisis of at least two shareholders who hold at ke third in nominal value of
our share capital in issue at the meeting presgmeiison or by proxy or, if a corporation or othen-natural person, by its duly authorized
representative. Shareholders’ meetings may bedraidally. Each general meeting, other than an amyaneeral meeting, shall be an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary genaeetings may be called by a majority of our boafrdirectors or our chairman or upon a
requisition of shareholders holding at the datdeggosit of the requisition not less than one-tbirthe aggregate voting power of our company
Advance notice of at least 14 calendar days isiredtior the convening of our annual general megesind other general meetings. All holders
of ordinary shares are permitted to attend gerzerdlextraordinary meetings.

An ordinary resolution to be passed at a meetinthbyshareholders requires the affirmative vota siimple majority of the votes
attaching to the ordinary shares cast at a meatihile a special resolution requires the affirmatisote of no less than two-thirds of the votes
cast attaching to the outstanding ordinary sharasweeting. A special resolution is required foportant matters such as a change of name «
making changes to our current memorandum and estafl association.

Conversion. Each Class B ordinary share can be convertilddedne Class A ordinary share at any time by tHddroClass A
ordinary shares are not convertible into Classdnary shares under any circumstances. Upon angfgaof Class B ordinary shares by a
holder to any person or entity which is not anliat® of such holder, such Class B ordinary shaifide automatically and immediately
converted into the equivalent number of Class Anangy shares.
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Transfer of Ordinary Shares Subject to the restrictions set out below, angwfshareholders may transfer all or any of hikeor
ordinary shares by an instrument of transfer inukigal or common form or any other form approveatryboard of directors.

Our board of directors may, in its absolute disorgtdecline to register any transfer of any ordjrghare which is not fully paid up or
on which we have a lien. Our board of directors ralap decline to register any transfer of any adirshare unless:

» the instrument of transfer is lodged with us, acpamied by the certificate for the ordinary shacewlhich it relates and such
other evidence as our board of directors may redsgmequire to show the right of the transferontake the transfer;

» the instrument of transfer is in respect of onlg @fass of ordinary shares;
« the instrument of transfer is properly stampedgdfuired;

e inthe case of a transfer to joint holders, the benof joint holders to whom the ordinary shartoibe transferred does not
exceed four;

« the shares transferred are free of any lien inrfa¥¢the Company; and

» afee of such maximum sum as the NASDAQ Global Markay determine to be payable or such lesser swuradirectors may
from time to time require is paid to us in respbetreof.

If our directors refuse to register a transfer thbgll, within three months after the date on whkahinstrument of transfer was lodg
send to each of the transferor and the transfeygeenof such refusal.

The registration of transfers may, after compliawitd any notice required of the NASDAQ Global Matkbe suspended and the
register closed at such times and for such peasdsur board of directors may from time to timeed®ine, provided, however, that the
registration of transfers shall not be suspendedhweregister closed for more than 30 calendas dag year.

Liquidation . On a return of capital on winding up or otherwisther than on conversion, redemption or purclodgedinary shares),
assets available for distribution among the holdédinary shares shall be distributed amondhtiders of the ordinary shares on a pro rata
basis. If our assets available for distribution iasifficient to repay all of the paid-up capittle assets will be distributed so that the losses a
borne by our shareholders proportionately. Anyritigtion of assets or capital to a holder of a €lArdinary share and a holder of a Class B
ordinary share will be the same in any liquidatwent.

Calls on Ordinary Shares and Forfeiture of Ordinar$hares. Our board of directors may from time to time makés upon
shareholders for any amounts unpaid on their orgishares in a notice served to such shareholdézast 14 calendar days prior to the
specified time of payment. The ordinary sharesliaae been called upon and remain unpaid are subjéarfeiture.

Redemption of Ordinary SharesThe Companies Law and our current articles ab@asion permit us to purchase our own shares. |
accordance with our current articles of associadiot provided the necessary shareholders or bpardal have been obtained, we may issu
shares on terms that are subject to redemptiaryradption or at the option of the holders of thesares, on such terms and in such manner,
including out of capital, as may be determined bylward of directors.
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Variations of Rights of SharesAll or any of the special rights attached to afgss of shares may, subject to the provisionbef t
Companies Law, be materially adversely varied withwritten consent of the holders of three-foudhthe issued shares of that class or with
the sanction of a special resolution passed ahargemeeting of the holders of the shares ofclats. The rights conferred upon the holders c
the shares of any class issued shall not, unlbeswise expressly provided by the terms of issub®fhares of that class, be deemed to be
materially adversely varied by the creation or ésetifurther shares rankinmari passuwith such existing class of shares, or by the @aair
issue of shares with preferred or other rightsudiclg, without limitation, the creation of shareshaenhanced or weighted voting rights.

Inspection of Books and RecorddHolders of our ordinary shares have no genegat tinder Cayman Islands law to inspect or obtail
copies of our list of shareholders or our corporat®rds. However, we will provide our shareholdeith annual audited financial statements.
See “—H. Document on Display.”

Issuance of Additional SharesOur current memorandum of association authowzedoard of directors to issue additional ordinary
shares from time to time as our board of direcsbiad! determine, to the extent of available auttestibut unissued shares.

Our current memorandum of association also autesmir board of directors to establish from tim&rt® one or more series of
preferred shares and to determine, with respemtycseries of preferred shares, the terms andsrigtthat series, including:

» the designation of the series;

. the number of shares of the series;

the dividend rights, dividend rates, conversiofisg voting rights; and
« the rights and terms of redemption and liquidapoeferences.

Our board of directors may issue preferred sharsut action by our shareholders to the exter@izzed but unissued. Issuance of
these shares may dilute the voting power of holdésdinary shares.

Anti-Takeover Provisions Some provisions of our current memorandum aridiestof association may discourage, delay or prea
change of control of our company or managementshateholders may consider favorable, includingigions that authorize our board of
directors to issue preferred shares in one or re@ties and to designate the price, rights, preéegmrivileges and restrictions of such
preferred shares without any further vote or ackiprour shareholders.

Exempted CompanyWe are an exempted company with limited liabilider the Companies Law. The Companies Law
distinguishes between ordinary resident compamidsaempted companies. Any company that is regdterthe Cayman Islands but
conducts business mainly outside of the Caymandslanay apply to be registered as an exempted agmiphe requirements for an exemg
company are essentially the same as for an ordow@mnpany except that an exempted company:
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» does not have to file an annual return of its dialders with the Registrar of Companies;
* is notrequired to open its register of membersrfspection;

e does not have to hold an annual general meeting;

* may issue negotiable or bearer shares or shareswipar value;

* may obtain an undertaking against the impositioaryf future taxation (such undertakings are usugllgn for 20 years in the
first instance);

* may register by way of continuation in anothergdittion and be deregistered in the Cayman Islands;
* may register as a limited duration company; and
*  may register as a segregated portfolio company.

“Limited liability” means that the liability of edcshareholder is limited to the amount unpaid eyshareholder on the shares of the
company.

Register of Members. Under the Companies Law, we must keep a regitmembers and there should be entered therein:

» the names and addresses of our members, a statehtkeatshares held by each member, and of the minpaid or agreed to be
considered as paid, on the shares of each member;

» the date on which the name of any person was ehtar¢he register as a member; and
« the date on which any person ceased to be a member.

Under Cayman Islands law, the register of membeosiocompany is prima facie evidence of the matsst out therein (i.e. the
register of members will raise a presumption of tatthe matters referred to above unless rebuttedla member registered in the register of
members is deemed as a matter of Cayman Island® Iaawve legal title to the shares as set agagsiaime in the register of members.

If the name of any person is incorrectly enteredriomitted from our register of members, or ifrthes any default or unnecessary
delay in entering on the register the fact of aegspn having ceased to be a member of our comgfamperson or member aggrieved (or any
member of our company or our company itself) maylato the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands fooader that the register be rectified,
and the Court may either refuse such applicatiahroay, if satisfied of the justice of the caseka an order for the rectification of the regis

Differences in Corporate Law

The Companies Law is modeled after that of Endlishbut does not follow many recent English lawgiary enactments. In
addition, the Companies Law differs from laws aggtile to United States corporations and their $twdders. Set forth below is a summary of
the significant differences between the provisiohthe Companies Law applicable to us and the kgmicable to companies incorporated in
the State of Delaware.

119




Table of Contents

Mergers and Similar ArrangementsA merger of two or more constituent companieseur@@ayman Islands law requires a plan of
merger or consolidation to be approved by the thrsmf each constituent company and authorizdtio(a) a special resolution of the
shareholders and (b) such other authorizatiomyif as may be specified in such constituent com’gaticles of association.

A merger between a Cayman parent company and y&asubsidiary or subsidiaries does not requiteagization by a resolution
of shareholders of that Cayman subsidiary if a aoipyne plan of merger is given to every membethat Cayman subsidiary to be merged
unless that member agrees otherwise. For this parasubsidiary is a company of which at leasttyipercent (90%) of the issued shares
entitled to vote are owned by the parent company.

The consent of each holder of a fixed or floatiagusity interest over a constituent company is iregiuunless this requirement is
waived by a court in the Cayman Islands.

Save in certain circumstances, a dissentient shlakethof a Cayman constituent company is entitbepayment of the fair value of his
shares upon dissenting to a merger or consolidafioa exercise of appraisal rights will preclude éxercise of any other rights save for the
right to seek relief on the grounds that the meogeronsolidation is void or unlawful.

In addition, there are statutory provisions thatlfimte the reconstruction and amalgamation of panies, provided that the
arrangement is approved by a majority in numberaah class of shareholders and creditors with witnenarrangement is to be made, and"
must in addition represent three-fourths in valfieazh such class of shareholders or creditorhieasase may be, that are present and voting
either in person or by proxy at a meeting, or nmggstj convened for that purpose. The conveningehtbetings and subsequently the
arrangement must be sanctioned by the Grand CbtlreCayman Islands. While a dissenting shareldide the right to express to the court
the view that the transaction ought not to be apgalpthe court can be expected to approve thegerent if it determines that:

» the statutory provisions as to the required majasitte have been met;

» the shareholders have been fairly representecan#eting in question and the statutory majorigyaating bona fide without
coercion of the minority to promote interests adeeo those of the class;

the arrangement is such that may be reasonablpeggby an intelligent and honest man of that ciasisig in respect of his
interest; and

« the arrangement is not one that would more prog®¥lganctioned under some other provision of thagamies Law.

When a takeover offer is made and accepted by totfe90.0% of the shares within four months, tfferor may, within a twanonth
period commencing on the expiration of such founthgeriod, require the holders of the remainingreh to transfer such shares on the term
of the offer. An objection can be made to the Gr@odrt of the Cayman Islands but this is unlikelsticceed in the case of an offer which ha
been so approved unless there is evidence of flaifaith or collusion.

If an arrangement and reconstruction is thus amgatothe dissenting shareholder would have no righgparable to appraisal rights,
which would otherwise ordinarily be available tesknting shareholders of Delaware corporationgiging rights to receive payment in cash
for the judicially determined value of the shares.
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Shareholders’ Suitsin principle, we will normally be the proper plaffiand as a general rule a derivative action matybe brought
by a minority shareholder. However, based on Ehglisthorities, which would in all likelihood be pérsuasive authority in the Cayman
Islands, there are exceptions to the foregoingcjple, including when:

e acompany acts or proposes to act illegally oautires;

» the act complained of, although not ultra viresjldmnly be effected duly if authorized by morertlaasimple majority vote that
has not been obtained; and

* those who control the company are perpetratingautf on the minority.”

Indemnification of Directors and Executive Officerand Limitation of Liability . Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to
which a company’s memorandum and articles of aaooi may provide for indemnification of officeradadirectors, except to the extent any
such provision may be held by the Cayman Islandstsdo be contrary to public policy, such as toviste indemnification against civil fraud
or the consequences of committing a crime. Ourecinmemorandum and articles of association pend@mnification of officers and directc
for losses, damages, costs and expenses incurteeiirtapacities as such unless such losses aagksrarise from dishonesty or fraud of suct
directors or officers. This standard of condudiéserally the same as permitted under the Dela@areral Corporation Law for a Delaware
corporation. In addition, we have entered into md#ication agreements with our directors and exgeuwfficers that provide such persons
with additional indemnification beyond that proviti& our current memorandum and articles of astiocia

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisimmder the Securities Act may be permitted to oweadors, officers or persons
controlling us under the foregoing provisions, veed been informed that in the opinion of the SE€hsndemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act anddsefore unenforceable.

Directors’ Fiduciary Duties. Under Delaware corporate law, a director of a Dal@corporation has a fiduciary duty to the
corporation and its shareholders. This duty hasdwmponents: the duty of care and the duty of kyydlhe duty of care requires that a direc
act in good faith, with the care that an ordinapitpydent person would exercise under similar cirstamces. Under this duty, a director must
inform himself of, and disclose to shareholdersiralterial information reasonably available regagda significant transaction. The duty of
loyalty requires that a director acts in a manreerdasonably believes to be in the best interdésteeaorporation. He must not use his corpc
position for personal gain or advantage. This gubhibits self-dealing by a director and mandalbes the best interest of the corporation and
its shareholders take precedence over any inteoasessed by a director, officer or controllingreshalder and not shared by the shareholders
generally. In general, actions of a director aesspmed to have been made on an informed basiepthfgith and in the honest belief that the
action taken was in the best interests of the aatjum. However, this presumption may be rebutteé\widence of a breach of one of the
fiduciary duties. Should such evidence be presectaderning a transaction by a director, the dinestust prove the procedural fairness of the
transaction, and that the transaction was of faue to the corporation.

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, a director Gagman Islands company is in the position of adidty with respect to the
company and therefore it is considered that hderosves the following duties to the company—a datgict bona fide in the best interests of
the company, a duty not to make a profit basedi®ohher position as director (unless the comgaemynits him or her to do so) and a duty no
to put himself or herself in a position where thierests of the company conflict with his or herspaal interest or his or her duty to a third
party. A director of a Cayman Islands company otedbe company a duty to act with skill and catevds previously considered that a
director need not exhibit in the performance ofdridier duties a greater degree of skill than neagonably be expected from a person of h
her knowledge and experience. However, EnglishGomdmonwealth courts have moved towards an objestasedard with regard to the
required skill and care and these authoritiesikedylto be followed in the Cayman Islands.
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Shareholder Action by Written ConsentUnder the Delaware General Corporation Law, a@a@tion may eliminate the right of
shareholders to act by written consent by amendtoatd certificate of incorporation. Cayman Isladdw and our current articles of
association provide that shareholders may approxgocate matters by way of a unanimous writtenltggm signed by or on behalf of each
shareholder who would have been entitled to voteumt matter at a general meeting without a medigigg held.

Shareholder ProposalsUnder the Delaware General Corporation Law, aedt@der has the right to put any proposal befoee t
annual meeting of shareholders, provided it corspliggh the notice provisions in the governing doeats. A special meeting may be callec
the board of directors or any other person autkdrip do so in the governing documents, but shéder®may be precluded from calling
special meetings.

Cayman Islands law does not provide shareholdegrsight to put proposals before a meeting or ratjaisa general meeting.
However, these rights may be provided in articfeassociation. Our current articles of associatibow our shareholders holding not less than
one-third of all voting power of our share capitaissue to requisition a shareholder’'s meetindie®than this right to requisition a
shareholders’ meeting, our current articles of eiséion do not provide our shareholders other righgut proposal before a meeting. As an
exempted Cayman Islands company, we are not obtigéaw to call shareholders’ annual general mestin

Cumulative Voting.Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, cunudatoting for elections of directors is not pen®dt unless
the corporation’s certificate of incorporation sifieally provides for it. Cumulative voting poteatly facilitates the representation of minority
shareholders on a board of directors since it gerthe minority shareholder to cast all the votewlich the shareholder is entitled on a single
director, which increases the shareholder’s vabiager with respect to electing such director. Thergeno prohibitions in relation to
cumulative voting under the laws of the Caymannidtabut our current articles of association dopmovide for cumulative voting. As a result,
our shareholders are not afforded any less protestr rights on this issue than shareholdersiélaware corporation.

Removal of DirectorsUnder the Delaware General Corporation Law, a threzf a corporation with a classified board may be
removed only for cause with the approval of a mgjaf the outstanding shares entitled to votegaslthe certificate of incorporation provides
otherwise. Under our current articles of assoamtibrectors may be removed with or without caligean ordinary resolution of our
shareholders.

Transactions with Interested ShareholderBhe Delaware General Corporation Law contains énless combination statute applice
to Delaware corporations whereby, unless the catjmor has specifically elected not to be governgdurh statute by amendment to its
certificate of incorporation, it is prohibited froemgaging in certain business combinations witlirgerested shareholder” for three years
following the date that such person becomes angsted shareholder. An interested shareholder giynéer a person or a group who or which
owns or owned 15% or more of the target’s outstagnaibting share within the past three years. Thsthe effect of limiting the ability of a
potential acquirer to make a two-tiered bid for tduget in which all shareholders would not beterdaqually. The statute does not apply if,
among other things, prior to the date on which sidreholder becomes an interested shareholddsptird of directors approves either the
business combination or the transaction which teduh the person becoming an interested sharehditiess encourages any potential acquirel
of a Delaware corporation to negotiate the termsngfacquisition transaction with the target'’s loloafr directors.
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Cayman Islands law has no comparable statute.rAsudt, we cannot avail ourselves of the typesrofgetions afforded by the
Delaware business combination statute. Howevdrpatth Cayman Islands law does not regulate transadbetween a company and its
significant shareholders, it does provide that dughsactions must be entered into bona fide irb#® interests of the company and not with
the effect of constituting a fraud on the minostyareholders.

Dissolution; Winding up.Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, urtles$oard of directors approves the proposal to
dissolve, dissolution must be approved by sharehsltdolding 100% of the total voting power of tleeporation. Only if the dissolution is
initiated by the board of directors may it be amei by a simple majority of the corporation’s oatsting shares. Delaware law allows a
Delaware corporation to include in its certificafeéncorporation a supermajority voting requiremintonnection with dissolutions initiated
the board. Under Cayman Islands law, a companybeayound up by either an order of the courts of@hgman Islands or by a special
resolution of its members or, if the company ishledo pay its debts as they fall due, by an omgimesolution of its members. The court has
authority to order winding up in a number of spiecifcircumstances including where it is, in thenggm of the court, just and equitable to do
so. Under the Companies Law and our current asticlessociation, our company may be dissolvedidated or wound up by a special
resolution of our shareholders.

Variation of Rights of SharesUnder the Delaware General Corporation Law, a aafmn may vary the rights of a class of shares
with the approval of a majority of the outstandsiwares of such class, unless the certificate ofparation provides otherwise. Under Caymar
Islands law and our current articles of associatifoour share capital is divided into more thare @tass of shares, we may vary the rights
attached to any class with the written consenhefrtolders of three-fourths of the issued shardisatfclass or with the sanction of a special
resolution passed at a general meeting of the tolifehe shares of that class.

Amendment of Governing Documentsinder the Delaware General Corporation Law, a a@afmn’s governing documents may be
amended with the approval of a majority of the tartding shares entitled to vote, unless the ceatii of incorporation provides otherwise. As
permitted by Cayman Islands law, our current memauan and articles of association may only be amémdth a special resolution of our
shareholders.

Rights of Non-resident or Foreign Shareholder3here are no limitations imposed by our post-offgramended and restated
memorandum and articles of association on thegighhon-resident or foreign shareholders to holexarcise voting rights on our shares. In
addition, there are no provisions in our currentmaeandum and articles of association governingptheership threshold above which
shareholder ownership must be disclosed.

C. Material Contracts

We have not entered into any material contracterdtian in the ordinary course of business andr dltza those described in “ltem 4.
Information on the Company” or elsewhere in thiawal report on Form 20-F.
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D. Exchange Controls

See “Item 4.B. Information on the Company—Busin@ssrview—PRC Regulation—Regulations on Foreign &ury Exchange.”
E. Taxation
Cayman Islands Taxation

Travers Thorp Alberga, our Cayman Islands coutneed ,advised us that the Cayman Islands currentigdano taxes on individuals or
corporations based upon profits, income, gaingprexiation and there is no taxation in the natdri@heritance tax or estate duty. There are
no other taxes levied by the Government of the Gaytslands that are likely to be material to haderADSs or ordinary shares. The Cayr
Islands is not party to any double tax treatie®r&tare no exchange control regulations or curregstyictions in the Cayman Islands.

People’s Republic of China Taxation

Under the EIT Law, an enterprise established oettid PRC with a “de facto management body” withenPRC is considered a PRC
resident enterprise for PRC enterprise income taggses and is generally subject to a uniform 2B8érprise income tax rate on its worldw
income as well as tax reporting obligations. Urtierimplementation Rules, a “de facto managemety'bis defined as a body that has
material and overall management and control oventhnufacturing and business operations, persamgehuman resources, finances and
properties of an enterprise. In addition, SAT Ciac82 issued in April 2009 specifies that certaffshore-incorporated enterprises controlled
by PRC enterprises or PRC enterprise groups widllassified as PRC resident enterprises if alheffollowing conditions are met: (a) senior
management personnel and core management depastimehirge of the daily operations of the entegwihave their presence mainly in the
PRC; (b) their financial and human resources daewtsare subject to determination or approval bgges or bodies in the PRC; (c) major
assets, accounting books and company seals ohtampéses, and minutes and files of their boaaad shareholders’ meetings are located or
kept in the PRC; and (d) half or more of the erisgs’ directors or senior management personndl vating rights habitually reside in the
PRC. Further to SAT Circular 82, the SAT issued SAlletin 45, which took effect in September 20t provide more guidance on the
implementation of SAT Circular 82. SAT Bulletin #Bovides for procedures and administration detdildetermination on PRC resident
enterprise status and administration on pletermination matters. If the PRC tax authoritiegednine that Tuniu Corporation is a PRC resi
enterprise for PRC enterprise income tax purpasesimber of unfavorable PRC tax consequences ¢ollddv. For example, Tuniu
Corporation may be subject to enterprise incomeataxrate of 25% with respect to its worldwideatabe income. Also, a 10% withholding tax
would be imposed on dividends we pay to our non-RRi@rprise shareholders and with respect to ghirised by our non-PRC enterprise
shareholders from transferring our shares or ADfspmtentially a 20% of withholding tax would begased on dividends we pay to our non-
PRC individual shareholders and with respect tagiderived by our non-PRC individual shareholdesmftransferring our shares or ADSs.

It is unclear whether, if we are considered a P&SIdent enterprise, holders of our shares or AD@ddwe able to claim the benefit
of income tax treaties or agreements entered ietwden China and other countries or areas. Sam ‘3t®. Key Information—Risk Factors—
Risk Factors Relating to Doing Business in China-déiithe PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, we may assified as a PRC resident
enterprise for PRC enterprise income tax purpd3esh classification would likely result in unfavblatax consequences to us and our non-
PRC Shareholders and have a material adverse effemir results of operations and the value of youestment”.
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The SAT issued SAT Circular 59 together with thenigliry of Finance in April 2009 and SAT Circular&® December 2009. Both
SAT Circular 59 and SAT Circular 698 became effextietroactively as of January 1, 2008. By promiifggand implementing these two
circulars, the PRC tax authorities have enhanceid sierutiny over the direct or indirect transféequity interests in a PRC resident enterprise
by a non-PRC resident enterprise. The SAT furtbkrased its Bulletin on Several Issues Concernirtgrrise Income Taxation on Income
Arising from the Indirect Transfers of Property gn-resident Enterprises (“SAT Bulletin [2015] N#.or “Bulletin 7”) which became
effective on February 3, 2015. Bulletin 7 repedtegirelevant Indirect Transfer provisions contaime@ircular 698 and set forth more detailed
rules for the tax treatment of Indirect Transferequity interests in PRC resident enterprisesathdr assets situated in China. Bulletin 7
abolished the previous mandatory reporting requérgnfor Indirect Transfers under Circular 698, analvides that the parties to an Indirect
Transfer transaction have the option to decide dreb report the Indirect Transfer to the compietax authorities. Applying a “substance
over form” principle, when a non-resident entemigsructures an Indirect Transfer of an equityrggein a PRC resident enterprise or other
assets situated in China to avoid taxation unde&li through arrangements lacking reasonable caniat@urposes, the Indirect Transfer
be re-characterized as a direct transfer. Asutremy gains derived from the Indirect Transfexynbe subject to PRC withholding tax at a rate
of up to 10%. Bulletin 7 provides de facto safebmaitreatment for situations in which a non-restdarterprise buys and then sells shares, in
the public securities markets, of a foreign listedhpany that holds an equity interest in a PRQleggienterprise, and thereby realizes a capit:
gain. However, in order for the safe harbor treatnte apply, both the purchase and sale must béumed on the public securities markets so
as to preclude market manipulation, and the eduigrests purchased and sold must be those irathe snterprise. When shares sold in the
public securities markets were obtained before sheles were listed on a public securities marketese not purchased through a public
securities market, or when shares were purchasedpoblic market but are to be sold through nonlipubarkets, the safe harbor treatment
would not be applicable. There is uncertainty athéointerpretation and application of SAT Circub&8 and Bulletin 7 and we and our non-
PRC resident investors may be at risk of beingdaxeler SAT Circular 698 and Bulletin 7 and we rhayequired to expend valuable
resources to comply with SAT Circular 698 and Blidl& or to establish that we should not be taxeden SAT Circular 698 and Bulletin 7.
See “Item 3.D. Key Information—Risk Factors—Riskcteas Relating to Doing Business in Chins¥e face uncertainty regarding the PRC
reporting obligations and consequences for ceitaiimect transfers of our operating company’s egiriterests. Enhanced scrutiny over
acquisition transactions by the PRC tax authoritiey have a negative impact on potential acquisitive may pursue in the future.”

United States Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion is a summary of Unitedt&egederal income tax considerations relatindgiéoawnership and disposition of
our ADSs or ordinary shares by a U.S. Holder, diséé below, that holds our ADSs or ordinary shagscapital assets” (generally, property
held for investment) under the United States IrgeRevenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Cod&f$. discussion is based upon existing
United States federal income tax law, which is eabjo differing interpretations or change, possikith retroactive effect. No ruling has been
sought from the Internal Revenue Service (the “IR&@th respect to any United States federal incéaxxeconsequences described below, and
there can be no assurance that the IRS or a cdlrtoiitake a contrary position. This discussiamed not address all aspects of United States
federal income taxation that may be important taigalar investors in light of their individual camstances, including investors subject to
special tax rules that differ significantly fronote summarized below (such as, for example, cditancial institutions, insurance companies
regulated investment companies, real estate inesgttrusts, broker-dealers, traders in securitiasélect mark-to-market treatment,
partnerships and their partners, tax-exempt orgdinizs (including private foundations), investottsonare not U.S. Holders, investors that owr
(directly, indirectly, or constructively) 10% or meoof our voting stock, investors that hold theld®s or ordinary shares as part of a straddle,
hedge, conversion, constructive sale or other fated transaction), or investors that have a fonelicurrency other than the U.S. dollar). In
addition, this discussion does not address UnitateS federal estate, gift, Medicare, and alteveatiinimum tax considerations, or state, lo
and non-United States tax considerations. Eachtbfler is urged to consult its tax advisor regagdihe United States federal, state, local,
and non-United States tax considerations of anstmvent in our ADSs or ordinary shares.
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General

For purposes of this discussion, a “U.S. Holde® tseneficial owner of our ADSs or ordinary shahes is, for United States federal
income tax purposes, (i) an individual who is &eit or resident of the United States, (ii) a coation (or other entity treated as a corporation
for United States federal income tax purposes)tecein, or organized under the laws of, the Uniéates or any state thereof or the District of
Columbia, (iii) an estate the income of which islidible in gross income for United States fed@rabme tax purposes regardless of its sol
or (iv) a trust (A) the administration of whichgabject to the primary supervision of a United &atourt and which has one or more United
States persons who have the authority to contrsudiistantial decisions of the trust or (B) that btherwise elected to be treated as a United
States person under the Code.

If a partnership (or other entity treated as anmaship for United States federal income tax puepps a beneficial owner of our AC
or ordinary shares, the tax treatment of a paitntére partnership will depend upon the statuheffartner and the activities of the partners
Partnerships and partners of a partnership hololimgADSs or ordinary shares are urged to conseit thx advisors regarding an investment ir
our ADSs or ordinary shares.

It is generally expected that a U.S. Holder of A&t be treated as the beneficial owner, for Udiftates federal income tax
purposes, of the underlying shares representedeoDSs. The remainder of this discussion assuhegsatU.S. Holder of our ADSs will be
treated in this manner. Accordingly, deposits dhdiiawals of our ordinary shares for our ADSs wil be subject to United States federal
income tax.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations

A non-United States corporation, such as our compaill be classified as a “passive foreign investrtncompany,” or PFIC, for
United States federal income tax purposes, ithéndase of any particular taxable year, eithefg% or more of its gross income for such year
consists of certain types of “passive” income Dr50% or more of the value of its assets (as datexd on the basis of a quarterly average)
during such year produce or are held for the prodnof passive income (the “asset test”). For thispose, cash is categorized as a passive
asset and the company’s goodwill and unbooked giltdes associated with active business activitiay generally be classified as active
assets. Passive income generally includes, amdwey thtings, dividends, interest, rents, royalté®] gains from the disposition of passive
assets. We will be treated as owning our propoat@ishare of the assets and earning our propatiehare of the income of any other
corporation in which we own, directly or indirectiyjore than 25% (by value) of the stock.

Although the law in this regard is unclear, we tidanjing Tuniu and its subsidiaries (our “consatiet affiliated entities”) as being
owned by us for United States federal income tap@ses, not only because we exercise effectivaaonter the operation of such entities but
also because we are entitled to substantiallyfali&r economic benefits, and, as a result, wescldate their operating results in our
consolidated financial statements. If it were detaed that we are not the owner of our consolidaffiiated entities for United States federal
income tax purposes, our risk of being classified #FIC may substantially increase. Assumingwieadre the owner of our consolidated
affiliated entities for United States federal inadtax purposes and based upon our current incothasaets and projections as to the value of
our ADSs , we do not presently expect to be clesbiis a PFIC for the current taxable year or thesieeable future.
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While we do not expect to become a PFIC in theeturor future taxable years, no assurance canviee @ this regard because the
determination of whether we will be or become aCisla factual determination made annually thalt@épend, in part, upon the composition
of our income and assets. Fluctuations in the nigmkee of our ADSs may cause us to be classifeed RFIC for the current or future taxable
years because the value of our assets for purpbdsiee asset test, including the value of our gaddmd unbooked intangibles, may
determined by reference to the market price ofAIDSs from time to time (which may be volatile).éstimating the value of our goodwill and
other unbooked intangibles, we have taken into @aicour current market capitalization. If our margapitalization subsequently declines, we
may be or become classified as a PFIC for the nutaxable year or future taxable years.

Furthermore, the composition of our income andtassay also be affected by how, and how quickly use our liquid assets. Under
circumstances where our revenue from activities haduce passive income significantly increasatiet to our revenue from activities that
produce non-passive income, or where we deternoh&rdeploy significant amounts of cash for acfiweposes, our risk of becoming
classified as a PFIC may substantially increasadutfition, because there are uncertainties inplpécation of the relevant rules, it is possible
that the IRS may challenge our classification afaia income and assets as non-passive or ourti@iuaf our tangible and intangible assets,
each of which may result in our becoming a PFICliercurrent or subsequent taxable years. If we wikassified as a PFIC for any year dul
which a U.S. Holder held our ADSs or ordinary skame generally would continue to be treated aBI& For all succeeding years during
which such U.S. Holder held our ADSs or ordinargirels.

The discussion below under “Dividends” and “Sal@dher Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Shares” istign on the basis that we
will not be classified as a PFIC for United Stdederal income tax purposes. The United Stategdédeome tax rules that apply if we are
classified as a PFIC for the current taxable yeany subsequent taxable year are discussed belder tPassive Foreign Investment
Company Rules.”

Dividends

Subject to the PFIC rules described below, any déghbutions (including the amount of any PRC wéathheld) paid on our ADSs or
ordinary shares out of our current or accumulatadiags and profits, as determined under UniteteSt@deral income tax principles, will
generally be includible in the gross income of 8.Holder as dividend income on the day actuallgamstructively received by the U.S.
Holder, in the case of ordinary shares, or by #ygoditary bank, in the case of ADSs. Because watiintend to determine our earnings and
profits on the basis of United States federal inedax principles, a U.S. Holder should expect &mt distribution paid on our ADSs or
ordinary shares will be treated as a “dividend” flmited States federal income tax purposes. A rayparate recipient of dividend income will
generally be subject to tax on dividend income fenhgualified foreign corporation” at a lower apalble capital gains rate rather than the
marginal tax rates generally applicable to ordinacpme provided that certain holding period arteotrequirements are met.

A non-United States corporation (other than a c@fon that is classified as a PFIC for the taxatglar in which the dividend is paid
or the preceding taxable year) will be considecele a qualified foreign corporation (a) if it iggéble for the benefits of a comprehensive tax
treaty with the United States which the Secretdrjreasury of the United States determines is fsatisry for purposes of this provision and
which includes an exchange of information program(b) with respect to any dividend it pays on kt@m ADSs in respect of such stock)
which is readily tradable on an established sdesrinarket in the United States. Our ADSs aredisie the NASDAQ Global Market, which is
an established securities market in the UnitedeStand will be considered readily tradable onstaldished securities market for as long a:
ADSs continue to be listed on the NASDAQ Global kr Thus, we believe that we will be a qualifieddign corporation with respect to
dividends we pay on our ADSs, but there can bessarance that our ADSs will continue to be congideeadily tradable on an established
securities market in later years. Since we do rpeet that our ordinary shares will be listed otallshed securities markets, it is unclear
whether dividends that we pay on our ordinary shérat are not backed by ADSs currently meet timgitions required for the reduced tax
rate. However, in the event we are deemed to HR@r@sident enterprise under the EIT Law (see “RéoRepublic of China Taxation”), we
may be eligible for the benefits of the United 8saPRC income tax treaty (which the Secretary @fTieasury of the United States has
determined is satisfactory for this purpose) antréated as a qualified foreign corporation withpect to dividends paid on our ADSs or
ordinary shares. U.S. Holders are urged to cotiseit tax advisors regarding the availability of tteduced tax rate on dividends with respe
our ADSs or ordinary shares in their particulaceinstances. Dividends received on our ADSs or arglishares will not be eligible for the
dividends-received deduction allowed to corporation
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For United States foreign tax credit purposesddints paid on our ADSs or ordinary shares willrbated as income from foreign
sources and will generally constitute passive eategpncome. In the event that we are deemed toPR@ resident enterprise under the EIT
Law, a U.S. Holder may be subject to PRC withhajdaxes on dividends paid, if any, on our ADSsmdlirary shares. A U.S. Holder may be
eligible, subject to a number of complex limitaioo claim a foreign tax credit in respect of &neign withholding taxes imposed on
dividends received on our ADSs or ordinary shakes.S. Holder who does not elect to claim a foretigx credit for foreign tax withheld may
instead claim a deduction for United States feda@me tax purposes in respect of such withholdindg only for a year in which such U.S.
Holder elects to do so for all creditable foreigndme taxes. The rules governing the foreign teditare complex. U.S. Holders are urged to
consult their tax advisors regarding the availgbiif the foreign tax credit under their particutarcumstances.

Sale or Other Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Share

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, a Udkdédt will generally recognize capital gain or lo$sny, upon the sale or other
disposition of ADSs or ordinary shares in an amaantal to the difference between the amount rehligmn the disposition and the U.S.
Holder’s adjusted tax basis in such ADSs or ordirsdrares. Any capital gain or loss will be longategain or loss if the ADSs or ordinary
shares have been held for more than one year dihglenerally be United States-source gain or losdJnited States foreign tax credit
purposes. In the event that we are treated as ar@sdent enterprise under the EIT Law, and gaimfthe disposition of the ADSs or ordinary
shares is subject to tax in the PRC, such gainbeayeated as PRC-source gain for foreign tax tpotposes under the United States-PRC
income tax treaty. The deductibility of a capitzd$ may be subject to limitations. U.S. Holdersuaiged to consult their tax advisors regarding
the tax consequences if a foreign tax is imposed disposition of our ADSs or ordinary shares,udaig the availability of the foreign tax
credit under their particular circumstances.
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Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

If we are classified as a PFIC for any taxable ykaing which a U.S. Holder holds our ADSs or oetinshares, unless the U.S.
Holder makes a mark-to-market election (as desgrideow) with respect to the ADSs, the U.S. Hold#l, except as discussed below, be
subject to special tax rules that have a penaligffert, regardless of whether we remain a PFIQj)amy excess distribution that we make to
the U.S. Holder (which generally means any distidrupaid during a taxable year to a U.S. Holdat ik greater than 125% of the average
annual distributions paid in the three precedinglbée years or, if shorter, the U.S. Holder’s hotdperiod for the ADSs or ordinary shares),
and (ii) any gain realized on the sale or othepak#tion, including, under certain circumstanceglealge, of ADSs or ordinary shares. Under
the PFIC rules:

» the excess distribution and/or gain will be allecatatably over the U.S. Holder’s holding periodtfte ADSs or ordinary shares;

« the amount allocated to the current taxable yedragny taxable years in the U.S. Holder’s holdingqukprior to the first taxable
year in which we are classified as a PFIC (eagreaPFIC year) will be taxable as ordinary income;

» the amount allocated to each prior taxable ye&erahan the current taxable year or a pre-PFIC, ygH be subject to tax at the
highest tax rate in effect applicable to the indidls or corporations, as appropriate, for that;yerad

* will be increased by an additional tax equal teliest on the resulting tax deemed deferred witheeso each prior taxable year,
other than a pre-PFIC year.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during whadd.S. Holder holds our ADSs or ordinary sharesamdof our non-United States
subsidiaries is also a PFIC, such U.S. Holder wbeldreated as owning a proportionate amount (hyeyaf the shares of the lower-tier PFIC
for purposes of the application of these ruleshBasS. Holder is advised to consult its tax ad\dsegarding the application of the PFIC
rules to any of our subsidiaries.

As an alternative to the foregoing rules, a U.Slddoof “marketable stock” in a PFIC may make akraarmarket election with
respect to our ADSs, provided that the ADSs arelegly traded on the NASDAQ Global Market. We aiptade that the ADSs should qualify
as being regularly traded, but no assurances mayvba in this regard. If a mark-to-market electismmade, the U.S. Holder will generally
() include as ordinary income for each taxablerybat we are a PFIC the excess, if any, of thenfairket value of ADSs held at the end of the
taxable year over the adjusted tax basis of sucB#Aind (ii) deduct as an ordinary loss the exdeasy, of the adjusted tax basis of the ADSs
over the fair market value of such ADSs held atehd of the taxable year, but only to the exterihefnet amount previously included in
income as a result of the mark-to-market elecfidre U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the ADSsld/de adjusted to reflect any income or
loss resulting from the mark-to-market electiora l.S. Holder makes an effective mark-to-markettébn, in each year that we are a PFIC,
any gain recognized upon the sale or other digpasif the ADSs will be treated as ordinary incoamel loss will be treated as ordinary loss,
but only to the extent of the net amount previoustyuded in income as a result of the mark-to-retigtection.

If a U.S. Holder makes a mark-to-market electioneispect of a corporation classified as a PFICsamth corporation ceases to be
classified as a PFIC, the U.S. Holder will not bguired to take into account the mark-to-market gailoss described above during any perioc
that such corporation is not classified as a PFIC.
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Because a mark-to-market election cannot be madmfplower-tier PFICs that we may own, a U.S. ldolho makes a mark-to-
market election with respect to our ADSs may camito be subject to the general PFIC rules withaessto such U.S. Holder’s indirect
interest in any of our non-United States subsidgthat is classified as a PFIC.

We do not intend to provide information necessan/d.S. Holders to make qualified electing fundcétens, which, if available,
would result in tax treatment different from thengeal tax treatment for PFICs described above.

As discussed above under “Dividends,” dividends W@ pay on our ADSs or ordinary shares will noehgible for the reduced tax
rate that applies to qualified dividend income & are classified as a PFIC for the taxable yeahich the dividend is paid or the preceding
taxable year. In addition, if a U.S. Holder owns ADSs or ordinary shares during any taxable yieat we are a PFIC, such U.S. Holder must
file an annual report with the IRS, subject to a@rlimited exceptions. Each U.S. Holder is urgeddnsult its tax advisor concerning the
United States federal income tax consequences oingvand disposing our ADSs or ordinary sharesafare or become a PFIC, including the
possibility of making a mark-to-market election ahd unavailability of the qualified electing fuetection.

Information Reporting

Certain U.S. Holders are required to report infaforato the Internal Revenue Service relating tondéerest in “specified foreign
financial assets,” including shares issued by aWoited States corporation, for any year in which aggregate value of all specified foreign
financial assets exceeds $50,000 (or a higherrdatfeount prescribed by the Internal Revenue Séxétibject to certain exceptions. These
rules also impose penalties if a U.S. Holder isinegl to submit such information to the Internal/®eue Service and fails to do so.

In addition, U.S. Holders may be subject to infotiorareporting to the IRS with respect to dividemasand proceeds from the sale or
other disposition of our ADSs or ordinary sharesctEU.S. Holder is advised to consult with its aabvisor regarding the application of the
United States information reporting rules to thgagrticular circumstances.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

We previously filed with the SEC our registratidgatement on Form F-1 (Registration No. 333-1950&8)mended, including the
prospectus contained therein, to register the is1and sale of our ordinary shares representédi3s in relation to our initial public
offering. We have also filed with the SEC registmatstatements on Form F-6 (Registration No. 33351%) to register our ADSs.

We are subject to periodic reporting and otherrimfational requirements of the Exchange Act as apple to foreign private issuers,
and are required to file reports and other inforamatvith the SEC. Specifically, we are requiredil® annually an annual report on Form 20-F
within four months after the end of each fiscalry@éich is December 31. All information filed withe SEC can be obtained over the interne
at the SEC'’s website atww.sec.gowr inspected and copied at the public referencéitfas maintained by the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20549. You can request copieofichents, upon payment of a duplicating fee, byingrito the SEC. As a foreign private
issuer, we are exempt from the rules under the &xgph Act prescribing the furnishing and conterjudrterly reports and proxy statements,
and officers, directors and principal shareholdeesexempt from the reporting and short-swing preftovery provisions contained in
Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
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We will furnish JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., the d&faoy of our ADSs, with our annual reports, whiell include a review of
operations and annual audited consolidated finhstagements prepared in conformity with U.S. GAARd all notices of shareholders’
meetings and other reports and communicationsatieatnade generally available to our shareholddrs.depositary will make such notices,
reports and communications available to holdes@$s and, upon our request, will mail to all recbadders of ADSs the information
contained in any notice of a shareholders’ meetitgived by the depositary from us.

In accordance with NASDAQ Stock Market Rule 5250¢# will post this annual report on Form 20-F am website at
http://ir.tuniu.com. In addition, we will provideahdcopies of our annual report free of charge toetiolders and ADS holders upon request.

l. Subsidiary Information

For a listing of our subsidiaries, see “ltem 4./&ofmation on the Company—Organizational Structure.
ltem 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk primarily redaiethe interest income generated by excess wdmth is mostly held in interest-
bearing bank deposits. We have not used derivéitiaacial instruments in our investment portfolioterest earning instruments carry a degre
of interest rate risk. We have not been exposedao¢go we anticipate being exposed to, matesé&krdue to changes in market interest rates.
However, our future interest income may fall shufréxpectations due to changes in market inteegesr

Foreign Exchange Risk

All of our revenues and substantially all of ouperses are denominated in Renminbi. We do notveetfeat we currently have any
significant direct foreign exchange risk and hageused any derivative financial instruments todeedxposure to such risk. Although in
general our exposure to foreign exchange risksldhmulimited, the value of your investment in @bSs will be affected by the exchange |
between the U.S. dollar and the Renminbi becawsgdtlue of our business is effectively denominate@enminbi, while our ADSs will be
traded in U.S. dollars.

The value of the Renminbi against the U.S. doltat ather currencies is affected by changes in Chipalitical and economic
conditions and by China’s foreign exchange policéasong other things. In July 2005, the PRC govemtrchanged its decades-old policy of
pegging the value of the Renminbi to the U.S. dpHad the Renminbi appreciated more than 20% agtie U.S. dollar over the following
three years. Between July 2008 and June 2010apipieciation halted and the exchange rate betvweeRénminbi and the U.S. dollar
remained within a narrow band. After June 2010,Reeminbi began to appreciate against the U.Sadaliain, although there have been som
periods when it has lost value against the U.Sadais it did for example during 2014. It is diffit to predict how market forces or PRC or
U.S. government policy may impact the exchangelvatereen the Renminbi and the U.S. dollar in theréu
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To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dolt#is Renminbi for our operations, appreciationted Renminbi against the U.S.
dollar would have an adverse effect on the Renmanimunt we receive from the conversion. Converselye decide to convert Renminbi ir
U.S. dollars for the purpose of making paymentgifeidends on our ordinary shares or ADSs or ftaeobusiness purposes, appreciation of
the U.S. dollar against the Renminbi would havegative effect on the U.S. dollar amounts availadbles. By way of example, assuming we
had converted a U.S. dollar denominated cash balehtdS$1.0 million as of December 31, 2014 inteRbi at the exchange rate of
US$1.00 for RMB 6.2046, such cash balance woule leaen approximately RMB6.2 million. Assuming &lier 1.0% appreciation of the
Renminbi against the U.S. dollar, such cash balamédd have decreased to RMB6.1 million as of Ddeen81, 2014. We have not used any
forward contracts or currency borrowings to hedgeexposure to foreign currency exchange risk.

Inflation

Inflation in China has not materially affected oesults of operations in recent years. AccordinthéoNational Bureau of Statistics of
China, the year-over-year percent changes in theuwuoer price index for December 2012, 2013 and 24 increases of 2.5%, 2.5% and
1.5%, respectively. Although we have not been niatgaffected by inflation in the past, we maymeaterially affected if China experiences
higher rates of inflation in the future.
Item 12. Description of Securities Other than Equity Securites
A. Debt Securities

Not applicable.

B. Warrants and Rights

Not applicable.
C. Other Securities
Not applicable.

D. American Depositary Shares

Fees and Charges Our ADS holders May Have to Pay

The depositary may charge each person to whom AlDSssued, including, without limitation, issuasegainst deposits of shares,
issuances in respect of share distributions, rightsother distributions, issuances pursuant tockslividend or stock split declared by us or
issuances pursuant to a merger, exchange of geswitany other transaction or event affectingAb&Ss or deposited securities, and each
person surrendering ADSs for withdrawal of depakgtecurities or whose ADRs are cancelled or redfmeany other reason, US$5.00 for
each 100 ADSs (or any portion thereof) issuedydedid, reduced, cancelled or surrendered, as #eemay be. The depositary may sell (by
public or private sale) sufficient securities amdperty received in respect of a share distribytights and/or other distribution prior to such
deposit to pay such charge.
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The following additional charges shall be incurbgathe ADR holders, by any party depositing or @ithwing shares or by any party
surrendering ADSs or to whom ADSs are issued (tholg, without limitation, issuance pursuant to@cktdividend or stock split declared by
us or an exchange of stock regarding the ADSsed#posited securities or a distribution of ADS8)ichever is applicable:

» afee of US$1.50 per ADR for transfers of certifiichor direct registration ADRS;
» afee of up to US$0.05 per ADS for any cash distidn made pursuant to the deposit agreement;

+ afee of up to US$0.05 per ADS per calendar yeapddion thereof) for services performed by thpaitary in administering
the ADRs (which fee may be charged on a periodéisbduring each calendar year and shall be assags@ust holders of ADRs
as of the record date or record dates set by thesitary during each calendar year and shall balgayin the manner describec
the next succeeding provision);

« afee for the reimbursement of such fees, changgegpenses as are incurred by the depositary raaalyoof its agents
(including, without limitation, the custodian anxpbenses incurred on behalf of holders in conneatitth compliance with foreig
exchange control regulations or any law or regoiatelating to foreign investment) in connectiothathe servicing of the shares
or other deposited securities, the sale of seear{including, without limitation, deposited seties), the delivery of deposited
securities or otherwise in connection with the diaoy’s or its custodian’s compliance with applitalaw, rule or regulation
(which fees and charges shall be assessed on arpon@te basis against holders as of the recarl atadates set by the
depositary and shall be payable at the sole disaref the depositary by billing such holders ord®ducting such charge from
one or more cash dividends or other cash distohsji

« afee for the distribution of securities (or théesaf securities in connection with a distributipsjich fee being in an amount eq
to the US$0.05 per ADS issuance fee for the execwtnd delivery of ADSs which would have been chdras a result of the
deposit of such securities (treating all such séearas if they were shares) but which securitiethe net cash proceeds from the
sale thereof are instead distributed by the degiysib those holders entitled thereto;

»  stock transfer or other taxes and other governrhehtages;

» cable, telex and facsimile transmission and defiedrarges incurred at your request in connectidgh thie deposit or delivery of
shares;

« transfer or registration fees for the registratibransfer of deposited securities on any appleabgister in connection with the
deposit or withdrawal of deposited securities;

» the fees, expenses and other charges charged byrd&WChase Bank, N.A. and/or its agent (which reaylivision, branch or
affiliate) in connection with the conversion of éagn currency into U.S. dollars; and

» fees of any division, branch or affiliate of thedsitary utilized by the depositary to direct, mgmand/or execute any public
and/or private sale of securities under the deagiement.
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and/or its agent magpsagtincipal for such conversion of foreign currend&/e will pay all other
charges and expenses of the depositary and any afgthie depositary (except the custodian) purst@agreements from time to time betweer
us and the depositary. The charges described abayde amended from time to time by agreement letwes and the depositary.

Fees and Other Payments Made by the Depositary tosU

The depositary has agreed to reimburse us forinezk@penses we incur that are related to estabésh@nd maintenance of the ADR
program upon such terms and conditions as we anddpositary may agree from time to time. The dégoysmay make available to us a set
amount or a portion of the depositary fees chamgedspect of the ADR program or otherwise uporhgeems and conditions as we and the
depositary may agree from time to time. The depogitollects its fees for issuance and cancellatfoADSs directly from investors depositi
shares or surrendering ADSs for the purpose ofdsétival or from intermediaries acting for them. Tepositary collects fees for making
distributions to investors by deducting those fiees the amounts distributed or by selling a partid distributable property to pay the fees.
The depositary may collect its annual fee for déppsservices by deduction from cash distributiarsby directly billing investors, or by
charging the book-entry system accounts of pagitip acting for them. The depositary will generaby off the amounts owing from
distributions made to holders of ADSs. If, however distribution exists and payment owing is notdiy received by the depositary, the
depositary may refuse to provide any further sewim holders that have not paid those fees anehers owing until such fees and expenses
have been paid. At the discretion of the depositaifees and charges owing under the depositeaggeat are due in advance and/or when
declared owing by the depositary. For the fiscalry@014, we received a reimbursement of approxim&at8$0.6 million from the depositary
net of US$0.2 million United States withholding tax

The fees and charges you may be required to payargyver time and may be changed by us and bgébesitary. You will receiv
prior notice of any increase in any such fees datges.

PART II
Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies
None.
Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Hdders and Use of Proceeds

See “ltem 10.B. Additional Information—MemorandumdaArticles of Association—Ordinary Shares” for@sdription of the rights
of our securities holders, which remain unchangdeak. information on limitations on our payment @fidends, see “Item 4.B. Information on
the Company—Business Overview—PRC Regulation—Réigakson Dividend Distribution” and “ltem 12.D. Dmgption of Securities Other
than Equity Securities— American Depositary Shéres.

The following “Use of Proceeds” information relateshe registration statement on Form F-1, oRben F-1, as amended (File
No. 33:-195075) in relation to our initial public offering/hich registration statement was declared effediy the SEC on May 8, 2014. In
May 2014, we completed our initial public offerimgwhich we issued and sold an aggregate of 8, B80XDSs, representing
25,740,000 Class A ordinary shares. Morgan Sta@esdit Suisse, and China Renaissance were thessmatives of the underwriters for our
initial public offering. For the period from May 8014, the date that the Form F-1 was declaredteféeby the SEC, through December 31,
2014, we used US$54.1 million of the net proceeeseaeeived from our initial public offering for tiiellowing purposes, as set forth in the
Form F-1: (i) expanding our sales and marketingredf (i) expanding our product selection and iffgs; (iii) strengthening our technology
and products developments capabilities; and (imega corporate purposes, including funding stiatetyestments in and acquisitions of
complementary businesses, assets and technol@¢ggestill intend to continue using the remaindethaf proceeds from our initial public
offering for the above purposes, in line with oigctbsure in the Form F-1.
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We estimate that our expenses incurred and paith&rs in connection with the issuance and didtidowf the ADSs in relation to
our May 9, 2014 IPO and the underwriters’ exeroistheir option to purchase additional shares oty @b, 2014, was US$5.4 million for
underwriting discounts and commissions and US$3lliomfor other expenses. Net of these expensesieseived proceeds of approximately
US$68.2 million from our initial public offering.

We filed another registration statement on Form(Fite No. 333-200667) in relation to the sale of ordinary shares represented by
ADSs in a follow-on public offering. We filed a Rsgration Withdrawal Request (File No. 333-200664ated to that follow-on offering on
December 14, 2014 because we were able to adguide on favorable terms by entering into a shabsaription agreement with five
investors, including the respective personal hgldiompanies of Tuniu’s chief executive officer aief operating officer, pursuant to which
we sold newly issued class A ordinary shares torthestors.

Item 15. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures ahManagement’'s Annual Report on Internal Control ower Financial Reporting

In connection with the audits of our consolidatiedficial statements as of and for the years endegmber 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
we and our independent registered public accouffitimgidentified a material weakness. The sameentweakness was identified in
connection with the audit of our consolidated ficiahstatements as of and for the ended Decemhe&(@4. As defined in standards
established by the PCAOB, a “material weaknesa'dgficiency, or combination of deficiencies, iteimal control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility thaaterial misstatement of the annual or interimritial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. The material weakitesgified related to the lack of sufficient finaalcreporting and accounting personnel with
appropriate knowledge of U.S. GAAP and SEC repgnaguirements to formalize key controls over fitiahreporting and to prepare
consolidated financial statements and related asces. As we only became a public company in Miy2neither we nor our independent
registered public accounting firm have to date cletegd a comprehensive assessment of our intern#datainder the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for
purposes of identifying and reporting any weaknessur internal control over financial reportingathwe performed a formal assessment of
our internal control over financial reporting ordhaur independent registered public accounting fierformed an audit of our internal control
over financial reporting, additional control deéncies may have been identified.

To remedy our identified material weakness, we fed@pted several measures to improve our inteprdtal over financial reportin
We have hired personnel with relevant experiencermtessary expertise to strengthen our finanepnting function and to set up a financial
and system control framework. In early 2013, wedhiour chief finance officer, who has extensiveagignce with multiple U.S.-listed
companies, to lead our financial department. We hised personnel with U.S. GAAP experience wharferly worked in Big Four accounting
firms, including our finance controller who wasrwerly a senior manager at a Big Four accounting,fivho joined us in April 2014, and our
U.S. GAAP financial reporting manager, who joinedii late 2013, as well as two additional accounsitaff members, one with Big Four
accounting firm experience and the other one vititarfcial reporting experience for a U.S.-listed pamy.

135




Table of Contents

In addition to hiring experienced personnel, weehaaintained regular and ongoing U.S. GAAP accogrdind financial reporting
training programs for our accounting and finanoggdorting personnel. Our accounting and finan@gbrting personnel attend training
seminars on U.S. GAAP, SEC reporting and otherattiog-related topics provided by Big Four accoogtiirms and other professional
organizations on a regular basis to maintain ugati® knowledge on U.S. GAAP and SEC rules.

We are in the process of developing and implemgrainomprehensive set of U.S. GAAP policies anddgtedized financial closing
and reporting procedures, including an accountiagumal and financial closing and reporting checkligte plan to further enhance and
improve our policies and procedures to meet U.SABANd SEC reporting requirements.

Moreover, we have set up an internal audit departimeSeptember 2014, comprising of a departmead lamd an internal audit
manager, each with more than ten years of relexgrdrience, as well as one former Big Four auditofpcus on internal audits. In addition,
we have engaged a professional consulting firmssisaus to improve our overall internal contraisdomplying with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, which are supervised by our independedit @ammittee in December 2014.

Because we are in the process of implementing srokdiation measures, management concluded thatgtiéwas a material
weakness at December 31, 2014 related to the feskfficient financial reporting and accounting gaemnel to formalize key controls over
financial reporting and to prepare and review friahstatements and related footnote disclosuresdan U.S. GAAP and SEC reporting
requirements timely and properly. We plan to camgito implement measures to remedy our internatabdeficiencies in order to meet the
deadline imposed under Section 404 of the Sarb@mésy Act. We expect that we will incur significansts in the implementation of such
measures. However, the implementation of these unessnay not fully address the deficiencies iniotgrnal control over financial reporting.
See “Item 3.D. Key Information—Risk Factors—Riskal&®ing to Our Business and Industry—If we failrfgplement and maintain an
effective system of internal controls, we may bahla to accurately report our results of operatimngrevent fraud or fail to meet our repor
obligations, and investor confidence and the mapkiee of our ADSs may be materially and adversélgcted.”

Our management, with participation of our chiefaxese officer and chief financial officer, has fiemed an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procesi(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) under the SiesuExchange Act of 1934, as amended)
as of December 31, 2014, the end of the periodreoMey this annual report, and has concluded #sabf such date, our disclosure controls
procedures were not effective, solely due to theenad weakness identified above. This annual regoes not include a report of
management’s assessment regarding internal canteolfinancial reporting or an attestation repgrolr independent registered public
accounting firm due to a transition period estéddas by rules of the SEC for newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

Other than as described above, there were no chamgeir internal controls over financial reportithgt occurred during the period
covered by this annual report on Form 20-F thathaaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our board of directors has determined that eadiroOnward Choi, Mr. Jack Xu, each an independénetctbr (under the standards
set forth in NASDAQ Stock Market Rule 5605(a)(2jdrule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act) and membeuofiudit committee, is an audit
committee financial expert.

Iltem 16B. Code of Ethics

Our board of directors adopted a code of businesduct and ethics that applies to our directofigers and employees, including
certain provisions that specifically apply to obief executive officers, chief financial officeersior finance officer and any other persons whc
perform similar functions for us. We filed our coafebusiness conduct and ethics as Exhibit 99dutaegistration statement on Form F-1, as
amended, which was originally filed with the SECAqril 4, 2014. We have posted a copy of our cadieusiness conduct and ethics on our
website at http://ir.tuniu.com.

Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table sets forth the aggregate feesdiegories specified below in connection withtaiarprofessional services rende
by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, our pralexternal auditors, for the periods indicated.

2013 2014
Audit fees® US$ 268,12: US$ 834,45(
Audit-related fee® Us$ — US$ 1,134,84.
Tax fee<® Us$ — US$ 58,10:

(1) “Audit fees” means the aggregate fees billed faheaf the fiscal years listed for professional gss rendered by our principal auditors
for the audit of our annual financial statements #re quarterly reviews of consolidated finanaidibrmation.

(2) “Audit-related fees” means the aggregate feesdfibe each of the fiscal years listed for assurammtrelated services rendered by our
principal auditors that are reasonably relatedhéoperformance of the audit or review of our coiglsdéd financial statements and are not
reported under “Audit fees”. The audit-related @014 was associated with the assurance semgoeered by our principal auditors in
connection with our public and private securitiffeings in 2014.

(3) “Tax fees” means the aggregate fees billed in @hthe fiscal years listed for professional sersioendered by our principal auditors for
tax advice and tax planning.

The policy of our audit committee is to pre-appralileaudit and non-audit services provided by RvagrhouseCoopers Zhong Tian
LLP, including audit services, audit-related seegi@and tax services as described above, othethtbaa for de minimis services which are
approved by the audit committee prior to the cortiquheof the audit.
Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees

Not applicable.
Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

None.
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Item 16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant

Not applicable.
ltem 16G. Corporate Governance

As a Cayman Islands company listed on NASDAQ, veesaibject to the NASDAQ corporate governance lissitandards. However,
NASDAQ rules permit a foreign private issuer liketo follow the corporate governance practicessofiome country. Travers Thorp Alber
our Cayman Islands counsel, has advised us thalirteorporate governance practices in the Caymslands, which is our home country, may
differ significantly from the NASDAQ corporate gavance listing standards. We followed home couptactice for our December 2014
private placement, which would have required shaldsr approval under the NASDAQ Rules but for whielre was no such requirement
under Cayman Islands law. We currently do not ptarely on the home country exemption for any ottmporate governance matters.
However, if we choose to follow home country preetin other matters in the future, our shareholdeayg be afforded less protection than the
otherwise would under the NASDAQ corporate govecedisting standards applicable to U.S. domessigdss. See “ltem 3.D. Key
Information — Risk Factors — Risks Related to OW3s — We are a foreign private issuer within theniieg of the rules under the
Exchange Act, and as such we are exempt from ngstaiisions applicable to United States domestlalip companies.”
Item 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART III

Item 17. Financial Statements

We have elected to provide financial statementsymaumt to Item 18.
Item 18. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Tuniu Goapon, its subsidiaries and its consolidatediaféd entities are included at the
end of this annual report.

Item 19. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Document
1.1 Fifth Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articfesssociation of the Registrant (incorporated bference to

Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Forth (file no. 333-195075), as amended, initiallgdilwith the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 4, 201

2.1 Registrar’s Specimen American Depositary Receipt (includexhibit 2.3).

2.2 Registrant’s Specimen Certificate for Class A catljnshares (incorporated herein by reference tokibéh 2 to the registration
statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-195075), asnal®é, initially filed with the Security and ExchanGommission on
April 4, 2014).
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

2.3

2.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12*

8.1*

111

Deposit Agreement among the Registrant, the depgsiind holders of the American Depositary Recealpted May 8,
2014 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhilt#ttd the registration statement on Form S-8 (Nide 333-198111),
filed with the Security and Exchange CommissiorAoigust 13, 2014)

Third Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agesgirdated as of August 28, 2013 among the Regtsitamrdinary
shareholders, preferred shareholders and sevéel parties named therein (incorporated hereirefgrence to

Exhibit 4.4 to the registration statement on Forh (File No. 333-195075), as amended, initiallgdilwith the Security
and Exchange Commission on April 4, 201

2008 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporatedihdngreference to Exhibit 10.1 to the registrat&tatement on
Form F-1 (File No. 333-195075), as amended, imjtidled with the Security and Exchange CommissionApril 4,
2014).

2014 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated hereirefisrence to Exhibit 10.2 to the registration staeton Form F-1 (File
No. 33%-195075), as amended, initially filed with the Sétyuand Exchange Commission on April 4, 201

Form of Indemnification Agreement with the Registta directors (incorporated herein by reference toilkik10.3 to the
registration statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333d&), as amended, initially filed with the Sequahd Exchange
Commission on April 4, 2014

English Translation of Form of Employment Agreemieeitween the Registrant and an Executive OfficehefRegistrant
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.4he registration statement on Form F-1 (File BB8-195075), as
amended, initially filed with the Security and Eaclye Commission on April 4, 201-

English Translation of Amended and Restated Codiperdgreement dated January 24, 2014 betweenrBeljuniu and
Nanjing Tuniu (incorporated herein by referenc&xdibit 10.5 to the registration statement on F&-1 (File No. 333-
195075), as amended, initially filed with the Sétyuand Exchange Commission on April 4, 201

English Translation of Shareholders’ Voting RigAtfreement dated September 17, 2008 among BeijimiuT danjing
Tuniu and the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu (incoaped herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to #wggtration stateme
on Form F-1 (File No. 333-195075), as amendedalhitfiled with the Security and Exchange Commisson April 4,
2014).

English Translation of Amended and Restated Powfefdtorney dated January 24, 2014 granted to Bgijfiuniu by
each of the shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu (incoaped herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to théstegtion statement ¢
Form F-1 (File No. 333-195075), as amended, imjtiled with the Security and Exchange CommissionApril 4,
2014).

English Translation of Equity Interest Pledge Agneat dated September 17, 2008 among Beijing Tumiltlae
shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu (incorporated hebsimeference to Exhibit 10.8 to the registraticatestnent on Form F-1
(File No. 33:-195075), as amended, initially filed with the Seétyuand Exchange Commission on April 4, 201

Subscription Agreement dated April 27, 2014 betwEeniu Corporation and Ctrip Investment Holding Lfithcorporate:
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the registn statement on Form F-1 (File No. 3B3075), as amended, initia
filed with the Security and Exchange CommissiomApnil 4, 2014).

Subscription Agreement dated April 25, 2014 betwE&eniu Corporation and DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.P.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Gd the registration statement on Form F-1 (File B28-195075), as
amended, initially filed with the Security and Eatlye Commission on April 4, 201:

Subscription Agreement dated April 25, 2014 betwEeniu Corporation and Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Gd the registration statement on Form F-1 (File BB8-195075), as
amended, initially filed with the Security and Eaclye Commission on April 4, 201-

Subscription Agreement dated December 15, 2014dsstwWuniu Corporation, JD.com E-commerce (Investjriéang
Kong Corporation Limited, Unicorn Riches Limitedirip Investment Holding Ltd., Verne Capital Limitatd Dragon
Rabbit Capital Limited

List of Significant Subsidiarie:
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the Registracorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl9®. the registration

statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-195075), asnalad, initially filed with the Security and Excha@ommission on
April 4, 2014).



12.1* Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
12.2* Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
13.1* Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
13.2** Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
15.1* Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian
15.2* Consent of Travers Thorp Alberg
15.3* Consent of Jun He Law Office
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documg
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docume
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentr

* Filed herewitr

**  Furnished herewit
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SIGNATURE S

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets fithe requirements for filing its annual reportleorm 20-F and that it has duly caused
and authorized the undersigned to sign this anmypalrt on its behalf.

Tuniu Corporatior
By: /s/ Dunde YL

Name: Dunde Yu
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 17, 201!
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of T@ouporatio n:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfecasnprehensive loss, changes in
shareholders’ equity ( deficit ) and cash flowsserd fairly, in all material respects, the finahgiasition of Tuniu Corporation and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) at DecemBé&, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and the resiuiteir operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endece®éer 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting prpies generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opiniore financial statement schedule listed in the inethe financial statements appearing on page
F-1 presents fairly, in all material respects, itffermation set forth therein when read in conjimttwvith the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and fiabsigitement schedule are the responsibility ofafmip s management. Our responsibilit

to express an opinion on these financial staten@mdinancial statement schedule based on outsaudie conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with the standards d?titic Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabdarance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgghe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

April 17,201 5
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TUNIU CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2013 and 2014

(RMB, except share data and per share data, or otiheise noted)

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Shor-term investment

Accounts receivable, n

Prepayments and other current assets
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property and equipment, r
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

Current liabilities (including current liabilities of the Affiliated Eities without
recourse to the Company amounting to RMB753,432:685
RMB1,168,077,588 (US$188,259,934), as of Decemibe?313 and
December 31, 2014, respectivel
Accounts payabl
Salary and welfare payat
Taxes payabl
Advances from custome
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 1:

Mezzanine equity
Series A Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000{aae; 20,000,000 ani
nil shares authorized as of December 31, 2013 awmber 31, 2014,
respectively,13,506,748 and nil shares issued atslamding as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 respsot
Series B Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000vaae; 21,564,115 and
nil shares authorized, issued and outstanding Beoémber 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2014, respective
Series C Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000%ghae; 25,782,056 ant
nil shares authorized, issued and outstanding Beoémber 31, 2013 ani
December 31, 2014, respective
Series D Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000vglae; 21,771,472 and
nil shares authorized, issued and outstanding Beoémber 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2014, respective
Total mezzanine equity

Shareholders equity/(deficit)

Ordinary shares (US$0.0001 par value; 126,999,%58&shauthorized and
26,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as ofiibere31, 2013;
1,000,000,000 shares (including 780,000,000 Claskakes, 120,000,000
Class B shares and 100,000,000 shares to be deigmnathe Board of
Directors) authorized and 188,435,922 shares (ictp82,487,876
Class A shares and 105,948,046 Class B sharesdisswl outstanding as
of December 31, 201«

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive |

December 31

2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).

419,402,83 1,457,722,37 234,942,20
9,250,001 44,030,00 7,096,34
327,000,00 468,570,00 75,519,77
1,651,08 8,644,48. 1,393,23
286,560,24 575,296,90 92,721,03
1,043,864,16 2,554,263,76 411,672,59
24,851,30 72,310,29 11,654,30
6,657,30: 18,443,27 2,972,51
31,508,60 90,753,56 14,626,382
1,075,372,77 2,645,017,33 426,299,41
288,964,93 382,704,32 61,680,74
47,388,09 78,739,36 12,690,48
1,323,96: 3,884,04. 625,99:
396,737,96 638,827,79 102,960,35
29,732,09 109,860,11 17,706,23
764,147,04 1,214,015,63 195,663,80
19,870,00 22,278,47 3,590,63!
784,017,04 1,236,294,11 199,254,44
9,360,44. — —
48,890,11 — —
290,255,69 — —
367,934,99 — —
716,441,24 — —
17,757 121,06¢ 19,51
200,00( 2,298,726,63 370,487,48
(19,723,27) (21,080,72) (3,397,59)



Accumulated deficit (405,580,00) (869,043,76) (140,064,43)
Total shareholders’ equity/(deficit) (425,085,51) 1,408,723,21 227,044,96
Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and shareholdes’ equity/(deficit) 1,075,372,77 2,645,017,33 426,299,41

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.

F-3




Table of Contents

TUNIU CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 201
(RMB, except share data and per share data, or otineise noted)

For the Years Ended December 3!

2012 2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).

Revenues

Organized tour 1,075,094,04 1,892,826,12 3,432,825,48 553,271,03

Selfguided tours 32,359,16 48,900,51 93,125,54 15,009,11

Others 12,874,31 20,744,09 28,756,34 4,634,68:
Total revenues 1,120,327,52 1,962,470,73 3,554,707,37 572,914,83
Less: Business and related taxes (7,446,94) (12,783,31) (19,768,19) (3,186,059
Net revenues 1,112,880,58 1,949,687,41 3,534,939,17 569,728,78
Cost of revenues (1,073,731,62) (1,829,665,38) (3,308,800,79) (533,281,88)
Gross profit 39,148,95 120,022,02 226,138,38 36,446,89
Operating expense:!

Research and product developm (33,369,74) (38,994,36) (104,881,53) (16,903,83)

Sales and marketir (57,993,81) (110,070,61) (434,191,09) (69,978,90)

General and administrati\ (62,005,51) (69,678,93) (166,987,64) (26,913,52)

Other operating income 773,72 1,688,56! 6,901,81. 1,112,37!
Total operating expense: (152,595,35) (217,055,34) (699,158,45) (112,683,88)
Loss from operations (113,446,40) (97,033,31) (473,020,07) (76,236,99)
Other income/(expense

Interest incom 7,431,72. 16,163,33 31,283,59 5,042,001

Foreign exchange related gains/(losses) (740,679 1,286,46! (5,333,64) (859,62

Other loss, net (356,67:) (48,567 (787,726 (126,959
Loss before income tax exper (107,112,03) (79,632,07) (447,857,85) (72,181,58)
Income tax expense (77,890 — — —
Net loss (107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,85) (72,181,58)
Deemed dividends to preferred shareholders — (59,428,40) (15,605,90) (2,515,21))
Net loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (107,189,92) (139,060,47) (463,463,75) (74,696,79)
Net loss (107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,85) (72,181,58)
Other comprehensive lo

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofanil (62,327) (4,857,41) (1,357,45) (218,782
Comprehensive los: (107,252,24) (84,489,49) (449,215,30) (72,400,36)
Loss per share
Net loss per ordinary share attributable to ordir

shareholder-basic and dilute: (4.12) (5.35) (4.39) (0.77)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in

computing basic and diluted loss per st 26,000,00 26,000,00 105,746,31 105,746,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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TUNIU CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 201
(RMB, except share data and per share data, or otineise noted)

Ordinary shares Additional Accumulated other Accumulated Total shareholder¢
Shares Amount paid-in capital Comprehensive los: deficit equity/(deficit)

Balance as of January 1, 2C 26,000,00 17,757 200,00( (14,803,53) (159,329,60) (173,915,37)
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — (62,32) — (62,32))
Net loss — — — — (107,189,92) (107,189,92)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 26,000,00 17,757 200,00( (14,865,85) (266,519,52) (281,167,61)
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — (4,857,41) — (4,857,41)
Deemed dividend from redesignation of

Series A Convertible Preferred Sha — — — — (59,428,40) (59,428,40)
Net loss — — — — (79,632,07) (79,632,07)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 26,000,00 17,757 200,00( (19,723,27) (405,580,00) (425,085,51)
Capital contribution from shareholders

VIE — — 70,00( — — 70,00(
Conversion of Series A,B,C and

Convertible Preferred Shares into

ordinary shares upon the completion of

initial public offering 85,852,91 56,277 731,990,87 — — 732,047,15
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the in

public offering, net of issuance costs o

RMB22,731,781 37,406,66 23,05¢ 632,448,98 — — 632,472,03
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the private

placement, net of issuance costs of

RMB14,279,02¢ 36,812,86 22,52¢ 891,490,64 — — 891,513,17
Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant to <

incentive plar 2,363,46! 1,44¢ 3,353,46: — — 3,354,90!
Share-based compensation expen — — 39,172,67 — — 39,172,67
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — (1,357,45) — (1,357,45)
Deemed dividend from modification of

Series D Convertible Preferred She — — — — (15,605,90) (15,605,90)
Net loss — — — — (447,857,85) (447,857,85)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 188,435,92 121,06t 2,298,726,63 (21,080,72) (869,043,76) 1,408,723,21

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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TUNIU CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 201
(RMB, except share data and per share data, or otineise noted)

Cash flow from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby/
(used in) operating activitie
Depreciation of property and equipmi
Amortization of intangible asse
Foreign exchange (gain)/lo
Loss from disposal of property and equipm
Shar+-based compensation expen

Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Prepayments and other current as
Other nor-current asset
Accounts payabl
Taxes payabl
Advances from custome
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by /(used in) operating actisi

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of shc-term investment
Proceeds from maturity of sh-term investment
Changes in restricted ca
Purchase of property and equipment and intangadete
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of Series D ConvertiblecRed
Shares, net of issuance ¢
Proceeds from the initial public offering, net s§ilance
cost
Proceeds from the private placement, net of issianst
Proceeds from employees exercising stock options

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equis

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

Supplemental disclosure of no-cash investing anc
financing activities

Accrual related to purchase of property and equipt

Deemed dividends to preferred shareholi

Accrued issuance cost related to private placel

Accrual related to deferred initial public offeriegsts

Receivables related to exercise of stock opt

For the Years Ended December 3!

2012 2013 2014

US$ (Note

2(c))

(107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,85) (72,181,58)
10,111,62 8,764,42. 10,868,83 1,751,73
609,75t 481,63¢ 983,92! 158,58
740,67¢ (1,286,46) 2,728,86: 439,81
356,34 113,96¢ 61,92: 9,98(
— — 39,172,67 6,313,49I
(4,573,17)) 4,574,36. (6,993,39) (1,127,13)
(70,415,27) (159,510,40) (287,810,64) (46,386,65)
(810,53) (331,200 (13,373,51) (2,155,41)
74,989,92 161,608,15 84,394,36 13,601,90
(249,53)) 725,13( 2,560,08: 412,61(
86,294,83 152,524,35 242,089,82 39,017,79
24,798,54 28,704,37. 102,073,71 16,451,29
14,663,25 116,736,25 (271,101,19) (43,693,58)
(224,000,00) (451,800,00) (547,575,00) (88,253,07)
194,000,00 154,800,00 405,000,00 65,274,15
4,655,001 (2,375,00) (34,780,00) (5,605,51)
(21,440,85) (4,842,89) (50,622,27) (8,158,83))
— — 53,98( 8,70(
(46,785,85) (304,217,89) (227,923,29) (36,734,56)
— 306,360,47 — —
— — 632,472,03 101,935,98
— — 905,589,45 145,954,52
— — 2,335,16. 376,36(
— 306,360,47 1,540,396,65 248,266,87
(740,679 1,286,46: (3,052,62) (491,99))
(32,863,27) 120,165,29 1,038,319,54 167,346,73
332,100,80 299,237,53 419,402,83 67,595,46
299,237,53 419,402,83 1,457,722,37 234,942,20
(3,571,90) 116,75¢ 9,345,02' 1,506,14!
— 59,428,40 15,605,90 2,515,211
— — 14,076,28 2,268,68!
— 2,127,18 — —
— — (1,019,74) (164,35))

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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TUNIU CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RMB, except share data and per share data, or otieise noted)

1. Organization and Principal Activities

Tuniu Corporation (the “Company”), an exempted campwith limited liability incorporated in the Caym Islands, (i) its various
equity-owned consolidated subsidiaries, (ii) itatcolled affiliate Nanjing Tuniu Technology Co.,d.t(“Nanjing Tuniu” or simply “VIE"), and
(iii) the subsidiaries of its controlled affiliatee collectively referred to as the “Group”. Theo@v's principal activity is the provision of travel
related services in the People’s Republic of CIfiR&C"), primarily through Nanjing Tuniu and thelmsidiaries thereof. Nanjing Tuniu and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries are collectively refertedas the “Affiliated Entities”.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s principakgliaries and consolidated Affiliated Entities asefollows:

Percentage o
direct or indirect

Place of economic
Name of subsidiaries and VIE Date of establishment/acquisitior incorporation ownership
Wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company
Tuniu (HK) Limited Established on May 20, 20: Hong Kong 10C(%
Tuniu (Nanjing) Information Technology Co., Li Established on August 24, 20 PRC 10C(%
Beijing Tuniu Technology Co., Ltd“Beijing TuniL") Established on September 8, 2( PRC 10(%
Variable Interest Entity (“VIE™)
Nanjing Tuniu Technology Co., Ltd“Nanjing Tunit”) Established on December 18, 2( PRC 10(%
Subsidiaries of Variable Interest Entity (“VIE

subsidiaries”)

Shanghai Tuniu International Travel Service Cod. Acquired on August 22, 20( PRC 10C(%
Nanjing Tuniu International Travel Service Co., L Acquired on December 22, 20 PRC 10C%
Beijing Tuniu International Travel Service Co., L Acquired on November 18, 20( PRC 10C%
Nanjing Tuzhilv Tickets Sales Co., L1 Established on April 19, 201 PRC 10C(%

History of the Group and Basis of Presentation

The Group commenced operations through Nanjingd;umPRC company formed in December 2006, whictbeaeme its consolidated
affiliated entity through the contractual agreemsetgscribed below.

Nanjing Tuniu was the predecessor of the Groupamadlated substantially all of the businesses otmup prior to September 17, 20!
It is wholly owned by Dunde Yu, the Company’s CHiedecutive Officer, Haifeng Yan, the Company’s Gl@perating Officer, and several
other PRC citizens.

In order to facilitate international financing, TiurCorporation was incorporated in the Cayman Id$azms an exempted company with
limited liability in June 2008, and Beijing Tunitethnology Co., Ltd, or “Beijing Tuniu’a wholly foreign owned enterprise, was establishe
September 2008.

To comply with PRC laws and regulations that lidirect foreign equity ownership of business ergifieoviding value-added
telecommunications services and companies invadlvéaternet content, the Company operates its lassimainly through Nanjing Tuniu and
its subsidiaries. On September 17, 2008, BeijingiTentered into a series of agreements with Ngnjianiu and its shareholders. Pursuant to
these agreements, Beijing Tuniu has the abilityitect substantially all the activities of Nanjifigniu, and absorb substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the Affiliated Entities. As a restie Company is the primary beneficiary of Nanjingiiu, and has consolidated the Affiliated
Entities.

There are no other entities where the Company kasiable interest but is not the primary benefigia

F-7




Table of Contents
TUNIU CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RMB, except share data and per share data, or otiheise noted)

1. Organization and Principal Activities - continuel
Contractual arrangements

On September 17, 2008, Beijing Tuniu entered interées of contractual agreements with Nanjing Wiamd its shareholders. The
following is a summary of the agreements whichwaltbe Company to exercise effective control ovenijiig Tuniu:

(1) Purchase Option Agreement.

Under the purchase option agreement entered bet&igng Tuniu and the shareholders of Nanjing Tuoin September 17, 2008,
Beijing Tuniu has the irrevocable exclusive righpurchase, or have its designated person or petegyurchase all or part of the
shareholders’ equity interests in Nanjing TunilR&B1,800,000 which was increased to RMB2,430,000arch 2014. The option
term remains valid for a period of 10 years andlmaextended indefinitely at Beijing Tuniu’s disiioa. The purchase consideration
was paid by Beijing Tuniu to the shareholders ofjifey Tuniu shortly after the purchase option agreet was entered. On

January 24, 2014, the Company amended and restet@airchase option agreement, and the effectime € the purchase option
agreement has been changed to until all equityaste held in Nanjing Tuniu are transferred orgresil to Beijing Tuniu or its
designated person or persons.

(2) Equity Interest Pledge Agreement.

Under the equity interest pledge agreement entegtgdeen Beijing Tuniu and the shareholders of Nanjiuniu on September 17,
2008, the shareholders pledged all of their equigrests in Nanjing Tuniu to guarantee their perfance of their obligations under
the purchase option agreement. If the sharehotifeManjing Tuniu breach their contractual obligasaunder the purchase option
agreement, Beijing Tuniu, as the pledgee, will hineeright to either conclude an agreement withplleelgor to obtain the pledged
equity or seek payments from the proceeds of théauor sell-off of the pledged equity to any perpursuant to the PRC law. The
shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu agreed that they mali dispose of the pledged equity interests aaterer allow any encumbrance on
the pledged equity interests. During the equitylgéeperiod, Beijing Tuniu is entitled to all divit#s and other distributions made by
Nanjing Tuniu. The equity interest pledge agreememtains effective until the shareholders of Napjiuniu discharge all their
obligations under the purchase option agreememBeiing Tuniu enforces the equity interest pledghichever is earlier.

(3) Shareholders’ Voting Rights Agreement.

Under the shareholders’ voting rights agreemerdredtbetween Beijing Tuniu and the shareholdefamijing Tuniu on

September 17, 2008, each of the shareholders gingaruniu appointed Beijing Tuniu’s designatedguer as their attorney-in-fact
to exercise all of their voting and related righith respect to their equity interests in Nanjingniu, including attending
shareholders’ meetings, voting on all matters afjiig Tuniu, nominating and appointing directorsneene extraordinary
shareholders’ meetings, and other voting rightsyamt to the then effective articles of associafidre shareholders’ voting rights
agreement will remain in force for anunlimited teumless all the parties to the agreement mutaaihge to terminate the agreement
in writing or cease to be shareholders of Nanjingit.

(4) Irrevocable Powers of Attorney.

Under the powers of attorney issued by the shaden®lof Nanjing Tuniu on September 17, 2008, tlagedtolders of Nanjing Tuniu
each irrevocably appointed Mr. Tao Jiang, a pedssignated by Beijing Tuniu, as the attorney-int-faexercise all of their voting
and related rights with respect to their equitgiiasts in Nanjing Tuniu. Each power of attorney miinain in force until the
shareholders’ voting rights agreement expires teriminated. On January 24, 2014, the sharehotdeéMsnjing Tuniu issued powers
of attorney to irrevocably appoint Beijing Tuniuthg attorney-in-fact to exercise all of their wgtiand related rights with respect to
their equity interests in Nanjing Tuniu. These posvaf attorney replaced the powers of attorneyipresly granted to Mr. Tao Jiang
on September 17, 2008.
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1. Organization and Principal Activities - continuel

(5) Cooperation Agreement.

Under the cooperation agreement entered betwegnd3&uniu and Nanjing Tuniu, Beijing Tuniu has theclusive right to provide
Nanjing Tuniu technology consulting and servicdateal to Nanjing Tuniu’s operations, which requiegtain licenses. Beijing Tuniu
owns the exclusive intellectual property rightsategl as a result of the performance of this agraemanjing Tuniu agrees to pay
Beijing Tuniu a monthly service fee for servicesfpemed, and the monthly service fee shall notdweel than 100% of Nanjing
Tuniu’s profits generated from such cooperationicwlequal revenues generated from such cooperatitar,deducting the expenses
it incurred. This agreement remains effective foualimited term, unless the parties mutually agosterminate the agreement, one
of the parties is declared bankrupt or Beijing Tuisinot able to provide consulting and serviceagased for more than three
consecutive years because of force majeure. Orada@d, 2014, the Company amended and restate@idbpeeration Agreement. In
the amended and restated agreement, the serviba$deeen changed to a quarterly payment whichetheprofits of each of
Nanjing Tuniu and its subsidiaries, and that Bgijiruniu can adjust the service fee at its own disen. Also in the amended and
restated Cooperation Agreement, Beijing Tuniu hasunilateral right to terminate the agreement.

In the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and #td Lompany received service fees of RMB20,095,831B22,586,880 and
RMB20,535,068, respectively, from its consolidadfiliated entities.

Risks in relation to the VIE structure

As of December 31, 2014, the aggregate accumudkgficit of the Affiliated Entities was RMB297 mitlh prior to intercompany
elimination.
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1. Organization and Principal Activities - continuel

The following financial statement amounts and bedsof the Affiliated Entities were included in thecompanying consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2013 atd 2ad for the years ended December 31, 2012, 204 2014:

As of December 31

2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel 80,941,49 102,355,89 16,496,77
Restricted cas 9,250,001 44,030,00 7,096,34:
Shor-term investment 227,000,00 100,000,00 16,117,07.
Accounts receivable, n 1,651,08 8,644,48 1,393,23
Intercompany receivable 13,746,34 65,474,34 10,552,54
Prepayments and other current assets 282,575,23 566,731,06 91,340,46
Total current assets 615,164,15 887,235,77 142,996,45
Non-current assets
Property and equipment, r 6,022,93! 22,600,37 3,642,51
Other non-current assets 3,432,47! 16,265,03 2,621,44
Total non-current assets 9,455,41 38,865,40 6,263,96!
Total assets 624,619,56 926,101,17 149,260,41
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl 288,379,18 373,463,92 60,191,45
Salary and welfare payak 43,247,47 66,074,54 10,649,28
Taxes payabl 979,84. 2,078,87 335,05
Advances from custome 396,737,96 638,802,79 102,956,32
Intercompany payable 37,678,68 52,114,07 8,399,26.
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 24,088,18 87,657,45 14,127,81
Total current liabilities 791,111,35 1,220,191,66 196,659,19
Total liabilities 791,111,35 1,220,191,66 196,659,19
For the Years Ended December 3!
2012 2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c)’
Net revenue 1,115,480,42 1,937,485,06 3,736,473,49 602,210,21
Net loss (42,581,56) (39,596,62) (128,298,69) (20,677,99)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activi 92,391,33 161,148,38 (51,446,48) (8,291,66)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activi (29,022,59) (201,058,05) 72,160,87 11,630,22
Net cash provided by financing activiti — — 700,00( 112,82(

There were no pledges or collateralization of tifiiated Entities’ assets. Currently there is antractual arrangement that could
require the Company to provide additional finansigbport to the Affiliated Entities. As the Compasyonducting its business mainly throt
the Affiliated Entities, the Company may providesupport on a discretionary basis in the futmtgch could expose the Company to a loss

Under the contractual arrangements with NanjingiTand through its equity interest in its subsidisy the Group has the power to di
the activities of the Affiliated Entities and ditabe transfer of assets out of the Affiliated Ea§. Therefore, the Group considers that there al
no assets of the Affiliated Entities that can bedusnly to settle their obligations. As the cordated Affiliated Entities are each incorporated
as a limited liability company under the PRC Comphaw, the creditors do not have recourse to threeg credit of the Company for all of
the liabilities of the consolidated Affiliated Etiis.
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1. Organization and Principal Activities - continuel

The Group believes that each of the agreementshanpgowers of attorney under the contractual asarents among Beijing Tuniu,
Nanjing Tuniu and its shareholders is valid, bigdamd enforceable, and did not, does not and wiltesult in any violation of PRC laws
regulations currently in effect. The legal opiniminJun He Law Offices, the Company’s PRC legal salinalso supports this conclusion. The
shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu are also shareholdenminees of shareholders, or designated reprsars of shareholders of the Company
and therefore have no current interest in seekiragt contrary to the contractual arrangementse@as the current facts and circumstances,
management believes the likelihood of loss in respéthe Group’s current ownership structure @r¢bntractual arrangements with its VIE is
remote. However, uncertainties in the PRC legakesysould limit the Company’s ability to enforceetie contractual arrangements and if the
shareholders of Nanjing Tuniu were to reduce timérest in the Company, their interests may digdrgm that of the Company and that may
potentially increase the risk that they would see#ict contrary to the contractual terms.

The Company’s ability to control Nanjing Tuniu aldepends on the power of attorney Beijing Tuniutbasote on all matters requiring
shareholder approval in Nanjing Tuniu. As notedvahthe Company believes this power of attorndggally enforceable but it may not be as
effective as direct equity ownership.

In addition, if the legal structure and contractai@hngements were found to be in violation of exigting PRC laws and regulations, the
PRC government could:

» lewvying fines or confiscate the Group’s income;

» revoke the Group’s business or operating licenses;

» require the Group to discontinue, restrict or restire its operations;

» shut down the Group’s servers or block the Growgbsites and mobile platform;

 restrict or prohibit the use of the Group’s finargproceeds to finance its business and operatioBkina; or

take other regulatory or enforcement actions ag#iesGroup that could be harmful to the Group’sibess

The imposition of any of these penalties may rasudt material and adverse effect on the Groupiléylo conduct the Grou busines:
In addition, the imposition of any of these permatmay cause the Group to lose the right to direcactivities of Nanjing Tuniu (through its
equity interest in its subsidiaries) or the rightéceive economic benefits from the Affiliated iias. Therefore, a risk exists in that the Group
would no longer be able to consolidate Nanjing Tuamd its subsidiaries. On February 19, 2015, &€ Rlinistry of Commerce
(“MOFCOM”) published the draft Foreign Investmerav If enacted as proposed, the Foreign Investirentmay cause the Group’s VIE to
be deemed as entities with foreign investment anal r@sult the Group’s VIE and subsidiaries in Wwhiee VIE has direct or indirect equity
ownership could become explicitly subject to therent restrictions on foreign investment that ergghion an industry on the negative list. If-
enacted version of the foreign investment Law &edfinal negative list mandate further actions hsas MOFCOM market entry clearance or
certain restructuring of corporate structure anerapons to be completed by companies with existtg structure similar to the one described
above, the Group will face substantial uncertainéis to whether these actions can be timely coethler at all. As a result, the Group’s
operating result and financial condition may beeaadely affected.

Liquidity

The Group’s consolidated financial statements f@en prepared on a going concern basis, which iwgidges the realization of assets
and liquidation of liabilities during the normalurge of operations. The Group incurred net lossaproximately RMB107 million,
RMB80 million and RMB448 million in the years endbdcember 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectivelycalh provided by / (used in)
operating activities was approximately RMB15 miljdRMB117 million and (RMB271 million) for the yeaended December 31, 2012, 2013
and 2014, respectively. Accumulated deficit was RMB million, RMB406 million and RMB869 million af ®ecember 31, 2012, 2013 and
2014, respectively. As of December 31, 2014, theughad net current assets and management belfatate Group’s available cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments and cash getefiiom operations will be sufficient to meet wioik capital requirements and capital
expenditures in the ordinary course of businesghi®mext twelve months.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies
(a) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United Sta
of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The consolidated finanksatements include the financial statements ®Gbmpany, its subsidiaries, the
Affiliated Entities for which the Company is themary beneficiary. Subsidiaries are those entitieshich the Company, directly or indirect
controls more than one half of the voting powes thee power to appoint or remove the majority efttembers of the board of directors, or to
cast a majority of votes at the meeting of boardiggctors, or has the power to govern the findraria operating policies of the investee unde
a statute or agreement among the shareholdersiity &glders.

A VIE is an entity in which the Company, or its sidiary, through contractual arrangements, bearsishs of, and enjoys the rewards
normally associated with, ownership of the entityd therefore the Company or its subsidiary igtiv@ary beneficiary of the entity. All
significant transactions and balances among thepaam its equity-owned subsidiaries, and the VI& subsidiaries thereof have been
eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated fitedrstatements in conformity with the U.S. GAARu&es management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemlints of assets and liabilities and disclosuiafingent assets and liabilities. Actual
results could differ materially from those estingat8ignificant accounting estimates reflected ex@ompany’s consolidated financial
statements mainly include revenue recognitionpetng useful lives and impairment for property aogiipment, losses due to committed tou
reservations, the valuation allowance for defeteadassets, the determination of uncertain taxtiposi.

(c) Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Tranation

The Group uses Renminbi (‘RMB”) as its reportingrency. The functional currency of the Company asdubsidiaries incorporated
outside of PRC is the United States dollar (“US$/Mile the functional currency of the PRC entifieshe Group is RMB as determined based
on ASC 830, Foreign Currency Matters.

Transactions denominated in other than the funationrrencies are nmeasured into the functional currency of the ergttthe exchang
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Foreigrency denominated financial assets and liabdliire re-measured at the balance sheet dat
exchange rate. The resulting exchange differeneemeluded in the consolidated statements of cefmgmsive loss as foreign exchange relate
gains / loss.

Assets and liabilities of the Company and its stibsies incorporated outside of PRC are translat®dRMB at fiscal yeaend exchang
rates. Income and expense items are translata@ige exchange rates prevailing during the resfefiscal years. Translation adjustments
arising from these are reported as foreign currérayslation adjustments and are shown as a compohaccumulated other comprehensive
income or loss in the consolidated statement ofigha in shareholders’ equity/(deficit).

The unaudited United States dollar amounts disdl@séhe accompanying financial statements areepites! solely for the convenience
of the readers. Translations of amounts from RMB WS$ for the convenience of the reader were tatled at the rate of US$1.00 =
RMB6.2046 on December 31, 2014, as set forth irDistatistical release of the Federal Reserve Bododepresentation is made that the R
amounts could have been, or could be, converteddt$ at that rate on December 31, 2014, or ab#r rate.

(d) Fair Value Measurement

Accounting guidance defines fair value as the pitie¢ would be received to sell an asset or patdhtesfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the ureagent date. When determining the fair value measents for assets and liabilities
required or permitted to be recorded at fair valie,Company considers the principal or most acagedus market in which it would transact
and it considers assumptions that market partitipanuld use when pricing the asset or liability.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued

(d) Fair Value Measurement - continued

Accounting guidance establishes a fair value hi¢nathat requires an entity to maximize the usebservable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fairevalufinancial instrument’s categorization withiretfair value hierarchy is based upon the
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement. A three-tier value hierafqotigritizes the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quoted i identical assets or liabilities in active kets

Level 2—Inputs other than the quoted prices invactharkets observable either directly or indirectly

Level 3—Unobservable inputs which are supportetitthg or no market data

The Group’s financial instruments include cash eash equivalents, short-term investments, accoentsvable, accounts payable,
advances from customers, and certain accrueditiabibnd other current liabilities. The carrying/ues of these financial instruments
approximated their fair values due to the shomataeraturity of these instruments.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hdradkarand deposits placed with banks or other fiahntstitutions, which are

unrestricted as to withdrawal or use. The follayviable sets forth a breakdown of cash and casivadgnts by currency denomination and
jurisdiction as of December 31, 2013 and 2(

RMB RMB Equivalent (US$) RMB Equivalent (HK$) Total in RMB
Overseas China Overseas China Overseas China
Non VIE VIE Non VIE VIE Non VIE VIE
December 31, 201 294,051,24 14,280,67 80,573,73 29,047,61 953,12¢ 367,76¢ 128,67 — — 419,402,83
December 31, 201 1,810,70! 6,410,241 102,338,96 1,323,654,35 23,309,70 16,93: 181,48: — — 1,457,722,37

(f) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash that cannot bdresith without the permission of third parties. T®up’s restricted cash arises from
cash deposits required by tourism administratiqradienents as a pledge to secure travelers’ rigiddrderests, and those required by the
Group’s business partners for business operations.

(g) Short-term Investments

Short-term investments are comprised of investmiarfigancial products issued by banks or othearficial institutions, which contain a
fixed or variable interest rate. Such investmengsgenerally not permitted to be redeemed earfreisubject to penalties for redemption prior
to maturity. The Group classifies these investmastleld-to-maturity as it has both the posititenhand ability to hold them until maturity.
Held-to-maturity securities are reported at amedizost, and are subject to impairment tests. Givershort-term nature, the carrying value of
short-term investments approximates their fair galthere was no other-than-temporary impairmeshoft-term investments in the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

(h) Accounts Receivable

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly consistnoéants due from the corporate customers, insurameganies and travel boards or
bureaus, which are carried at the original inva@iceount less an allowance for doubtful accounts.Graup reviews the accounts receivable ol
a periodic basis and makes allowances when thelauist as to the collectability of individual batas. The Group evaluates the collectability
of accounts receivable considering many factorkding reviewing accounts receivable balancesphisl bad debt rates, payment patterns,
counterparties’ credit worthiness and financialditans, and industry trend analysis. No allowafaredoubtful accounts was provided as of
December 31, 2013 and 2014 as the Group belieatd ik probable the accounts receivable will léyfcollected.

(i) Advances from Customers

Customers pay in advance to purchase travel servitash proceeds received from customers arellipiteecorded as advances from
customers and are recognized as revenues wherugewverognition criteria are met.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(j) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and impairment if applicaBlmperty and equipment are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives onadgsit-line basis. The estimated useful lives aréodows:

Category Estimated useful life

Computers and equipme 3 year
Furniture and fixture 3-5yearn
Software 5 year:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease term or the estimasefl

life of the asset — 9 year:

Gain or loss on the disposal of property and eqeipiis the difference between the net sales precaed the carrying amount of the
relevant assets and is recognized in the consetidstitements of comprehensive loss.

(k) Capitalized Software Development Cost

The Company has capitalized certain costs relaténtérnally developed software used for supplianagement and customer purchase
interface in accordance with ASC 350-40, Interrsd-goftware, which requires the capitalizationasits relating to certain activities of
developing internal-use software that occur dutirgapplication development stage. Capitalizedateuse software costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and the amount laded in “property and equipment, neti the consolidated balance sheets, with an e
useful life of five years. Software developmenttampitalized amounted to nil, RMB980,187 and RME3&, 756 for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectivelyts@apitalized mainly include payroll and payrd@lated costs for employees who are
directly associated with and who devoted time ®ititernal-use software projects during the appbcadevelopment stage. The amortization
expense for capitalized software costs amounted,t&MB73,833 and RMB727,073 for the year endedédeber 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively. The unamortized amount of capitalimeernal use software development costs was RMBY(B7 as of December 31, 2014.

(1) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with definite lives are recordedarrying value, which represents original cesslaccumulated amortization and
impairment if applicable, and are recorded in “othen-current assets”. The intangible assets amrtérad on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

(m) Impairment of long-lived assets

The Group evaluates its lotiged assets and finite lived intangibles for inpaént whenever events or changes in circumstancésake
that the carrying amount of an asset may not bevezable. When these events occur, the Group memsupairment by comparing the
carrying amount of the assets to future undiscaling cash flows expected to result from the ugaehssets and their eventual disposition. |
the sum of the expected undiscounted cash flovesssthan the carrying amount of the assets, thasrecognizes an impairment loss equi
the difference between the carrying amount andvigline of these assets. No impairment of long-liassets was recognized during the year
ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(n) Revenue Recognition

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from salésrganized tours and self-guided tours, andragbevice fees. Revenue is
recognized when the following criteria are met:spaisive evidence of an arrangement exists, the pete is fixed or determinable, service
been provided, and collectability is reasonablyessin accordance with ASC 608evenue Recognition

Organized toursSubstantially all of revenue from organized togrseicognized on a gross basis, as the Group fwitnary obligor in
the arrangement and bears the risks and rewaudsding the customer’s acceptance of services e, Such commitments are made in the
contract the Group enters with its customers. Bliengh the Group does not generally assume inwenitk of purchasing travel services
before customers place an order, the Group isdlty petained by and paid by its customers, and3ftoeip is responsible for (and solely
authorized to) refunding customers their paymemtstuations of customer disputes. Further, theu@iadependently selects travel service
suppliers, and determines the prices charged tomss and paid to its travel suppliers. Revenom forganized tours is recognized when the
tours end as service rendering is only consideoaapteted upon conclusion of the entire organized.to

Self-guided tours: Revenue from self-guided tosnecognized on a net basis, representing therelifte between what the Group
receives from its customers and the amounts diis t@avel suppliers. In the self-guided tour agaments, the Group generally does not
assume inventory risk, has limited involvement éedmining the service, and provides limited addiil services to customers. Suppliers are
responsible for all aspects of providing the ansportation and hotel accommodation. As suchGtloip concludes that it is an agent for the
travel service providers in these transactionsramdnues are reported on a net basis. Revenuesiltirguided tours is recognized when the
tours end as commissions are not earned untitithesaccording to the contractual arrangementsitoeip entered into with its travel supplie

Other revenuesOther revenues is primarily derived from the gaxfee received from insurance companies, visagasing services al
the advertising services to domestic and foreigmison boards and bureaus on its online platforraveRue is recognized when the services al
rendered.

The Company does not recognize revenue if custoefi@gnds are warranted due to customer satisfa@gres or other reasons, which is
generally known at the end of each tour when regsmauie recognized. In the event of tour cancefidiipcustomers, the liability associated
with prepayments received from customers remainderoup’s consolidated balance sheets untihdsare issued.

Customer incentives

From time to time customers are offered coupoasgirvouchers, membership points, or cash rewardsistomer incentives. The Group
accounts for these customer incentives in accoraiith ASC 605-50Customer Payments and Incentivé®r coupons and travel vouchers
offered where prior purchase is not required, theup accounts for them as a reduction of revenwuenwhvenue is recognized. The Group
assessed coupons and vouchers offered to custasmpest of a current purchase that give customeghgf but do not obligate customers to
make future purchases, and concluded the discoffet®d are insignificant; as such, no deferralesfenue is considered necessary.

For membership points earned by customers as p#re @ustomer reward program which provides travehrds upon point redemption,
the Group estimates the incremental costs assdaidtk the Group’s future obligation to its custarrend records them as sales and marketir
expense in the consolidated statements of compseleeloss.

Unredeemed membership points are recorded in othregnt liabilities in the consolidated balanceetheCash rewards earned by
customers are recorded as a reduction to reveritrecarresponding unclaimed amount recorded inratherent liabilities. The Company
adjusts the liability when the membership pointd eash rewards remain unclaimed upon program diquiravhich is typically two years fro
the day the membership points and cash rewardsmasded. As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, lisslitecorded related to membership
points and cash rewards are, RMB5,760,470 and RMBB4617, respectively.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(n) Revenue Recognition - continued
Business and related taxes

The Group is subject to business and related taxeervices provided in the PRC at applicable yatbgch are recorded as a reductio
revenues.

In November 2011, the Ministry of Finance relea€&dular Caishui [2011] No. 111 mandating Shandbdie the first city to carry out
pilot program of tax reform. Effective January 0,12, any entity that carries out selected modenvices in Shanghai is required to pay value-
added tax (“VAT") instead of business tax. The poogram has been expanded to other regions,dimgBeijing from September 1, 2012
and Nanijing from October 1, 2012. Beijing Tuniu,ANiag Tuniu and Tuniu (Nanjing) Information Techagly Co., Ltd. have been subject to
VAT at a rate of 6% and have since stopped payiedgh®b business tax from the respective effectitesdaf the tax reform.

(o) Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues mainly consists of costs to seppbf organized tours, and salaries and other eosgtion-related expenses related to
the Group’s tour advisors, customer services remtasives, and other personnel related to tous#etions.

Committed tour reservations

In order to secure availabilities of organized soand self-guided tours during peak seasons sulcblidsay periods, the Group may enter
into certain contractual commitments with supplierseserve tours for selected destinations. Tlwu@is required to pay a deposit to ensure
tour availabilities, and such prepayment is re¢ondrepayments and other current assets on thekdated balance sheets. Some of these
contractual commitments are non-cancellable, anldei@xtent the reserved tours are not sold tomests, the Group would be liable to pay
suppliers a praefined or negotiated penalty, thereby assumingritary risks. Management estimates losses of theritted tour reservatior
on a periodic basis based on contractual terms$etarical experience, and record such lossesampériod the loss is considered probable. Fc
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2isked recorded in “cost of revenues” in the codatdd statements of comprehensive los:s
amounted to RMB1,567,087, RMB6,681,730 and RMB4,1849, respectively.

(p) Advertising Expenses

Advertising expenses, which primarily consist ofilm& marketing expense and brand marketing expehsesgh various other forms of
media, are recorded in sales and marketing expassesurred. Advertising expense were RMB52,182,&MB103,142,138 and
RMB379,205,377 for the years ended December 312,220113 and 2014, respectively.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(q) Research and Product Development Expenses

Research and product development expenses incilaiges and other compensation-related expengbs Broups research and prodi
development personnel, as well as office rentaratdation and related expenses and travel-reitpdnses for the Group’s research and
product development team. The Group recognizesvacdtdevelopment costs in accordance with ASC 3b®Béftware—internal use
software”. The Group expenses all costs that aneriad in connection with the planning and impletagan phases of development, and cost:
that are associated with repair or maintenancheoékisting websites or software for internal @&ertain costs associated with developing
internal-use software are capitalized when suclsare incurred within the application developrrsage of software development. See 2
(k) Capitalized Software Development Cost for addil information.

(r) Leases

A lease for which substantially all the benefitsl aisks incidental to ownership remain with thestasis classified as an operating lease.
All leases of the Group are currently classifiedpsrating leases. When a lease contains rentdyslidr requires fixed escalations of the
minimum lease payments, the Group records the rtetahl expense on a straight-line basis overgaed term and the difference between the
straightline rental expense and cash payment under the isascorded as deferred rent liabilities. As eEBmber 31, 2013 and 2014, defe
rent of nil and RMB4,243,520, were recorded asantrliabilities and RMB19,870,002 and RMB22,278,4ue recorded as non-current
liabilities, respectively.

(s) Share-based Compensation

The Company applies ASC 718, Compensation — Stackpg&nsation to account for its share-based compengaogram. In
accordance with the guidance, the Company deteamitether a share-based award should be clasaifigdccounted for as a liability award
or equity award. All grants of share-based awavdmtployees classified as equity awards are rezedrin the financial statements based on
their grant date fair values which are calculatsidg the binominal option pricing model. Share-lblasempensation expenses are recorded ne
of an estimated forfeiture rate over the serviagogeusing the straight-line method.

The Company’s 2008 Incentive Compensation Plamalline plan administrator to grant options andriaest shares to the Company’s
employees, directors, and consultants. The plarirastmator is the Company’s board of directors @oanmittee appointed and determined by
the board. The board may also authorize one or wificers of the Company to grant awards undemptha. Under the 2008 Incentive
Compensation Plan, options granted to employedapes satisfaction of a service condition, whislyénerally satisfied over four years.
Additionally, the incentive plan provides an exsatiility clause where employees can only exerasted options upon the occurrence of the
following events: (i) after the Company’s ordinafyares has become a listed security, (ii) in comoreavith or after a triggering event (defined
as a sale, transfer, or disposition of all or samtsally all of the Company’s assets, or a mergensolidation, or other business combination
transaction), or (iii) if the optionee obtains mdicessary governmental approvals and consentgedg@ptions for which the service condition
has been satisfied are forfeited should employrentinate three months prior to the occurrencenadxercisable event, which substantially
creates a performance condition. This performanoelition was met upon completion of the Compangigal public offering, and the
associated share-based compensation expense fatsavested as of that date were recognized on M29B4.

In April 2014, the Company adopted the 2014 Shaceritive Plan, which contains no such exercisghilduse. For detail of the 2014
Share Incentive Plan, please refer to note 10ettmsolidated financial statements.

The Group recognized share-based compensation sxpéiRMB39,172,678 in the year ended Decembe2@14, which was classified
as follows:

For the Years Ended December 3]

2012 2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c),
Cost of revenu — — 799, 88C 128,91°
Research and product developm — — 1,971,65! 317,77
Sales and marketir — — 856,85!¢ 138,10(
General and administrative — — 35,544,228 5,728,69!
Tota | — — 39,172,67 6,313,48!
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(t) Income Taxes

Current income taxes are provided on the basigbincome for financial reporting purposes, adjd$te income and expense items
which are not assessable or deductible for incaxgtirposes, in accordance with the regulatioribefelevant tax jurisdictions. Deferred
income taxes are provided using the liability methdnder this method, deferred income taxes amgrdzed for the tax consequences of
temporary differences by applying enacted statutatgs applicable to future years to differencawben the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax bases of existing assetsaitities. The tax base of an asset or liabilityhis amount attributed to that asset or liability
for tax purposes. The effect on deferred taxesabfange in tax rates is recognized in the intemmdensed consolidated statements of
comprehensive loss in the period of change. A Yadnallowance is provided to reduce the amourdeférred tax assets if it is considered
more likely than not that some portion of, or ditlee deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Uncertain tax positions

The guidance prescribes a more likely than nostiokl for financial statement recognition and measient of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. Guidancegltzades for the derecognition of income tax ess@d liabilities, classification of current :
deferred income tax assets and liabilities, acdogrbr interest and penalties associated withpiasitions, accounting for income taxes in
interim periods, and income tax disclosures. Sigaift judgment is required in evaluating the Greupicertain tax positions and determining
its provision for income taxes. As of December@113 and 2014, the Group did not have any sigmificarecognized uncertain tax positions
or any interest or penalties associated with tasitioms.

In order to assess uncertain tax positions, theiGapplies a more likely than not threshold ang@step approach for the tax position
measurement and financial statement recognitioneUthe two-step approach, the first step is tduata the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidenceigades that it is more likely than not that theifios will be sustained, including resolution of
related appeals or litigation processes, if anye 3&cond step is to measure the tax benefit dartest amount that is more than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement.

(u) Employee Benefits

Full-time employees of the Group in the PRC ardtledtto welfare benefits including pension, woekated injury benefits, maternity
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment bear€ithousing fund plans through a PRC governmentatad defined contribution plan.
Chinese labor regulations require that the Groukemaontributions to the government for these hnlésed on certain percentages of
employees’ salaries, up to a maximum amount specifiy the local government. The Group has no leglidation for the benefits beyond the
contributions. The Group recorded employee beegfienses of RMB21,287,847, RMB24,058,067 and RM&HS) 782 for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

(v) Government Subsidies

Government subsidies are cash subsidies receivteb@roup’s entities in the PRC from provinciatldocal government authorities.
The government subsidies are granted from timerte &t the discretion of the relevant governmetit@rities. These subsidies are granted fot
general corporate purposes and to support the Groagoing operations in the region. Cash subsigdiegecorded in other operating income
on the consolidated statements of comprehensigenben received and when all conditions for the@eipt have been satisfied. The Group
recognized government subsidies of RMB773,727, R}88,560 and RMB6,901,814 in the years ended Deeeih 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(w) Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed bylidiginet income (loss) attributable to ordinaryrshalders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during thi®geausing the two-class method. Under the twosctagthod, net income is allocated
between ordinary shares and other participatingritezs based on their participating rights. Nestslés not allocated to other participating
securities if based on their contractual terms #reynot obligated to share in the losses. Dilettiings (loss) per share is calculated by
dividing net income (loss) attributable to ordinahareholders by the weighted average number afamdand dilutive ordinary equivalent
shares outstanding during the period. Ordinaryvegent shares consist of shares issuable uporothestsion of the preferred shares using the
if-converted method, and shares issuable uponxtaeise of share options using the treasury stoethod. Ordinary equivalent shares are not
included in the denominator of the diluted loss gfware calculation when inclusion of such sharesavibe anti-dilutive.

(x) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ahangquity of the Group during a period arisingnfrtransactions and other events
and circumstances excluding transactions resultorg investments by shareholders and distributtorghareholders. Comprehensive income
or loss is reported in the consolidated statemefint®mprehensive loss. Accumulated other comprébemscome (loss), as presented on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, con$iatxumulated foreign currency translation adjestts.

(y) Segment Reporting

In accordance with ASC 280, Segment ReportingCiiapanys chief operating decision maker, the Chief Exeeubfficer, reviews th
consolidated results when making decisions abdatating resources and assessing performance @dhgany as a whole and hence, the
Company has only one reportable segment.

The Company does not distinguish between markedegments for the purpose of internal reporting Toompany’s long-lived assets
are substantially all located in the PRC and sulbistily all the Company’s revenues are derived faithin the PRC, therefore, no
geographical segments are presented.

(z) Deferred O ffering C osts

Deferred offering costs consisted principally afdé printing and registration costs in connectidth the initial public offering (“IPO”)
of Tuniu Corporation’s ordinary shares. Such cestee deferred until the closing of the offeringwditich time the deferred costs were offset
against the offering proceeds. In the event theripf§ was unsuccessful or aborted, the costs waailkeikpensed. Deferred offering costs as of
December 31, 2013 amounted to RMB2,127,187 weitaded in other non-current assets on the conselitlaslance sheets. Such deferred
offering costs were recorded as a reduction tdRkEproceeds upon completion of the Company’s iP®lay 2014.

(aa) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBd (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upda#SU”) 2014-08, “Reporting
Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of DisgoshComponents of an Entity”. This update chartpedhreshold for reporting
discontinued operations and added new disclosoradigposals. Under the updated guidance, a disegrd operation is defined as a
component or group of components that is dispo$ed is classified as held for sale and represarsisategic shift that has (or will have) a
major effect on an entity’s operations and finah@aults. This ASU is effective prospectively faacal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2014. The Gioupthe process of evaluating the impact of didgpthis guidance
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2. Principal Accounting Policies - continued
(aa) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements niboued

In May 2014, the FASB and International AccountBtgndards Board (“IASB”) issued their convergeddéad on revenue recognition.
The objective of the revenue standard ASU 20144R6yenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 60§)b provide a single,
comprehensive revenue recognition model for altreamts with customers to improve comparability witindustries, across industries, and
across capital markets. The revenue standard osmainciples that an entity will apply to determithe measurement of revenue and timing c
when it is recognized. The underlying principléhiat an entity will recognize revenue to depicttifaamsfer of goods or services to customers ¢
an amount that the entity expects to be entitldd gxchange for those goods or services. For pablnpanies, the revenue standard is
effective for the first interim period within anriuaporting periods beginning after December 13,628nd early adoption is not permitted. The
Group is in the process of evaluating the impaetdafpting this guidance.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, wipntvides guidance on determining when and how tempentities must disclose
going-concern uncertainties in their financial stagénts. The new standard requires managementftrmpenterim and annual assessments of
an entity’s ability to continue as a going concefthin one year of the date of issuance of thetgstfinancial statements (or within one year
after the date on which the financial statemergsaaeilable to be issued, when applicable). Furtireentity must provide certain disclosure
there is “substantial doubt about the entity’sigbtb continue as a going concern.” The ASU iefiive for annual periods ending after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods thereadgmty adoption is permitted. The Group is in thecgiss of evaluating the impact of adopting
this guidance.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015*@@&nsolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Cdiastion Analysis” (“ASU
2015-02"). ASU 2015-02 focuses on the consolidatiealuation for reporting organizations that aguieed to evaluate whether they should
consolidate certain legal entities. The ASU sinigdiftonsolidation accounting by reducing the nunab@onsolidation models from four to
two. In addition, the new standard simplifies th&SB Accounting Standards Codification and improgesent guidance by: (i) placing more
emphasis on risk of loss when determining a calimigpfinancial interest; (ii) reducing the frequgnaf the application of relateparty guidanc
when determining a controlling financial interasi VIE; and (iii) changing consolidation conclussdor public and private companies in
several industries that typically make use of ladipartnerships or VIEs. The ASU will be effectfee periods beginning after December 15,
2015, for public companies. Early adoption is pétedi including adoption in an interim period. €f@roup is in the process of evaluating the
impact of adopting this guidance.

3. Risks and Concentration
(a) Credit and Concentration Risks

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and caglivalents, restricted cash, short-term investmeaepayments and other current
assets, and accounts receivables. The carryingramofithese financial instruments represent theimmam amount of loss due to credit risk.

The Group expects that there is no significantitrésk associated with the cash and cash equitakemd short-term investments which
are held by reputable financial institutions in phesdictions where the Company, its subsidiagied the Affiliated Entities are located. The
Group believes that it is not exposed to unusséikras these financial institutions have high ¢reuflity.

The Group has no significant concentrations of itrégk with respect to its customers, as custornstslly prepay for travel services.
Accounts receivable are typically unsecured ancerearily derived from revenue earned from corp@i@istomers, insurance companies anc
travel boards or bureaus. The risk with respeectounts receivable is mitigated by credit evatuetiperformed on the corporate customers
and insurance companies and ongoing monitoringgss®s on outstanding balances. No individual custaecounted for more than 10% of
net revenues in the years ended December 31, 2013,and 2014.

The following table summarized customers with gee#titan 10% of the accounts receivables:
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3. Risks and Concentration - continued
(a) Credit and Concentration Risks - continued

As of December 31
2013 2014
Customer A S

26.(%

*Less than 10%

(b) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s operating transactions and its assetdiabilities are mainly denominated in RMB. RM®Briot freely convertible into
foreign currencies. The value of RMB is subjectitanges influenced by central government poli@ed, international economic and political
developments. In the PRC, certain foreign excharsgesactions are required by law to be transaatédhy authorized financial institutions at
exchange rates set by the People’s Bank of Chirea’RBOC”). Remittances in currencies other thanBd§ the Group in China must be
processed through the PBOC or other China foreighange regulatory bodies which require certairpsting documentation in order to
effect the remittance.
4 . Prepayments and Other Current Assets

The following is a summary of prepayments and othuerent assets:

As of December 31

2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c),
Prepayments to supplie 274,418,87 498,298,10 80,311,07
Interest income receivab 3,767,45! 6,509,86! 1,049,19
Prepayment for advertising expen 3,007,87 53,664,40 8,649,13:
Others 5,366,05: 16,824,54 2,711,62.
Tota | 286,560,24 575,296,90 92,721,03
5 . Property and Equipment, Net
The following is a summary of property and equipinest:
As of December 31
2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).
Computers and equipme 25,307, 217 43,961, 251 7,085, 26¢
Leasehold improvemen 19,649,572 43,684, 247 7,040, 622
Furniture and fixture 3,212, 48¢ 6,342, 89z 1,022, 28¢
Software 3,537, 387 11,919, 552 1,921, 08z
Subtotal 51,706,664 105, 907, 94z 17,069, 262
Less: Accumulated depreciation (26,855,36) (36,542, 052) (5,889,510
Property and equipment subject to depreciation 24,851,30 69, 365, 891 11,179, 752
Construction in progress — 2,944, 39¢ 474,551
Tota | 24,851, 302 72,310, 29C 11,654, 302

Depreciation and amortization expenses for thesyeaded December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 was RNIB1L,622, RMB8,764,423 a
RMB10,868,838, respectively. The construction ioguess balance as of December 31, 2014 is primaoityprised of leasehold improvements
relating to the additional office space at the GQrsineadquarter office which is still under constion.
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6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The following is a summary of accrued expensesather current liabilities:

As of December 31
2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).
Deposits from custome 11, 320,50( 27,807,29 4,481,72.
Deposits from supplier 210, 00C 5,920,16! 954,15
Accrued liabilities related to customers incentiwegram 5,760,47! 14,763,61 2,379,46:
Accrued professional service fe 3,467,45: 18,360,61 2,959,19
Accrued sales and marketing exper 3,029,03: 12,455,25 2,007,42.
Funds collected on behalf of insurance comps 670,91 4,495,48. 724,54(
Advanced payments received from ba 792,10: 11,036,16 1,778,70
Others 4,481,61. 15,021,522 2,421,03.
Tota | 29, 732, 09C 109,860,11 17,706,23

Deposits from customers represent cash paid tGtbap as a deposit for international tours, andhsmount is refundable upon
completion of the tours.

Advanced payments received from banks represehtreasived by the Company for promotional and mamgecampaigns. Banks
participating in these campaigns would reimburgeGinoup for tours sold to their credit card holdsra specified discount.

7. Income Taxes

The Company is registered in the Cayman Islands.ddmpany generated substantially all of its incdlmss) from its PRC operations
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 andl. 201

Cayman Islands (“Cayman”)

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, th@any is not subject to tax on income or capigéh gAdditionally, upon payments
of dividends to shareholders, no Cayman Islandsheiding tax will be imposed.

Hong Kong

Entities incorporated in Hong Kong are subject tmfl Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% since Janta2010. The operations in Hong
Kong have incurred net accumulated operating lofesseacome tax purposes.

PRC

On March 16, 2007, the National People’s CongrésiseoPRC enacted an Enterprise Income Tax LawT('lEw"), under which
Foreign Investment Enterprises (“FIEs”) and doneestimpanies would be subject to EIT at a uniforte od 25%. The EIT law became
effective on January 1, 2008.

The EIT Law also provides that an enterprise eisfadt under the laws of a foreign country or reddahwhose “de facto management
body” is located in the PRC be treated as a resifieterprise for PRC tax purposes and consequbatbubject to the PRC income tax at the
rate of 25% for its global income. The implementiigles of the EIT Law merely define the locatiortlod “de facto management body” as
“the place where the exercising, in substanceh®ftverall management and control of the produdaiwsh business operation, personnel,
accounting, properties, etc., of a non-PRC compmigcated.”
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7. Income Taxes - continued

The EIT Law also imposes a withholding income tag@% on dividends distributed by a FIE to its imdize holding company outside
of China, if such immediate holding company is ¢desed as a noresident enterprise without any establishment acglithin China or if th
received dividends have no connection with thebdistament or place of such immediate holding comypaithin China, unless such immedi
holding company’s jurisdiction of incorporation hasax treaty with China that provides for a diffier withholding arrangement. The Cayman
Islands, where the Company incorporated, doesanat buch tax treaty with China. According to theiagement between Mainland China anc
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on the Adarice of Double Taxation and Prevention of Fiseadion in August 2006, dividends
paid by a FIE in China to its immediate holding gamy in Hong Kong will be subject to withholdingtat a rate of no more than 5% if the
immediate holding company in Hong Kong owns direatl least 25% of the shares of the FIE and coeltebognized as a Beneficial Owne
the dividend from PRC tax perspective.

Nanjing Tuniu obtained in 2010 its HNTE certificatéh a valid period of three years and successfielhewed such certificate in
December 2013 for additional three years. Therefdamjing Tuniu is eligible to enjoy a preferentiak rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015 to the
extent it has taxable income under the EIT Lawpag as it maintains the HNTE qualification andydabnducts relevant EIT filing procedures
with the relevant tax authority. Nanjing Tuniu atdotained a software company certificate in 2012s®ant to such certificate, Nanjing Tuniu
qualifies for a tax holiday during which it is eigd to an exemption from enterprise income taxtfiay years commencing from its first profit-
making year of operation and a 50% reduction oém amise income tax for the following three yearanihg Tuniu has entered into the first tax
profitable year for the year ended December 314201

A reconciliation between the effective income taterand the PRC statutory income tax rate is &safsl

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
% % %
PRC Statutory income tax rat 25.C 25.C 25.C
Change in valuation allowan (19.9 (20.7 (22.9)
Permanent boo— tax difference (5.2 4.9 (22.7)
Difference in EIT rates of certain subsidiar 0.C 0.C 0.C
Effect of tax holiday — — 9.E
Total (0.7) 0.C 0.C

The aggregate amount and per share effect of hedladays are as follows:

For the Years Ended December 3]

2012 2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).
Aggregate amour — — (42,567,09) (6,860,57)
Basic net loss per share effi — — (0.40 (0.06
Diluted net loss per share effe — — (0.40 (0.06
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7. Income Taxes - continued

The following table sets forth the significant camnpnts of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

As of December 31
2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).

Current deferred tax asse
Accruals and othet 3,726,09i 16,299, 132 2,626, 94z
Less: valuation allowance (3,726,09) (16,299, 1372) (2,626,947

Total current deferred tax assets, net — i _

Non-current deferred tax asse

Net operating loss carry forwar 40,980,59 133,592,89 21,531,26
Carryforwards of un-deducted a dvertising expenses 1,414,03 925,08: 149,09¢
Subtotal 42,394,62 134,517,97 21,680,36
Less: valuation allowance (42,394,62) (134,517,97) (21,680,36)

Tota | non-current deferred tax assets, net — — —

As of December 31, 2014, the Group had net operébiss carryforwards of RMB534,371,576 which carcaeied forward to offset
taxable income. The carryforwards period for nedraging losses under the EIT Law is five years. iiéeoperating loss carry forward of the
Group will start to expire in 2015 for the amouhRMB7,990,793 if not utilized. The remaining netevating loss carryforwards will expire in
varying amounts between 2016 and 2019. There expation for the advertising expenses carryfodsaOther than the expiration, there are
no other limitations or restrictions upon the Greughility to use these operating loss carryfonsgard

A valuation allowance is provided against defetsdassets when the Group determines that it i& tilely than not that the deferred
tax assets will not be utilized in the future. laking such determination, the Group evaluates ietyanf factors including the Group’s
operating history, accumulated deficit, existentwgable temporary differences and reversal pesriod

As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, valuation allmearof RMB46,120,715 and RMB150,817,107 were pexvidecause it was more
likely than not that the Group will not be ableutilize certain tax losses carry forwards and otteferred tax assets generated by its
subsidiaries and Affiliated Entities. If events oca the future that allow the Group to realizermof its deferred tax assets than the presenth
recorded amount, an adjustment to the valuati@walhces will increase income when those eventsroccu

Movement of valuation allowance

For the Years Ended December 3!

2012 2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).
Balance as the beginning of the y 23,627,05. 34,315,04 46,120,71 7,433, 31C
Additions 10,687,98 11,805,67 112,421,22 18,119,01
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax lossesla
un-deductible advertising expens — — (7,724,83) (1,245,01)
Balance as the end of the year 34,315,04 46,120,71 150,817,10 2 4,307,30!
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8. Convertible Preferred Shares

In August 2008, the Company entered into an agraemih Gobi Fund Il L.P. (“Gobi”) and issued 20000 Series A Convertible
Preferred Shares (“Series A Preferred Sharesheaptirchase price of US$0.10 (RMBO0.68) per shara total consideration of US$2,000,000
(RMB13,660,360) in cash.

In December 2009, the Company entered into a sefiagreements with DCM V, L.P., DCM Affiliates Faiv, L.P. ( “DCM") and Gob
and issued 21,564,115 Series B Convertible Pref&Shares (“Series B Preferred Shares”) at the psecprice of US$0.3478 (RMB2.37) per
share for a total consideration of US$7,500,000 @81211,500) in cash.

In March 2011, the Company entered into a serieggedements with four institutional investors asglied 25,782,056 Series C
Convertible Preferred Shares (“Series C Preferfate®”)at the purchase price of US$1.7454 (RMB11.45) paresfor a total consideration
US$45,000,000 (RMB295,183,500) in cash.

In August 2013, the Company entered into an agraemi¢h Esta Investments Pte Ltd (“Esta”) and iss08,142,893 Series D
Convertible Preferred Shares (“Series D Preferteatés™) at the purchase price of US$2.7559 (RMBA)Ge@r share for a total consideration
of US$50,000,000 (RMB308,328,500) in cash. Seri¢xéerred Shares, Series B Preferred SharessSefeeferred Shares and Series D
Preferred Shares are collectively referred to as\@rtible Preferred Shares.”

Accounting for Convertible Preferred Shares

The Convertible Preferred Shares are redeemable aifiquidation event, including a deemed liquidatevent (e.g., change in control),
and as such are presented as mezzanine equitg eorisolidated balance sheets. In accordance Vith #480-10-S99, each issuance of the
Convertible Preferred Shares should be recognizéteaespective issue price at the date of issuartof issuance costs. The issuance costs
for Series A, Series B, Series C, and Series Defed Shares were US$26,755 (RMB182,576), US$38(RBIB2,321,384), US$755,000
(RMB4,927,809), and US$335,123 (RMB2,059,507), eeipely. Since the Convertible Preferred Sharesat redeemable until the
occurrence of a liquidation event, no subsequerretion to the respective redemption values is sgay until it is probable a liquidation ewv:
is to occur. To-date, no liquidation or deemediti@tion events have occurred or are probable. Atingly there have been no accretive costs
to the convertible preferred shares have beendeddor the periods presented.

The preferred shareholders have the ability to edrthe Convertible Preferred Shares into the Cawyigaordinary shares at any time, at
the option of the holder, on a one to one sharsbdpon the occurrence of certain events, the emion ratio may be subsequently adjusted.
The Company evaluated the embedded conversionnoiptitne Convertible Preferred Shares to deterrfitiere were any embedded
derivatives requiring bifurcation. The conversigiions of the Convertible Preferred Shares do natify for bifurcation accounting because
the underlying ordinary shares are not publiclgédnor are they readily convertible into cash.rétae no other embedded derivatives the
required to be bifurcated. As the Convertible Rrefé Shares are convertible at any time at theopif the holder and the embedded
conversion options are not bifurcated, the ConblertPreferred Shares were further evaluated tameéte if there were any Beneficial
Conversion Features (“BCF”). BCFs exist when theoaating conversion price of the Convertible PnefdrShares is lower than the fair value
of the Company’s ordinary shares at the commitrdate. The Company has determined that there w8Ckoattributable to any of the
Convertible Preferred Shares because the init@@atting conversion prices were higher than theviaiue of the Company’s ordinary shares
determined. The fair value of the Company’s ordjredrares on the commitment date was estimatedeb@dmpany with the assistance of an
independent valuation firm. The Company will congrio assess any potential BCF which could resuth footential changes in conversion
price upon the occurrence of certain events. Thawe been no events that would trigger an adjudttoghe conversion prices of the
Convertible Preferred Shares.

The Company assesses whether an amendment tartteedeits convertible preferred shares is an gxtishment or a modification usil
the fair value model. When convertible preferredrsb are extinguished, the difference betweenaihedlue of the consideration transferre
the convertible preferred shareholders and thejicaramount of the convertible preferred shares ghessuance costs) is treated as deemed
dividends to the preferred shareholders. The Compansiders that a significant change in fair vafter the change of the terms to be
substantive and thus triggers extinguishment. Aigkan fair value which is not significant immedilgt after the change of the terms is
considered non-substantive and thus is subjecottifioation accounting.
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8. Convertible Preferred Shares - continued
Repurchases and Redesignations of Series A Prefé@bares

In March 2011, the Company repurchased 2,864,67id<Sa Preferred Shares from Gobi at US$1.7454 (RMB5) per share for an
aggregate price of US$5,000,000 (RMB32,809,002kfilRchase”). The Company accounted for the Repsechs an extinguishment of the
Series A Preferred Shares repurchased and recardiedrease of accumulated deficit based on thierdiice between the US$5,000,000
(RMB32,809,002) paid and the carrying amount ohsBeries A Preferred Shares of RMB1,879,741.

In August 2013, the Company negotiated with EstaHe issuance of 18,142,893 Series D preferreresHar a total consideration of
US$50,000,000 (RMB308,328,500), of which the failue per share was US$2.7559 (RMB16.99). The Coynalso noted it needed to
complete certain legal administrative procedurésted to the cancellation of the Series A PrefeBhdres from the Repurchase in 2011.
Consequently, the Company decided to fulfill thguieement in conjunction with the issuance of Sebethrough the following transactions
entered at the same time and in contemplationaf ether: (1) the Company issued 15,278,220 Series=ferred Shares directly to Esta for
US$45,000,000 (RMB277,605,000); (2) the Companssiegd 2,864,673 Series A Preferred Shares repectirasn Gobi and redesignated
such shares into Series D Preferred Shares on-foooee basis for US$5,000,000 (RMB30,723,500);G8bi then sold these Series D
Preferred Shares to Esta for US$5,000,000 (RMB3)51®); and ; (4) Gobi paid the US$5,000,000 (RMB38,500) received from Esta to
the Company. The value of the redesignation desdriib transaction 2 was compensated by Esta thriwggpremium from issuance described
in transaction 1.

Even though the Company and Gobi exchanged Serfa®frred Shares and cash, such exchange wasdrasemins identical to those
from the 2011 Repurchase, and by design, neitee€tdmpany nor Gobi gave away or received any axhditivalue in these transactions. In
substance, the transactions were entered to issual @f 18,142,893 Series D preferred sharessta for US$50,000,000 (RMB308,328,500),
and the Company received the full fair value ofSaties D Preferred Shares issued to Esta. Consthguibe Company had accounted for the
transactions as such.

Also in August 2013, the Company redesignated 3972BSeries A Preferred Shares held by Gobi inteeS® Preferred Shares, and
Gobi then transferred 1,297,765 Series D Prefedfetes, 31,666 Series D Preferred Shares and 24898eries D Preferred Shares to DCM
V, L.P., DCM Affiliates Fund V, L.P. and DCM Hybri@MB Fund, L.P., respectively, at the purchasegpotUS$2.7559 (RMB16.99) per
share for a total consideration of US$10,000,000BB81,666,000) in cash. The Company did not recaiwe proceeds for the transfer betweer
Gobi and DCM, nor did the Company receive any absition for the redesignation for the shares fearesd between Gobi and DCM. Such
redesignation, in substance, is the same as actegme of Series A Preferred Shares from Gobi asggparate issuance of Series D Preferred
Shares to DCM and DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.P.. Ther@any accounted for such redesignation as an exsingient of 3,628,579 Series A
Preferred Shares repurchased and recorded ansadreaccumulated deficit based on the differerste/&en the fair value of the consideration
transferred to Gobi (i.e., fair value of Series i2fEerred Shares) and the carrying amount of sudes$a Preferred Shares.

The difference between the Series A Preferred Shend the Series D Preferred Shares amount isdegtas deemed dividends and an
increase to accumulated deficit in the year endeceinber 31, 2013, as this redesignation is accodioteas an extinguishment of Series A
Preferred Shares.

Terms of the Convertible Preferred Shares
Key terms of the Convertible Preferred Shares anensarized as follows:
a. Dividends

The holders of the Series B, Series C and Serieeelerred Shares are entitled to receive dividemdse rate of 8% of the original
Preferred Share issue price per annum, when atetiéred by the Board of Directors of the Compamipr and in preference to the Series A
Preferred Shares holders, ordinary shareholdeaisynpther class of shareholders on an as-convkeagd. The dividend of the Convertible
Preferred Shares shall be non-cumulative.

The holders of the Convertible Preferred Sharesia@entitled to receive any other dividend, whed if declared by the Board on an
as-converted basis.

b. Liquidation preference

Upon the occurrence of any liquidation or deemaditiation, the holders of the Series A, SeriesdieS C, and Series D Preferred
Shares shall be entitled to receive, before aryiligion or payment to the holders of the ordinsimares of the Company, an amount equal to
150% of their original issue price for Series Afereed Shares, 100% of their original issue prareSeries B Preferred Shares, 100% of their
original issue price for Series C Preferred Shares100% of their original issue price for SerieBi@ferred Shares, respectively, as adjusted
for any share splits, share dividends, combinatimtsapitalizations and similar transactions, @ilisieclared and unpaid divident
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8. Convertible Preferred Shares - continued

If the assets and funds distributed among the ®lalkee insufficient to permit the payment of thié fueferential amounts, then the
holders of Series D Preferred Shares shall bdenhtid be paid first out of the assets of the Camyavailable for distribution among the
Shareholders, prior and in preference to any payweall other series of preferred shares and arglishares, followed in sequence by
Series C Preferred Shares, Series B Preferred Stzaré Series A Preferred Shares.

After payment of the full preferential amounts, teenaining assets of the Company available foridigion shall be distributed ratably
among the holders of Series A, Series B, Seriesd_Sgries D Preferred Shares and ordinary sham®portion to the number of outstanding
shares held by each such holder on an as convsaisl

The liquidation preference described above ceasedist upon the completion of the Company’s IPQMay 9, 2014.
¢. Redemption

All Convertible Preferred Shares are redeemablg opbn a liquidation event or deemed liquidatioergg (e.g., change in control), as
defined in the Memorandum and Articles of Assooiati

d. Conversion

The Convertible Preferred Shares are convertiblneaoption of the holders, into the Company’simaidy shares at an initial conversion
ratio of 1:1 at any time after the original issuaate. In the event that the Company issues additordinary shares at a price lower than the
then-applicable conversion price for the PrefeBbdres, the conversion price of the ConvertibléePred Shares shall be adjusted. The
conversion prices are also subject to adjustmerds gertain dilution events. In addition, the Catibée Preferred Shares are automatically
convertible into such number of ordinary sharethefCompany as shall be determined by referentteetthen effective and applicable
conversion ratio upon the earlier of (i) the clgsof a Qualified Initial Public Offering as defin@dthe Memorandum and Articles of
Association, or (ii) the date specified by writteznsent or agreement of holders of a majority efdhitstanding Series A, a majority of the
outstanding Series B, 80% of the outstanding S€riaad a majority of the outstanding Series D PreteShares, each voting as a separate
class.

On April 28, 2014, the Company’s board and shaugrsiresolved that the Qualified Initial Public €fhg (“QIPO”) requirements as
stated in the ComparnyMemorandum and Articles of Association were wdj\and in the event that the public offering piieg ADS is belov
US$10.00, immediately prior to completion of then@many’s initial public offering, all of the Compasyoutstanding Series D preferred share
will be automatically converted into and designaisdClass B ordinary shares as calculated as fillod8$60,000,000 (RMB363,222,000)
divided by 80% of the initial public offering prigeer ADS, and then multiplied by the ADS-to-Classlinary-share ratio (each ADS
represents three Class A ordinary shares). Thisawaedification to the existing conversion rightsSeries D preferred shares, where the ir
conversion ratio from preferred shares to ordirsdrgres was 1:1 upon the closing of a QIPO.

Upon the completion of the Group’s IPO on May 9120Series A, B and C Preferred Shares were caw/érto Class B ordinary shares
on a one-to-one basis, while 21,771,472 sharegié¢s$D Preferred Shares were converted into 25)00Ghares of Class B ordinary shares.
Concurrently, RMB15,605,908 (US$2,506,168) was méed as deemed dividends to the Series D prefshradholders.

e. Voting rights

The Convertible Preferred Shares have voting rightsvalent to the number of ordinary shares inictvthey are convertible to. The
holders of the Convertible Preferred Shares alse kartain veto rights including, but not limite &iny increase or decrease in the total
number of directors and change of board compositippointment or removal of senior management,@@biof business plan and operating
budget, dividend declaration, any merger, splitrganization or consolidation.
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9. Ordinary Shares

On February 13, 2014, the Board has approved that the Company’s existing ordinary shares woldredesignated as Class B
ordinary shares and all of the Company'’s outstapgieferred shares would be redesignated or autwaiigtconverted into Class B ordinary
shares immediately prior to the completion of tlmmPany’s initial public offering (“IPQO”). All optias, regardless of grant dates, will entitle
holders to the equivalent number of Class A ordirsdrares once the vesting and exercising conditorsuch share-based compensation
awards are met. Holders of Class A ordinary shaitde entitled to one vote per share, while hotdef Class B ordinary shares will be
entitled to ten votes per share on all mattersexiiltp shareholders’ vote. Each Class B ordinaayests convertible into one Class A ordinary
share at any time by the holder. Class A ordinhares are not convertible into Class B ordinaryeshander any circumstances. Upon any
transfer of Class B ordinary shares by a holdantpperson or entity which is not an affiliate o€k holder, such Class B ordinary shares will
be automatically and immediately converted intoghaivalent number of Class A ordinary shares.

On May 9, 2014, concurrently with the completiortied Companys IPO, the Company issued 5,000,000, 1,666,666 &ad,000 shar:
of Class A ordinary shares at a price per sharal@qguhe IPO price to DCM Hybrid RMB Fund, L.FhetCompany’s existing shareholder,
Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd. and Ctrip Investmidotding Ltd., respectively.

On December 15, 2014, the Company entered intaue Subscription agreement with Unicorn Riches témhiJD.com E-commerce
(Investment) Hong Kong Corporation Limited, Ctripzéstment Holding Ltd. and the respective pershoklding companies of the Group’s
chief executive officer and chief operating officearsuant to which the Company issued 36,812,8680ers of Class A ordinary shares for a
total proceeds of RMB905,792,199 ( US$148 milliargt of issuance cost of RMB14,279,026. The traitsagvas closed on December 31,
2014.

1 0. Share -based Compensation Expenses

The Company’s 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan“@hé8 Plan”) allows the plan administrator to graptions and restricted shares
to the Company’s employees, directors, and conssltap to a maximum of 11,500,000 ordinary shdreBecember 2012, the Board of
Directors approved an increase in the number akeshavailable for issuance under the plan to 1813ibordinary shares. In April 2014 the
Company adopted the 2014 Share Incentive PlarfZ04 Plan”). The maximum aggregate number of shaseich may be issued pursuant to
all awards under the 2014 Plan was initially 5,800,ordinary shares as of the date of its apprdya.number of shares reserved for future
issuances under the 2014 Plan will be increaseamivatically if and whenever the ordinary sharesmeskunder the 2014 Plan account for les:
than 1% of the total then-issued and outstandidgary shares on an as-converted basis, as a ofsultich increase the ordinary shares
reserved under the 2014 Plan immediately after sach increase shall equal 5% of the then-issudaatstanding ordinary shares on an as-
converted basis.

The options granted under the 2008 plan have aamngl term of six years, and ones under 2014 dae a contractual term of ten
years. The incentive awards under both 2008 pldr2@id4 plan vest over a period of four years oficoious service, one fourth (1/4) of wh
vest upon the first anniversary of the stated mgstommencement date and the remaining vest rataelythe following 36 months. Under the
2008 plan, incentive awards are only exercisabtsugzcurrence of certain defined exercisable evaiis Group did not recognize any share-
based compensation expense for the awards grantiéthe completion of the Company’s IPO on May20;14 upon which the performance
condition was satisfied. Share-based compensatipanse of RMB39,172,678 was recognized for the gaded December 31, 2014.

Share options

The following table summarizes the Company’s op#otivities:

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Remaining Aggregate Intrinsic Grant Date
Options Price Contractual Life Value Fair Value
uss In Years uss
Outstanding at January 1, 20 17,631,95 0.37 3.67 28,284,72 0.4¢
Granted 6,477, 00C 3.0¢ — — 3.57
Exercisec (2,332,85) 0.24 — — 0.1z
Forfeited (510,256 2.1¢€ — — 1.4¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 21,265,84 1.17 4 8¢ 60,164,81 1.4
Vested and expected to vest at Decembe
2014 20,614,68 1.1¢ 4.82 58,822,48 1.41
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 10,127,64. 0.31 2.617 37,387,10 0.3¢
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1 0. Share -based Compensation Expenses - contidue

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated aglifierence between the exercise price of the optamd the estimated fair value of the
underlying shares at each reporting date.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised thoe year ended December 31, 2014 was RMB68,093168810,974,710). No options
were exercised in the years ended December 31,2012013.

The total fair value of share options vested dutirgyear ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2684RMB5,507,749,
RMB8,340,955, and RMB23,849,260 (US$3,843,803peetvely.

The grant date fair value of each option is cakedlaising a binomial option pricing model with fo#owing assumptions:

2012 2013 2014
Expected volatility 55% 50-52% 50-51.1%
Risk-free interest rat 1.52% 1.06-1.75% 1.9¢-2.6%
Exercise multiple 2.2-2.8 2.2-2.8 2.2-2.8
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Expected term (in year 6 6 6-10
Expected forfeiture rate (p«-vesting) 0-20% 0-20% 0-20%
Fair value of the common share on the date of of USS$0.7¢ US$0.911.9¢ US$3.336.9¢
grant RMBA4.7¢ RMB5.63-12.2¢ RMB20.6¢-43.31

The Company estimated the expected volatility atdate of grant date and each option valuationlizéed on the annualized standard
deviation of the daily return embedded in histdrgteare prices of comparable companies. Risk fresést rate was estimated based on the
yield to maturity of US treasury bonds denominatedS$ at the option valuation date. The exercisétipie is estimated as the ratio of f
value of underlying shares over the exercise @&at the time the option is exercised, basedammsideration of research study regarding
exercise pattern based on empirical studies oachel exercise behavior of employees. The Compasynever declared or paid any cash
dividends on its capital stock, and the Companysdud anticipate any dividend payments on its @dirshares in the foreseeable future.
Expected term is the contract life of the optiomd @stimated forfeiture rates are determined basdustorical employee turnover rate.

On May 15, 2014, the Company modified the exerpisee of 576,000 share options granted on Aprd14 from US$5.00 to US$3.00.
The incremental compensation expense of RMB1,633R5$275,505) was equal to the excess of thevédire of the modified award
immediately after the modification over the faituw@of the original award immediately before thedification. The incremental compensation
expense will be recognized over the remaining serperiod.

On October 8, 2014, the Company extended the arii@of 2,159,812 share options granted und@82t@lan from six years to ten
years. The incremental compensation expense waatenia and was recognized immediately since thmog were fully vestec

As of December 31, 2014, there was RMB144,918,48%@3,356,607) in total unrecognized compensatipemse related to unvested
options, which is expected to be recognized owgeighted-average period of 3.52 years.

Restricted shares

The fair value of restricted shares with serviceditions or performance conditions is based orfaremarket value of the underlying
ordinary shares on the date of grant.

The following table summarizes the Company’s retd shares activity under the option plans:

Numbers of Weighted

restricted average grant

shares date fair value
Outstanding as of December 31, 3 — —
Grant 210,00( 3.3¢€
Vested (30,619 3.3¢€
Forfeited — —
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 179,38. 3.3¢€
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 179,38 3.3¢
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1 0. Share -based Compensation Expenses - contidue

As of December 31, 2014, there was RMB3,666, 699%&90, 963 ) in total unrecognized compensatiores@ related to restricted

shares, which is expected to be recognized ovesighted-average period of 3.35 years.

11.Loss P er Share

The following table sets forth the computation aéic and diluted loss per share for the periodEated:

For the Years Ended December 3!

2012 2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c),

Numerator:
Net loss (107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,851 (72,181,58])
Deemed dividends upon redesignation of Series

Preferred Share — (59,428,40) — —
Deemed dividends upon modification of Series D

Preferred Share — — (15, 605, 90¢) (2,515, 21€)
Numerator for basic and diluted net loss per s (107,189,92) (139,060,47) (463,463,755 (74,696, 797)
Denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstandin-basic and dilute: 26,000,00 26,000,00 105, 746, 315 105, 746, 315
Loss per sha-basic and dilute (4.12) (5.3 (4.3¢) (0.7))

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 ant] #88 Company had securities which could potdptalute basic loss per share in
the future, which were excluded from the computatibdiluted loss per share as their effects wdalde been anti-dilutive. Such outstanding

securities consist of the following:

2012 2013 2014
Series A Preferred Shar 13,506,74 13,506,74 —
Series B Preferred Shar 21,564,11 21,564,11 —
Series C Preferred Shai 25,782,05 25,782,05 —
Series D Preferred Shar 21,771,47 21,771,47 —
Options and restricted shares 10,587,77 17,631,95 21,445,22
Total 93,212, 162 100, 256, 344 21,445,22

1 2. Restricted Net Assets

Pursuant to laws applicable to entities incorpatatethe PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries and AfidéhEntities in the PRC must make
appropriations from after-tax profit to non-distribble reserve funds. These reserve funds inclndeoomore of the following: (i) a general
reserve, (i) an enterprise expansion fund anpgigtaff bonus and welfare fund. Subject to certaimulative limits, the general reserve fund
requires an annual appropriation of 10% of aftertfit (as determined under accounting princigleserally accepted in the PRC at each
yealend) until the accumulative amount of such reséme reaches 50% of a compasyégistered capital; the other fund appropriatemesa
the subsidiaries’ discretion. These reserve fumaisanly be used for specific purposes of entergnigmnsion and staff bonus and welfare and
are not distributable as cash dividends. In addlititue to restrictions on the distribution of sheapital from the Group’s PRC subsidiaries anc
Affiliated Entities and also as a result of thenétes’ unreserved accumulated losses, totaliotistins placed on the distribution of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries and Affiliated Entities’ net assgas RMB 721 million , or 51% of the Group’s tatansolidated net assets as of

December 31, 2014.
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13 . Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group leases its facilities and offices under-nancelable operating lease agreements. Cefttiese arrangements contain free or
escalating rent clauses. The Group recognizeslrexpanse under such arrangements on a straighbdnis over the lease term. Rental
expenses amounting to RMB13,815,974, RMB12,58268831BRMB15,969,051 during the years ended Decenthet(@.2, 2013 and 2014,

respectively, were charged to the statement of cehgmsive loss when incurred.

As of December 31, 2014, future minimum commitmemtder non-cancelable agreements were as follows:

Years Ending December 31, RMB US$

2015 22,501,85 3,626, 641
2016 21,450,60 3,457, 21C
2017 18,894,22 3,045, 19¢
2018 13,235,80 2,133,224
2019 13,162,29 2,121, 37¢
Thereafter 19,611,94 3,160, 871
Total 108, 856, 71¢ 17,544,51¢

(b) Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2014, capital commitments ned¢ptd leasehold improvement and purchase of equipmiere approximately
RMB1,438,502.

(c) Contingencies

From time to time, the Group is involved in claiarsd legal proceedings that arise in the ordinatysmof business. Based on currently
available information, management does not belibaethe ultimate outcome of these unresolved mstitedividually and in the aggregate, is
likely to have a material adverse effect on theupi® financial position, results of operations asle flows. However, litigation is subject to
inherent uncertainties and the Group’s view of ¢h@satters may change in the future. If an unfaverabtcome were to occur, there exists the
possibility of a material adverse impact on the@rs financial position and results of operatioosthe periods in which the unfavorable
outcome occurs.

14. Related Party Transactions and Balances

Ctrip Investment Holding Ltd.(“Ctrip” ) has one dator in common with the Company. Ctrip has purele 731,034 of Class A
ordinary shares for a total proceeds of US$15 amlthrough the private placement transaction inebdzer 2014. Ctrip also acted as service
provider to the Group, and the associated comnmidsie was immaterial.
15. Subsequent Events

In March 2015, the Group entered into agreemenégdoire the majority of shares of two travel agesiceach of which has a license to
sell and operate Taiwan tours in mainland China atguisitions closed on April 1, 2015. Total ceshsiderations are approximately RMB56

million subject to closing conditions and adjusttisanhich are expected to complete in the secondejuaf 2015.
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December 31

2013 2014
US$ (Note 2(c).
ASSETS
Current assets
. 1,323,279
Cash and cash equivalents 301,976,51 66€ 213, 273, 96¢
Amounts due from subsidiari 17,860,04 17,999, 974 2,901, 06¢
Prepayments and other current assets 1,247,81 1,561, 05¢& 251, 597
Total current assets 1,342,840
321,084,37 69¢ 216,426, 63¢
Other non-current assets 2,127,18 — =
Total assets 1,342, 84Q
323,211,55 69¢ 216,426, 63¢
LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY/(DEFICIT)
Current liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,722,121 16,722,535 2,695,184
Total current liabilities 4,722,12! 16,722,535 2,695,184
Non-current liabilities
Investments (deficit) in subsidiaries and VIE 27,133,71 (82, 605, 05E) (13, 313, 51§)
Total n on-current liabilities 27,133,71 (82, 605, 05E) (13,313, 51¢)
Total liabilities 31,855,83 (65,882,520) (10,618, 334)
Mezzanine equity
Series A Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000Y{aae; 20,000,000 and
nil shares authorized as of December 31, 2013 arwgber 3 1, 2014,
respectively, 13,506,748 and nil shares issuedatstanding as of
December 31, 203 andDecember 3:, 2014respectively) 9,360,44. — —
Series B Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000%alae; 21,564,115 ant
nil shares authorized , issued and outstanding Becember 31, 2013 an
December3 1, 2014, respectivel) 48,890,11 — —
Series C Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000¢gbae; 25,782,056 and
nil shares authorized , issued and outstanding Be@ember 31, 2013 and
December 3, 2014, respectivel) 290,255,69 — —
Series D Convertible Preferred Shares (US$0.000¢gae; 21,771,472 an
nil shares authorized , issued and outstanding Be@ember 31, 2013 an
December 3;, 2014, respectivel) 367,934, 99 — —
Total mezzanine equity 716,441, 243 — —
Shareholders equity/(deficit)
Ordinary shares (US$0.0001 par value; 126,999,581oazed and
26,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as ofiibere31, 2013;
1,000,000,000 shares (including 780,000,000 Claskakes, 120,000,00(
Class B shares and 100,000,000 shares to be de=ignathe Board of
Directors) authorized and 188,435,922 shares (ictu82,487,876
Class A shares and 105, 948 , 046 Class B shiaseed and outstanding
as ofDecember 3;, 2014) 17,751 121,068 19,513
Additional paid-in capital 2,298, 726
200,00( 63¢ 370, 487, 48%
Accumulated other comprehensive i (29,723,27) (21,080, 72¢) (3,397,597)
Accumulated deficit (405,580,00) (869,043,761) (140,064,430
Total shareholders’ equity/( deficit ) 1,408, 72321
(425,085,51) 8 227,044,969
Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and shareholdes’ equity/( deficit ) 1,342 ,84Q

323,211,55 69¢

216, 426, 63¢
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Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Operating expense
Research and product developm
Sales and marketir
General and administrati
Share of loss of subsidiaries and affiliated ezg
Other operating income
Total operating expense:
Loss from operations
Other income/(expense
Interest incom
Foreign exchange related gains/(losses),net
Loss before income tax exper
Income tax expense
Net loss
Deemed dividends to preferred shareholders
Net loss attributable to ordinary shareholders

Net loss
Other comprehensive lo

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofanil
Comprehensive los:

For the Years Ended December 3!

2012

2013

2014

US$ (Note 2(c).

(2,090,10)

(4,026,49)

(5,617,461

(905, 371)

(108,975,73) (77,414,05) (446,158,957 (71,907, 771)
— — 415, 25¢ 66, 92¢
(111,065,83) (81,440,54) (451,361,164 (72,746,210
(111,065,83) (81,440,54) (451,361,164 _ (72,746,21))
4,356,80 1,737,57; 6,618,634 1,066, 73C
(480,89:) 70,89+ (3,115,321 (502, 097)
(107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,851) (72,181,581)
(107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,85) (72,181,58)
— (59,428,40) (15,605,908 (2,515, 21€)

(107,189,92)

(139,060,47)

(463,463,75)

(74,696, 797)

(107,189,92) (79,632,07) (447,857,85) (72,181,581)
(237,28) (5,331,21)  (1,357,458) (218, 783)
(107,427,20) (84,963,29) _ (449,215,30) (7 2,400,36.)
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Cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash used in investing activiti

Cash provided by financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

Supplemental disclosure of hon-cash investing and
financing activities

Deemed dividends to preferred shareholi

Accrued issuance cost related to private placel

Accrual related to deferred initial public offeriegsts

Receivables related to exercise of stock of

For the Years Ended December 3!

2012

2013

2014

US$ (Note 2(c).

(489,139 (3,057,85) 2,636,38 424,90¢

(148,778,74) (93,595,11) (518, 689, 9 18) (83,597,64))
1,540, 396

— 306,360,47 65¢ 248,266, 87€

(717,849 (5,250,51) (3,039,977 (489, 95E)
1,021,303

(149,985,72) 204,456,98 151 164,604, 18¢

247,505,25 97,519,53 301,976, 515 48,669, 78C
1,323,279

97,519,53 301,976,51 66€ 213,273, 96¢

— 59,428,40 15, 605, 90¢€ 2,515,21

— — 14,076,28 2,268,68!

— 2,127,18 — —

— — (1,019,74) (164,359
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TUNIU CORPORATION

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPA NY
Note to Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule | has been provided pursuant to the remeints of Rule 12-04(a) and 5-04-(c) of RegulaBex, which require condensed
financial information as to the financial positiatange in financial position and results of operet of a parent company as of the same date
and for the same periods for which audited conatdid financial statements have been presented thikaestricted net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries exceed 25 percent of consolidatedsssits as of the end of the most recently compfistesl year.

The condensed financial information has been pegpasing the same accounting policies as set datiaccompanying consolidated
financial statements except that the equity mettasibeen used to account for investments in itsidialies and VIE. Such investments in
subsidiaries are presented on the balance sheietgeatment (deficit) in subsidiaries and VIE ahd toss of the subsidiaries is presented as
share of loss of subsidiaries and VIE.

Certain information and footnote disclosures nolynakcluded in financial statements prepared inoadance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amenaae been condensed or omitted. The footnote digids contain supplemental information
relating to the operations of the Company anduahk,gshese statements should be read in conjungitbrthe notes to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no sigmificapital and other commitments, long-term attiams, or guarantee, except for
those which have separately disclosed in the ca@ated financial statements.
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Exhibit 4.12

Execution Versior

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
This Subscription Agreement (this * Agreem&nis made as of December 15, 2014 by and among:
(1) Tuniu Corporation , a company incorporated in tlagr@an Islands (the * Compafiy and
(2) the purchasers listed on Schedule | hereto (thectasers,” and each a “Purchaser”).
The Purchasers and the Company are sometimesefadted to herein as a “ Partyand collectively as the * Partie’s

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS , the Company desires to issue and s#figd’urchasers, and each of the Purchaser, sgvanalinot jointly, wishes to
purchase from the Company Class A ordinary shdr@sdinary Share$) of the Company in a private placement exempitfregistration
pursuant to Regulation S of the U.S. Securitiesdfdt933, as amended (* Regulatiofi &d the “ Securities Act respectively);

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoiagitals and the mutual promises hereinafter s#t fthe Parties hereto agree
as follows:

ARTICLE |
PURCHASE AND SALE

Section 1.llssuance, Sale and Purchase of Ordinary Shatpsn the terms and subject to the conditionfisf Agreement, at the
Closing (as defined below), each Purchaser agoeggrthase, severally and not jointly, and the Camypagrees to sell and issue to each
Purchaser, that number of shares of Ordinary Starémt amount of consideration set forth oppasdteh Purchaser’s name on Schedule |
hereto, free and clear of all liens or Encumbrarasedefined below (except for restrictions arigingler the Securities Act or created by virtue
of this Agreement, including the loalp provision in Section 3.1 below). The shares afi@ary Shares issued to the Purchasers pursu#mis
Agreement shall be referred to as the Purchase§ha




Section 1.2Closing.

(a) Closing Subject to Section 1.3, the closing (the “ Gigs) of the sale and purchase of the Ordinary Shpuesuant to
Section 1.1 shall take place at the offices of Skad Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, at 42/F, bdirgh Tower, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong, ddecember 31, 2014r at such other time and place as the Companytencelevant Purchaser may mutually
agree. The date and time of the Closing are e herein as the_* Closing Date

(b) Payment and Delivery At the Closing, each Purchaser shall, severaily not jointly, pay and deliver the total consatiem to
the Company in U.S. dollars by wire transfer, orsbigh other method mutually agreeable to the garieimmediately available funds to such
bank account designated in writing by the Compang, the Company shall deliver one or more duly eteztshare certificates in original
form, registered in the name of such Purchaseetlag with a certified true copy of the registenembers of the Company, evidencing the
Ordinary Shares being issued and sold to such Bsech

(c) Restrictive LegendEach certificate representing the Purchased Sistua| be endorsed with the following legend:

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SHRITIES ACT OF 1933 (AS AMENDED, THE “ACT”) OR
UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE. THIS SECURY MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR OFFERED
FOR SALE: (A) IN THE ABSENCE OF (1) AN EFFECTIVE RESTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE ACT, OR (2) AN
EXEMPTION OR QUALIFICATION UNDER APPLICABLE SECURIIES LAWS, AND IN THE CASE OF CLAUSE (2),
UNLESS THE COMPANY RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSELERSONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY
THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED; AND (B) WHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO ANY U.S. PERSON, AS
EACH OF THOSE TERMS IS DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNBETHE ACT, DURING THE 40 DAYS FOLLOWING
CLOSING OF THE PURCHASE. ANY ATTEMPT TO TRANSFER GHELL THIS SECURITY IN VIOLATION OF THESE
RESTRICTIONS SHALL BE VOID.

Section 1.3Closing Conditions

(a) Conditions to Purchaséf@bligations to Effect the ClosingThe obligation of the Purchasers to purchasepagdor the
Purchased Shares as contemplated by this Agreaesnautbject to the satisfaction, on or before thaeslg Date, of the following conditions,
any of which may be waived in writing by each Pasér in its or his sole discretion:
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(i) All corporate and other actions required tatdleen by the Company in connection with the isseaard sale of the Purchased
Shares shall have been completed.

(ii) The representations and warranties of the Camgpzontained in Section 20f this Agreement shall have been true and
correct on the date of this Agreement and truecamckct in all material respects on and as of tlhsi@g Date; and the Company shall have
performed and complied in all material respect$wait, and not be in breach or default in any mateespects under any, agreements,
covenants, conditions and obligations containgtiimmAgreement that are required to be performecbarplied with on or before the Closing
Date.

(iii) No governmental authority of competent juiistibn shall have enacted, issued, promulgatedyreadl or entered any law
(whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) tham effect and restrains, enjoins, prevents, jmithor otherwise makes illegal the
consummation of the transactions contemplated isyAgreement, or imposes any damages or penattiesrinection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement that are substantialation to the Company; and no action, suibcpeding or investigation shall have been
instituted by a governmental authority of compejarisdiction or threatened that seeks to restrijoin, prevent, prohibit or otherwise make
illegal the consummation of the transactions copiated by this Agreement, or imposes any damagpsalties in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement treasabstantial in relation to the Company.

(b) Conditions to Companhy Obligations to Effect the Closing he obligation of the Company to issue and &&llRurchased Shares
to each Purchaser as contemplated by this Agreeanerstubject to the satisfaction, on or beforeGlusing Date, of each of the following
conditions, any of which may be waived in writing the Company in its sole discretion:

(i) All corporate and other actions required tadleen by such Purchaser in connection with thehmage of the Purchased Shi
shall have been completed.

(i) The representations and warranties of sucltlfager contained in Section 2Pthis Agreement shall have been true and
correct on the date of this Agreement and truecamckct in all material respects on and as of tlhsi@g Date; and the Purchasers shall have
performed and complied in all material respect$ait, and not be in breach or default in any mateespect under any, agreements,
covenants, conditions and obligations containgtlimmAgreement that are required to be performecbarplied with on or before the Closing
Date.




(iii) No governmental authority of competent jutiisiibn shall have enacted, issued, promulgatedyreatl or entered any law
(whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) tham effect and restrains, enjoins, prevents, jmithor otherwise makes illegal the
consummation of the transactions contemplated isyAgreement, or imposes any damages or penattiesrinection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement that are substantialation to the Company; and no action, suibcpeding or investigation shall have been
instituted by a governmental authority of compefarisdiction or threatened that seeks to restmimjpin, prevent, prohibit or otherwise make
illegal the consummation of the transactions coplated by this Agreement, or imposes any damagpsalties in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement treasabstantial in relation to the Company.

ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1Representations and Warranties of the Compdare Company hereby represents and warrants teutehasers, as of tl
date hereof and as of the Closing Date, as follows:

(a) Due Formation The Company is a company duly incorporated asxampted company with limited liability, validly isxing and
in good standing under the laws of the Cayman ¢idaithe Company has all requisite power and authtaricarry on its business as it is
currently being conducted. Each Subsidiary (amddfbelow) has been duly organized, is validlysgrg and in good standing under the laws
of its jurisdiction of organization, and has thquisite corporate power and authorization to owasé and operate its properties and to car
its business as now being conducted and as deddritibe SEC Documents (as defined below).

(b) Authority. The Company has full power and authority to emtter, execute and deliver this Agreement and @achement,
certificate, document and instrument to be execatetldelivered by the Company pursuant to this &guent and to perform its obligations
hereunder. The execution and delivery by the Compéithis Agreement and the performance by the Gongpf its obligations hereunder
have been duly authorized by all requisite actmmgts part.

(c) Valid Aareement This Agreement has been duly executed and deliviey the Company and constitutes the legal, i
binding obligation of the Company, enforceable aggit in accordance with its terms, except (i)imited by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and otlerd of general application affecting enforcementreflitors’ rights generally, and (ii) as
limited by laws relating to the availability of spic performance, injunctive relief, or other etlile remedies.
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(d) Capitalization

(i) All outstanding shares of capital stock of tbempany and all outstanding shares of capital stb&ach of the Company’s
subsidiaries and consolidated affiliates (eactgalisidiary’ and collectively “ Subsidiarie’y have been issued and granted in compliance wit
(x) all applicable Securities Laws and other aggtlle laws and (y) all requirements set forth inl@pple contracts, without violation of the
preemptive rights, rights of first refusal or otlsamilar rights. “ Securities Lawsmeans the Securities Act , the United States Brgk Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Adtig listing rules of, or any listing agreement witle NASDAQ and any other applicable law regula
securities or takeover matters. Schedulsf this Agreement sets forth the share capitahef@ompany as of the date hereof, which shall
include the authorized and outstanding sharesmifatastock of the Company, including Class A andsS B ordinary shares. All issued and
outstanding Class A and Class B ordinary sharesalidly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

(ii) The rights of the Ordinary Shares to be issteethe Purchasers are as stated in the Fifth Aegtadd Restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Compas set out in the exhibit 3.2 of the Registratidatement.

(e) Due Issuance of the Purchased Shafée Purchased Shares have been duly authorizkdvaen issued and delivered to and
paid for by each Purchaser pursuant to this Agreemell be validly issued, fully paid and non-assable and free and clear of any pledge,
mortgage, security interest, encumbrance, liengehassessment, title defect, right of first rafusght of pre-emption, third party right or
interest, claim or restriction of any kind or nacollectively the “Encumbrances”), except fortrietions arising under the Securities Act or
created by virtue of this Agreement (including khek-up provision in Section 3.1 below) and upotivdey and entry into the register of
members of the Company will transfer to each Pusehgood and valid title to the Purchased Shares.

() Noncontravention Neither the execution and the delivery of thiggament, nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, will (i) violate any provisiofithe organizational documents of the Companiysdsubsidiaries or violate any
constitution, statute, regulation, rule, injunctijudgment, order, decree, ruling, charge, or otastriction of any government, governmental
entity or court to which the Company or its Subeiis is subject, or (ii) conflict with, result&nbreach of, constitute a default under, result in
the acceleration of or creation of an Encumbramzier or create in any party the right to acceter@rminate, modify, or cancel, any
agreement, contract, lease, license, instrumemthar arrangement to which the Company or its @idrges is a party or by which the
Company or its Subsidiaries is bound or to which afithe Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ assetssatgect. There is no action, suit or
proceeding, pending or threatened against the Coyngiaits Subsidiaries that questions the validityhis Agreement or the right of the
Company to enter into this Agreement or to consutartte transactions contemplated hereby.
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(g) Consents and Approvaldeither the execution and delivery by the Compafrihis Agreement, nor the consummation by the
Company of any of the transactions contemplatedihyemor the performance by the Company of thisesAgrent in accordance with its terms
requires the consent, approval, order or autheoatf, or registration with, or the giving notit® any governmental or public body or
authority or any third party, except such as haaenbor will have been obtained, made or given gurior to the Closing Date.

(h) Compliance with LawsThe business of the Company or its Subsidiasie®t being conducted in violation of any law or
government order applicable to the Company (indggdivithout limitation, the U.S. Foreign CorrupgPtices Act, as amended, and other anti
bribery laws of applicable jurisdictions) except folations which do not and would not have a MaleAdverse Effect. As used herein, “
Material Adverse Effect shall mean any event, fact, circumstance or aetue that, individually or in the aggregate witly ather events,
facts, circumstances or occurrences, results woatd reasonably be expected to result in a matedigerse change in or a material adverse
effect on any of (i) the financial condition, assdiabilities, results of operations, busines®rations, or prospects of the Company or its
Subsidiaries taken as a whole, except to the egtabtany such Material Adverse Effect results frggnthe public disclosure of the transacti
contemplated hereby in accordance with the terntBisfAgreement, (y) changes in generally acceptedunting principles that are generally
applicable to comparable companies, or (z) chaimggsneral economic and market conditions; ottl(@ ability of the Company to
consummate the transactions contemplated by thiselhgent and to timely perform its material obligat under the Agreement.

(i) SEC DocumentsThe Company has timely filed or furnished, asliapple, all reports, schedules, forms, statemantsother
documents required to be filed or furnished byithihe U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissi@®HC") pursuant to the Securities Act or
the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations plgated thereunder (all of the foregoing documéted with or furnished to the SEC and
all exhibits included therein and financial statetsenotes and schedules thereto and documentporated by reference therein being
hereinafter referred to as th&EC Documents’). As of their respective filing or furnishing det, the SEC Documents complied in all materiz
respects with the requirements of the SarbanesyGddeof 2002, the Securities Act or the Exchangs, As the case may be, and the rules an
regulations promulgated thereunder, as applicabléne respective SEC Documents, and, none of & Bocuments, at the time they were
filed or furnished, contained any untrue statenoérat material fact or omitted to state a mate@al fequired to be stated therein or necess:
order to make the statements therein, in the bfltiie circumstances under which they were mademnigleading. The information contained
in the SEC Documents, considered as a whole aathaaded as of the date hereof, do not as of tleeh@aeof, and will not as of the Closing
Date, contain any untrue statement of a materaldaomit to state a material fact necessary tkenthe statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not edshg. There are no contracts, agreements, arrarmgsntransactions or documents whict
are required to be described or disclosed in thé BRcuments or to be filed as exhibits to the SE€Wnents which have not been so
described, disclosed or filed. The Company is imgliance with the applicable listing and corporgdeernance rules and regulations of the
NASDAQ. The Company and its Subsidiaries have tal@action designed to, or reasonably likely toehthe effect of, delisting its AD¢
from the NASDAQ. The Company has not received astifination that the SEC or the NASDAQ is contentjplg suspending or terminating
such listing (or the applicable registration unter Exchange Act related thereto). The Company c@mpliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 in all material respects.




() Investment Company The Company is not and, after giving effectite issuance and sale of the Purchased Shares, the
consummation of the issuance and sale and thecafiph of the proceeds hereof and thereof, willb®an “‘investment company,” as such
term is defined in the U.S. Investment Company &940, as amended.

(k) Reqgulation S No directed selling efforts (as defined in R&G2 of Regulation S under the Securities Act) Hasen made by any
of the Company, any of its affiliates or any perseoting on its behalf with respect to any Purch&&leakes that are not registered under the
Securities Act; and none of such persons has takgmctions that would result in the sale of thecRased Shares to the Purchasers under thi
Agreement requiring registration under the Seasifct; and the Company is doteign issuer” (as defined in Regulation S). Assuming the
accuracy of the representations and warrantiefodhtin Section 2.2, it is not necessary in cotio&cwith the issuance and sale of the
Purchased Shares to register the Purchased Shateisthie Securities Act or to qualify or registes Purchased Shares under applicable U.S.
state securities laws.




() Events Subsequent to Most Recent Fiscal Per&idce December 31, 2013 until the date hereotarite Closing Date, there has
not been any events that, to the Company’s knoveleddl have a Material Adverse Effect.

(m) Litigation. There are no actions by or against the Compaiitg @ubsidiaries or affecting the business orafthe assets of the
Company or its Subsidiaries pending before any gowental authority, or, to the Company’s knowledfjegatened to be brought by or before
any governmental authority, that would have a Matédverse Effect.

(n) Solicitation. Neither the Company nor any person acting ohétsalf has offered or sold the Purchased Sharesyyorm of
general solicitation or general advertising or clieel selling efforts.

Section 2.2Representations and Warranties of the Purchaggaesh Purchaser hereby represents and warrangsalig and not
jointly, to the Company, as of the date hereof andf the Closing Date, as follov

(a) Due Formation Such Purchaser is duly formed, validly existing & good standing in the jurisdiction of its angaation. Such
Purchaser has all requisite power and authoritatoy on its business as it is currently being cmbeld.

(b) Authority. Such Purchaser has full power and authority terénto, execute and deliver this Agreement aruth egreement,
certificate, document and instrument to be execatetldelivered by such Purchaser pursuant to thieément and to perform its obligations
hereunder. The execution and delivery by such Rwsehof this Agreement and the performance by Bucbhaser of its obligations hereunder
have been duly authorized by all requisite actmmgs part.

(c) Valid Agreement This Agreement has been duly executed and deliviey such Purchaser and constitutes the legéd, amd
binding obligation of such Purchaser, enforceabkrsst it in accordance with its terms, excepaélimited by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and otlagrd of general application affecting enforcementreflitors’ rights generally, and (ii) as
limited by laws relating to the availability of spic performance, injunctive relief, or other etplile remedies.

(d) NoncontraventionNeither the execution and the delivery of thiséament, nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, will (i) violate any provisiohthe organizational documents of such Purchaiseiolate any constitution, statute,
regulation, rule, injunction, judgment, order, degrruling, charge, or other restriction of anyowvnent, governmental entity or court to wt
such Purchaser is subject, or (ii) conflict withsult in a breach of, constitute a default undzsult in the acceleration of or creation of an
encumbrance under, or create in any party the taghtcelerate, terminate, modify, or cancel, agng@ment, contract, lease, license,
instrument, or other arrangement to which such Rager is a party or by which such Purchaser isdouno which any of such Purchaser’s
assets are subject. There is no action, suit aregating, pending or threatened against such Puactizs questions the validity of this
Agreement or the right of such Purchaser to enterthis Agreement or to consummate the transaxttontemplated hereby.
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(e) Consents and Approvaldleither the execution and delivery by such Pwehaf this Agreement, nor the consummation by suct
Purchaser of any of the transactions contemplateebly, nor the performance by such Purchaser @#thieement in accordance with its tel
requires the consent, approval, order or authaoatf, or registration with, or the giving notit® any governmental or public body or
authority or any third party, except such as haaenbor will have been obtained, made or given gurior to the Closing Date.

() Status and Investment Intent

(i) Experience Such Purchaser has sufficient knowledge and eqpe in financial and business matters so as tapable of
evaluating the merits and risks of its investmarthie Purchased Shares. Such Purchaser is cafpddaaring the economic risks of such
investment, including a complete loss of its inwestt.

(i) Purchase Entirely for Own AccounSuch Purchaser is acquiring the Purchased Stieaei is purchasing pursuant to this
Agreement for investment for its own account fordstment purposes only and not with the view tayithh any intention of, resale, distributi
or other disposition thereof. Such Purchaser doebave any direct or indirect arrangement, or ustdading with any other persons to
distribute, or regarding the distribution of theréhased Shares in violation of the Securities Ay other applicable state securities law.

(i) Solicitation . Such Purchaser was not identified or contactezlitih the marketing of the Purchase Shares. Suicth&ser
did not contact the Company as a result of any géselicitation or directed selling efforts.

(iv) Restricted SecuritiesSuch Purchaser acknowledges that the PurchasedsSdre “restricted securities” that have not beer
registered under the Securities Act or any appleatate securities law. Such Purchaser furthem@gledges that, absent an effective
registration under the Securities Act, the Purcti&gares may only be offered, sold or otherwisesteared (x) to the Company, (y) outside
United States in accordance with Rule 904 of Remre5 under the Securities Act or (z) pursuardriexemption from registration under the
Securities Act.




(v) Not U.S. PersonSuch Purchaser is not a “U.S. person” as defim&lle 902 of Regulation S.

(vi) Offshore TransactionSuch Purchaser has been advised and acknowlgdges issuing the Purchased Shares to such
Purchaser pursuant hereto, the Company is relypog the exemption from registration provided by Ratjon S. Such Purchaser is acquiring
the Purchased Shares in an offshore transactimliamce upon the exemption from registration pded by Regulation S.

ARTICLE Il
COVENANTS

Section 3.1Lock-up. Each of the Purchasers agrees that it or henwf|lduring the period commencing on the datedfexrd ending
six months after the Closing Date (the “ Ledk Period”), (1) offer, sell, contract to sell, sell any @pt or contract to purchase, purchase any
option or contract to sell, grant any option, rightvarrant to purchase, lend, or otherwise trarmfeispose of, directly or indirectly, any of
Purchased Shares or (2) enter into any swap or atrengement that transfers to another, in whola part, any of the economic
consequences of ownership of the Purchased Shaeeh Purchaser further understands that the poogi®f this Section 3.1 shall be binding
upon the Purchaser’s legal representatives, sumsegsd assigns.

Section 3.2Distribution Compliance Period Each of the Purchaser agrees not to reselaoster any Purchased Shares within the
United States or to any U.S. Person, as each eéttesms is defined in Regulation S, during theldgs following the Closing Date.

Section 3.3Further AssurancesFrom the date of this Agreement until the Clodirage, (i) the Parties shall use their reasonaéét b
efforts to fulfill or obtain the fulfillment of theonditions precedent to the consummation of testctions contemplated hereby, and (ii) the
Company shall, and shall cause each of its SubiEdito (x) conduct its business and affairs indtdinary course of business consistent with
past practice, (y) not take any action, or omiake any action, that would reasonably be expdctedake any of its representations and
warranties in this Agreement untrue at, or as gftane before, the Closing Date.
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ARTICLE IV
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 4.1llndemnification. The Company (an_* Indemnifying Pafyshall indemnify and hold each Purchaser andeigpective
directors, officers and agents (collectively, thedemnified Party) harmless from and against any losses, claimsadgs, liabilities,
judgments, fines, obligations, expenses and lizsliof any kind or nature whatsoever, including oot limited to any investigative, legal a
other expenses incurred in connection with, andaamgunts paid in settlement of, any pending oratiereed legal action or proceeding, and
taxes or levies that may be payable by such pdrgaaason of the indemnification of any indemnifealoss hereunder (collectively, “ Losses
") resulting from or arising out of: (i) the breaohany representation or warranty of such Indewimif Party contained in this Agreement or in
any schedule or exhibit hereto; or (ii) the viadatior nonperformance, partial or total, of any a@m or agreement of such Indemnifying Party
contained in this Agreement for reasons other trass negligence or willful misconduct of such Imshéfied Party. In calculating the amount
of any Losses of an Indemnified Party hereundergtishall be subtracted the amount of any insurprazeeds and third-party payments
received by the Indemnified Party with respectuohsLosses, if any.

Section 4.2Third Party Claims

(a) If any third party shall notify any Indemnifi€hrty in writing with respect to any matter invioly a claim by such third party (a “
Third Party Claini’) which such Indemnified Party believes would gige to a claim for indemnification against theémnifying Party under
this Article IV, then the Indemnified Party shall promptly (i) ifothe Indemnifying Party thereof in writing withithirty (30) days of receipt
of notice of such claim and (ii) transmit to theémnifying Party a written notice (* Claim Noti€edescribing in reasonable detail the nature
of the Third Party Claim, a copy of all papers serwith respect to such claim (if any), and thédasthe Indemnified Party’s request for
indemnification under this Agreement.

(b) Upon receipt of a Claim Notice with respecat®hird Party Claim, the Indemnifying Party shallk the right to assume the
defense of any Third Party Claim by, within (30yda&f receipt of the Claim Notice, notifying thedemnified Party in writing that the
Indemnifying Party elects to assume the defenseich Third Party Claim, and upon delivery of suoliae by the Indemnifying Party, the
Indemnifying Party shall have the right to fullyrtool and settle the proceeding, provided, thag, sarch settlement or compromise shall be
permitted hereunder only with the written consdrthe Indemnified Party.
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(c) If requested by the Indemnifying Party, thedmuhified Party shall, at the sole cost and expeh#iee Indemnifying Party,
cooperate with the Indemnifying Party and its calims contesting any Third Party Claim which theémnifying Party elects to contest,
including the making of any related counterclaimaiagt the person asserting the Third Party Claimngrcross complaint against any person.
The Indemnified Party shall have the right to reeaiopies of all pleadings, notices and commurooativith respect to any Third Party Claim,
other than any privileged communications betweentkdemnifying Party and its counsel, and shakmitled, at its sole cost and expense, to
retain separate co-counsel and participate innbutontrol, any defense or settlement of any TRiady Claim assumed by the Indemnifying
Party pursuant to Section 4.2(b)

(d) In the event of a Third Party Claim for whit¢tetindemnifying Party elects not to assume therdefer fails to make such an
election within the 30 days of the Claim Notices thdemnified Party may, at its option, defendtleetompromise or pay such action or claim
at the expense of the Indemnifying Party; providbdt, any such settlement or compromise shalldmmitted hereunder only with the written
consent of the Indemnifying Party, which consemilstot be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Section 4.30ther Claims In the event any Indemnified Party should haeéan against the Indemnifying Party hereunder Wwhic
does not involve a Third Party Claim, the IndenadfParty shall promptly transmit to the Indemnifyiarty a written notice (the * Indemnity
Notice”) describing in reasonable detail the nature ef¢taim, the Indemnified Party’s best estimatehefamount of Losses attributable to
such claim and the basis of the Indemnified Pargtgiest for indemnification under this Agreemdinthe Indemnifying Party does not notify
the Indemnified Party within thirty (30) days frdta receipt of the Indemnity Notice that the Indéfying Party disputes such claim, the
Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have accegeidagreed with such claim.

Section 4.4Cap. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Indemnifyingr® shall have no liability (for indemnificatiom otherwise) with
respect to any Losses in excess of the Purchase. Pri

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 5.1Survival of the Representations and Warranti&b representations and warranties made by amtyRaall survive for twi
years and shall terminate and be without furthese@r effect on the second anniversary of the leteof, except as to (i) any clai
thereunder which have been asserted in writingyauntsto Section 4.1 against the Party making sepresentations and warranties on or prior
to such second anniversary, and (ii) the Compampsesentations contained in Section 2.1(a), ())(d) and (e) hereof, each of which shall
survive indefinitely.

12




Section 5.2Governing Law; Arbitration This Agreement shall be governed and interpretedcordance with the internal laws of
State of New York. Any dispute arising out of efating to this Agreement, including any questiegarding its existence, validity or
termination (“_Disput€) shall be referred to and finally resolved byiamdiion at the Hong Kong International Arbitrati@entre in accordance
with the Hong Kong International Arbitration Cenkdministered Arbitration Rules then in force. Téashall be three arbitrators. Each Party
has the right to appoint one arbitrator and thedtarbitrator shall be appointed by the Hong Komiginational Arbitration Centre. The
language to be used in the arbitration proceedihgl be English. Each of the Parties irrevocatdywes any immunity to jurisdiction to whi
it may be entitled or become entitled (includingheiut limitation sovereign immunity, immunity toggaward attachment, post-award
attachment or otherwise) in any arbitration prooegsiand/or enforcement proceedings against ingrisut of or based on this Agreement or
the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 5.3Amendment This Agreement shall not be amended, changeddifiad, except by another agreement in writingoeec
by the Parties hereto.

Section 5.4Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, drdbinding upon, each of the Company and the Rssst
and their respective heirs, successors and pedwiisigns and legal representatives.

Section 5.5Assignment Neither this Agreement nor any of the rightsjekibr obligations hereunder may be assigned by the
Company or the Purchasers without the expressanritbnsent of the other Party, except that thelgiers may assign all or any part of its
rights and obligations hereunder to any affiliat®orchasers without the consent of the Comparyyiged that no such assignment shall
relieve any Purchaser of its obligations hereuifdgrch assignee does not perform such obligatidng.purported assignment in violation of
the foregoing sentence shall be null and void.

Section 5.6Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other comeations under this Agreement shall be in writind ahall be
deemed to have been duly given on the date of leaélisiery if delivered personally to the Partyvithom notice is to be given, on the date sen
if sent by telecopier, tested telex or prepaidgeden, on the next business day following deliveryFéderal Express properly addressed or on
the day of attempted delivery by the U.S. Postalie if mailed by registered or certified mailfuen receipt requested, postage paid, and
properly addressed as follows:
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If to the Purchasers, ¢ The addresses set forthSchedule hereto.

If to the Company, a Tuniu Corporatior
Tuniu Building, No. 69-32
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu Distri
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 2100
Peopl¢s Republic of Chini
Attn: Chief Financial Office

Any Party may change its address for purposesi®&éction 5.y giving the other Parties hereto written noti€¢he new address
the manner set forth above.

Section 5.7Entire Agreement This Agreement constitutes the entire understandnd agreement between the Parties with regpect
the matters covered hereby, and all prior agreesreemd understandings, oral or in writing, if angtvizeen the Parties with respect to the me
covered hereby are merged and superseded by theemegnt. In particular, the Subscription Agreenignand between the Company and
Investment Holding Ltd entered into on December2lll4 is hereby terminated and superseded by tpisenent.

Section 5.8Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement shall be @iipated to be illegal, invalid or unenforceableairy action
or proceeding whether in its entirety or in anytjwor, then such provision shall be deemed ameritipdssible, or deleted, as the case may be
from the Agreement in order to render the remaimdéhe Agreement and any provision thereof botidvend enforceable, and all other
provisions hereof shall be given effect separatatyefrom and shall not be affected thereby.

Section 5.9Fees and Expense&xcept as otherwise provided in this Agreememtheof the Company and the Purchasers will bear
their respective expenses incurred in connectidh thie negotiation, preparation and execution isf Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby, including fees and expensatiarheys, accountants, consultants and finaadwkors..

Section 5.1QConfidentiality. Each Party shall keep in confidence, and shalluse (except for the purposes of the transactions
contemplated hereby) or disclose, any non-pubfmrimation disclosed to it or its affiliates, repeagatives or agents in connection with this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated her&agh Party shall ensure that its affiliates, repn¢atives and agents keep in confidence
do not use (except for the purposes of the traimgectontemplated hereby) or disclose, any suchputtic information.
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Section 5.11Specific PerformanceThe Parties agree that irreparable damage wadldran the event any provision of this
Agreement were not performed in accordance withtdhms hereof and that the Parties shall be edtitlespecific performance of the terms
hereof, in addition to any other remedy at law aquity.

Section 5.1ZTermination. In the event that the Closing shall not have oetlibyJanuary 15, 2015 this Agreement shall be

terminated unless the Parties mutually agree tegetiate; except for the provisions of Section®5vihich shall survive any termination under
this Section 5.12.

Section 5.13 PurchasetsSeveral ObligationsFor the avoidance of doubt, each of the Purchasbligations under this Agreement
shall be severally and not jointly.

Section 5.14Headings The headings of the various articles and sestifrthis Agreement are inserted merely for thgppse of
convenience and do not expressly or by implicaliimit, define or extend the specific terms of tleetion so designated.

Section 5.15%Execution in CounterpartsFor the convenience of the Parties and to fatéliexecution, this Agreement may be
executed in one or more counterparts, each of wdtieli be deemed to be an original, but all of Wwhigether shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thieé&ment to be executed as of the day and yeaafirste written.

TUNIU CORPORATION

By: /s/ Dunde YL

Name: Dunde Yu
Title: CEO

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thie&ment to be executed as of the day and yeaafirste written.
PURCHASER

JD.COM E-COMMERCE (INVESTMENT) HONG KONG
CORPORATION LIMITED

By: /s/ Qiangdong Lit

Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thieé&ment to be executed as of the day and yeaafirste written.

PURCHASER

UNICORN RICHES LIMITED

By: /s/ Shunlong Wan

Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thieé&ment to be executed as of the day and yeaafirste written.
PURCHASER
CTRIP INVESTMENT HOLDING LTD

By: /sl James Jianzhang Lia

Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thieé&ment to be executed as of the day and yeaafirste written.

PURCHASER

DRAGON RABBIT CAPITAL LIMITED

By: /s/ Dunde YL

Name: Dunde Yu
Title:  Director

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thieé&ment to be executed as of the day and yeaafirste written.
PURCHASER
VERNE CAPITAL LIMITED

By: /s/ Haifeng Yar

Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to Subscription Agreement]




SCHEDULE |

PURCHASERS
Investment Ordinary Shares to
Purchasers Amount be Purchased Notice Address
JD.com E-Commerce (Investment) US$50 million 12,436,780 Class A ordine ~ 10th Floor, Building A, North
Hong Kong Corporation Limited shares Star Century Center
No. 8 Beichen West Stre
Chaoyang District
Beijing 100101, China
Attn: Chief Financial Office
Unicorn Riches Limited, a Cayman US$50 million 12,436,780 Class A ordine  c/o Maples Corporate Services,
Islands company shares Limted
PO Box 309
Ugland House, Grand Cayman
KY1-1104, Cayman Islanc
Ctrip Investment Holding Ltd, a US$15 million 3,731,034 Class A ordinar 99 Fu Quan Road
Cayman Islands company shares Shanghai 200335
People’s Republic of China Attn:
Wenjie (Jenny) W1
Dragon Rabbit Capital Limited, a US$16.5 million 4,104,137 Class A ordinar ~ c/o Mr. Dunde Yu
British Virgin Islands company shares Tuniu Building, N0.699-32,
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 2100
China
Verne Capital Limited, a British US$16.5 million 4,104,137 Class A ordinar ~ c/o Mr. Haifeng Yan

Virgin Islands company

shares

Tuniu Building, N0.699-32,
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 2100
China




Authorized share capital as of the date of the Agement

Class A Ordinary Share

Class B Ordinary Shart
Ordinary Shares (Undesignatt
Total

Issued and outstanding as of the date of the Agreemt
Class A Ordinary Share

Class B Ordinary Shart
Total

Schedule Il

780,000,00
120,000,00
100,000,00
1,000,000,00

48,946,43
106,313,14
155,259,58




EXHIBIT 8.1

List of Principal Subsidiaries and Consolidated Afiliated Entities

Percentage o
direct or indirect

Place of economic
Name of Subsidiaries and VIE Incorporation ownership
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of the Company
Tuniu (HK) Limited Hong Kong 10(%
Tuniu (Nanjing) Information Technology Co., Li PRC 10C%
Beijing Tuniu Technology Co., Ltd“Beijing TuniL") PRC 100(%
Variable Interest Entity (“VIE")
Nanjing Tuniu Technology Co., Ltd“Nanjing Tunit”) PRC 100(%
Subsidiaries of Variable Interest Entity (‘ VIE subsidiaries”)
Shanghai Tuniu International Travel Service Cod, PRC 10(%
Nanjing Tuniu International Travel Service Co., L PRC 10C%
Beijing Tuniu International Travel Service Co., L PRC 10(%
Nanjing Tuzhilv Tickets Sales Co., L1 PRC 10C%
Zheijiang Zhongshan International Travel Service, Ctd. PRC 10C%
Tianjin Classic Holiday International Travel SemiCo., Ltd. PRC 9C%




EXHIBIT 12.1

Certification by the Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

[, Dunde Yu, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-Fufiu Corporation.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aardd,for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The company’s other certifying officer and | arspgensible for establishing and maintaining disalesiontrols and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the companyg have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedufies tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) [intentionally omitted];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disak controls and procedures and presented ingibést our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueydhis report based on such evaluatemg

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compmamternal control over financial reporting thatooed during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiafscedd, or is reasonably likely to materially affebe company’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | havectbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors #mg audit committee of the compasyoard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

€) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesigethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect¢henpany’s ability to record, process, summarizk @port financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
company’s internal control over financial reporting

Date: April 17, 2015
By: /s/Dunde Yu

Name: Dunde Yu
Title:  Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 12.2

Certification by the Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Conor Chia-hung Yang, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-Fufiu Corporation.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aardd,for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The company’s other certifying officer and | arspgensible for establishing and maintaining disalesiontrols and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the companyg have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedufies tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) [intentionally omitted];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disak controls and procedures and presented ingibést our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period couyelis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compmamternal control over financial reporting thatooed during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiafscedd, or is reasonably likely to materially affebe company’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | havectbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors #mg audit committee of the compasyoard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
function):

€) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesigethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect¢henpany’s ability to record, process, summarizk @port financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
company’s internal control over financial reporting

Date: April 17, 2015
By: /s/Conor Chi-hung Yang

Name: Conor Chii-hung Yanc
Title:  Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 13.1

Certification by the Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Tuniu Cagtdon (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the yeaded December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Dunde Yu, Gligecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtewf 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly fets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of
operations of the Company.

Date: April 17, 2015

By: /s/ Dunde YL
Name: Dunde Yu
Title:  Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 13.2

Certification by the Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Tuniu Cagtdon (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the yeaded December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Conor Chia-ptfang, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly fets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of
operations of the Company.

Date: April 17, 2015

By:  /s/ Conor Chi-hung Yanc
Name: Conor Chi-hung Yang
Title:  Chief Financial Office
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (333119) of Tuniu Corporation of our
report dated April 17, 2015 relating to the finadatatements and financial statement schedulgch appears in this Form 20-F .

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian |

Shangha, the Peopl's Republic of Chini
April 17, 2015

OUUooooooooD (ooooog)

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 11/F PriceneuseCoopers Cent

2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu mstBhanghai 200021, PRC
T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, wwwcpgn.com




Exhibit 15.2

Office: +852 2801 6066
Mobile:  +852 6621 8994
rthorp@traversthorpalberga.com

Tuniu Corporation.

Tuniu Building No. 699-32
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu District
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 2100
The People’s Republic of China

17 April 201¢
Dear Sirs

We have acted as legal advisers as to the lawsedEayman Islands to Tuniu Corporation, an exemiptated liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands (theCompany™”), in connection with the filing by the Companyttvithe United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the SEC") of an annual report on Form 20-F for the yeadlesh31 December 2014 Form 20-F").

We hereby consent to the reference of our namerdhdéeadings, “Iltem 10.E Additional Information-ax@tion—Cayman Islands Taxation”
and “ltem 16G. Corporate Governance” in the ForaF2@nd further consent to the incorporation byregiee of the summaries of our opini
under these captions into Tuniu Corporation’s ttegfion statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-1981ha) was filed on August 13, 2014.

Yours faithfully

/sl TRAVERS THORP ALBERGA
TRAVERS THORP ALBERGA

Tel: +852 1801 6066 12054 The Centrium
Fax: +B32 2BOI &7&7 60 VWyndham Street
www mmaversthorpalbergacom  Cenwral Hons Kone
Cayman [slands and British Virgin Islands Attorneys-at-Law
Resident Hong Kong Partners: Richard Thorp
Harriet Unger (England and ¥YWales), Everton Robereson
(England and Wales),  |os Briggs (England and Wales)




EXHIBIT 15.3
Consent of Jun He Law Offices
April 17, 201¢

Tuniu Corporation.

Tuniu Building No. 699-32
Xuanwudadao, Xuanwu District
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province 2100
The People’s Republic of China

Dear Sirs:

We hereby consent to the references to us by TQoiporation under the headings, “Item 3.D. Key infation—Risk Factors” and “Item 4.B.
Information on the Company—Business Overview—PR@uR&ion” in Tuniu Corporation’s Annual Report oorf 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 201 4 , which will be filed with thec8rities and Exchange Commission (hereinaftet BEC ") in the month of April 2015 .
We also consent to the filing with the SEC of ttd®sent as an exhibit to the Annual Report on F20 for the year ended December 31,
4.

Yours faithfully,

/s/ Jun He Law Office
Jun He Law Office:




